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March 4, 1996

Ms. Blanca S. Bayo
Director, Division of Records & Reporting
Florida Public Service Commission
2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard
Betty Easley Conference Center, Room 110
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850 Gﬂ{ 52"
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Dear Ms. Bayo:

Enclosed please find one original and six copies of BellSouth
Telecommunications' application for authority to provide Alternative
Local Exchange Service within the state of Florida. Included with
this application is proof from the Florida Secretary of State's
office of BellSouth Telecommunications' authority to do business in
the state and a check to cover the $250 application fee.

A copy of this letter is enclosed. Please mark it to indicate that
the original was filed and return the copy to me.

Sincerely yours,

Raéﬁtutorr Vice President

Enclosures
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1.

This 1s an application for (check one):
(x) Original authority (new company)

( ) Approval of transfer (to another certificated company)
, & certificated ¢ urchases
an axisting company and desires retain
the original certificate authority.

() Approval of assigment of existing certificate (to a
noncertificated company)

, a non-certificated cﬂmr
m’}:n an existing company and desires

to retain the certificate of authcrity
rather than apply for a new certificate.

() Approval for transfer of control (to another certificated company)
, a company purchases 51% of a
certificated company. The Commission must
approve the new controlling entity.

Name of applicant:
BellSouth Telecommunications, Inc.

A. National mailing address including street name, number, post office
box, city , state, zip code, and phone number.

675 West Peachtree Street, N.E.
Atlanta, Georgia 10375
(404) 529-5611

B. Florida mailing address including street name, number, post
office box, city , state, zip code, and phone number.

c/o Nancy H. Sims
150 So. Monroe Street, Suite 400
Tallahassee, FL 32301 (a04) 222-1201
C. Physical address of alternative local exchange service in Florida
including street name, number, post office box, city, zip code and phone
500 Morth Orange Avenuo
Orlando, Florida
(407) 245-2000

FORM PSC/CHU 8 (07/95)
Required by Chapter 364.337 F.S.




4.

5.

7.

10.

11.

Structure of organization:

Individual Corporation

Foreign Corporation Foreign Partnership
General Partnership Limited Partnership
Joint Venture Other, Please explain

If incorporated, please provide proof from the Florida Secretary of State
that the applicant has authority to operate in Florida.

Corporate charter number: P00329 (Scec attached certificate)

Name under which the applicant will do business (d/b/a):
BellSouth Telecommunications, Inc.

If applicable, please provide proof of fictitious name (d/b/a)
registration. _ = TR

Fictitious name registration number:

If applicant is an individual, partnership, or joint venture, please
give name, title and address of each legal entity.

Not applicable

State whether any of the officers, directors, or any of the ten largest
stockholders have previously been adjudged bankrupt, mentally incompetent,
or found guilty of any felony or of any crime, or whether such actions may
result from pending proceedings. I1f so, please explain.

Hone

Please provide the name, title, address, telephone number, internet
address, and facsimile number for the person serving as ongoing 1iaison
with 'I:Irm1 Commission, and if different, the 1iaison responsible for this
application.

Hancy H. Sims
Director - Requlatory Affairs
150 So. Monroe Street, Suite 400

Please 1ist other stakes i which the applicant is currently providing or
has applied to provide local exchange or alternative local exchange

service. Florida, Georgia, MNorth Caroclina, South Carolina, Alabama,
Mississippi, Kentucky, Tennessee, Louisana (local exchange service)

FORM PSC/CMU 8 (07/95)
Required by Chapter 364.337 F.S.




12.

13,

14.

15.

Has the applicant been denied certification in any other state? If so,
please 1ist the state and reason for denial.

Certificaction has never heunldenind in any state.

Have penalties been imposed against the applicant in any other state? If
so, please 1ist the state reason for penalty.

No penalties have been imposed in any other state.

Please indicate how a customer can file a service complaint with your

company. Customers may call 780-2355 or 1 (800) 753-2909 for residential

complaints or 780-2800 or 1 (B00) 753-0115 for business complaints.

Please provide all available documentation demonstrating that the
applicant has the following capabilities to provide alternative local
exchange service in Florida.
A. Financial capability. (See attached page for answer to 15(A.).
Regarding the showing of financial capability, the following applies:

The application should contain the applicant’s financial statements,
including:

1. the balance sheet
2. income statement
3, statement of retained earnings for the most recent 3 years.

1f available, the financial statements should be audited financial
statements.

I1f the applicant does not have audited financial statements, it shall
be so stated. The unaudited financial statements should then be signed by
the applicant’s chief executive officer and chief financial officer. The
signatures should affirm that the financial statements are true and

B. Managerial capability. We have provided management in the provisionings
and delivery of telecommunications services in our franchised territory

since 1921.

C. Technical capability. We have provided service successfully in our

franchised territory since 1921.

FORM PSC/CMU B (07/95)
Required by Chapter 364,337 F.S.

-4-




Answier to Question 15 (A.):

All of the requested financial information for BellSouth is already on
file with the Florida Public Service Commission. Also, please see the

attached documents.
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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K AS FILED

= ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d)
OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 193
For the Nscal year ended December 31, 1995

O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d)
OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transiticn period from to
Commission flle number 1-1049

BellSouth Telecommunications, Inc.

A Georgla LR.S. Employer
Corporation No. 58-0436120
675 West Peachtree Streel, N. E,, Atlants, Georgia 30375
Telephone number 404 529-B5611
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act:
Name of esch exchange
Title of esch class on which E‘imud
See Attachment. N_ﬂr York

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act:
None,

At February 19, 1996 one share of Common Stock was outstanding.

THE REGISTRANT, A WHOLLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARY OF BELLSOUTH CORPORATION,
MEETS THE CONDITIONS SET FORTH IN GENERAL INSTRUCTION J(1)(a) AND (b) OF
FORM 10-K AND IS THEREFORE FILING THIS FORM WITH REDUCED
DISCLOSURE FORMAT PURSUANT TO GENERAL INSTRUCTION J(2).

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not
contained herein, and will not be contained, to the best of registrant’s knowledge, in definitive proxy
or information statements incorporated by reference in Part III of this Form 10-K or any amendment
to this Form 10-K. [NOT APPLICABLE]

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by
Section 13 or 16(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such
shorter period that the registrant was required to flle such reports), and (2) has been subject to such

filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes X No __

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE:
None.




Title of each class

DEBENTURES
South Central Bell Telephone Company

$100,000,000 Principal Amount of Forty Year 7% Debentures, due August 1, 2012
Issues denominated as Southern Bell Telephone and Telegraph Company Debentures

$75,000,000 Principal Amount of Thirty-Seven Year 5% Debentures, due December 1, 1997
$70,000,000 Principal Amount of Thirty-Seven Year 4%% Debentures, due March 1, 1998
$75,000,000 Principal Amount of Thirty-Nine Year 4% Debentures, due April 1, 2001
$70,000,000 Principal Amount of Forty Year 44%% Debentures, due August 1, 2003
$100,000,000 Principal Amount of Thirty-Five Year 4%% Debentures, due September 1, 2000
$100,000,000 Principal Amount of Thirty-Eight Year 6% Debentures, due October 1, 2004
$150,000,000 Principal Amount of Thirty-Eight Year 74% Debentures, due July 15, 2010
$350,000,000 Principal Amount of Forty Year TH% Debentu-es, due March 15, 2013

BellSouth Telecommunications, Inc.

$250,000,000 Principal Amount of Forty Year 8%% Debentures, due July 1, 2032
$300,000,000 Principal Amount of Forty Year 7%% Debentures, due August 1, 2032
$300,000,000 Principal Amount of Forty Year 7% Debentures, due June 15, 2033
$350,000,000 Principal Amount of Fifteen Year 54% Debentures, due January 15, 2009
$400,000,000 Principal Amount of Forty Year 6%% Debentures, due October 15, 2033
$300,000,000 Principal Amount of Forty Year 7%% Debentures, due May 15, 2035
$300,000,000 Principal Amount of Thirty Year 7% Debentures, due October 1, 2025
$300,000,000 Principal Amount of Filty Year 5.85% Debentures, due November 15, 2045
$500,000,000 Principal Amount of One Hundred Year 7% Debentures, due December 1, 2095
§375,133,000 Principal Amount of Twenty Year 6.30% Amortizing Debentures, due
December 15, 2015
$500,000,000 Principal Amount of One Hundred Year 6.66% Zero-To-Full Debentures, due
December 15, 2095

NOTES

BellSouth Telecommunications, Inc.

$275,000,000 Principal Amount of Seven Year 614% Notes, Due February 1, 2000
$150,000,000 Principal Amount of Twelve Year 7% Notes, Due February 1, 2005
$450,000,000 Principal Amount of Ten Year 6% Notes, Due May 15, 2003
§200,000,000 Principal Amount of Eleven Year 6%% Notes, Due June 15, 2004
$300,000,000 Principal Amount of Ten Year 6% Notes, Due June 15, 2006
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10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant (Omitted pursuant to General
Instruction J(2))
11.  Executive Compensation (Omitted pursuant to General Instruction J(2))
12, Security Ownership of Certain Benelicial Owners and Management (Omitted
ursuant to General Instruction J(2))
13. rtain Relationships and Related Transactions (Omitted pursuant to General
Instruction J(2))
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PART I
ITEM 1. BUSINESS

GENERAL

BellSouth Telecommunications, Inc. (BellSouth Telecommunications) is a corporation wholly-
owned by BellSouth Corporation (BellSouth). BellSouth Telecommunications provides predominantly
tarifTed wireline telecommunications services to approximately two-thirds of the population and one-
half of the territory within Alabama, Florida, Georgis, Kentucky, Louisiana, Mississippi, North Caro-
lina, South Carolina and Tennessee.

On December 31, 1983, pursuant to a consent decree approved by the Unitei. States District
Court for the District of Columbia (the D. C. District Court) entitled “Modification of Final Judg-
ment” (the MFJ) settling antitrust litigation brought by the United States Department of Justice (the
Justice Department) in 1974 and the related Plan of Reorganization, American Telephone and Tele-
graph Company, now AT&T Corp. (AT&T), transferred to BellSouth its 100% ownership of South
Central Bell Telephone Company (South Central Bell) and Southern Bell Telephone and Telegraph
Company (Southern Bell). On the same date, South Central Bell and Southern Bell were reincorpo-
rated through mergers into Georgia corporations. On January 1, 1984, ownership of BellSouth was
divested from AT&T and BellSouth became a publicly traded company. BellSouth Telecommunica-
tions is the surviving corporation from the merger of South Central Bell and Southern Bell, efTective
at midnight on December 31, 1991. While BellSouth Telecommunications continues to use the names
South Central Bell and Southern Bell for various purposes, its services were unified under the
BellSouth brand name in October 1995 to give BellSouth Telecommunications a clear, consistent
identity in the marketplace.

BellSouth Telecommunications has its principal executive offices at 675 West Peachtree Street,
N.E., Atlanta, Georgia 30375 (telephone number 404-529-8611).

MODIFICATION OF FINAL JUDGMENT AND TELECOMMUNICATIONS ACT OF 19%6

Pursuant to the MFJ, AT&T divested the 22 wholly-owned operating telephone companies,
including South Central Bell and Southern Bell, that were formerly part of the Bell System. The
ownership of such 22 operating telephone companies was transferred by AT&T to seven holding
companies (the Holding Companies), including BellSouth. All territory in the continental United
States served by the operating telephone companies was divided into geographical areas termed
*'Local Access and Transport Areas' (LATAs). These LATAs are generally centered on a city or other
identifiable community of interest.

The MFJ limited the telecommunications-related scope of the post-divestiture business activities
of the operating telephone companies and their successors (the Operating Telephone Companies), and
the D. C. District Court retained jurisdiction over construction, implementation, modification and
enforcement of the MFJ*. Under the MFJ, the Operating Telephone Companies could provide local
exchange, exchange access, information sccess and toll telecommunications services within the
LATAs. Although prohibited from providing service between LATAs, the Operating Telephone Com-
panies provided exchange access services that linked a subscriber's telephone or other equipment in
one of their LATAs to the transmission facilities of carriers (the Interexchange Carriers), which
provided toll telecommunications services between different LATAs. The Operating Telephone Com-
punies could market, but not design or manufacture, telecommunications equipment used by custom.
ers to originate or receive, or by carriers to provide, telecommunications services. The MFJ required

*The provisions of the MFJ were also applicable to the Holding Companies.




that the Operating Telephone Companies provide, upon a bona fide request by any Interexchange
Carrier or information service provider, exchange access, information access and exchange services for
such access equal to that provided to AT&T in quality, type and price.

On February B, 1996, the President signed into law the Telecornmunications Act of 1996 (the 1596
Act). This legislation provides for the development of competitive local telecommunications markets;
terminates on a prospective basis the MFJ, enabling the provision by the Operating Telephone
Companies of interLATA telecommunications and the design and manufacture by the Operating
Telephone Companies of telecommunications equipment; and repeals the laws prohibiting the Oper-
ating Telephone Companies and their afiliates from providing video services within their service
areas. The ability of the Operating Telephone Companies to enter businesses previously proscribed to
them by the MFJ is, however, generally subject to numerous criteria and the development of and
compliance with newly mandated federal regulations.

BUSINESS OPERATIONS

Approximately 86% of BellSouth Telecommunications' operating revenues for the years ended
December 31, 1995, 1894 and 1993, respectively, were from wireline telecommunications services and
the remainder of revenues was principally from directory publishing fees and other nonregulated
services.

Certain communications services and products are provided to business customers by BellSouth
Business Systems, Inc., BellSouth Communication Systems, Inc. and Dataserv, Inc., subsidiaries of
BellSouth Telecommunications. Respectively, these companies provide sales, marketing, product
management and customer service for BellSouth Telecommunications' large business customers
within traditional telephone operating company service areas and nationwide; sell, install and main-
tain telecommunications equipment; and maintain and provide parts and integration services for
computer and data processing equipment.

Revenues from services provided to AT&T, BellSouth Telecommunications’ largest customer,
comprised approximately 12%, 13% and 16% of 1995, 1994 and 1993 opersting revenues, respectively

TELEPHONE COMPANY QPERATIONS

BellSouth Telecommunications provides, predominantly, local exchange, exchange access and
intraLATA toll services within each of the 38 LATAs in its combined nine-state wireline operating
area. BellSouth Telecommunications provided spproximately 21,133,000 customer access lines at
December 31, 1995 an overall increase of 4.5% since December 31, 1994, The increase was primarily
attributable to continued economic growth in BellSouth Telecommunications’ nine-state service
region, including an increase in the number of second residential lines. Growth in second residential
lines accounted for approximately 48.0% and 24,1% of the overall increase in residence access lines
and total access lines, respectively, since December 31, 1994. (See "Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Results of Operations — Volumes of Business.”)

At December 31, 1995, approximately 75% of access lines were in 47 metropolitan areas, each
having a population of 125,000 or more. Many localities and some sizable areas in the states in which
BellSouth Telecommunications operates are served by non-affiliated telephone companies, which had
approximately 26% of the network access lines in such states on December 31, 1895, BellSouth
Tulmrr;m unications does not furnish local exchange, sccess or toll services in the areas served by such
companies.



Local And Toll Services

Charges for local services for each of the years ended December 31, 1995, 1994 and 1993 ac-
sounted for approximately 50%, 49% and 48%, respectively, of BellSouth Telecommunications’ operat-
ing revenues. Local services operations provide lines from telephone exchange offices to subscribers’
premises for the origination and termination of telecommunications including the following: basic
local telephone service provided through the regular switching network; dedicated private line facili-
ties for voice and special services, such as transport of data, radio and video and foreign exchange
services; switching services for customers' internal communications through facilities owned by
BellSouth Telecommunications; services for data transport that include managing and configurirg
special service networks; and dedicated low or high capacity public or private digital networks. Other
local services revenue is derived from intercept and directory assistance, public telephones and
various secondary central office features.

Secondary central office features may be purchased by sccess line subscribers for a charge in
addition to the basic monthly fee. They include Custom Calling service (including Call Waiting, 3-Way
Calling, Call Forwarding and Speed Dialing services) and Touchtone service. During 1995, revenues
from secondary central office features comprised approximately 17% of local service revenues.

In addition to secondary central office features, BellSouth Telecommunications offers certain
enhanced services through its network. Enhanced services differ from basic services and secondary
central office features in that they employ computer processing applications to alter the subscriber’s
transmitted information; provide the subscriber additional, different or restructured information; or
involve subseriber interaction with stored information. The terms of enhanced service offerings are
not regulated under the rules of the Federal Communications Commission (FCC), but the FCC
prescribes the method by which such services may be provided (for example, through structurally
separated subsidiaries or arrangements providing access to competitive providers). Such offerings
include voice messaging and storage services, such as MemoryCall® voice messaging service.

BellSouth Telecommunications provides intraLATA tcll services within (but not between) its 38
LATAs. Such toll services provided approximately 7%, 8% and 8% of BellSouth Telecommunications’
operating revenues for the years ended December 31, 1995, 1994 and 1993, respectively. These
services include the following: intraLATA service beyond the local calling area; Wide Area Telecom-
munications Service (WATS or 800 services) for customers with highly concentrated demard; and
special services, such as transport of data, radio and video.

Regulation of Local and Toll Services

BellSouth Telecommunications is subject to state regulatory authorities in each state in which it
provides intrastate telecommunications services with respect Lo rates, services and other issues.
Traditionally, BellSouth Telecommunications’ rates were set in each state in its service areas at levels
which were anticipated to generate revenues sufficient to cover its allowed expenses and to provide an
opportunity to earn a fair rate of return on its capital investment. Such a regulatory structure was
satisfactory in a less competitive era; however, the regulatory processes have changed in response to
the increasingly competitive telecommunications environment.

Under one form of alternative regulation, economic incentives are provided to lower costs and
increase productivity through the potential availability of “shared" earnings over & benchmark rate of
return. Generally, when levels above targeted returns are reached, earnings are “shared" by provid-
ing refunds or rate reductions to customers.

Another alternative form of regulation, generally known as price regulation, establishes maxi-
mum prices that can be charged for certain telecommunications services. While such a plan limits the
amount of increases in prices for specified services, it enhances the company's ability to adjust prices
and service options to more effectively respond to changing market conditions and competition and
enables it to more fully benefit from productivity enhancements. For these reasons, BellSouth Tele-
communications is focusing its regulatory and legislative efforts on establishing price regulation. Such




plans have been approved or authorized by the requisite legislative or regulatory bodies in Alabama,
Florida (although a sharing requirement exists at least through 1996), Georgia, Kentucky, Mississippi,
South Carolina and Tennessee, and approval of a plan is pending in North Carolina. BellSouth
Telecommunications has filed a proposed price regulation plan in Louisiana.

Despite the potential advantages offered to BellSouth Telecommunications by sharing and price
regulation plans over traditional rate of return regulation, in some cases rate reductions have been
required in connection with their adoption and operation.

Alabama

An incentive regulation plan in effect in Alabama from December 1988 to September 1995
provided for a return on average total capital® in the range of 11.65% to 12.30%.

In response to a law enacted in 1995 permitting the Alabama Public Service Commission to
authorize alternative methods of regulation thet are not based on rate of return for local exchange
carriers, the Alabama Commission approved a price regulation plan, effective September 1995, Under
this plan, prices for basic services, including local exchange services for residence and business
customers, are capped for five years, after which an inflation-based formula will be used to change
prices; prices for non-basic services are capped (or one year, after which aggregate price increases are
limited to 10% annually; and intrastate switched access charges are reduced below interstate switched
access rates. Additional terms of the price regulation plan require annual price reductions aggregating
$57 million through 1999 excluding intrastate switched access reductions. Reductions related to
intrastate switched access are estimated to be $25 million.

Florida

From 1988 through 1992, the Florida incentive regulation plan provided for a return on equity® of
11.5% to 16%, with earnings above 14% to be shared with customers through rate reductions. In 1994,
the Florida Public Service Commission extended the plan through 1997, with required rate reductions
aggregating approximately $300 million over a three-year period. Basic service rates will be capped at
their current levels through 1997,

The plan provides for a return on equity sharing level of 12% with an after-sharing cap of 14% for
1994, increasing in 1995 to a 12.5% sharing level with an after-sharing cap of 14.5%. Rates of return
beyond 1995 will vary based upon changes in utility bond yields but would change no more than 75
basis points from 1995 levels. X

In 1895, a law was enacted which allows qualified service providers to elect price regulation.
Under price regulation, prices for basic services, which include Mat-rate residential and single-line
business local exchange services, will be capped for five years, after which an inflation-based formula
will be used to change basic rates. Prices for certain non-basic services, including multi-line business
service, will be capped for three years at the rates in effect in July 1985; prices for other non-basic
services may be adjusted annually subject to defined limitations. The price regulation provisions also
provide that intrastate switched access rates will decrease by 5% annually until such rates are at
parity with interstate switched access rates effective in 1984. In November 1995, BellSouth Telecom-
munications {iled with the Florida Commission an election for price regulation, which became effec-
tive in January 1996.

Although BellSouth Telecommunications is currently operating under price regulation, it must
comply with the sharing provisions of the incentive plan described above through 1997. However,
BellSouth Telecommunications can request the plan be modified to eliminate the sharing require-
ment, effective January 1997, if there are material changes in the industry

*As defined in the plan for this state.



Georgia

A Georgia incentive regulation plan was adopted in 1990, providing that BellSouth Telecommuni-
cations would retain all earnings up to a 14% return on equity®. Subject to the attainment of service
standards and productivity improvement provisions, BellSouth Telecommunications could retain a
portion of earnings between 14% and 16%. Effective in January 1994, the Georgia Public Service
Commission extended the plan for six months and modified the return on equity level at which
sharing would occur from 14% to 13%. In August 1994, the Georgia Commission changed the sharing
range to 13.5%-15.5%. In June 1995, the Georgia Commission ordered refunds of $8 million and rate
reductions aggregating $33 million on an annual basis.

In April 1995, a law was enacted which, effective in July 1995, allows BeliSouth Telecommunica-
tions to elect the price regulation plan as described in the legislation. In July 1895, BellSouth
Telecommunications filed an election for alternative regulation with the Georgia Commission; such
election me eflective in August 1995. Following implementation of alternative regulation, basic
residence dpd single-line business rates are capped for five years, after which an inflation-based
formula will be used to change rates. Rates for intrastate switched access services will be no higher
than the rajes charged for interstate switched access services.

The/Georgia Commission approved an approximate §10 million rate reduction in intrastate
access to be effective in July 1996, BellSouth Telecommunications plans to offset this
ction by increasing rates for other services.

swi

Kentuchky

Effective in May 1991, under the Kentucky incentive regulation plan, BellSouth Telecommunica-
tions was authorized to earn & return on average total capital® in the range of 10.99% to 11.61% with
sharing of earnings exceeding that range. BellSouth Telecommunications achieved the sharing level
during 1993 and 1994.

In July 1995, the Kentucky Public Service Commission approved a price regulation plan, In
connection with approval of the plan, the Kentucky Commission ordered reductions in rates aggregat-
ing $29 million on an annual basis.

Under the plan, after giving effect to the rate reductions discussed above, basic residential rates
are capped for three years, after which an inflation-based formula will be used to change rates,
intrastate switched access rates are limited to rates in effect for interstate switched access and prices
for services deemed competitive under the plan will be market based.

Louisiana

In February 1992, in settlement of several years of regulatory and judicial proceedings, BellSouth
Telecommunications and the Louisiana Public Service Commission agreed to a three-year incentive
regulation plan providing for a $55 million refund and a rate reduction of $31 million on an annual
basis and an suthorized return on investment® in the range of 10.7% to 11.7%, with sharing of
earnings above 11.7%. Through 19985, BellSouth Telecommunications has reduced rates by an aggre-
gate of $38 million, reflecting its sharing obligation under the plan.

Effective February 1995, the Louisiana Commission extended the incentive regulation plan,
reducing the authorized return on investment® to a range of 9.98% to 10.98% with sharing of earnings
between 10.98% and 11.98%. -

In April 1995, BellSouth Telecommunications filed a proposed price regulation plan with the
Louisiana Commission. The plan proposes a three-year cap on residence and business basic local
exchange services after which rate changes would be based on an inflation-based formula. Intrastate
switched access would also be capped for three years. Non-basic service prices would be set based on

*As defined in the plan for this state.




market factors. The Louisiana Commission stafl has issued a proposed rule on price regulation. In
addition to an inflation-based formule, the Commission's proposal includes an earnings-based sharing
formula.
Mississippi

In June 1990, the Mississippi Public Service Commission authotized implementation of an
incentive regulation plan with sharing of earnings (alling outside a return on average net investment®
range of 10.74% to 11.74%. Rate reductions totaling $23 million on an annual basis were required
prior to implementation of the plan.

Additional rate reductions of approximately $12 million on an annual basis related to intrastate
sccess and area calling plan impacts became effective in January 1893. In June 1993, the Mississippi
Commission renewed the incentive plan for two years and ordered BellSouth Telecommunications to
reduce rates, based on a targeted 11.24% return.

In November 1995, the Mississippi Commission approved a five-year price regulation plan,
effective in January 1996. Reviews of this rln.n will be conducted by the Missiasippi Commission after
three years. Under the provisions of the plan, rates for basic services, which include the provision of
local telephone service, are capped for Lrnm years after which such basic service revenues will be
reduced annually by 1% for the duration of the plan. In addition, intrastate switched access rates are
capped at the same level as interstate rates over the life of the plan. The terma of the plan provide for
rate reductions over the life of the plan which total approximately $34 million on an annual basis.

North Carolina

In April 1985, a law waa enacted that allows BellSouth Telecommunications to elect to operate
under a price regulation plan, which must be lpgmud by the North Carolina Utilities Commission. In
October 1985, BellSouth Telecommunications filed with the North Carolina Commission a propased
price regulation plan. A modified plan has been ted and stipulated between BellSouth Tele-
communications and the Public Staff of the North lina Commission. The North Carolina Com.
mission has held hearings on the stipulated plan and a decision is expected by the Spring of 1996.

South Carolina

Prior to 1996, BellSouth Telecommunications' rates were r :gulated on a traditional rate of return
basis. In December 1994, the South Carolina Public Service Commission issued an order requiring
that rates be reduced prospectively by approximately $26 million on an annual basis and with no
change in the previously authorized return on equity of 13%. Based upon an investigation by the
South Carclina Commission of BellSouth Telecommunications' 1992 earnings, refunds of approxi-
mately $29 million were ordered. BellSouth Telecommunications has appealed this order. As a result
of the South Carolina Commission’s investigation of BellSouth Telecommunications' 1994 earnings,
rate reductions of approximately $42 million on an annual basis were ordered and the authorized
return on equity was set at 12.75%.

In January 1996, the South Carolina Commission approved a price regulation plan which in-
cludes provisions that basic local exchange residence and business service rates will not increase for
five years after which an inflation-based formula will be used to change rates. Intrastate switched
access rates will be capped for three years after which an inflation-based formula will be used to
change rates. The rates for non-basic services would be set by BellSouth Telecommunications based
on market considerations, with defined limitations on price increases.

Tennessee

In August 1993, the Tennessee Public Service Commission approved a three-year revised incen-
tive regulation plan which lowered the sharing range as a percentage return on average net invest.
ment® from 11.0%-12.2% to 10.65%-11.85%.

InJune 1995, u law was enacted which allows qualified service ders to elect price regulation.
BellSouth Telecommunications elected price regulation under w the rates for basic services are to
be capped for four years, after which an inflation-based formula is to be used to change the basic rates
Rates for services other than basic services are to be adjusted based on an inflation-based formula

* As defined in the plan for this state,



In order to implement the price regulation election, the Tennessee Commission has required
BellSouth Telecommunications to reduce rates by r::pmn'nuuly $56 million on an annual basis. Price
regulation is to be effective concurrent with rate reductions in March 1996, subject to compliance with
a number of other preconditions. BellSouth Telecommunications has appealed the rate reduction.

In addition to the above matters, BellSouth Telecommunications is a party to numerous proceed.
ings pending before state Ilur?' bodies which involve, among other things, terms and conditions
of services provided by Bcll.]guth elecommunications, rates charged for such services and relation-
ships wi]:h competitive service providers and afMliates. No assurance can be given as to the outcome of
any such matters,

Access Services

BellSouth Telscommunications provides access services by connecting the communications
networks of Interexchange Carriers with the equipment and facilities of subscribers. These connec-
tions are provided by linking these carriers and subscribers through the public switched network of
BellSouth Telecommunications or through dedicated private lines furnished by BellSouth Telecom-
munications. Rates and other aspects of interstate sccess services are regulated by the FCC, and state
regulatory commissions have jurisdiction over the provision of access to the Interexchange Carriers to

' complete intrastate telecommunications.

Access charges, which are payable both by Interexchange Carriers and subscribers, provided
approximately 29% of BellSouth Telecommunications' operating revenues for the years ended Decem-
ber 31, 1995, 1994 and 1983, respectively. These charges are designed to recover the costs of the
common and dedicated fecilities and switching equipment used to connect networks of Interexchange
Carriers with the telephone company’s local network. In addition, an interstate subscriber line access
charge of $3.50 per line per month applies to single-line business and residential customers. The
interstate subscriber access charge for multi-line business customers varies by state but cannot
exceed $6.00 per line per month. The state commissions have authorized BellSouth Telecommunica-
tions to collect from the Interexchange Carriers and, in several states, from customers charges for
providing intrastate access services.

In October 1990, the FCC suthorized an alternative to traditional rate of return regulation called
“‘price caps,” which became mandatory for certain local exchange carriers (LECs), including Bell-
South Telecommunicationa. In contrast to traditional rate of return regulation, a price cap plan limits
the prices telephone companies can charge for their services. The price cap plan limits aggregate price
changes to the rate of inflation minus an LEC-selected productivity offset, plus or minus exogenous
cost changes recognized by the FCC. Price cap regulation provides LECs with enhanced incentives to
increase productivity and efficiency. To the extent an LEC's actual rate of return exceeds the allowed
rate of return, a portion of such excess must be shared with customers through prospeciive rate
reductions.

In February 1994, the FCC initiated its review of the price cap plan. The FCC identified three
broad sets of issues for examination including those related to the basic goals of price cap regulation,
the operation of price caps and the transition of local exchange services to a fully competitive market.
In connection with this review, in March 1995, the FCC adopted an interim plan which became
' effective in August 1995. This plan established three productivity factor options, which are offsets to
' the inflation-based increase in rates that LECs are permitted to make each year. Similar to the above
plan, two of the productivity options in the interim plan, 4.0% and 4.7%, provide defined earnings
limitations with a sharing mechanism. A third option in the interim plan, 5.3%, removes both
earnings limitations and sharing requirements.

_Consistent with a pricing strategy that BellSouth Telecommunications considered compatible
with an in:m:inﬁ:rwmpcﬁhw business environment, it selected a 5.3% productivity factor, which,
together with ot adjustments, would decrease interstate access revenues by spproximately
$220 million on an annual basis at 1994 access volume levels. BellSouth Telecommunications contin-
ues to believe and advocates that a revised price cap plan should be structured to provide increased
pricing flexibility for services as competition evolves in the telecommunications markets and that
sharing be eliminated from the plan.




The FCC is expected to consider further the interim rules as well as other issues related to
competition, streamlined regulation and other matters contained in the 1998 Act. A final order is
expected to be issued in 1996,

In addition to the above matters, BellSouth Telecommunications is a party to numerous proceed-
ings pending before the FCC which involve, among other things, terms and conditions of services
provided by BellSouth Telecommunications, rates charged for such services and relationships with
affiliates. No assurance can be given as to the outcome of any such matters.

Billing And Collection Services

BellSouth Telecommunications provides, under contract and/or tariff, billing and collection ser-
vices for certain long distance services of AT&T and several other Interexchange Carriers. The
agreement with AT&T extends through the year 2000 subject to the right of AT&T to assume billing
and collection for certain of its services prior to the expiration of the agreement. Revenues from such
services have been decreasing and this trend is expected to continue as AT&T and other carriers
assume more direct billing for their own services.

Operator Services

Directory assistance and local and toll operator services are provided by BellSouth Telecommuni-
cations in its service areas. Toll operator services include alternate billing arrangements, such as
collect calls, third number billing, person-to-person and calling card calls; dialing instructions; pre-
billed credit; and rate information. In addition, directory sssistance is provided for some Inter-
exchange Carriers which do not directly provide such services for their own customers.

OTHER BUSINESS OPERATIONS
Directory Publishing Fees
BellSouth Telecommunications has a contractual agreement with BellSouth Advertising & Pub-
lishing Corporation (BAPCO), an affiliated company, wherein BAPCO publishes certain telephone
directories and in return pays publication fees to BellSouth Telecommunications for publishing rights
and other services, For the years ended December 31, 1995, 1994 and 1993, these fees, included in
Other Operating Revenue, were $721, $638 and $616, respectively.

In response to changes in the telecommunications environment and to enhance competitive
Nexibility, BellSouth Telecommunications and BAPCO intend to establish a new contract, based on
fees for services rendered between the companies, to be effective for all or part of the region during the
first quarter of 1996, For additional information, see “Management's Discussion and Analysis of
Results of Operations — Other Mattera — AfMiliated Transactions.’

Selling and Maintaining Equipment

To a limited extent, through its subsidiaries, BellSouth Telecommunications sells and maintains
telecommunications equipment, computers and related office equipment. The Holding Companies,
AT&T and other substantial enterprises compete in the provision of these services and products. In
April 1994, BellSouth Communications Systems, Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary, disposed of its
customer premises equipment sales and service operations outside the nine-state region served by
BellSouth Telecommunications.



COMPETITION

General

BellSouth Telecommunications is subject to increasing competition in all areas of its business.
Regulatory, legislative and judicial actions and technological developments have expanded the types of
available services and products and the number of companies that may offar them. Increasingly, this
competition is from large companies which have substantial capital, technological and marketing
resources.

A technological convergence is occurring in the telephone, cable and broadeast television, com-
puter, entertainment and information services industries. The technologies utilized and being devel-
oped in these industries will enable companies to provide multiple and integrated forms of
communications offerings.

Network and Related Services

Local Service

Over the past several years, a number of states in BellSouth Telecommunications’ wireline
territory have passed legislation providing for competition in areas where previously it had an
exclusive operating franchise. The state public service commissions in such jurisdictions have
granted, or are in the process of considering, applications for suthority to compete with BellSouth
Telecommunications. Such competitors include AT&T, MCI Telecommunications Corporation (MCI),
U S West, Inc. (U S West) and other substantial companies. The 1996 Act further preempts all existing
state legislative and regulatory barriers to competition for local telephone service, subject only to
competitively neutral requirements to assure quality service consistent with public safety, conve-
nience and consumer welfare. BellSouth Telecommunications expects multiple companies to apply to
public service commissions in its territory for the authority to provide competitive local telecommuni-
cations services. Because of the expense of constructing facilities to provide these services, many of
such carriers may resell the services of BellSouth Telecommunications or jointly contruct a competing
network.

An increasing number of voice and data communications networks utilizing fiber optic lines have
been and are being constructed by competitive access providers and other carriers in metropolitan
areas, including Atlanta, Georgia, Charlotte, North Carolina and Jacksonville, Miami and Orlando,
Florida, which offer certain high volume users a competitive alternative to the public and private line
offerings of the LECs. In addition, the networks of some cable television systems will be capable of
carrying two-way interactive data messages and will be configured Lo provide voice communications.
Furthermore, wireless services, such as cellular telephone and paging services and PCS services when
operational, increasingly compete with wireline communications services.

In 1994, AT&T acquired McCaw Communications, Inc. (McCaw), the largest domestic cellular
communications company, which serves customers in 10 cities in BellSouth Telecommunications'
local wireline territory. Furthermore, alliances are also being formed between other Holding Compa-
nies and large corporations that operate cable television systems in many localities throughout the
United States, for example, U § West, Inc/Time Warner Communications and NYNEX Corporation/
Viacom, Inc. As technological and regulatory developments make it more feasible for cable television
to carry data and voice communications, it is probable that BellSouth Telecommunications will face
competition within ita region from the other Holding Companies through their cable television
venture arrangements.

In July 1984, U 8 West and Time Warner announced plans to upgrade certain of their cable TV
systems to full-service networks which would support new interactive and telephone services that
would compete with the incumbent LECs. One of these full-service networks is being built in Orlando,
Florida, and a limited trial of services has begun. Tele-Communications, Inc. has announced plans to
offer similar services in South Florida and Louisville, Kentucky. Time Warner and U S West have made
major cable system acquisitions that are expected to provide voice and video competition in BellSouth
Telecommunications’ service areas. In December 1994, U S West acquired Atlanta’s two largest cable



operators and, in February 1996, announced a definitive agreement to acquire Continental Cablevi-
sion, Inc., & provider with a major presence in Florida. The pending acquisition by Time Warner of
Turner Broadcasting Corporation will increase concentration in the cable and programming
industries.

Competition lor local service revenues could adversely affect BellSouth Telecommunications net
income. However, the existence of facilities-based competitive local service will allow the Operating
Telephone Companies to qualily to ofTer in-region inter LATA service, as contemplated in the 1996 Act.
{See "'BellSouth Telecommunications Competitive Strategy.")

Access Service

The FCC has adopted rules requiring LECs to offer expanded interconnection for interstate
special and switched transport. As a result, BellSouth Telecommunications is required to permit
competitive carriers and customers to terminate their transmission facilities in its central office
buildings through collocation arrangements. The effects of the rules are to increase competilion for
access transport.

Toll Service

A number of firms compete with BellSouth Telecommunications in its nine-state region for
intraLLATA toll busineas by reselling toll services obtained at bulk rates from BellSouth Telecommuni-
cations or, subject to the approval of the applicable state public utility commission, providing toll
services over their own facilities. Commissions in the states in BellSouth Telecommunications’ oper-
ating territory have allowed the latter type of intralLATA toll calling, whereby the Interexchange
Carriers are assigned a multiple digit access code (10XXX) which customers may dia! to place in-
traLATA toll calls through facilities of such Interexchange Carriers. The legislature or commissions in
three states have authorized competing carriers to provide intraLATA toll presubscribed calling with
a single digit access code (1+), giving them dialing parity with the LEC in that area. Commissions in
several other states are considering how and when such authorization should be implemented.
However, the 1896 Act prohibits states from ordering the implementation of new toll dialing parity
until the earlier of (a) three years from the enactment of the 1996 Act or (b) such time as the Operating
Telephone Company has qualified to provide in-region interLATA services. Other Holding Companies
will be permitted to offer BellSouth's local customers interLATA toll service before BellSouth is
eligible under the 1886 Act to offer such service to its customers. BellSouth expects Holding Compa-
nies and interexchange carriers, including AT&T and MCI, to compete for interLATA toll service.

Personal Communications Services (PCS)
Personal communications services (PCS) are in the developmental stage and are anticipated to
provide a wide range of wireless communications services.

BellSouth Telecommunications Competitive Strategy

Regulatory and Legislative Changes

BellSouth Telecommunications’ primary regulatory focus continues to be directed toward modi-
fying the regulatory process to one that is more closely aligned with changing market conditions and
overall public policy objectives. As an alternative to regulation of earnings, BellSouth Telecommunica-
tions is seeking price regulation where it does not exist, whereby prices of basic local exchange service
would be regulated and prices for other products and services would be based on market factors. As
such, BellSouth Telecommunications has price regulation plans approved or authorized in seven
states, and approvals are pending in two states,

As a result of the 1996 Act, BellSouth Telecommunications and the other Operating Telephone
Companies are freed from many of the laws, regulations and judicial restrictions (including the MFJ)
that constrained the provision of voice, data and video communications throughout their wireline
service territories and elsewhere. The FCC has commenced rulemaking proceedings relating to the
provision of interLATA service by the Operating Telephone Companies. After necessary federal an
state proceedings, these companies may apply to the FCC to offer in-region interLATA wireline
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services, and the FCC must act on such application within 90 days. The FCC must grant such
application if it determines that the applicant (a) has met a competitive checklist; (b) has shown (i) the
presence of facilities-based competition for residential and business local service or (ii) in the absence
thereof, a statement of the terms under which it would be willing to interconnect with a competitive
local carrier; (c) will operate consistently with the separate subsidiary requirement; and (d) will meet
the 1996 Act’s public interest requirement in so offering the services on the foregoing conditions.

The Operating Telephone Companies are not required to obtain such FCC approval prior Lo
offering out-of-region interLATA wireline services. BellSouth Telecommunications plans to begin
offering interLATA wireline service within its nine-state territory as soon as possible alter completion
of FCC and state regulatory proceedings, expected to be concluded in late 1996 or early 1997; however,
no assurance can be provided with respect Lo when BellSouth Telecommunications will be authorized
to initiate such interLATA wireline service. BellSouth Telecommunications has no plans to offer out-
of-region interLATA wireline services on a significant acale.

After some modifications to its network and operating systems, wireline interLATA services can
be oflered by BellSouth Telecommunications. However, many of the telecommunications services that
BellSouth Telecommunications and the other Operating Telephone Companies may provide may be
subject to extensive regulations to be sdopted by the FCC and state regulatory commissions.

The 1996 Act allows, without additional approval, BellSouth to market its wireless services jointly
with its wireline local exchange services; before, separate marketing was required for cellular services.
In addition, such joint mukﬂln; will include interLATA wireline services in the nine-state territory
when authorized. BellSouth expects to begin a joint marketing trial for wireline local exchange and
cellular services later in 1996.

Technological changes and the effects of competition reduce the economic useful lives of Bell-
South Telecommunications' fixed assets. In connection with BellSouth Telecommunicaticns’ discon-
tinuance in 1995 of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 71 (S8FAS No. 71), BellSouth
Telecommunications reduced the regulator-approved asset lives for certain categories of fixed assets
to reflect their estimated economic asset lives. (See ‘‘Management's Discussion and Analysis of
Results of Operations (MD&A) — Results of Operations — Extraordinary Losses — Discontinuance of
SFAS No. 71.")

Entry Into New Markeis

Notwithstanding the risks associated with increased competition, BellSouth Telecommunications
will have the opportunity to benefit from entry into new business markets. BellSouth Telecommunica-
tions believes that in order to remain competitive in the future, it must aggressively pursue a
corporate strategy of expanding its offerings beyond its traditional businesses and markets. These
offerings may include interLATA services, information services and video and electronic commerce
SErVices.

In August 1892, the FCC issued an order allowing LECs to offer video dial tone for transmitting
video services. In February 1895, the FCC approved BellSouth Telecommunications' application to
conduct a trial of video dial tone services. BellSouth Telecommunications is constructing a network in
the Chamblee, Georgia area that is planned to begin service during the second quarter of 1996 and will
provide 70 analog channels, 160 digital broadcast channels and 480 digital switched channels to
deliver video programming and interactive services, which will be provided by both afTiliated and non-
affiliated programming service providers. BellSouth Telecommunications’ netwaork will support new
services such as broadcast entertainment; interactive video services, such as video games: enhanced
personal computer and communications services, including electronic mail; transactional services,
such as home shopping and banking; and customer-choice video services, such as movies on demand.

The 1996 Act eliminates the previous prohibition on telephone companies providing cable televi-
sion services in their service territories, although many federal courts had already held such prohibi-
tion unconstitutional. In general, however, local exchange carriers may not acquire or joint venture
with established cable television providers in their wireline territories.
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Work Force Reduction/Restructuring

In 1985, BellSouth Telecommunications completed the restructuring of its telephone operations
that was announced in 1993. Also, BellSouth Telecommunications announced in 1995 a plan to reduce
its work force by approximately 11,300 additional employees by the end of 1997, For a discussion of the
work force reduction/restructuring see “MD&A — Results of Operations — Operating Expenses —
Work Force Reduction/Restructuring Charges."

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

The majority of BellSouth Telecommunications’ research and development activity is conducted
at Bell Communications Research, Inc. (Bellcore), one-seventh of which is owned by BellSouth,
through BellSouth Telecommunications, with the remainder owned by the other Holding Companies.
Bellcore provides research and development and other services for its owners and is the central point
of contact for coordinating the Federal government's telecommunications requirements relating to
national security and emergency preparedness.

In April 1995, the Holding Companies announced their intention to dispose of their respective
interests in Bellcore. Neither the method of disposition nor the timing thereof has been determined. A
final decision regarding the disposition of Bellcore and the structure of such a transaction is subject to
obtaining satisfactory financial and other terms and all necessar; approvals. There can be no assur-
ance that a disposition will occur. In anticipation of such disposition, however, BellSouth Telecommu-
nications has negotiated an agreement for Bellcore to provide continuing research and development
services for a number of years.

LICENSES AND FRANCHISES

BellSouth Telecommunications' local exchange business is typically provided under certificates of
public convenience and necessity granted pursuant to state statutes and public interest findings of the
various public utility commissions of the states in which BellSouth Telecommunications does busi-
ness. These certificates provide for a franchise of indefinite duration, subject to the maintenance of
satisfactory service at reasonable rates.

BellSouth Telecommunications believes that it owns or has licenses to use all patents, copyrights,
trademarks and other intellectual property necessary for it to conduct its present business operations.
It is not anticipated that any of such property will be subject to expiration or non-renewal of rights
which would materially and adversely affect BellSouth Telecommunications or its subsidiaries.

EMPLOYEES

At December 31, 1995, 1994 and 1993 BellSouth Telecommunications employed approximately
71,400, 76,700 and 81,400 persons, respectively. Of these amounts at these dates, approximately
68,600, 73,800 and 78,000 persons were telephone employees. About 72% of these employees at
December 31, 1995 were represented by the Communications Workers of America (the CWA), which is
afTiliated with the AFL-CI0. In October 1995, members of the CWA ratified new three-year contracts
with BellSouth Telecommunications. These contracts were effective in August 1995, The contracts
include basic wage increases of 10.9% (compounded) over three years. In addition, the agreement
provided a cash payment of one thousand one hundred dollars to each eligible employee upon ratifica-
tion and further provides payments of one thousand one hundred dollars per eligible employee in
either cash or BellSouth stock, at the option of the employee, on the 1996 and 1997 contract anniver-
sary dates. Other terms of the agreement include discontinuance of annual wage adjustments based
on cost of living increases and discontinuance of annual incentive payments.

During 1995, BellSouth Telecommunications completed the 1993 plan to reduce its work force by
approximately 10,200 employees. For the years ended December 31, 1995, 1994 and 1993, total
employee reductions under this plan were 5,000, 3,900 and 1,300, respectively. Also during 1995,
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BellSouth Telecommunications announced a plan to reduce its work force by approximately 11,300
employees by the end of 1997. (See "“MD&A — Results of Operations — Operating Expenses — Work
Force Reduction/Restructuring Charges.”')

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES
GENERAL

BellSouth Telecommunications' properties do not lend themselves to description by character
and location of principal units, BellSouth Telecommunications® investment in property, plant and
equipment consisted of the following at December 31:

Ans M
Outsideplant . ... ..o iniiiiianrirransasinns 46% 46%
Central officeequipment. . ..........00vnnverans a7 37
Landand buildings . . ..........coo0vivenennnn 7 7
Furnitureand fixtures ... .......... .. .0 5 1]
Operating and other equipment .................. 4 4
Plant under construction .............cc0euiienn 1 o |

100% 100%

Outside plant consists of connecting lines (aerial, undergrourd and buried cable) not on custom-
ers’ premises, the majority of which are on or under public roads, highways or streets, whil= the
remainder is on or under private property. BellSouth Telecommunications currently sell-insures all of
its outside plant against casualty losses. Central office equipment consists of analog switching equip-
ment, digital electronic switching equipment and circuit equipment. Land and buildings are occupied
principally by central offices. Operating and other equipment consists of embedded intrasystem
wiring, substantially all of which is on the premises of customers, motor vehicles and equipment.
Central office equipment, buildings, furniture and fixtures and certain operating and other equip-
ment are insured under a blanket property insurance program. This program provides substantial
limits of coverage against "all risks'" of loss including, fire, windstorm, flood, earthquake and other
perils not specifically excluded.

Substantially all of the installations of central office equipment and administrative offices are
located in buildings and on land owned h}r BellSouth Tﬂﬂmmunluﬂ:rnl Many garages, business
offices and telephone service centers are in leased quarters.

BellSouth Telecommunications' customers are now served by electronic switching systems that
provide a wider variety of services than their mechanical predecessors. The BellSouth Telecommuni-
cations network has been transitioned from an analog to a digital network, which provides capabilities
for BellSouth Telecommunications to furnish advanced data transmission and information manage-
ment services.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

Capital expenditures consist of gross additions to property, plant and equipment having an
estimated service life of one year or more, plus the incidental costs of preparing the asset for its
intended use.

The total investment in property, plant and equipment has increased from $35,782 million et
January 1, 1981 to $43,521 million at December 31, 1885, not including deductions of sccnmulated
depreciation. Significant additions to property, plant and equipment will be required to meet the
demand for telecommunications services and to further modernize and improve such services to meet
competitive demands. Population and economic expansion is projected by BellSouth Telecommunice-
tions in certain growth centers within its nine-state area during the next five to ten years. Expansion
of the network will be needed to accommodate such projected growth.

13




BellSouth Telecommunications' capital expenditures for 1991 through 19985 were as follows:

Millioar
T s G e e e e A T $3,123
P S e R s R e m s 297
R e T N = 2,895
1 TRl Py e e S A I 2,846
L St R et e ) I R AT x5S 2,747

BellSouth Telecommunications currently projects capital expenditures to be approximately
$3.0 billion for 1996. In 1995, BellSouth Telecommunications generated substantially all of its funds
for capital expenditures internally. In 1996, such capital expenditures are expected to be financed
primarily through internally generated funds and, to the extent necessary, from external sources.

ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS

BellSouth Telecommunications is subject to a number of environmental matters as a result of its
operations and the shared liability provisions in the Plan of Reorganization (POR). As a result,
BellSouth Telecommunications expects that it will be required to expend funds to remedy certain
facilities, including those Superfund sites for which BellSouth Telecommunications has been named
as a potentially responsible party, for the remediation of sites with underground fuel storage tanks
and other expenses associated with environmental compliance. At December 31, 1995, BellSouth
Telecommunications' recorded liability related primarily to remediation of these sites was approxi-
mately $32 million. i

BellSouth Telecommunications continually monitors its operations with respect to potential
environmental issues, including changes in legally mandated standards and remediation technologies.
BellSouth Telecommunications’ recorded liability reflects those specific issues where remediation
activities are currently deemed to be probable and where the cost of remediation is estimable.
BellSouth Telecommunications continues to believe that expenditures in connection with additional
remedial actions under the current environmental protection laws or related matters would not be
material to its financial position, annual operating results or cash flows.
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ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The MFJ and the related POR provide for the recognition and payment of liabilities by AT&T and
the Operating Telephone Companies that are attributable to pre-divestiture events but that did not
become certain until after divestiture. These contingent liabilities relate principally to litigation and
other claims with respect to the former Bell System’s environmental liabilities, rates, taxes, contracts
and torts (including business torts, such as alleged violations of the antitrust laws). Contingent
liabilities attributable to pre-divestiture events have been shared by AT&T and the Operating Tele-
phone Companies in accordance with formulae prescribed by the POR, whether or not an entity wasa
party to the proceeding and regardless of whether an entity was dismissed from the proceeding by
virtue of settlement or otherwise, BellSouth Telecommunications’ share of these liabilities to date has
not been material to its financial position, annual operating results or cash flows.

The Operating Telephone Companies have agreed among themselves to disengage from the
sharing of most categories of contingent liabilities formerly subject to the POR sharing mechanism.
Sharing under the POR would continue for matters for which notice was given as of May 23, 1994 and
ccrtain pre-divestiture environmental claims. The sharing of liabilities for pre-divestiture claims
between AT&T and one or more Operating Telephone Companies are not afTected by this agreement.

BellSouth Telecommunications and its subsidiaries are sublect to claims and proceedings arising
in the ordinary course of business involving allegations of personal injury, breach of contract, anti-
competitive conduct, employment law issues and other matters. While complete assurance cannot be
given as to the outcome of any pending or threatened legal actions, BellSouth Telecommunications
believes that any financial impact would not be material to its financial position, annual operating
results or cash flows.
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(Dollars In Milllons)

PART 11
ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL AND OPERATING DATA

1993 194 19 1992 191

Operating Revenues . ............ $14540 §14,040 $13580 $13,182 $12,768
Operating Expenses (1) .. ......... 11,759 10,452 11,591 10,258 10,046
Operating Income . .. ............ 2,781 3,588 1,989 2924 2,722
Interest Expense . .. ............. 673 549 562 583 650
Other Income, net . .............. 27 18 21 75 1
Provision for Income Taxes . ....... B18 1,105 461 801 647
Extreordinary Losses, net of tax (2).. (2,796) - (87) (41) —_
Accounting Change, netoftax . ... .. - - (65) _ —

Net Income (Loss) . ............ $(1,379) § 1952 $ BiI6 $ 1674 $ 1,426
Total Assets ........... PR $23.933 $27372 $27095 326442  §26,322
Capital Expenditures............. $3,123 §$2971 $2995 §$S2846 $ 27147
LongTerm Debt . .........00000. $ 685 § 65612 $65647T $6336 § 6403
Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges . . 4.38 5.68 3.17 4.63 3.86
Return to Average Common Equity ..  (14.36%) 18.02% 7.32% 13.78% 12.49%
Debt Ratio at End of Peried (3) .. ... 51.87% 41.01% 41.29% 38.46% 38.17%
Telephone Employees (4).......... 68,585 73,764 717,958 79,453 79,743
Other Operations Employees . . .. ... 2,797 2,944 3,467 3,413 2,502

Total Employees .............. 71,382 76,708 81,415 82,866 B2,245
Telephone Employees per 10,000

Access Lines . ................. 325 36.5 40.3 42.6 44.1
Business Volumes: (5)
Network Access Lines in Service
(thousands) . .. .ovvevrrenennnns 21,133 20,220 19,333 18,650 18,035

Access Minutes of Use (millions):

Interstate . .................. 62,411 57,7718 563,345 50,646 47,255

Intrastate ................... 19,197 16,888 15,261 13,994 13,238
Toll Messages (millions) .......... 1,374 1,669 1,511 1,462 1,504

(n

(2)

3)

4)

(5)

Operaling Expenses for 1895 include a work force reduction charge of $1,082, which reduced net
income by $663. Operating Expenses for 1993 include a charge for restructuring of §1,136, which
reduced net income by $697. See Note J to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

For 1995, reflecta charges ol $2,718 for the discontinuance of Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 71, "Accounting for the Effects of Certain Types of Regulation” and $78 related to
the refinancing of long-term debt issues. See Notes B and F to the Conuolidated Financial
Statements.

The debt ratio at December 31, 1995 has been adjusted to exclude $485 of debentures to be
redeemed in January 1996,

Telephone employees exclude those employees in BellSouth Telecommunications' subsidiaries
which are unrelated to telephone operations.

Prior period operating data are revised at later dates to reflect the most current information. The
above information reflects the latest data available for the periods indicated.




ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
(Dollars in Milllons)

Bel!South Telecommunications, Inc. (BellSouth Telecommunications) is a wholly-owned subsidi-
ary of BellSouth Corporation (BellSouth). BellSouth Telecommunications serves, in the aggregate,
approximately two-thirds of the population and one-half of the territory within Alabamas, Florida,
Georgia, Kentucky, Louisiana, Missisaippi, North Carolina, South Carclina ard Tennessee. BellSouth
Telecommunications primarily provides local exchange service and toll communications services
within geographic areas, called Local Access and Transport Areas (LATAs), and provides network
access services to enable interLATA communicetions using the long-distance facilities of inter-
exchange carriers. Through subsidiaries, other telecommunications services and products are pro-
vided primarily within the nine-state BellSouth Telecommunications region.

Approximately 86% of BellSouth Telecommunications' Total Operating Revenues for the years
ended December 31, 1095 and 1994 were from wireline services. Charges for local, access and toll
services for the year ended December 31, 1985 accounted for spproximately 58%, 33% and 8%,
respectively, of the wireline revenues discussed above. The remainder of BellSouth Telecommunica-
tions' Total Operating Revenues was derived principally from directory publishing fees, sales and
maintenance of customer premises equipment and other nonregulated services.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
_Ims 14 % Chasge

Income Before Extraordinary Losses ........... $1417 81952 (274)
Extraordinary Loss for Discontinuance of SFAS

No.TLnetoftax. ... ....covvevvnssssssnass 2,718) — -
Extraordinary Loss on Early Extinguishment of

Dbl b O LB . - o irceieim sa daiale s ia0m b i a e i (718) =— —_—
NetIncome (Loss) . . .......covviiunnncaneas $(1,379) $1952 —

For a discussion of the extracrdinary losses in 1995, see "Extraordinary Losses’” below.

Income Before Extraordinary Losses decreased $536 (27.4%) compared to 1894. The decrease was
primarily due to a work force reduction charge in 1995 of $663 (after tax). For a discussion of such
charge, see “Operating Expenses — Work Force Reduction/Restructuring Charges" below. The de-
crease was partially offset by revenue growth, driven by continued growth of access lines, and cost
control measures, including salary and wage savings attributable to the restructuring plan initiated in
1993,

See "Other Metters — AfMiliated Transactions.”
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Volumes Of Business
Network Access Lines in Service at December 31 (thousands):
1995 194 % Change

By Type:
Residenes . ........cicivninennnnns 14,653 14,195 3.2%
oy e et S N L R e 6226 5771 19
N e e S 255 254 04
Bolal s s R M E?lﬂ 4.5
By State:
T e e P SRERPRE T 5607 65350 46
e e e R A S AT 3550 335{ 58
Tennessee ............ccnoansmssns 2435 2337 42
Louisiana . . ............00vviinns, 2108 2037 a5
NorthCarolina . .. ..........o00nuvns 2101 1994 54
AlRBAma . . .o viivsnrasasrrasnnns 1,792 1,726 a8
SouthCarolina . ................... 1,202 1244 39
MIRSRE = o e 1,168 1,118 36
Kantueky . ...cocncercnnncancnsans 1,00 1060 38
Tobal s iy e s R T 21,133 20220 4.5

The total number of access lines in service since December 31, 1994 increased by approximately
913,000 (4.5%) to 21,133,000, compared to a 4.6% rate of increase in 1994. Businesas and residence
access lines increased by 7.9% and 3.2%, respectively, compeared to growth rates of 7.1% and 3.7% in
1994. The number of second residence lines, included in total residence lines, increased by 220,000
(20.9%) to 1,271,000 and accounted for approximately 48.0% and 24.1% of the overall increase in
residence sccess lines and total access lines, respectively, since December 31, 1994. Such second
residence lines are generally used for home office purpaoses, access to on-line computer services and
children’s phones. The growth in all categories of access lines was primarily attributable to continued
economic improvement in the Southeast and succesaful marketing programa.

Access Minutes of Use (millions):
1995 - 1994 % Changs

IR i s s i ot e i 62411 57,778 B.0%
e T 1 PE PO PRI 19,197 16888 13.7
o AL S S DU« -7 81,608 74,668 93

Access minutes of use represent the volume of trafTic carried by interexchange carriers between
LATAs, both interstate and intrastate, using BellSouth Telecommunications’ local facilities. In 1985,
total access minutes of use increased by 6,942 million (9.3%) compared to an increase of 8.8% in 1994.
The 1995 increase in access minutes of use was primarily attributable to access line growth, promo-
tions by the interexchange carriers and intraLATA toll competition, which has the effect of increasing
access minutes of use while reducing toll messages carried over BellSouth Telecommunications’
network. The growth rate in total minutes of use continues to be negatively impactad by competition
and the migration of interexchange carriers to categories of service (e.g., special access) that have a
fixed charge as opposed to a volume-driven charge and to high capacity services, which causes a
decrease in minutes of use.

1995  1PM % Changs

Toll Messages (millions). . ............... 1,374 1,660 (11.9%)

~ Toll messages are comprised of Message Telecommunications Service and Wide Area Telecommu-
nications Service. Toll messages decreased by 185 million (11.9%) in 1995 compared Lo an increase of
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3.2% in 1994. The decrease in 1995 was primarily attributable to the expansion of local area calling
plans in Florida, Georgia, South Carolina, North Carolina and Mississippi. These plans and future
implementation of other such plans in BellSouth Telecommunications' service region, coupled with
competition from the interchange carriers in the intraLATA toll market, will adversely impact future
toll message volumes. Local area calling plans and the effects of competition result in the transfer of
calls from toll to local service and access categories, respectively, but the corresponding revenues are
not generally shifted at commensurate rates

Operating Revenues
Total Operating Revenues increased $500 (3.6%) in 1995. The components of Total Operating
Revenues were as follows:

1994 194 % Change

Local Service . .....-..ccvuveucennn $ 7204 § 6,863 6.3%
Interstate Access ......... gl i, 3,276 3,127 4.7
Intrastate Access . .. ........c0neans HH4 908 (2.8)
d L | e e P e P T 1,009 1,180 (152)
OBEE . o iie wooie o S W R T W 2,078 1,852 6.5
Total Operating Revenues . ......... 314,540 314,040 38

Local Service revenues reflect amounts billed to cus:omers for local exchange services, which
include connection to the network and secondary central office feature services, such as custom calling
features and custom dialing packages. (Revenues from cellular interconnection and other mobile
services are included in Other operating revenues for both periods presented.) Local Service revenues
increased $431 (6.3%) in 1995.

The increase in 1995 was due primarily to an increase of 913,000 access lines since December 31,
1994, an increase of $107 due to higher customer demand for TouchStar® and Custom Calling
services, and the effect of expanded local area calling plans. The increase in 1995 was partially offset
by net rate reductions since December 31, 1994 of approximately $46.

Interstate Access revenues result from the provision of access services to interexchange carriers to
provide telecommunications services between states. Interstate Access revenues increased $148
{4.7%) in 1995.

The increase for 1995 was due primarily to growth in minutes of use of 8.0%, an increase in end-
user charges of $52 attributable to growth in the number of access lines in service and an increase of
$42 due to higher demand for special access services. The 1995 increase was partially offset by net rate
reductions since December 31, 1994 of approximately $58.

See ““Opersting Environment and Trends of the Business."”

Intrastate Access revenues result from the provision of access services to interexchange carriers
which provide telecommunications services between LATAs within a state. In 1995, Intrastate Access
revenues decreased $24 (2.6%). Such decrease was due primarily to net rate reductions of $100,
partially offset by 13.7% growth in minutes of use.

Toll revenues are received from the provision of long-distance services within (but not between)
LATAs. These services include intraLATA service beyond the local calling area; Wide Area Telecom-
munications Service (WATS or BO0 services) for customers with highly concentrated demand; and
special services, such as transport of voice, data and video. Toll revenues decreased $181 (15.2%) in
1995.

The decrense was due primarily to a decline in toll messages of 11.9%. The decline in toll messages
reflects the expansion of local area calling plans and increased competition from intcrexchange
carriers. The overall decline in toll revenues is expected to continue over the long term.
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Other revenues are principally comprised of revenues from publishing rights fees, customer
premises equipment (CPE) sales and maintenance services, billing and collection services, cellular
interconnect services and other nonregulated services (primarily inside wire services). Other revenues
increased $126 (6.5%) in 1995.

The increase was due primarily to reduced levels of revenue reduction accruals related to poten-
tial sharing under certain state regulatory plans coupled with the reclassification of certain such
accruals to Local Service revenues, the combined effect of which increased Other revenues by approxi-
mately $76. The increase was also due to approximately $41 resulting from higher demand for voice
messaging and inside wire services and an overall increase of $83 in directory publishing fees. The
increase was partially offset by a reduction of $37 in revenues from billing and collection services and
by approximately $33 related to the sale in April 1994 of the out-of-region CPE sales and service
operations.

See "Other Matters — Affiliated Transactions."
Operating Expenses

Primarily as a result of the work force reduction charge in 1085, Total Operating Expenses
increased $1,307 (12.5%) in 1995. The components of Total Operating Expenses were as follows:

1795 1984 5 M_
Depreciation and Amortization . ....... $§ 3065 § 29854 3B%
Other Operating Expenases:
Cost of Services and Products ....... 5,268 5236 06
Selling, General and Administrative. . . 2,344 2263 36
7612 7498 156
Subtotal ........chvirinnrnrnnns 10677 10452 22
Work Force Reduction/Restructuring
Charges. . .......0cvvneernnnens 1,082 — -
Total Operating Expenses ........ 11,769 $10,452 125

Depreciation and Amortization increased $111 (3.8%) in 1995. The increase was due primarily to
higher levels of property, plant and equipment since December 31, 1994 resulting from sustained
growth in the customer base and continued modernization of the network. For a discussion of the
impact of discontinuance of SFAS No. 71 on depreciation expense in 1995 and 1996, see “*Extraordi-
nary Losses — Discontinuance of SFAS No. 71" below.

Other Operating Expenses are comprised of Cost of Services and Products and Selling, General and
Administrative. Cost of Services and Products includes employee and employee-related experses
associated with network repair and maintenance, material and supplies expense, cost of tangible
goods sold and other expenses associated with providing services. Selling, General and Administrative
includes expenses related to sales activities such as salaries, commissions, benefits, travel, marketing
and advertising expenses and administrative expenses. Other Operating Expenses increased $114
(1.5%) in 1995.

The increase for the period was due primarily to volume growth, partially offset by a decrease of
approximately $130 for labor costs, including expenses for employee benefits, in the core wireline
business. The decrease in such labor costs reflects employee reductions attributable to the restructur-
ing plan begun in 1893, partially offset by annual compensation increases for management and
represented employees.

Work Force Reduction/Restructuring Charges. In the fourth quarter of 1995, BellSouth Telecom.
munications recognized a pretax charge of $1,082 (8663 after tax), comprised of $942 ($577 after tax)
related to planned work force reductions by the end of 1997, $85 ($52 after tax) for expected severance
benefit payments after 1997 and $55 ($34 after tax) for additional net curtailment losses related to
employee reductions under the restructuring plan initiated in 1993,
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Each component of the overall 1995 work force reduction charge, as well as the 1993 restructur-
ing charge, is discussed below.

1995 Work Force Reduction Charge. In connection with a previously-disclosed plan to signifi-
cantly reduce its work force by the end of 1997, BellSouth recorded a pretax charge of $942 in the
fourth quarter of 1995. Under this plan, BellSouth Telecommunications expects to reduce the work
force of the core wireline business by approximately 11,300 employees by the end of 1997 including a
reduction of 800 employees which occurred in December 1995.

The work force reduction will be accomplished through the separation of approximately 13,200
employees, partially offset by the planned hiring of new employees primarily to replace those not
expected to relocate in connection with the consolidation of work locations.

The $942 pretax charge is comprised of approximately $561 under the provisions of SFAS No. 112,
“Employers’' Accounting for Postemployment Benefits,” related to those employees who are expected
to receive severance benefits under preexisting separation plans, and approximately $381 for curtail-
ment losses under the provisions of SFAS No. 88, “Employers’ Accounting for Settlements and
Curtailments of Defined Benefit Pension Plans and for Termination Benefits” and SFAS No. 106,
“Employers' Accounting for Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions.” Substantially all of the
curtailment losses relate to postretirement benefits other than pensions.

Once the plan to reduce 11,300 employees is completed, annual employee cost savings are esti-
mated to be approximately $560. Such annual savings will be partially offset by increased costs of
approximately $60 for outsourced services.

Postemployment Benefits Charge. The pretax charge of $85 represents estimated future postem-
ployment severance benefits to be paid after 1997, also in accordance with the provisions of SFAS
No. 112. This compcnent is based on BellSouth Telecommunications’ belief that work force reductions
will continue under existing separation plans, although at reduced separation benefit levels.

1993 Restructuring of Telephone Operations. During 1993, BeiiSouth Telecommunications rec-
ognized a $1,136 restructuring charge in connection with a plan to redesign, consolidate and stream-
line the fundamental processes and work activities in its telephone operations. Consistent with
previously-disclosed expectations, the restructuring was completed in 1995, about one year earlier
than initially planned.

As a part of the restructuring, BellSouth Telecommunications consolidated and centralized its
existing operations. These efforts involved redesign of key work processes and the design of new
processes that facilitated the consolidation of service functions and the reduction of 10,200 employees.

Since inception of the restructuring plan, total employee reductions were approximately 10,200,
including 5,000 since December 31, 1994. As a result of employee reductions in 1984 and 1995,
employee-related expenses, included as a component of operating expenses, for the year 1995 were
reduced by approximately $180 compared to the 1994 level. The cumulative reduction of 10,200
employees since inception of the plaa reduced 1995 employee-related expenses by approximately $375.
For the year 1996, the cumulative employee reductions under the plan are projected to reduce
employee-related expenses by approximately $600.
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A summary of employee reductions and expenditures through December 31, 1995 under the 1993

restructuring plan is as follows:
199} 199 1" Total

Employee Reductions ................. 1,300 3,900 5,000 10,200
Expenditures By Component:
Consolidation and Elimination of
Operations. .. .....coonviviininnnn $§ 16 § 166 % 231 $§ 411
SYBLEIE, o « o0 s's s nassenasiassevinis - 170 244 414
Employee Separation . ............... 38 134 251 423
Total o inmeseioisvadasventeays § 653 § 460 § 726 §1,248
Expenditures By Type:
B 5 aiiin o e e R AT $§ 53 § 390 § 648 $1,091
NOOERBR i 4 5 v o vsiw iisiioe o vie wimiv sisie s — 79 78 1567
TTORAL s oo b ra aaace wnacs sa $ 53 § 460 § 726 $1,248
Capital Expenditures (not included in above
expenditures) .......cc0c0irenacenas $— 8§ 204 § 250 § 454

Total expenditures of $1,248 include $55 of additional net curtailment losses resulting from a
greater number of retirement-eligible employees separating under the plan than originally expected.
These additional net curtailment losses were included in the 1995 work force reduction charge
discussed above.

At inception of the restructuring plan in 1993, the projected employee reductions and expendi-
tures for ench component of the charge by year were as follows:

199) 1984 1945 19 Total
Employee Reductions. .. ....... 1,300 3,700 2900 2,300 10,200
Consolidation and Elimination of
Operations. .. ....oovvveuinnn $ 15 § 185 § B7 § 656 § 343
BYBLBNE i niivinie siiaasvicss - 185 1566 84 425
Employee Separation . .. ....... a8 143 105 82 368
Total ......vveevvnunvnnns $ 53 % 6513 § 348 § 222 § 1,136

Other Income Statement [tems
1993 194 % Change

Interest EXpense ..........convuiiiinensnns $ 570 § B49  4.4%
Other Income, net . ........ccconeiiinnnsans 27 18 50.0
Provision for Income Taxes . .. ................ 818 1,106 (26.0)

Interest Expense includes interest on debt, certain other accrued liabilities and capital leases,
partially offset by interest capitalized as a cost of installing equipment and constructing plant.
Interest expense increased $24 (4.4%) in 1995. The increase was primarily attributable to higher
average interest rates on short-term borrowings and higher average debt levels for long-term borrow-
ings. The average interest rate on long-term borrowings was slightly lower in 1985 compared to 1994,
reflecting the initial impact of 1995 debt reflinancings at more favorable interest rates,

Provision for Income Taxes decreased $287 (26.0%) in 1895. BellSouth Telecommunications® effec-
tive tax rates were 36.6% and 36.2% in 1995 and 1994, respectively. A reconciliation of the statutory
Federal income tax rates to these effective tax rates is provided in Note K. A discussion of the 1993
adoption of SFAS No. 109, "Accounting for Income Taxes,' also is included therein.




Extreordinary Losses

Discontinuance of SFAS No. 71. As a result of its continuing regulatory and marketplace assess-
ments, BellSouth Telecommunications concluded that it is no longer appropriste to prepere its
external financial results using the accounting method required for regulated enterprises. BellSouth
Telecommunications believes that based on recent changes in the regulatory framework and the
increasing level of competition, it was required to discontinue SFAS No. 71 for financial reporting
purposes. Discontinuance was required because most of BellSouth Telecommunications’ revenues will
not be generated under cost-based regulation and because it is doubtful that regulated rates sufficient
to recover the net book value of telephone plant could be charged to and collected from customers due
to the expected levels of future competition. Accordingly, in the second quarter of 1995, BellSouth
Telecommunications discontinued application of SFAS No. 71 and recorded a noncash extraordinary
charge of $2,718 (net of a deferred tax benefit of $1,731). The extraordinary charge reflects $3,002
(after tax) to reduce the recorded value of long lived telephone plant and equipment, all of which was
within the regulatory framework, to the level appropriate for nonregulated enterprises. The overall
charge was partially offset by $194 related to the method by which BeliSouth Telecommunications
reports its directory publishing revenues, $71 related to the elimination of regulatory assets and
liabilities and $19 for the partial acceleration of unamortized investment tax credits associated with
the reductions in asset carrying values and in asset lives,

Recent changes in its regulatory framework and the rimultaneous elimination of legal and
regulstory barriers for its competitors both support discontinuance of SFAS No. 71. In the regulatory
arena, implementation of price regulation has been and continues to be a cornerstone in BellSouth
Telecommunications’ corporate strategy. Due in part to this strategy, changes in the regulatory
framework are now being implemented (see "'Operating Environment and Trends of t+~ Business™).
As a result of such changes, a significant portion of BellSouth Telecommunications’ revenue will no
longer be regulated based on the recovery of specific costs. Furthermore, BellSouth Telecommunica-
tions expects that competition in its local exchange markets will accelerate. The removal of legal and
regulatory barriers is expected to encourage potential competitors to accelerate deployment of com-
peting networks to either compete directly for local service or to bypass the BellSouth Telecommuni-
cations network for long distance access. Potential competitors have continued to make investments
in wireless licenses, cable properties and enhanced interexchange networks, which serves as further
evidence of increansed competition.

In connection with the discontinuance of SFAS No. 71, the average depreciable lives of significant
categories of long lived telephone plant were reduced to more closely reflect the economic and
technological lives. The application of such shorter lives does not result in a material incresse in
depreciation expense.

See Note B to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Early Extingulshment of Debt. During 1995 and 1993, BellSouth Telecommunications recognized
extraordinary losses of $78 (net of a current tax benefit of $49) and $87 (net of a current tax benefit of
$59), respectively, related to the early extinguishment of outstanding debt issues. See Note F to the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

FINANCING ACTIVITY

During 1995, BellSouth Telecommunications issued $300 of long-term debt and, with net gro-
ceeds, refinanced outstanding short-term debt. Also during 1995, BellSouth Telecommunications
issued approximately $1,900 of long-term debt to refinance $1,885 of outstanding long-term deben-
tures, including $485 of debentures redeemed in January 1996. The funds to redeem the $485 of
debentures in January 1996 are included in Cash and Cash Equivalents in the Consolidated Balance
Sheet at December 31, 1995. In addition, Cash and Cash Equivalents includes $500 which was used to
redeem commercial paper on January 2, 1996.

BellSouth Telecommunications has committed credit lines aggregating §1,240 with various
banks. BellSouth Telecommunications also maintains uncommitted credit lines of $75. There were no
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borrowings under the lines of credit at December 31, 1995, As of February 15, 1996, shelf registration
statements were on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission under which approximately
$1,200 of long-term debt securities could be publicly offered.

BellSouth Telecommunications’ debt Lo total capitalization ratio, adjusted to exclude the $485 of
debentures redeemed in January 1996, increased to 51.9% at December 31, 1995 from 41.0% at
December 31, 1994. The increase was primarily caused by the reduction in equity due to the extraordi-
nary loss from the discontinuance of SFAS Ne. 71,

OPERATING ENVIRONMENT AND TRENDS OF THE BUSINESS

Regulatory Environment. In providing telecommunications services, BellSouth Telecommunica-
tions is subject to regulation by both state and federal regulators with respect to rates, services and
other issues. BellSouth's primary regulatory focus continues to be directed toward modifying the
regulatory process to one that is more closely aligned with changing market conditions and overall
public policy objectives. BellSouth Telecommunications believes thal price regulation, whereby prices
of basic local exchange services are regulated based on factors other than rate of return and prices for
other products and services are based on market factors, is a logical progression to competitive
fairness and provides advantages for consumers. While price regulation plans limit the amount of
increases in prices lor specified services, such plans enhance the company’s ability to adjust prices and
service options to more effectively respond to changing market conditions and competition and enable
it to more fully benefit from productivity enhancements. Price regulation plans have been approved or
authorized by the requisite legislative or regulatory bodies in Alabama, Florida (although a sharing
requirement exists at least through 1996), Georgia, Kentucky, Mississippi, South Carclina and Ten-
nessee, and approvel of a price regulation plan is pending in North Carolina. In addition, BellSouth
Telecommunications has filed a proposed price regulation plan in Louisiana. At the federal level,
BellSouth Telecommunications is operating under an interim price regulation plan established by the
Federal Communications Commission (FCC) in 1995. This plan provided a productivity option, which
BellSouth Telecommunications selected, that eliminated both earnings limitations and sharing re-
quirements. The FCC is expected to consider further the interim rules as well as other issues related
to competition, streamlined regulation and other matters contained in the Telecommunications Act of
1996 (the 1996 Act). A final order is expected to be issued in 1996,

Economy. The nation's output of goods and services, which grew 4% in 1994, expanded 3.2% in
1995. Employment in nonfarm business establishments grew 2.3% during the year and the unemploy-
ment rate averaged 5.6%. The nine-state region served by BellSouth Telecommunications wireline
telephone business outperformed the nation again in 1895, The number of jobs in nonfarm businesses
grew 2.8% ea the unemployment rate averaged 5.1% for the year. Real income expanded at an
estimated 4.5% rate. Net in-migration added approximately 375,000 persons, accounting for half of
the region's population growth. The demand for telecommunications services in the region reflected
the strength of its economic and population growth, While the economic expansion is expected to
continue through 1986, boosted in Georgia in particular by the Olympic games to be held in July and
August, tight labor markets, slow labor force growth and modest productivity growth will likely result
in slower output growth. Its cost advantages and strong net in-migration promise to keep the region's
economic performance comparatively better than the nation's and to bring increased demand for
telecommunications services. However, increasing competition makes BellSouth Telecommunica-
tions' financial performance more susceptible to changes in the economy than previously, as its
operations reflect the more competitive business environment and the greater demand elasticities for
its products and services.

Competition. Developments in the telecommunications marketplace continue to indicate that a
technological convergence is occurring in the telephone, cable and broadcast television, computer,
entertainment and information services industries. The technologies utilized and being developed in
these industries are able to provide multiple and integrated communications offerings. A number of
large companies, including AT&T Corp. (AT&T) and the other major interexchange carriers, other
Bell Holding Companies and cable and other video and entertainment companies, have completed
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scquisitions and entered into business alliances that will ultimately intensify and expand competition
for local and toll communications and other services currently provided over BellSouth Telecommuni-
cations’ networks, Other competitors have announced plans to build, and in certain locations have
begun construction of, local phone connections and private networks that would permit business and
residential customers to bypass the facilities of local telephone companies, including those of Bell-
South Telecommunications in certain cities in its service territory.

In conjunction with the approval of state price regulation plans, competition for local service has
been authorized by legislative or regulatory action in Alabama, Florida, Georgis, North Carolina and
Tennessee, and proceedings to consider local service competition are pending in Kentucky, Louisiana
and Mississippi. In addition, the 1996 Act preempts state legislative and regulatory barriers to
competition for local telephone service, subject only to competitively neutral requirements to assure
quality service consistent with public safety, convenience and consumer welfare. AT&T, MCI Telecom-
munications Corporation (MCI), U § West, Inc. (U S West) and a number of other carriers have filed
applications and have announced their intent to | rovide local service in many of the areas in which
BellSouth Telecommunications provides service. The new legislation allows for the Bell Holding
Companies, including BellSouth, to compete for interLATA toll business in states outside their local
service territories prior to the time that such companies can offer interLATA toll services in states
within their local service territories. BellSouth expects Bell Holding Companies and interexchange
carriers, including AT&T and MCI, to compete for interLATA toll service and local service business.
Those competitors that choose to provide local service predominantly over their own facilities may
bundle local and toll service offerings. Such services could be provided before BellSouth becomes
eligible to provide interLATA service within the states in its region.

Notwithstanding the risks associated with increased competition, BellSouth and BellSouth Tele-
communications will have opportunities to benefit from entry into new business markets. For exam-
ple, the presence of competition will allow the entry by BellSouth into interLATA wireline businesses
under provisions contained in the new federal telecommunications Jegislation. BellSouth believes that
in order to remain competitive in the future, it must aggressively pursue a corporate strategy of
expanding its offerings beyond its traditional businesses and markets. These offerings may include
interLATA services, information services and video and electronic commerce services. As a part ul'this
strategy, BellSouth is conducting a trial of video dial tone services; acquiring broadband PCS licenses
in certain areas of its wireline territories; and forming business alliances and partnerships, both
domestically and internationally, related to the provision of interactive and traditional video program-
ming services as well as wireless and wireline communications services.

As & result of the 1996 Act, BellSouth is freed from many of the laws, regulations end judicial
restrictions (including the Modification of Final Judgment) that constrained the provision of voice,
data and video communications throughout its wireline service territory and elsewhere. The FCC has
commenced rulemaking proceedings relating to the provision of interLATA service by the Bell Hold-
ing Companies. After necessary federal and state proceedings, BellSouth may apply to the FCC to offer
inter LATA wireline services within its nine-state region, and the FCC must act on such application
within 90 days. The FCC must grant such application if it determines that BellSouth (a) has met a
competitive checklist; (b) has shown (i) the presence of facilities-based competition for residential and
business local service or (ii) in the absence thereof, a statement of the terms under which it would be
willing to interconnect with a competitive local carrier; (c) will operate consistently with the separate
subsidiary requirement; and (d) will meet the 1996 Act’s public interest requirement in so offering the
services on the foregoing conditions.

BellSouth is not required to obtain such FCC approval prior to offering out-of-region interLATA
wireline services. BellSouth plans to offer interLATA wireline servics within its nine-state territory as
soon as possible after completion of FCC and state regulatory proceedings, expected to be concluded in
late 1996 or early 1997; however, no assurance can be provided with respect to when BellSouth will be
authorized to initiate such interLATA wireline service. BellSouth has no plans to offer out-of-region
interLATA wireline services on a significant scale.
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ANer some modifications to its network and operating systems, wireline interLATA services can
be offered by BellSouth Telecommunications. However, many of the telecommunications services that
BellSouth Telecommunications may provide may be subject to extensive regulations to be adopted by
the FCC and state regulatory commissions.

The 1996 Act allows, without additional approval, BellSouth to market its wireless services jointly
with its wireline local exchange services; before, separate marketing was required for cellular services.
In addition, such joint marketing will include interLATA wireline services in the nine-state territory
when authorized. BellSouth expects to begin a joint marketing trial for wireline local exchange and
cellular services later in 1996.

As another part of its competitive strategy, BellSouth Telecommunications has completed a 1893
restructuring plan to streamline its telephone operations and to improve its overall cost structure and
has undertaken a plan to further reduce its work force by the end of 1987. BellSouth Telecommunica-
tions is continuing to seek additional ways to better enhance customer service and productivity and to
further improve its cost structure, As a result of these ongoing efforts, additional changes to funda-
mental business processes and work activities are expected.

OTHER MATTERS

CWA Contracts. In October 1995, members of the Communications Workers of America (CWA)
ratified new three-year contracts with BellSouth Telecommunications. These contracts were effective
in August 1995, The contracts include basic wage increases of 10.9% (compounded) over three years.
In addition, the agreement provided a cash payment of one thousand one hundred dollars to each
eligible employee upon ratification and provides payments of one thousand one hundred dollars per
eligible employee in either cash or BellSouth stock, at the option of the employee, on the 1996 and
1997 contract anniversary dates. Other terms of the agreement include discontinuance of annual
wage adjustments based on cost of living increases and discontinuance of annual incentive payments.

Accounting Pronouncements. In March 1995, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued
SFAS No. 121, “*Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to Be
Disposed Of,” which BellSouth Telecommunications is required to adopt effective January 1, 1996.
SFAS No. 121 establishes accounting standards for the impairment of long-lived assets, certain
identifiable intangibles and goodwill. The adoption of SFAS No. 121 is not expected to have a material
impact on BellSouth Telecommunications’ financial position, annual operating results or cash flows.

Affiliated Transactions. BellSouth Telecommunications has a contractual agreement with Bell-
South Advertising & Publishing Corporation (BAPCO), an affilisted company, wherein BAPCO pub-
lishes certain telephone directories and in return pays publication fees to BellSouth
Telecommunications for publishing rights and other services. For the years ended December 31, 1995,
1994 and 1993, these fees, included in Other Operating Revenue, were §721, $£%% and 3616,
respectively.

In response to changes in the telecommunications environment and to enhance competitive
flexibility, BellSouth Telecommunications and BAPCO intend to establish a new contract, based on
fees for services rendered between the companies, to be efTective for all or part of the region during the
first quarter of 1996, The new contract is expected to generate fees of about $75 for BellSouth
Telecommunications in 1996, resulting in projected BellSouth Telecommunications’ 1996 revenues of
about $625 less than they would have been under the old contract.

Based on discussions with debt rating agencies, BellSouth Telecommunications does not believe
that this contractual change will afTect its credit ratings. In addition, because BellSouth Telecommu-
nications and BAPCO are wholly-owned subsidiaries, BellSouth's consolidated financial results will

not be affected by this change.




ITEM B. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
REPORT OF MANAGEMENT

These financial statements have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles and have been audited by Coopers & Lybrand L.L.P, independent accountants, whose
report is contained herein.

The integrity and objectivity of the data in these financial statements, including estimates and
judgments relating to matters not concluded by the end of the year, are the reaponsibility of the
management of BellSouth Telecommunications. Management has also prepared all other information
included in this Annual Report unless indicated otherwise.

Management maintains a system of internal accounting controls which is continuously reviewed
and evaluated. However, there are inherent limitations that should be recognized in considering the
assurances provided by any system of internal accounting controls. The concept of reasonable assur-
ance recognizes that the cost of a system of internal accounting controls should not exceed, in
management's judgment, the benefits to be derived. Management believes that BellSouth Telecom-
munications’ system does provide reasonable assurance that the transactions are executed in accor-
dance with management's general or specific authorizations and are recorded properly to maintain
accountability for assets and to permit the preparation of financial statements in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles. Management also believes that this system provides reason-
able assurance that access to assets is permitted only in accordance with management's authoriza-
tions, that the recorded accountability for assets is compared with the existing assets at reasonable
intervals and that appropriate action is taken with respect to any differences. Management also seeks
to assure the objectivity and integrity of its financial data by the careful selection of its managers, by
organizational arrangements that provide an appropriate division of responasibility and by communi-
cations programs aimed at assuring that its policies, standards and mansgerial authorities are under-
stood throughout the organization. Management is also aware that changes in operating strategy and
organizational structure can give rise to disruptions in internal controls. Special attention is given to
controls while the changes are being implemented.

Management maintains a strong internal auditing program that independently assesses the
effectiveness of the internal contrals and recommends possible improvements thereto. In addition, as
part of its audit of these financial statements, Coopers & Lybrand L.L.P completed a review of the
accounting controls to establish a basis for reliance thereon in determining the nature, timing and
extent of audit tests to be applied. Management has considered the internal auditor's and Coopers &
Lybrand L.L.P's recommendations concerning the system of internal control and has taken actions
that we believe are cost-effective in the circumstances to respond appropristely to these recommenda-
tions. Management believes that as of December 31, 1995, the system of internal controls was
adequate to accomplish the objectives discussed herein.

Management also recognizes its responsibility for fostering a strong ethical climate so that
BellSouth Telecommunications' afTairs are conducted according to the highest standards of personal
and corporate conduct. This responsibility is communicated to all employees through policies and
guidelines addressing such issues as conflict of interest, safeguarding of BellSouth Telecommunica-
tions' real and intellectual properties, providing equal employment opportunities and ethical relations
with customers, suppliers and governmental representatives. BellSouth Telecommunications main-
tains a program to assess compliance with these policies.

/s/ Jere A. Drummond /a/ Patrick H. Casey
President and Chief Executive Officer Vice President and Comptroller
February 5, 1996
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AUDIT COMMITTEE CHAIRMAN'S LETTER

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors consists of two members who are neither officers
nor employees of BellSouth Telecommunications. The Audit Committee met four times during 1895
and reviewed with the Chiel Corporate Auditor, Coopers & Lybrand L.L.P, and management current
audit activities, plans and the results of selected internal sudits. The Audit Committee also reviewed
the objectivity of the financial reporting process and the adequacy of internal controls. The Audit
Committee recommended the lﬁnlntmml of the in nt sccountants and considered factors
relating to their independence. The Chiefl Corporate Auditor and & Lybrand L.L.P. each met
privately with the Audit Committee on occasion to encourage confidential discussions as to any

auditing matters.
/n/ Harry M. tsey, Jr.
Chairman, A.l.lu‘;.u‘h Commiitee
February 5, 1996




REPORT OF INDEFENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

BellSouth Telecommunications, Inec.
Atlanta, Georgia

We have audited the -um:nmin: consolidated balance sheets of BellSouth Telecommunica-
tions, Inc. and Subsidiaries as of mber 31, 1995 and 1994 and the related consolidated statements
of income and retained earnings and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 1985. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Com 's management.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepled auditing standards. Those stan-
dards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evalusting the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reason-
able basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the consolidated financial position of BellSouth Telecommunications, Inc. and Subsidiaries as of
December 31, 1995 and 19984, and the consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for
each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 1995, in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles.

As discussed in Note B to the consolidated financial statements, BellSouth Telecommunications
discontinued accounting for its operations in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 71, "Accounting for the Effects of Certain Types of Regulation,” effective June 30,
1995. Also, as discussed in Notes | and K to the consolidated financial statements, BellSouth Telecom-
munications changed its method of sccounting for postretirement benefits other than pensions,
postemployment benefits, and income taxes in 1993,

/sl Coopers & Lybrand L.L.P

Atlanta, Georgia
February 5, 1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

We consent to the incorporation by reference in the %lmﬂon statements of BellSouth Tele-
communications, Inc. on Form S-3 (File Nos. 33-63661 and 33-00648) of our report dated February 5,
1996, which includes an explanatory paragraph stating that the Company discontinued accounting for
its operation in accordance with Statement of Fina Accounting Standards No. 71, “Accountin
for the Effects of Certain Types of Regulation,” effective June 30, 1995, and changed its method o
accounting for postretirement benefits other than pensions, postem nt benefits and incoms
taxes in 1993, on our audits of the consolidated financial statements of BellSouth Telecommunica-
tions, Inc. listed in Item 14(a) of this Form 10-K.

/s/ Coopers & Lybrand L.L.P

Atlanta, Georgia
February 27, 1986




BELLSOUTH TELECOMMUNICATIONS, INC,
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME AND RETAINED EARNINGS

(In Millions)
For i Years Ended December )1,
1995 194 1993
Operating Revenues:
LOCR] SOEVIOR . i e e e e e e e T e e $ 7204 $ 6863 § 6,677
TTIVETBLRLE IOCREE v o o a e ais oom i okt o ais oo b a6 @i w bW o 3,276 3,127 2,991
INtrastale BOCESS . . ... coovvsiuvnrononenoncsancnassans 8B4 908 882
by | i At L e e S R vt 1,009 1,190 1,220
Oher . e e A s R TR R D 2,078 1,952 1,910
Total Operating Revenues. . .. ... .........cccviuieuenns 14,540 14,040 13,580
Opersating Expenses:
Costofservicesand products , . ............c0vvuvvnurnsn 5,268 5,235 5170
reciation and amortization . ... .. .. ... i ann 3,065 2,954 2,903
in% general and administrative. . .. ..., 0000000 2,344 2,263 2,382
Work force reduction/restructuring charges (Noted) . ......... 1,082 - 1,136
Total Operating Expenses . . .. ...........cccvavuisersss 11,769 10,452 11,591
Operating INCOME . . .. i iuvusieirnrarianassisssssssassns 2,781 3,588 1,989
Interest "I Sl s e A e e LS U LR el L SR 573 549 563
Othar Inecome, Tl . . . ..o caneassns b raasarssnnestssyss 27 18 22
Income Before Income Taxes, Extraordinary Losses
and Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting Principle ...... 2,235 5,057 1,448
Provision for Income Taxes (Note K) . . . .. .................. 818 1,105 461
Income Before Extraordinary Losses and Cumulative
Effect of Change in Accounting Principle .. ................. 1,417 1,952 987
Extraordinary Loss for Discontinuance of SFAS No. 71,
netoftax (Note B) .......c0ciaiercscnansnanassannsnss 2,718) — —_
Extraordinary Loss on Early Extinguishment of Debt,
Nt of LA IINOLR ) ..o v cn s s senassmnansnsantsnsnssss (78) _ (B7)
Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting Pripciple,
ot ol e NG D s s e S A e e T e e e e — — (65)
Net Income (Loss) .. ...cvvrvrerrnrnensnenesesssnsnn §(1,379) $1952 § B35
Retained Earnings:
At beginningolyear ......... .. 00 $ 3522 § 3,180 § 3967
Netincome (loss). . .....coivivvvvvinonsnsnieonnes, . (1,379) 1,952 B35
Dividendsdeclared . . . .......... .0 ccveevcnnrannnssos (1,688) (1,610)0 (1,612)
Other adjustments. .. ... ... oo vvarssrssrsresisssnssns — —_ (10)
AL DD OF YBEP & wiwrova aiie vis vw s amn S0 a0 s e s e 6o ea e i $ 5655 § 3522 § 3,180

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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BELLSOUTH TELECOMMUNICATIONS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(In Millions)
Dacambar 31,
179 194
ASSETS
Current Aasets:
Cash andcash equivalents . .............0ccnvuivnnnniinennanans $1084 $ 94
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for uncollectibles of $94 and $82 . . .. 2,041 2,317
Material and supplies . ..........cciiiiiiiiii i i i e M7 a76
Other CUrTENE ABBIEE . . . . . . v v s o s r i e s snsasiosasansnsasissins 281 380
Total Current ASBEEE . . . ..o oo v v v e nrvonnasonnansnnansesesns 4,653 3,166
Investments In and Advances to Afliliates (NoteC).................... 279 249
Property, Plant and Equipment, net (Note D) . ....................... 18,744 23515
Deferred Charges and Other Assets . .............civueveniurensnns 257 442
Do) Al © s i T e R R R R R e e e A $23,933 $27372
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY
Current Liabilities:
Debt maturing within one year: (Note F)
Debentures to be redeemed in January 1896...................... $ 485 § —
o o SR el Ao S SN o Ll DL — I AR+ ] | 1,780 1.218
¥ P SRR P Sy S A et IS LU 1,332 1,122
Other current liabilities (Note E) ..........coviiiriviinninninn 1,934 2,502
Total Current Linbilities . ..... ... ..o iiivioniiionerennnns 5,631 4,842
Long-Term Debt (Note F).............. o B e e e 6,853 6,512
Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities:
Accumulated deferred Income taxes . . . .......00vii i e e 1,000 2,692
Unamortized investment tax eredits ... ............0.00iiiuuennns ass 443
Other liabilities and deferred credits (Note G) ... ................... 2,227 1,658
Total Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities . . .. .................. 3,682 5,093
Shareholder’s Equity:
Common stock, one share, noparvalue. . ..................0c0vuns 7.412 7,403
Retalned earning®. .........ccnvienenneonnanansnanssoransnns 656 3,622
Total Shareholder's Equity .........coiiiieiiinnierineanenns 7.967 10,925
Total Liabilities and Shareholder's Equity . . . ................... $23,933 827,372

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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BELLSOUTH TELECOMMUNICATIONS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(In Millions)
For the Years Esded December )1,
1993 174 )
Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Netincome (I088) . ......cnvvrnennennnnrsocosonnssnss $(1379) 8 1952 § B35
Adjustments to net .ncome (loss):
Extraordinary loss for discontinuance of SFAS No. 71 .. .. .. 4,449 —_ =
Extraordinary loss on early extinguishment of debt . ....... 127 - 145
Payment of call premium ............ 00 c0oiuiuinunn.. (49) — (100)
Change in accounting principle . ... .........00vivaunnn — — 108
Work force reduction/restructuringcharges .............. 1,082 — 1,136
EDPOCREION & 2 i o aits T 0w o ia s s g baala e baTa e aTas s e ace 3,085 2,950 2,900
Provision for losseson bad debts . . . .. ................. 124 111 129
Deferred income taxes and unamortized investment tax
e Y T B g e L A s B N S v § pa (1,973) (35) (718)
Change in accounts receivable and other current assets . . . . . (454) (483) (673)
Change in accounts payable and other current liabilitiec . ... (632) (400) 142
Change in deferred charges and otherassets .. ........... {33) 78 273
Change in other liabilities and deferred credits ........ ... 62 299 148
Other reconciling items, net . .. .......c00iiiunrunsaaany 3 (14) (68)
Net cash provided by operating activities . ............. 4,367 4,458 4,257
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Capital expenditures .............. .0 (3,123) (2,871) (2,995)
Proceeds from disposals of property, plant and -qulpmunl. ..... 30 80 87
Purchase of BellSouth Common Stock . ...........0c000.. (19) - (200)
Other investing activities, net. . . . .......... .. .o iiuuan (10) 43 14
Net cash used for investing activities . .. .............. (3,122) (2,848) (3,084)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Proceeds from short-term borrowings .. .................. 14410 13,100 10,866
Repayments of short-term borrowings. . . ................. (13,817) (13,003) (10,645)
Proceeds from longtermdebt. . ...............c.00uiunn 2,202 - 2911
Repayments of longtermdebt ......................... {1,430) — {2,778)
Advances from parent and affiliates ..................... 613 435 360
Repayments of advances from parent and affiliates . .. ....... (610) (437) (357)
Dividendspaidtoparent ...............c0covuuinainnn (1,604) (1,621) (1.,58T)
Equity investmentof parent . . . ..............c000iuunnn ] (59) 29
Other financing activities, net .. ............c000iuvvuns (38) (15) 11
Net cash used for financing activities . . . .............. (256) (16000 (1,212)
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents. . .. ... .. 290 10 (49)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Period . . .......... 94 B4 133
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Endof Period ................ 5 1084 § M $ B4

The sccompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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BELLSOUTH TELECOMMUNICATIONS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dotlars in Millions)

Note A — Accounting Policies

Organizstion. BellSouth Telecommunications, Inc. (BellSouth Telecommunications) is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of BellSouth Corporation (BellSouth). BellSouth Telecommunications serves, in the
aggregate, approximately two-thirds of the population and one-half of the territory within Alabama,
Florida, Georgia, Kentucky, Louisiana, Mississippi, North Carolina, South Carolina and Tennessee
BellSouth Telecommunications primarily provides local exchange service and toll communications
services within geographic areas, called Local Access and Transport Areas (LATAs), end provides
network sccess services to enable interLATA communications using the long-distance facilities of
interexchange carriers. Through subsidiaries, other telecommunications services and products are
provided primarily within the nine-state BellSouth Telecommunications region.

BellSouth Telecommunications' Operating Revenues were primarily from wireline services.
Charges for local, access and toll services for the year ended December 31, 19856 eccounted for
approximately 59%, 33% and 8%, respectively, of those wireline revenues. The remainder of BellSouth
Telecommunications’ Operating Revenues were derived principally from directory publishing fees,
sales and maintenance of customer premises equipment and other nonregulated services.

Basis of Presentation and Accounting. The consolidated financial statementa include the accounts
of BellSouth Telecommunications and subsidiaries in which it has a controlling financial interest
presented in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles. Such financial statements
include estimates and sssumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclo-
sure of contingent assets and liabilities and the amounts of revenues and expenses. Actual results
could differ from those estimates. Certain amounts in the prior period consolidated financial state-
ments have been reclassified to conform to the current year's presentation.

Effective June 30, 19985, BellSouth Telecommunications discontinued application of Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 71, “Accounting for the Effects of Certain Types of
Regulation.” See Note B for further discussion of the impacts of discontinuance of SFAS No. 71.

Cash and Cash Equivalents. BellSouth Telecommunications considers all highly liquid invest-
ments with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Material and Supplies. New and reusable material is carried in inventory, principally at average
original cost, except that specific costs are used in the case of large individual items. Nonreusable
material is carried at estimated salvage value.

Property, Plant and Equipment. The investment in property, plant and equipment is stated at
original cost. For plant dedicated to providing regulated telecommunications services, depreciation is
based on the remaining life method of depreciation and straight-line composite rates determined on
the basis of equal life groups of certain categories of telephone plant acquired in a given year. When
such plant is disposed of, the original cost less net salvage value is charged to accumulated deprecia-
tion. Other depreciable plant is depreciated using either straight-line or accelerated methods over the
estimated useful lives of the assets. Gains and losses on disposal of other depreciable plant are
recognized in the year of disposition as an element of other nonoperating income.

Revenue Recognition. Revenues are recognized when earned. Certain revenues derived from
local telephone services are billed monthly in advance and are recognized the following month when
services are provided. Revenues derived from other telecommunications services, principally network
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BELLSOUTH TELECOMMUNICATIONS, INC.,

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — continued
{Dollars in Milllons)

Note A — Accounting Policles (Continued)

sccess and toll, are recognized monthly as services are provided. Directory publishing fees are recog-
nized upon publication of the related directories by an afMiliated company. Allowances lor uncollectible
billed services are adjusted monthly. The provision for such uncollectible accounts was $124, $111 and
%129 for the vears ended December 31, 1995, 1994 and 1993, respectively.

Revenues from services provided to AT&T Corp., BellSouth Telecommunications' largest cus-
tomer, were approximately 12%, 13% and 16% of consolidated operating revenues for 1995, 1994 and
1993, respectively.

Maintenance and Repairs. The cost of maintenance and repairs of plant, including the cost of
replacing minor items not effecting substantial betterments, is charged to operating expenses.

Income Taxes. The balance sheet reflects deferred tax balances associated with the anticipated
tax impact of future income or deductions implicit in the balance sheet in the form of temporary
differences. Temporary differences primarily result from the use of accelerated methods and shorter
lives in computing depreciation for tax purposes.

For financial reporting purposes, BellSouth Telecommunications is amortizing deferred invest-
ment tax credits earned prior to the 1986 repeal of the investment tax credit and also some transi-
tional credits earned after the repeal. The credits are being amortized ns a reduction to the provision
for income taxes over the estimated useful lives of the assets to which the credits relate.

Note B — Discontinuance of SFAS No. 71

As a result of its continuing regulatory and marketplace assessmenta, BellSouth Telecommunica-
tions concluded during the second quarter 1995 that it is no longer appropriate to prepare its external
financial results using the accounting method required for regulated enterprises. BellSouth Telecom-
munications believes that, based on recent changes in the regulatory framework and the increasing
level of competition, it was required to discontinue EFAS No. 71, "Accounting for the Effects of
Certain Types of Regulation," for financial reporting purposes. Discontinuance was required because
most of BellSouth Telecommunications® revenues will not be generated under cost-based regulation
and because it is doubtful that regulated rates sufficient to recover the net book value of telephone
plant could be charged to and collected from customers due to the expected levels of future competi-
tion. Accordingly, in the second quarter, BellSouth Telecommunications discontinued application of
SFAS No. 71 and recorded a noncash extraordinary charge of $2,718 (net of a deferred tax benefit of
$1,731). The components of the charge are as follows:

Preiax 1 Alsr

Reduction in recorded value of long lived telephone plant ... $(4,806) $(3,002)

Full adoption of issue basis accounting . . ............... a7 194

Elimination of regulatory assets and liabilitiea ........... 111 71

Partial adjustment to unamortized investment tax credits. . . 19 19
- R e A e R T AT doal e $(4,449) $(2,718)




BELLSOUTH TELECOMMUNICATIONS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — continued
(Dollars in Millions)

Note B — Discontinuance of SFAS No. 71 (Continued)

The reduction of telephone plant, $4,896 (pretax), was recorded as an increase to the related
accumulated depreciation accounts, the categories and amounts of which are as follows:

Central OfTice Equipment:
Digital switching . .........cvvevrnvevecssiscssresraannns $1,305
Cirelb-OlBE o v asi s s s s s e E e e e e e e s ﬂ
Total Central Office Equipment . .. ... . cvvvvvenrrinnncnnn 2,596
Qutside Plant:
Buried metalliccable .........ccovviivnntononsciananninan 1,345
Aerial metalliceable. .. .....ccovvie i vvnonsraerararnananss 630
Underground metalliccable .. ...........ccoiiiiniinniannonas az2s
Total Outelde Plant .. ........ ..o vvomesnannsraninnnins 2,300
ol 7 ) I s s LM e . -1 21 o R B T 34,886

Such reduction of plant was determined by an impairment analysis that identified estimated
amounts not recoverable from future discounted cash flows. The analysis considered projected elfects
of future competition as well as changes in technology and capital requirements. The plant-related
charge, all of which related to assets within the regulatory framework, was further supported by
depreciation studies that identified inadequate levels of sccumulated depreciation for certain asset
categories. These studies give recognition to the historical underdepreciation of assets resulting
primarily from regulator-prescribed asset lives that exceeded the estimated economic asset lives.

For financial reporting purposes, the average depreciable lives of affected categories of long lived
telephone plant have been reduced to more closely reflect the economic and technological lives.
Differences be. veen regulator-approved asset lives and the current estimated economic asset lives are
as follows:

Composiie of IM_T"“
E‘m Asset Livey lﬂ Years) Lives (lo Year:)
Digital switching. . .. .......covvvivnienn 17.0 10.0
Circult-other. .........ccieecicisnnans 10.56 8.1
Buried metalliceable ................... 20.0 14.0
Aerial metalliceable .. .........c.c00un 20.0 14.0
Underground metalliccable. .............. 25.0 12.0

The remaining components of the extraordinary charge, which partially offset the plant-related
portion of the overall charge, include $194 (after tax) related to the method by which BellSouth
Telecommunications reports its directory publishing revenues. BellSouth's unregulated subsidiaries
recognize directory publishing revenues and production expenses using issue basis accounting. Under
issue basis accounting, revenues and product expenses are recognized when directoriss are published
rather than over the lives of the directories (generally one year) as under the prescribed regulatory
accounting framework. BellSouth Telecommunications is now reporting using issue basis accounting
consistent with BellSouth's unregulated subsidiaries and with publishing companies in general.

The overall extraordinary charge was also reduced by $71 (after tax) to reflect the removel of
regulatory assets and liabilities that were recorded as a result of previous actions by regulators.
Virtually all of these regulatory assets and liabilities arose in connection with the incorporation of new
sccounting standards into the ratemaking process, and were transitory in nature, The magnitude of



BELLSOUTH TELECOMMUNICATIONS, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — continued
(Dollars in Milllons)

Note B — Discontinuance of SFAS No. 71 (Continued)

the regulatory assets and liabilities has been decreasing over time due to the ongoing amortization
prescribed as a part of the adoption in 1988 of the Federal Communication Commission's (FCC)
current Uniform System of Accounts. In addition, the overall extraordinary charge was reduced by
$10 (alter tax) for the partial acceleration of unamortized investment tax credits associated with the
reductions in asset carrying values and in asset lives.

Note C — Investments In and Advances (o Affilistes

At December 31, 1995 and 1894, Investments In and Advances to Affiliates consists primarily of
8,132,474 and 7,632,398 shares of BellSouth common stock, respectively. During 1995 and 1893,
grantor trusts established by BellSouth Telecommunications purchased for $19 and $200, respec-
tively, such BellSouth comman stock to provide partial funding for the benefits payable under certain
nonqualified benefit plans. Dividend income earned from the BellSouth shares, included as a compo-
nent of Other Income, net, was §11, $10 and $8 for 1995, 1994 and 1893, respectively.

Note D — Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment is summarized as follows at December 31:

193 194

B e e N e S e e $20,092 $19,202
Central office equipment ...........000.. ey 16,132 15443
Building and building improvements . . . ............... 2879 2,785
Furniture and fixtures . ...........c0c0nuvvnrennnnns 2,408 2,216
Operating and other equipment ..................... 912 908
Station oquiptBt « oo oo v s s ressrensasessinssassns 626 601
Plant underconstruction ...........cc0iueiucennn. 304 289
e R P L b e B R 168 162
43,621 41,696

Less: Accumulated depreciation ..................... 24,777 18,181
Total Property, Plant and Equipment, net ............ $18,744 $23,515

See Note B for a discussion of the discontinuance of SFAS No. 71 and its effect on Property, Plant
and Equipment.

Note E — Other Current Lisbilitles
Other current linbilities are summarized as follows at December 31:

1993 194
Advanced billing and customer deposits ................. $ 400 § 416
Compensated absences . . . .. .........connivvnnrinines 288 307
Salaries and wagespayable .......................... 281 306

Postemployment benefits (see Note J). . ... .......oovnure 273 —
Interest and rentsmccrued .. ...............0.c000nnnnnn 232 250
R IORTIMI (35 - e o o i m e 5 e o W b T 203 314
Dividends payable toparent . . ........................ 113 154
1993 Restructuring accrual (see NotedJ) ... .............. — 615
L F e A T PI e L G A e L R e 144 140
Total Other Current Liabilities .................... $1,034 $2502



BELLSOUTH TELECOMMUNICATIONS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — continued
(Dollars in Millions)

Note F — Debt

Debt Maturing Within One Year: Debt maturing within one year is summarized as follows at
December 31:

175 14
Debentures to be Redeemed in January 1996........... $ 485 § —
Commercial PAPEF. . . .. vveuieiurariarnsssnssnsas 1,776 1,181
Current maturities of long-termdebt ................ 5 a7
Total Other Debt Maturing Within One Year 1,780 1,218
Total Debt Maturing Within One Year ............ $2,265 §1,218
Weighted average interest rate at end of period:
Commercial paper .. .........ovierrvisrerinansns 5.83% 587%

BellSouth Telecommunications has committed credit lines aggregating $1,240 with various
banks. BellSouth Telecommunications also maintains uncommittea lines of credit of $75. There were
no borrowings under the lines of credit at December 31, 1095. There are no significant commitment
fees or requirements for compensating balances associated with any lines of credit.

Long-Term: The table below summarizes debt outstanding as of December 31. Interest rates and
maturities are for amounts outstanding at December 31, 1995,

Coatractaal

Ioierest Rades  Maluriiles 194 14
Debentures: AW%-6%% 1997-2045 $1916 $1,270

6.65%-T% 2095 626 —
T%-8%% 1906-2035 2,536 1,935
BH%-BY% e — 1,400
5,076 4,605
NObs o oy o e iy e BYi%-T% 1908-2008 2,176 1,876
CRIBE o vivn ininn snenoesysssiie 124 129

Unamortized discount, net of

Pramimm ... i i s (32) (60)
7343 6,549
Current maturities ............. (490) (37)
Total Long-Term Debt ....... $6,853 8$6,512

Maturities of long-term debt outstanding (principal amounts) at December 31, 1995 are summa-
rized below. Maturities after the year 2000 include $500 principal amount 6,65% debentures due in
2095. At December 31, 1995, such debentures had an accreted book value of §126.

1996 1997 198 1999 2000 Therssfer Toul
Maturition . . oo vvvniase ey $490 $75 $570 $— 3376 96239 §7,749

During 1995, BellSouth Telecommunications refinanced certain long-term debt issues at more
favorable interest rates. The approximate §1,900 gross proceeds of debentures issued during the year
to accomplish these refinancings are included in Long-Term Debt. Of the total $1,885 aggregate
principal amount of debentures called for redemption during 1995, $1,400 had actually been redeemed

a7



BELLSOUTH TELECOMMUNICATIONS, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — continued
(Dollars in Millions)

Note F — Debt (Continued)

as of December 31, 1995. The remaining $485 of debentures, redeemed in January 1896, are included
in the Consolidated Balance Sheet at December 31, 1995 as a separate component of Debt Maturing
Within One Year.

As a result of the early extinguishment of these issues, including the issues redeemed in Janu-
ary 1986, an extraordinary loss of $78 net of a current tax benefit of $49, was recognized in 1995. Also,
during 1993, an extraordinary loss of $87, net of a current tax benefit of $59, was recognized due to
early extinguishments of debt during that year.

At December 31, 1985, a shell registration statement was on file with the SBecurities and Exchange
Commission under which approximately $100 of long-term debt securities could be publicly ofiered.

Note G — Other Lisbllities and Deferred Credits
Other liabilities and deferred credits are summarized as follows at December 31:
2N i
Postretirement benefits other than

pensions (see Notes land J) ............00vvivinnn. $ 656 § B
Postemployment benefits (see Noted). .........covviunn. 485 128
Accrued pension cost (see NotesIanddJ) ................ 465 667
Compensationrelated ............cc0i0iiuiuniinnnn. 354 307
Sharing accrual under FCC pricecapplan ............... 186 141
Regulatory liability related to income taxes (see Note K) . . . . . — 304
BB, o iaiasiniooin s s a e e ois ale aie s scea n s s ah s na s i we 81 130

Total Other Liabilities and Deferred Credits. ... ....... $2,227 $1.668

Note H — Transactions with AfMiliates

BellSouth Telecommunications has a contractual agreement with BellSouth Advertising & Pub-
lishing Corporation (BAPCO), an affiliated company, wherein BAPCO publishes certain telephone
directories and in return pays publication feea to BallSouth Telecommunications for publishing rights
and other services. For the years ended December 31, 1995, 1994 and 1993, these fees, included in
Other Operating Revenue, were §721, $638 and $616, respectively.

BellSouth Telecommunications and BAPCO intend to establish a new contract, based on fees for
services rendered between the companies, to be effective for all or part of the region during the first
quarter of 1996. The prices for such services have not yet been established, but are expected to result
in a substantial reduction in payments to, and a commensurate reduction in revenues for, BellSouth
Telecommunications.

At December 31, 1985 and 1994, amounts receivable from affiliated companies were $8 and $21,
respectively. Amounts payable to affiliated companies at December 31, 1095 and 1094, both short- and

long-term, were $397 and $432, respectively.
Note 1 — Employee Beneflis

Penslon Plans. Substantially all employees of BellSouth Telecommunications are covered by
noncontributory defined benefit pension plans sponsored by BellSouth. Principal plans are discussed
below; other plans are not significant individually or in the aggregate.

The plan covering nonrepresented employees is a cash balance plan which provides pension
benefits determined by a combination of compensation-based service and additional credits and




BELLSOUTH TELECOMMUNICATIONS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — continued
(Dollars in Millions)

Note | — Employee Benefits (Continued)

individual sccount-based interest credits. The cash balance plen is subject to a minimum benefit
determined under a plan in existence for nonrepresented employees prior to July 1, 1983 which
provided benefits based upon credited service and employees’ average compensation for a specified
period. The minimum benefit under the prior plan is applicable to employees retiring through 2005.
Both the 1995 and 1904 projected benefit obligations assume interest and additional credits greater
than the minimum levels specified in the written plan. Pension benefits provided for represented
employees are based on specified benefit amounts and years of service and include the projected efTect
of future bargained-for improvements.

BellSouth's funding policy is to make contributions to trust funds with the objective of accumu-
lating sufficient assets to pay all pension benefits for which BellSouth is liable. Contributions are
actuarially determined using the aggregate cost method, subject to ERISA and Internal Revenue
Service limitations. Pension plan assets consist primarily of equity securities and fixed income
investments.

Effective January 1, 1894, the nonrepresented cash balance plan was divided from one into four
cash balance plans which allowed for costs to be accounted for more precisely based upon specific
company demographic information. The plan division had no material impact on BellSouth Telecom-

munications’ 1994 costs.
The components of net pension income for the nonrepresented plan are summarized below:

1993 1994
Service cost — benefits earned during the year........... $§ 68 § 8l
Interest cost on projected benefit obligation ............. 328 325
Actual loss (return) on plan assets . .. ...........00ia0e (1,265) 58
Net amortization and deferral ................ ... ..., 788 (506)
Netpensionincome. ..........0c0onvennencuannns $§ (1) § (42)
The following table sets forth the funded status of the plan at December 31:
1995 1994
Actuarial present value of:
Vested benefitobligation . . . ......... ... ..iviiines $3,927 ATl
Accumulated benefit obligation .. ............00000ee. $4,194 ,740
Projected benefit obligation . . ... ....ovvvveiiinneiues $4,622 84,105
Plan assetsat fairvalue. . .. ... .. ..coninennnneinns 042 5,252
Plan assets in excess of projected benefit obligation ........ 1420 1177
Unrecognized net gain due to past experience different from
mssumptionsmade ....... ... it (1,087) (B80D)
Unrecognized prior servicecost .........covvivvnnennen (248) (304)
Unrecognized net asset at transition. .. .........c00vvunn (43) (49)
Prepaid (accrued) pensioncost . .........c000iiiiiinn $§ 61 § (56)

Prior to 1994, BellSouth Telecommunications was allocated a portion of the expenses for both the
nonrepresented and represented plans’ pension expense. Pension cost allocated to BellSouth Telecom-
munications in 1995 and 1994 for the represented plan was $14 and $684, respectively, and for both
nonrepresented and represented plans in 1993 was $113. Net pension cost (income) is afTected by

a9




BELLSOUTH TELECOMMUNICATIONS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — continued
(Dollars in Millloas)

Note | — Employee Beneflts (Continued)

changes in the discount rate and other actuarial assumptions. The consolidated net pension income
amounts reflected above are exclusive of curtailment effects reflected in the work force reduction and
restructuring activities discussed below.

SFAS No. 87, "Employera' Accounting for Pensions," requires certain disclosures to be made with
respect to the components of net pension cost for the period and a reconciliation of the funded status of
the plan with amounts reported in the balance sheets. Such disclosures are not presented in 1995 and
1994 for the represented plan and for years prior to 1994 for both nonrepresented and represented
plans because the structure of the BellSouth plans does not permit disaggregation of relevant plan
information on an individual company basis.

The significant actuarial assumptions at December 31, 1995 and 1994 were as [ollows:

1995 1994
Weighted average discount rate ............conveiinnenn 70% B.25%
Weighted average rate of compensation increase .. .......... 56% b5.7T%
Expected long-term rate of returnon plan sssets ........... B0% B.0%

Postretirement Benefits Other Than Penslons. Substantially all nonrepresented and represented
employees of BellSouth Telecommunications participate in BellSouth’s postretirement health and life
insurance welfare plans. Effective January 1, 1893, BellSouth adopted SFAS No. 106, “Employers’
Accounting for Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions,” to account for these plans. Bell-
South’s transition benelit obligation of $1,486 is being amortized over 15 years, the average remaining
service period of active plan participants at adoption. The accounting for the health care plan does not
anticipate future adjustments to the cost-sharing arrangements provided for in the written plan for
employees retiring after December 31, 1991. As a result of the adoption of SFAS No. 106, net income
for 1993 was reduced by approximately $16.

BellSouth’s funding policy is to make contributions to trust funds with the objective of accumu-
lating sufficient assets to pay all health and life benefits for which BellSouth is liable. Contributions
are actuarially determined using the aggregate cost method, subject to ERISA and Internal Revenue
Service limitations. Assets in the health and life plans consist primarily of equity securities and fixed
income investments,

Postretirement benefit cost allocated to BellSouth Telecommunications was $264, $289 and $244
for 1995, 1994 and 1993, respectively. The consolidated net postretirement benefit cost amounts
reflected above are exclusive of curtailment efTects reflected in the work force reduction and restruc-
turing activities discussed below. SFAS No. 106 requires certain disclosures to be made with respect to
the components of net periodic postretirement benefit cost for the period and a reconciliation of the
funded status of the plan with amounts reported in the balance sheets. Such disclosures are not
presented because the structure of the BellSouth plan does not permit disaggregation of relevant plan
information on an individual company basis.




BELLSOUTH TELECOMMUNICATIONS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — coatinued
(Dollars in Millions)

Note 1 — Employee Benefits (Continoed)
The significant actuaria! assumptions at December 31, 1995 and 1084 were as follows:

1994 1
Weighted average discount rate ...........co00vuvuunns 70% B75%
Weighted average rate of compensation incresse . . ......... 5.7T% 5.T%
Health carecost trend rate (1) ..........ccovvvevuannns 8.0% 11.0%
Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets (2) . .. ..... B.0% B.0%

(1) Trend rate used to value the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation in 1095 is assumed to
decrease gradually to 5% in 2003; trend rate used in 1994 was assumed to decrease gradually to
5% in 2007

(2) Rate net of an estimated 30% tax reduction for the nonrepresented employees’ trust for 1985 and
1994

The health care cost trend rate assumption affects the amounts reported. A one-percentage-point
increase in the assumed health care cost trend rates for each future year would increase BellSouth
Telecommunications’ sccumulated postretirement benefit obligation by $204 at December 31, 1995
and the estimated aggregate service and interest cost components of the 1995 postretirement benefit
cost by $9.

Effect of 1995 Work Force Reduction and 1993 Restructuring on Penslons and Other Postretirement
Benefits. As a part of the work force reduction charge in 1995 (see Note J), BellSouth Telecommuni-
cations recorded an estimated liability of $381 for curtailment losses expected to impact BellSouth
Telecommunications' pension and postretirement health plans from January 1, 1996 through Decem-
ber 31, 1997. Substantially all of such losses relate to postretirement health plans. The expected
benefits from curtailment gains will be recognized as they occur in 1986 and 1997.

As a part of the restructuring charge in 1993 (see Note J), BellSouth Telecommunications
recorded a liability of $88 for estimated net curtailment losses expected to impact BellSouth's pension
and postretirement health plans; subsequently, the estimate has been revised for actual resulta and
additional charges based upon revised projections. Having recognized through 1965 the total net
curtailments originally projected for the restructuring, BellSouth Telecommunications has reevalu-
ated the original estimate and charged an additional $55 for net curtailment losses reflected in the
income statement on a line item combined with the 1995 work force reduction charge. The additional
net curtailment charge is a result of a greater number of employees terminating in a retirement
eligible status than originally expected, thus generating additional losses in retiree health benefits
and reduced gains in pensions.

Defined Contribution Plans. BellSouth maintains contributory savings plans which cover sub-
stantially all employees of BellSouth Telecommunications. Employees' eligible contributions are
matched with BellSouth common stock based on defined percentages determined annually by the
Board of Directors. BellSouth Telecommunications recognized compensation expense of $110, $113
and $107 in 1995, 1994 and 1993, respectively, related to these plans.

Postemployment Benefits. Effective January 1, 18983, BellSouth Telecommunications adopted
SFAS No. 112, “Employers' Accounting for Postemployment Benefits." SFAS No. 112 requires em-
ployers to accrue the cost of postemployment benefits provided to former or inactive employees after
employment but before retirement, including but not limited to workers' compensation, disability,
and continuation of health care benefits. Previously, BellSouth Telecommunications used the cash
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — continuned
(Dollars in Millions)

Note 1 — Employee Benefits (Continued)

method to account for such costs. A one-time charge of $65, net of a deferred tax benefit of $41, related
to adoption of this statement was recognized as a change in accounting principle. The effect of the
change on BellSouth Telecommunications’ 1993 operating results was not material.

Note ] — Work Force Reduction/Restructuring Charges

1995 Work Force Reduction Charge. In the fourth quarter of 1995, BellSouth Telecommunica-
tions recognized a pretax charge of $1,082 related to work force reductions. The primary component of
the charge, $842 for planned work force reductions in the core wireline business by the end of 1997,
consists of $561 under the provisions of SFAS No. 112, “Employers’ Accounting for Postemployment
Benefits,"” related to those employees who are expected to receive severance benefits under preexist-
ing separation plans, and $381 for curtailment losses under the provisions of SFAS No. 88, “Employ-
ers’ Accounting for Settlements and Curtailments of Defined Benefit Pension Plans and for
Termination Benefits" and SFAS No. 106, 'Employers’ Accounting for Postretirement Benefits Other
Than Pensions.” Substantially all of the curtailment losses relate to postretirement benefits other
than pensions. The remaining components of the charge are $85 for expected severance benefit
payments after 1997, also under SFAS No. 112, and $565 for additional net curtailment losses related to
employee reductions under the 1993 restructuring plan.

1993 Restructuring Charge. The results of operations for the year ended December 31, 1993
include a $1,136 restructuring charge. The restructuring, which was completed in 1995, was under-
taken to redesign and streamline the fundamental processes and work activities in the telephone
operations to better respond to an increasingly competitive business environment.

The material components of the charge related to the reduction of the workforce by 10,200
employees. Through December 31, 1985, employee reductions related to the restructuring plan were
1,300 in 1993, 3,900 in 1894 and 5,000 in 1995. The components of the charge consisted of provisions
of $368 for separation payments and relocations of remaining employees, $343 for consolidation and
elimination of certain operations facilities and $425 for enabling changes to information systems,
primarily those used to provide services to existing customers.

Note K — Income Taxes

EfMective January 1, 1893, BellSouth Telecommunications adopted SFAS No. 109, ""Accounting
for Income Taxes,”” which applies a balance sheet approach to income tax accounting. In accordance
with the standard, the balance sheet reflects the anticipated tax impact of future taxable income or
deductions implicit in the balance sheet in the form of temporary differences. These temporary
differences reflect the difference between the basis in assets and liabilities as measured in the
financial statements and as measured by tax laws using enacted tax rates. The cumulative effect of the
adoption of SFAS No. 109 was not material. .

Upon adoption in 1993, BellSouth Telecommunications, for its regulated operations, reflected
only the balance sheet impact of SFAS No. 109. Specifically, BellSouth Telecommunications recorded a
net regulatory liability of $538 to correspond to the net reduction in deferred tax liabilities; the
reduction resulted from changes in tax rates and from temporary differences which were previously
flowed through, The balance of such net liability at December 31, 1994, included in Other Liabilities
and Deferred Credits, was $304. In 1985, this net regulatory liability was eliminated in conjunction
with the discontinuance of SFAS No. 71.

BellSouth Telecommunications is included in the consolidated Federal income tax return filed by
BellSouth. Consolidated tax expense is allocated among the separate members of the group in accor-
dance with the applicable sections of the Internal Revenue Code.
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Note K — Income Taxes (Continued)

Generally, under this method each company calculates its current tax expense as if it filed a
separate return. The sum of the separate company liabilities is compared to the consolidated return
liability. The resulting difference, the benefit of consolidation, is allocated to companies contributing
benefits (operating losses, excess credits and capital losses) in proportion to the amounts contributed.
Deferred taxes are not allocated among the members of the group.

The provision for income taxes is summarized as follows:

1" 194 199

Federal:
(5T 0 L B e g TP P A R A e oo Ly et $ 904 § § 973
T T L S st Ty AR (145) 20 (513)
Investment tax credits, net . ...........000000 (69) (72) (B8)
680 831 anz

State:

B py o | ATRE e S OB e L o e K 156 167 152
Doferred, Dat ......0cocnsesnassssssirreesn (28) 17 (63)
128 174 89
Total provision for income taxes . ........ ... § B18 $1,106 § 461

Extraordinary losses in 1995 are presented in the Consolidated Statement of Income net of tax
benelits totaling $1,780, of which $49 is current and $1,731 is deferred. In 1983, the extraordinary loss
and sccounting change were net of tax benefits totaling $102 of which $50 was current and $43 was
deferred.

Temporary differences which gave rise to deferred tax assets and (liabilities) at December 31 were
as follows:

19 174
Compensation related ...........coivvieviancnnns $ 650 § 477
Work force reduction/restructuring chargea. . ............ aTo 238
Regulatory sharingsccruals . ... ........c0veviinnannn 114 92
e e N A Py e e A 72 70
L R S A T P P N T L R e 97 44
Deferrod Tax Asoets ... .......ccvvvnvnvinivrinens 1,203 921
1y AP S . AR o (1,048) (3,647)

Issue basisaccounting . . . ........ovuiiii i (143) —
T R e R S M e . R SR (3) (6)
Deferred Tax Liabilities ................ ... ... (2,095) (3,653)
Net Deferred Tax Liability ...................... $ (892) $(2,732)

The decrease in the net delerred tax liability is primarily due to the discontinuance of SFAS No.
71. Of the Net Deferred Tax Liability at December 31, 1995 and 1094, $108 and $260, respectively, was
current and $(1,000) and $(2,992), respectively, was noncurrent.
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Note K — Income Taxes (Continued)

A reconciliation of the Federal statutory income tax rate to BellSouth Telecommunications’
effective tax rate follows:

194 1994 199)

Federal statutory taxrate . ............c00uuuaun 350% 350% 3I6.0%
State income taxes, net of Federal Inmmu tax benefit . a7 38 4.4
Amortization of investment tax credits ............ (3.1) (24) (6.1)
Miscellaneous items, net . . ....... ..o nnaiannas 10 (02 (14
Effectivetaxrate..........c.coovrvueuncnnnss ﬂi SB_.I'.‘% ﬂi

Note L — Supplemental Cash Flow Information
1993 1994 199

Cash Paid For:
Income tAXES. . .« «cvvvurasrararnnnsanannsss $1,064 $1250 § 792
Interest ........ e e e e $ 627 § 5564 § 616
Net assets transferred to BellSouth
Telecommunications . . .........covuerueeesss $ - $ - $ 26

Note M — Financial Insiruments

The following disclosure of the estimated fair value of financial instruments is presented in
accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 107, “Disclosures sbout Fair Value of Financial Instru-
ments.” The estimated fair value amounts have been determined using available market information
described below. Since judgment is required to develop the estimates, the estimated amounts
presented herein may not be indicative of the amounts that BellSouth Telecommunications could
realize in a current market exchange.

1998 194
Rocorded  Estimaied lll'll'lil EsUmalsd
Amount  Fair Valwe Fulr Yalue
Assets (Liabilities):
Cash and cash equivalents .......... $1084 $1084 § 94 § W™
Marketable securities .............. 219 354 200 204
Commercial paper. . .........c0000. (1,776) (1,776) (1,181) (1,1B1)
Long-Term Debt:
Debentures .................... (6,076) (5,079) (4,606) (4,177)
Noted ,.vvrenncrnnnrsnsssnonss (2,176) (2,216) (1,876) (1,670)

Cash and Cash Equivalents. At December 31, 1985 and 1994, the recorded amount for Cash and
cash equivalents approximates fair value due to the short-term nature of these instruments.

Marketable Securities. The fair value of Marketable securities (representing BellSouth Common
Stock), included as a component of Investments in and Advances to Affiliates, is based on the quoted
market prices at December 31, 1985 and 1994, respectively (see Note C).

Debt. At December 31, 1995 and 1984, the recorded amount for Commercial paper approximates
the fair value due to the short-term nature of the liability. The estimates of fair value for Debentures
and Notes are based on the closing market prices for each issue at December 31, 1995 and 1994,
respectively.
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Note M — Financial Instrumenis (Continued)

Concentrations of Credit Risk. Financial instruments which potentially subject BellSouth Tele-
communications to credit risk consist principally of trade accounts receivable. Concentratizns of
credit risk with respect to these receivables, other than those from interexchange carriers, are limited
due to the composition of the customer base, which includes a large number of individuals and
businesses. At December 31, 1995 and 1994, approximately $520 and $448, respectively, of trade
accounts receivable were from interexchange carriers.

Note N — Commitments and Contingencles

Leases. BellSouth Telecommunications has entered into operating leases for facilities and
equipment used in operations. Rental expense under operating leases was $187, $240 and $229 for
1995, 1994 and 1993, respectively. Capital leases currently in effect are not significant.

The following table summarizes the approximate future minimum rentals under noncancelsble
operating leases in effect at December 31, 1996:

Minimum rentals . . .. ...cocvivaas !_W_S E E E E ﬂ E

Outside Plant. BellSouth Telecommunications currently self insures all of its outside plant
against casualty losses. The net book value of outside plant was $8,080 and $10,459 at December 31,
1995 and 1994. Such outside plant, located in the nine Southeastern states served by BellSouth
Telecommunications, is susceptible to damage from severe weather conditions and other perils,
including hurricanes.

Legal Actions. BellSouth Telecommunications is subject to claims and proceedings arising in the
ordinary course of business involving allegations of personal injury, breach of contract, anti-competi-
tive conduct, employment law issues and other matters. BellSouth Telecommunications is also subject
to claims and proceedings attributable to pre-divestiture events involving environmental liabilities,
rates, taxes, contracts and torts, Certain contingent liabilities for pre-divestiture events are shared by
AT&T Corp. and the operating telephone companies. While complete assurance cannot be given as to
the outcome of any pending or threatened legal actions, BellSouth Telecommunications believes that
any financial impact is not expected to be material to its financial position, annual cperating results or
cash flows.

19 1917 194 199 2000 Thereafer  Tolsl
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Note O — Quarterly Financial Information (Unsudiled)

In the following summary of quarterly financial information, all adjustments necessary for a fair
presentation of each period were included. The results for fourth quarter 1995 include a work force
reduction charge of §1,082, which reduced net income by $863.

First Swcomnd Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarier  Quarier
1995
Operating Revenues ..............cc00vvinnnvnnnsns $3.561 $3,566 $3,605 $3,779
Operating Income (Loas) . ...............civiiinnn. $ 691 § OBO § 917 § (10T
Income (Loss) Before Extraordinary Losses ............. §$ 5633 § 519 § 487 §(122)
Extraordinary Loss for Discontinuance of S8FAS No.71,

netof LAY ........c.000 v g Arim ]| IBE) A LS pr —_ (2,718) — —
Extraordinary Loss on Early Extinguishment of Debt,

T e IR o e o S R e - (16) — (62)
Net Income (LoB8) . .. o.vvvrvrronssonnssnvsasnannes § 633 M2,216) § 487 § (184)
1994
Operating Revenues ............ccivuiinncnannnes $3,526 § 3,442 10 83,562
Operating INCOME . .. ccvivusrsrrrsrrnnsransanscnssa $ 019 § 880 § 852 § 937
TSE TICORNMD . o s a8 i $ 496 § 476 § 461 § 520




ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

No change in accountants or disagreements on the adoption of appropriate accounting standards
or financial disclosure have occurred during the periods included in this report.

PART IV
ITEM 14. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES AND REPORTS ON FORM B-K
e. Documents filed as a part of the report: Pagets)

(1) Financial Statements:
Report of Independent Accountanta/Consent of Independent

ACCOUNEADEE & i v i v aniinansm winsusess saissesasnsess 29
Consolidated Statements of Income and Retained Earnings . . . . . 30
Consolidated Balance Sheets. .. ...........cooiiiininaaun a1
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows ................... a2
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements ................ a3

(2) Financial statement schedules have been omitted because the required information is
contained in the financial statements and notes thereto or because such schedules are

not required or applicable.

(3) Exhibits: Exhibits identified in parentheses below, on file with the SEC, cre incorporated
herein by reference as exhibits hereto.

i

Restated Articles of Incorporation of BellSouth Telecommunications, Inc. (Exhibit 3a to
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1981, File No. 1-1048),

ab Bylaws of BellSouth Telecommunications, Inc. as amended, effective November 22,
1993. (Exhibit 3b to Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1993, File

Nﬂ. 1-1“‘].

4 No instrument which defines the rights of holders of long and intermediate term debt
of BellSouth Telecommunications is filed herewith pursuant to Regulation S-K, Item
601(b)(4)(iii)(A). Pursuant to this regulation, BellSouth Telecommunications, Inc.
hereby agrees to furnish a copy of any such instrument to the SEC upon request.

12 Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges.
24 Powers of Attorney.
27 Financial Data Schedule.

b. Reports on Form 8-K:
None.

g
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Pursuant to the requirements of Section13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly
suthorized,

BELLSOUTH TELECOMMUNICATIONS, INC.

—— s/ PaTRICKH. CASEY
Patrick H. Casey
Vice President and Compiroller
February 27, 1996

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1834, this report has been signed
below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the date
indicated.
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Jere A. Drummond®
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Patrick H. Casey®
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February 27, 1996
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BELLSOUTH TELECOMMUMICATIONS
COMPUTATION OF EARMINOS TO FIXED CHAMGES
(DOLLARS IN MILLIONS)
«Tablas
«Captlon»
1995
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Attachment
Title of each class

DEBENTURES
Issues denominated as South Central Bell Telephone Company Debentures

$100,000,000 Principal Amount of Forty Year 7%% Debentures, due 2012
$210,000,000 Principal Amount of Forty Year 8%% Debentures, due 2017
$300,000,000 Principal Amount of Forty Year 84% Debentures, due 2029

Issues denominated as Southern Bell Telephone and Telegraph Company Debentures

$30,000,000 Principal Amount of Forty Year 3%% Debentures, due 1995
$75,000,000 Principal Amount of Thirty-Seven Year 5% Debentures, due 1997
$70,000,000 Principal Amount of Thirty-Seven Year 4%% Debentures, due 1998
$75,000,000 Principal Amount of Thirty-Nine Year 4%% Debentures, due 2001
$70,000,000 Principal Amount of Forty Year 4%% Debentures, due 2003
$100,000,000 Principal Amount of Thirty-Five Year 4¥%% Debentures, due 2000
$100,000,000 Principal Amount of Thirty-Eight Year 6% Debentures, due 2004
$150,000,000 Principal Amount of Thirty-Eight Year 7%% Debentures, due 2010
$350,000,000 Principal Amount of Forty Year W% Debentures, due 2013
$275,000,000 Principal Amount of Forty Year 8'4% Debentures, due 2017
§300,000,000 Principal Amount of Thirty-Eight Year §%% Debentures, due 2024
$500,000,000 Principal Amount of Forty Year B%% Debentures, due 2026
£300,000,000 Principal Amount of Forty Year 8% Debentures, due 2029

BellSouth Telecommunications, Inc.

£250,000,000 Principal Amount of Forty Year B%% Debentures, due 2032
$300,000,000 Principal Amount of Forty Year 7%% Debentures, due 2032
$300,000,000 Principal Amount of Forty Year 7%% Debentures, due 2033
$350,000,000 Principal Amount of Fifteen Year 5%% Debentures, due 2009
$400,000,000 Principal Amount of Forty Year 6%% Debentures, due 2033

NOTES

BellSouth Telecommunications, Inc,

$275,000,000 Principa! Amount of Seven Year 6%% Notes, Due February 1, 2000
$150,000,000 Principnl Amount of Twelve Year 7% Notes, Due February 1, 2005
$450,000,000 Principal Amount of Ten Year 6% Notes, Due May 15, 2003
$£200,000,000 Principal Amount of Eleven Year 6W% Notes, Due June 15, 2004
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PART 1
ITEM 1. BUSINESS
GENERAL

BellSouth Telecommunications, Inc. (*BellSouth Telecommunications'), a corporation wholly-
owned by BellSouth Corporation (*'BellSouth™), is the surviving corporation from the merger, effec-
tive at midnight Decomber 31, 1991 of South Central Bell Telephone Company (*South Central Bell"')
and Southern Bell Telephone and Telegraph Company (“Southern Bell”). BellSouth Telecommunica-
tions provides predominantly tariffed wireline telecommunications services to approximately two-
thirds of the population and one-half of the territory within Alabama, Florida, Georgia, Kentucky,
Louisiana, Mississippi, North Carolina, South Carolina and Tennessee. These areas were previously
served by South Central Bell and Southern Bell. BellSouth Telecommunications continues to use the
names South Central Bell and Southern Bell for various purposes,

South Central Bell was incorporated in 1067 under the laws of the State of Delaware and
Southern Bell was incorporated in 1879 under the laws of the State of New York. On December 31,
1983, pursuant to a consent decree approved by the United States District Court for the District of
Columbin (the *'D. C. District Court") entitled “Modification of Final Judgment"' (the “MFJ") settling
antitrust litigation brought by the United States Department of Justice (the “Justice Department™)
in 1974 and the related Plan of Reorganization (the “POR"), American Telephone and Telegraph
Company ("AT&T") transferred to BellSouth its 100% ownership of South Central Bell and Southern
Hell. On the same date, South Central Bell and Southern Bell were reincorporated through mergers
into Georgin corporations. Effective January 1, 1984, ownership of BellSouth was divested from
AT&T and BellSouth became a publicly traded company.

BellSouth Telecommunications has its principal executive offices at 676 West Peachtree Street,
N.E., Atlanta, Georgia 30375 (telephone number 404-520-8611),

MODIFICATION OF FINAL JUDGMENT

Pursuant to the MFJ, AT&T divested the 22 wholly-owned operating telephone compunies (the
“Operating Telephone Companies”), including South Central Bell and Southern Bell, that were
included in the former Bell System. The ownership of such 22 Operating Telephone Companies was
transferred by AT&T to seven Lolding companies (the “Holding Companies”), including BellSouth.
All territory in the continental United States served by the Operating Telephone Companies was
divided into geographical areas termed *‘Local Access and Transport Areas” (“"LATAs"). These LATAs
are generally centered in a city or other identifiable community of interest.

The MFJ limits the telecommunications-related scope of the Operating Telephone Companies'*
post-divestiture business activities, and the D. C. District Court retained jurisdiction over its construe-
tion, implementation, modification and enforcement. Under the MFJ, the Operating Telephone Com-
panies may provide local exchange, exchange access, information access and toll telecommunications
services within the LATAs. Although prohibited from providing service between LATAs, the Operat-
ing Telephone Companies provide exchange access services that link a subscriber’s telephone or other
equipment in one of their LATAs to the transmission facilities of carriers (the "'Interexchange Carri.
ers"), which provide toll telecommunications services between different LATAs. The Operating Tele-
phone Companies may market, but not manufacture, customer premises equipment (“CPE"), which
is defined in the MFJ as equipment used on customers’ premises to originate, route or terminate

* The provisions of the MFJ are applicable to the Holding Companies.



TELEPHONE COMPANY OPERATIONS

BellSouth Telecommunications provides services, which include local exchange, exchange access
and intraLATA toll services, within each of the 38 LATAs in its combined nine-state operating area.
{See “Local and Toll Services” and “Access Services.”') The tables below set forth the following:
network access lines in service at December 31 for the last five years; access lines in each state at
December 31, 1893; and the annual percentage increase in access lines in each state at December 31
for the last four years.

1993 1991 191 1990 1989

— — — — —

iMilbons)
Network Access
Lines In Service:*
T T T N S 13.7 133 128 126 122
TET LT T R e e PR AL N 1 e e 54 561 48 46 44
(01,72 JER G e e R PP E R R ot = e 2 2 ¥ Ly T
#1110 D ol = R 4 PR PRy Y Bt g e, 1 1939 186 180 176 E
Percent Access Line
Access Lines Increase
_im T om o w
(Milllons )
States

AIRDRIEIR: i s aon s o e W6 s WA T 1.7 36 30 28 34
FLambai . oot v T et e h o kT T e 5.1 40 35 33 37
e e G A A A PP P S S 3.2 42 46 43 34
ey i e e e o P A T e e T e e 1.0 29 29 31 18
LOUIRERIIN & tiwiaime o aim el wimias e nne e e 1.9 24 24 19 27
Mnadaadppl v i v v e e e e e 1.1 34 23 29 28
NorthCarolina . ....csvivvenveissnrnensnssnsss 19 41 3.7 30 27
SouthCarolina. ... ..o ivivennrvssrnsssnssanss 1.2 27 30 28 35
T g E e e re 22 40 a5 32 35
Total Linea/Increase ........convvvmrrsnrnsssosns EIE :_!_E 3_1 EE 3.2

Approximately 72% of such lines were in 53 metropolitan areas, each having a population of
125,000 or more. Many localities and some sizable areas in the states in which BellSouth Telecommu-
nications operates are served by non-affiliated telephone companies, which had approximately 28% of
the network access lines in such states on December 31, 1993. BellSouth Telecommunications does
not furnish local exchange, access or toll services in the areas served by such companies.

The following table reflects access minutes of use and toll message volumes for the last five years.

1¥9) 19 1991 1990 1909
(Millions )
Access Minutes of Use:*
Interstede . .. .0 v e e e e 53,345.0 505464 47,2553 44.903.39 41,4642
Intrastote . . ..« o v o v vsverenensnanna 15,2609 13,9904.2 13,2377 12,1186 11,2627
Toll Messages® . .. . ... .cvnvenronas 1,251.0 1,2803 1,387.1 14676 14623

The number of intraLATA toll messages carried by BellSouth Telecommunications has declined,
primarily because of the effect of expanded local area calling plans and competition by others for the

*Prior period operating data are revised at later dates to reflect the most current information. The
above information reflects the latest data available for the periods indicated.



PART |1
ITEM 1. BUSINESS
GENERAL

BellSouth Telecommunications, Inc. (“*BellSouth Telecommunications™), a corporation wholly-
owned by BellSouth Corporation (" BellSouth™), is the surviving corporation from the merger, effec-
tive at midnight December 31, 1991 of South Central Bell Telephone Company (*“South Central Bell"')
and Southern Bell Telephone and Telegraph Company (“‘Southern Bell"). BellSouth Telecommunica-
tions provides predominantly tariffed wireline telecommunications services to approximately two-
thirds of the population and one-half of the territory within Alabama, Florida, Georgia, Kentucky,
Louisiana, Mississippi, North Carolina, South Carolina and Tennessee. These areas were previously
served by South Central Bell and Southern Bell. BellSouth Telecommunications continues to use the
names South Central Bell and Southern Bell for various purposes.

South Central Bell was incorporated in 1967 under the laws of the State of Delaware and
Southern Bell was incorporated in 1879 under the laws of the State of New York. On December 31,
1983, pursuant to a consent decree approved by the United States District Court for the District of
Columbia (the “D. C. District Court"’) entitled **Modification of Final Judgment'’ (the *“MFJ"') settling
antitrust litigation brought by the United States Department of Justice (the “Justice Department”)
in 1974 and the related Plan of Reorganization (the “POR"), American Telephone and Telegraph
Company (“AT&T") transferred to BellSouth its 100% ownership of South Central Bell and Southern
Bell. On the same date, South Central Bell and Southern Bell were reincorporated through mergers
into Georgia corporations. Effective January 1, 1984, ownership of BellSouth was divested from
ATE&T and BellSouth became a publicly traded company.

BellSouth Telecommunications has its principal executive offices at 6756 West Peachtree Street,
N.E., Atlanta, Georgia 30375 (telephone number 404-520-8611).

MODIFICATION OF FINAL JUDGMENT

Pursuant to the MFJ, AT&T divested the 22 wholly-owned operating telephone companies (the
“Operating Telephone Companies”), including South Central Bell and Southern Bell, that were
included in the former Bell System. The ownership of such 22 Operating Telephone Companies wus
transferred by AT&T to seven holding companies (the *“Holding Companies''), including BellSouth.
All territory in the continental United States served by the Operating Telephone Companies was
divided into geographical areas termed *'Local Access and Transport Areas' (“LATAs"). These LATAs
are generally centered in a city or other identifiable community of interest.

The MFJ limits the telecommunications-related scope of the Operating Telephone Companics™
post-divestiture business activities, and the D. C. District Court retained jurisdiction over its construc-
tion, implementation, modification and enforcement. Under the MFJ, the Operating Telephone Com-
panies may provide local exchange, exchange access, information access and toll telecommunications
services within the LATAs. Although prohibited from providing service between LATAs, the Operat-
ing Telephone Companies provide exchange access services that link a subscriber's telephone or other
equipment in one of their LATAs to the transmission facilities of carriers (the “Interexchange Carri-
ers”), which provide toll telecommunications services between different LATAs. The Operati..g Tele-
phone Companies may market, but not munufacture, customer premises equipment (“CPE"), which
is defined in the MFJ as equipment used on customers’ premises to originate, route or terminate

* The provisions of the MFJ are applicable to the Holding Companies.



teloccommunications. A similar restriction applies to the manufacture or provision of "'telecommunica-
tions equipment,” which is defined in the MFJ as including equipment used by carriers to provide
telecommunications services. The MFJ restrictions precluding the Holding Companies from providing
information services and non-telecommunications related products have been judicially removed.

The D.C. District Court has established procedures for obtaining generic and specific waivers
from the manufacturing and interLATA communications restrictions of the MFJ, although the re-
quired filings with and review by the Justice Department and the D.C. District Court usually result in
lengthy and uncertain proceedings. The foregoing restrictions present significant obstacles to the
provision of certain wireless, cable television and other communications services and require that
such business operations, even where waivers are ultimately obtained, be conducted under burden-
some arrangements or subject to elaborate structural separation or other conditions. BellSouth is
advocating legislation which would remove or relax the MFJ restrictions. (See “'Business Opera-
tions — Legislation."')

The MFJ requires the Operating Telephone Companies to provide, upon & bona fide request by
any Interexchange Carrier or information service provider, exchange access, information access and
exchange services for such access that will be equal to that provided to AT&T in quality, type and
price. BellSouth Telecommunications believes it is in compliance with this requirement.

BUSINESS OPERATIONS

Approximately 86% of BellSouth Telecommunications’ operating revenues for the years ended
December 31, 1993, 1992 and 1991, respectively, were from wireline telecommunications services and
the remainder of revenues was principally from directory publishing fees, CPE sales, inside wire
services, billing and collection services, cellular interconnect services and rental of facililies.

Certain communications services and products are provided to business customers by BellSouth
Business Systems, Inc., BellSouth Communication Systems, Inc. and Dataserv, Inc., subsidiaries of
BellSouth Telecommunications. Respectively, these companies provide sales, marketing, product
management and customer service for BellSouth Telecommunications' large business customers
within traditional telephone operating company service areas and nationwide; sell, install and main-
tain CPE; and maintain and provide parts and integration services for computer and data processing
equipment.

In the nggregate, access revenues, revenues from billing and collection activities and rental of
facilities comprised approximately 30%, 30% and 31% of 1993, 1092 and 1991 operating revenues,
respectively. The majority of these revenues were from services provided to AT&T, BellSouth Telecom-
munications’ largest customer.




TELEPHONE COMPANY OPERATIONS

BellSouth Telecommunications provides services, which include local exchange, exchange access
and intraLATA toll services, within each of the 38 LATAs in its combined nine-state operating area.
{See "“Local and Toll Services" and "Access Services.") The tables below set fo.th the following:
network nccess lines in service at December 31 for the last five years; access lines in each state at
December 31, 1993; and the annual percentage increase in access lines in each state at December 31
for the last four years.

1993 1991 1991 1% 159

(Milllons)
Network Access
Lines In Service:*
L T L ey TR L oy ey EOPLy e M I Pty oL P 13.7 133 129 126 122
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DB e ainass i e s s o T 8 1 g 2 2 3 3 3
TR i e g i o A T e oty et B 19.3 186 1B0 1756 169
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T T L T et e 1.7 a6 30 28 34
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MinsEslprl o ocs o iats G R T e e e e 1.1 34 23 29 29
North Caroling < . o v v s s sit s e vt 19 41 37 30 27
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Approximately 72% of such lines were in 53 metropolitan areas, ench having a population of
125,000 or more. Many localities and some sizable areas in the states in which BellSouth Telecommu-
nications operates are served by non-affiliated telephone companies, which had approximately 29% of
the network access lines in such states on December 31, 1993, BellSouth Telecommunications does
not furnish local exchange, access or toll services in the areas served by such companies.

The following table reflects access minutes of use and toll message volumes for the last five years.

1993 1991 1991 1990 1989
(Millions)
Access Minutes of Use:®
Interstate . ... ....couvinvmonsnssnn 53,3450 50,6464 47,2560 449033 41,4642
[Ty L | e e ek s A et e gAY 15,2609 13,984.2 13,2377 12,1196 11,252.7
Toll MeSSARES® .. ... ovevvvnrnnnnanss 1,261.0 1,280.3 1,387.1 1,457.56 1,462.3

The number of intraLATA toll messages carried by BellSouth Telecommunications has declined,
primarily because of the effect of expanded local area calling plans and competition by others for the

*Prior period operating data are revised at later dates to reflect the most current information. The
above information reflects the latest data available for the periods indicated.



provision of toll services. Toll message volumes are expected to decline further as additional in-
traLLATA toll competition is authorized in many of the states served by RellSouth Telecommunica-
tions. (See **Competition" and *“Management's Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations and
Financial Condition — Operating Environment and Trends of the Business — Volumes of Business.")

Local And Toll Services

Charges for local services for the years ended December 31, 1993, 1892 and 1991 accounted for
approximately 48%, 47% and 46%, respectively, of BellSouth Telecommunications’ operating reve-
nues. Local services operations provide lines from telephone exchange offices to subscribers’ premises
for the origination and termination of telecommunications including the following: basic local tele-
phone service provided through the regular switching network; dedicated private line facilities for
voice and special services, such as transport of data, radio and video, and foreign exchange scrvices;
switching services for customers' internal communications through facilities owned by BellSouth
Telecommunications: services for data transport that include managing and configuring special ser-
vice networks; and dedicated low or high capacity public or private digital networks. Other local
services revenue is derived from intercept and directory assistance, public telephones and various
special and custom calling services,

BellSouth Telecommunications has the ability to offer certain enhanced services through its
network. Such offerings include various forms of data and voice transmission, voice messaging and
storage services and gateway communications between customers and information services providers.
The extent to which these offerings can be profitably provided will depend on the degree of market

acceptance,

BellSouth Telecommunications provides intraLATA toll services within, but not between, its
38 LATAs. Such toll services provided approximately 9%, 10% and 11% of BellSouth Telecommunica-
tions' operating revenues for the years ended December 31, 1993, 1892 and 1991, respectively. These
services include the following: intralLATA service beyond the local calling ares; Wide Area Telecom-
munications Service (“WATS" or “800" services) for customers with highly concentrated demand;
and special services, such as transport of data, radio and video.

BellSouth Telecommunications is subject to state regulatory authorities in each state in which it
provides telecommunications services with respect to intrastate rates, services and other issues.
Traditionally, BellSouth Telecommunications' rates were set in each state in its service arcas at levels
which were anticipated to generate revenues sufficient to cover its allowed expenses and to provide an
opportunity to earn a fair return on its capital investment. Such a regulatory structure was satisfac-
tory in a less competitive era; however, BellSouth Telecommunications is currently advocating
changes to the regulatory processes responsive to the increasingly competitive telecommunications
environment. Modified forms of state regulation are in effect in Alabama, Florida, Georgia, Kentucky,
Louisiana, Mississippi and Tennessee.

Under such modified form of regulation, economiec incentives are provided to lower costs and
increase productivity through the potential availability of “shared” earnings over a benchmark rate of
return. Generally, when levels above targeted returns are reached, earnings are “shared’’ by provid-
ing refunds or rate reductions to customers. The amounts of any such excess which may be retained
under some plans depend upon attaining mandated service standards, certain productivity improve-
ment provisions or both. Under some plans, if earnings fall below a targeted minimum, additional
carnings required to return to the bottom of the nllowed range can be obtained through rate increases.
Sharing plans are generally subject to renewal after two or three years, and may be subject to
modification prior to renewal.




Despite the potential advantages offered by sharing plans, substantial rate reductions have been
incurred in connection with their adoption and operation. Of the states in whicl: these types of plans
were in place, BellSouth Telecommunications attained the earnings sharing range in Alabama, Ken-
tucky, Louisiana and Mississippi in 1993,

Alobama

An incentive regulation plan has been in offect in Alabama since December 1988, which provides
for m return on average total capital® in the range of 11.65% to 12.30%. If earnings exceed 12.30%,
sharing with customers may range from 0% to 50%, depending upon whether certain service and
efficiency requirements are met.

In December 1993, in conjunction with approval of rate adjustments required by its incentive
plans, the Alabama Public Service Commission approved a settlement of several outstanding issues.
The settlement resulted in a net rate reduction to the Company of $15.72 million.

Florida

From 1988 through 1992, the Florida incentive plan provided for a return on equity® of 11.5% to
16%, with earnings from 14% to 16% to be shared 40% by BellSouth Telecommunications and 60% by
customers. The sharing level was not attained under the plan.

In 1993, BellSouth Telecommunications filed a petition to extend the existing plan. In Janu-
ary 1994, after extensive proceedings and negotiations between BellSouth Telecommunications, Pub-
lic Counsel and intervenors, the Florida Public Service Commission approved a settlement that
extends incentive regulation through 1996. Among other things, the terms of the settlement provide
for rate reductions of $55 million in February 1994, an additional $60 million in July 1694, $80 million
in October 1995 and $84 million in October 1996. The settlement provides for other changes in service
offerings and tariffs including approximately $21 million in revenue reductions or increased expenses.
Basic service rates have been capped at their current levels through 1997, and BellSouth Telecommu-
nications has agreed not to propose any local measured service on a statewide basis through the same
time period. (See *Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations and Financial
Condition — Operating Environment and Trends of the Business — Regulatory Environment —

State Regulation.”)

The agreement establishes a 1994 return on equity® sharing level of 12% with a cap of 14%,
increasing in 1995 to a 12.6% sharing level with a cap of 14.5%. Rates of return beyond 1895 would
vary based upon changes in utility bond yields but would change no more than 75 basis points from

19495 levels.

Geargia

The Georgia incentive plan adopted in 1990 provided that BellSouth Telecommunications would
retuin all earnings up to a 14% return on equity®. Subject to the attainment of service standards and
productivity improvement provisions, BellSouth Telecommunications could retain a portion of earn-
ings between 14% and 16%. The plan also provided for a reduction of rates if earnings exceed 14%
return on equity, even if the service standards and productivity improvement provisions are met. The
amount of any sharing and rate adjustments would depend upon attaining certain service stundards
and productivity improvements. BellSouth Telecommunications has yet to attain the sharing level
under the Georgia plan.

In December 1993, the Georgia Public Service Commission voted to extend the plan for six
months, effective January 1, 1994, Concurrent with the extension, the Commission modified the
roturn on equity at which sharing would occur from 14% to 13%.

* As defined in the plan for this state.




Kentucky

Under the Kentucky incentive regulation plan, BellSouth Telecommunications may earn a return
on average total capital® in the range of 10.99% to 11.61%. Earnings above 11.61% are subject to
sharing. If the return on average total capital falls below 10.99%, 50% of the shortfall may be
recovered from customers, and if the return falls below 9.49%, 76% of the shortfall may be recovered.
BellSouth Telecommunications achieved the sharing level during 1993 and reduced rates by $6.4 mil-
lion in June. This plan will be reviewed by the Kentucky Public Service Commission later in 1994.
Louisiana

In February 1992, in settlement of several years of regulatory and judicial proceedings, BellSouth
Telecommunications and the Louisiana Public Service Commission agreed to a three year incentive
regulation plan providing for an immediate $55.0 million refund, a rate reduction of $31.4 million and
an authorized return on investment® in the range of 10.7% to 11.7%, with sharing of earnings above
11.7% and below 12.7%. Based on 1892 results, BellSouth Telecommunications reduced rates by $13.8
million in February and $7.8 million in August 1893, reflecting its sharing obligation under the new
plan. In January 1994, BellSouth Telecommunications filed a petition with the Louisiana Commission
requesting a price regulation plan. No hearings have been scheduled on this proposal.
Mississippi

In June 1990, the Mississippi Public Service Commission authorized implementation of an
incentive plan that includes a return on average net investment® ranging from 10.74% to 11.74% and
provides that earnings above 11.74% and shortfalls below 10.74% would be shared with customers on
a 50/50 basis. Rate reductions totaling $22.8 million on an annual basis were required prior to
implementation of the plan.

Additional revenue reductions in the amount of $12.8 million related to intrastate access and area
calling plan impacts became effective in January 1993. In June 1893, the Mississippi Commission
renewed, through July 1, 1995 the incentive plan and ordered BellSouth Telecommunications to
reduce rates, effective July 1993, based on a targeted 11.24% return.

Legislation has recently been passed in Mississippi which would allow price regulation.

North Carolina

In 1989, legislation was enacted in North Carolina authorizing the North Carolina Public Service
Commission to consider alternative forms of regulation. No specific proposal has been approved or is
pending. The North Carolina Commission reviews BellSouth Telecommunications' rates annually.

In November 1993, the Commission approved one-time depreciation reserve deficiency amortiza-
tions of $28.5 million and $256 million in 1893 and 1994, respectively,

South Carolina

In August 1991, the South Carolina Public Service Commission authorized implementation of an
incentive plan providing for a return on equity® ranging from 12.0% to 16.5%, and the sharing of
earnings between 14.0% to 16.5%, on a 50/50 basis with customers. However, in August 1893, the
South Carclina Supreme Court ruled that the South Carolina Commission lacked the statutory
authority to approve incentive regulation plans. Legislation has been proposed in South Carolina
which would permit the Commission to adopt alternative forms of regulation, including price regula-
tion. In the interim, traditional rate of return regulation is in effect.

Tennessee

In August 1993, the Tennessee Public Service Commission approved a three year revised incen-
tive regulation plan which lowered the sharing range as a percentage return on average net invest-
ment* from 11.0% - 12.2% to 10.65% - 11.85%. Earnings between 11.85% - 15.85% must be shared

* As defined in the plan for this state.




with ratepayers in varying degrees, depending on the quality of service. The plan also provides for rate
increases to cover up to 60% of the amount by which earnings fall below 10.65%. The Tennessee
Commission's decision was appealed by several intervenors to the Tennessee Court of Appeals. The
appeal, which is pending, challenges the validity of the Commission’s order and its rate of return
finding.

In addition to the above matters, BellSouth Telecommunications is a party to numerous proceed-
ings pending before state regulatory bodies which involve, among other things, terms and conditions
of services provided by BellSouth Telecommunications, rates charged for such services and relation-
ships with affiliates. No assurance can be given as to the outcome of any such matters,

Access Services

BellSouth Telecommunications provides access services by connecting the communications net-
works of Interexchange Carriers with the equipment and facilities of subscribers. These connections
are provided by linking these carriers and subscribers through the public switched network of Bell-
South Telecommunications or through dedicated private lines furnished by BellSouth
Telecommunications.

Access charges, which are payable both by Interexchange Carriers and subscribers, provided
approximately 29% of BellSouth Telecommunications’ operating revenues for the years ended Decem-
ber 31, 1993, 1992 and 1991, respectively. These charges are designed to recover the costs of the
common and dedicated facilities and switching equipment used to connect networks of Interexchange
Carriers with the telephone company's local network. In addition, an interstate monthly subscriber
line access charge of $3.50 per line per month applies to single-line business and residential custom-
ers. The interstate subscriber access charge for multi-line business customers varies by state but
cannot exceed $6.00 per line per month.

In October 1890, the FCC authorized an alternative to traditional rate of return regulation called
“price caps,” effective January 1, 1991, which is mandatory for certain local exchange carriers
(*“LECs"), including BellSouth Telecommunications and the other Operating Telephone Companies.
In contrast to traditional rate of return regulation, price caps limits the prices telephone companies
can charge for their services. The price cap plan limits aggregate price changes to the rate of inflation
minus a productivity offset, plus or minus exogenous cost changes recognized by the FCC. The FCC
expects price cap regulation to provide LECs with enhanced incentives to increase productivity and
efficiency. Concurrent with the implementation of price caps, the FCC reduced the allowed rate of
return on interstate operations from 12.0% to 11.25%.

Those LECs which operate under price caps are allowed to elect annually by April 1 a productivity
offset factor of 3.3% or 4.3%. If the lower offset is chosen, such carriers will be allowed to earn upto a
12.25% overall rate of return without sharing. If such carriers earn between 12.25% and 16.25%, hall
of the earnings in this range will be flowed through to customers in the form of a lower price cap index
in the following year. All earnings over 16.25% would be flowed through to customers. If such carriers
elect a 4.3% productivity offset, all earnings below 13.26% may be retained, earnings up to 17.25%
would be shared and earnings over 17.25% would be flowed through to customers. BellSouth Telecom-
munications elected to operate under the 3.3% productivity offset factor for the period July 1, 1993
through June 30, 1984 and intends to elect the same fuctor for the ensuing annual period.

In February 1994, the FCC initiated its review of the price cap plan described in the preceding
puragraph. The FCC identified three broad sets of issues for examination including those related to
the basic goals of price cap regulation, the operation of price caps and the transition of loca! exchange
services to a fully competitive market. BellSouth Telecommunications believes and will advocate that
a revised price cap plan should be structured to provide increased pricing flexibility for services as
competition evolves in the telecommunications markets. Any changes to the current plan are expected
to be eflfective January 1, 1985 or soon thereafter.




State regulatory commissions have jurisdiction over charges related to the provision of access to
the Interexchange Carriers to complete intrastate telecommunications. The state commissions have
authorized BellSouth Telecommunications to collect access charges irom the Interexchange Carriers
and, in several states, from customers.

Open Network Architecture ("ONA"') plans, permitting all users of the basic network to intercon-
nect to specific basic network functions and interfaces on an unbundled and equal sccess basis for the
provision of enhanced services, will eliminate the FCC requirement that certain enhanced telecommu-
nications services be offered only through a separate subsidiary. The plans may be implemented when
ONA tariffs filed with the FCC become efTective and are filed with the states in which ONA services
will be offered and the FCC is notified by the company that it is prepared to offer the ONA services
described in its plan. In November 1892, BellSouth Telecommunications filed a Notice of Initial ONA
Implementation and Petition for Removal of Structural Separation Requirement (the *Notice"). The
Notice informed the FCC of BellSouth Telecommunications' completion of the required steps for
initial ONA implementation and asked the FCC to remove the structural separation requirements
imposed on enhanced services offerings. The FCC granted the petition for structured relief in July
16993,

In addition to the above matters, BellSouth Telecommunications is a party to numerous proceed-
ings pending before the FCC which involve, among other things, terms and conditions of services
provided by BellSouth Telecommunications, rates charged for such services and relationships with
affiliates. No assurance can be given as to the outcome of any such matters.

Bllling And Collection Services

BellSouth Telecommunications provides, under contract and/or tariff, billing and collection ser-
vices for certain long distance services of AT&T and several other Interexchange Carriers. The
agreement with AT&T has been extended through 1996, subject to the right of AT&T to assume
billing and collection for certain of its services prior to the expiration of the agreement. Revenues from
such services are expected to decrease as AT&T and other carriers assume more direct billing for their
OWN Services.
Operator Services

Directory assistance and local and toll operator services are provided by BellSouth Telecommuni-
cations in its service areas. Toll operator services include alternate billing arrangements, such as
collect calls, third number billing, person-to-person and calling card calls; dialing instructions; pre-
billed credit: and rate information. In addition, directory assistance is provided for some Irter-
exchange Carriers which do not directly provide such services for their own customers,

OTHER BUSINESS OPERATIONS

Directory Publishing Fees

A percentage of the billed revenues from directory advertising operations of BellSouth Advertis-
ing & Publishing Corporation, a wholly-owned subsidiary of BellSouth, are paid as publication fees to
BellSouth Telecommunications for publishing rights and other services in its franchise areas. Such
fees amounted to approximately $616, $598, and $580 million in 1993, 1992 and 1991, respectively.

Selling, Leasing and Maintaining Equipment

Through its subsidiaries, BellSouth Telecommunications sells, leases and maintains CPE, com-
puters and related office equipment. The Holding Companies, AT&T and other substantial enter-
prises compete in the provision of CPE and other services and products.




COMPETITION

General

BellSouth Telecommunications is subject to increasing competition in all areas of its business.
Regulatory, legislative and judicial actions and technological developments have expanded the types of
available services and products and the number of companies that may offer them. Increasingly, this
competition is from large companies which have substantial capital, technological and marketing
resources.

Developments during 1993 indicate that a technological convergence is occurring in the tele-
phone, cable and broadcast television, computer, entertainment and information services industries.
The technologies utilized and being developed in these industries will enable companies to provide
multiple forms of communications offerings.

Current policies of Congress and the FCC strongly favor lowering legislative and regulatory
barriers to competition in the telecommunications industry. Accordingly, the nature of competition
which BellSouth Telecommunications will face will depend to a large degree on regulatory actions at
the state and federal levels, decisions with respect to the MFJ and possible state and federal
legislation,

Network and Related Services

Local Service

Many services traditionally provided exclusively by the LECs have been deregulated, detariffed or
otherwise opened for competition. For example, some carriers and other customers with concentrated,
high usage characteristics are utilizing shared tenant services, private branch exchange (PBX) sys-
tems which are owned by customers and provide internal switching functions without using BellSouth
Telecommunications' central office facilities, private line services and other telecommunications links
which bypass the switched networks of BellSouth Telecommunications. An increasing number of
private voice and data communications networks utilizing fiber optic lines have been and are being
constructed in metropolitan areas, including Atlanta, Georgia, Charlotte, North Carolina and Jack-
sonville, Miami and Orlando, Florida, which will offer certain high volume users a competitive
alternative to the public and private line offerings of the LECs. In addition, the existing networks of
cable television systems are capable of carrying two-way interactive data messages and can be con-
figured to provide voice communications. Furthermore, wireless services, such as cellular telephone
and puging services and PCS services when operational increasingly compete with wireline communi-
cations services,

BellSouth Telecommunications is presently vulnerable to bypass to the extent that its access
charges reflect subsidies for other services. Although BellSouth Telecommunications believes that
bypass has already occurred to a significant degree in its nine-state area, it is difficult to quantify the
lost revenues since customers are not required to report to the telephone companies the components
of their telecommunications systems. In general, telephone company telecommunications services in
highly concentrated population and business areas are more vulnerable to bypass.

MCI Communications Corporation has announced long range plans to invest more than $20
billion to create and deliver a wide array of communications services. Included in these plans is an
investment of $2 billion to construct local networks in major United States cities, including Atlanta,
Georgia and other cities in the Southeast. MCI has stated that it would connect directly to customers
and provide alternative local voice and data communications services. Local service competition from
MCI could emerge in Atlanta by mid-1994,

AT&T has announced an agreement to acquire McCaw Communications, Inc., the largest domaes.
tic cellular communications company, which serves customers in 10 cities in BellSouth Telecommuni-
cations local wireline territory. Furthermore, alliances are also being formed between other Holding
Companies and large corporations that operate cable television systems in many localities throughout



the United States, e.g., U 8 West, Inc./Time Warner Entertainment Co. L.P, Southwestern Bell Corp./
Cox Cable Communications and NYNEX Corporation/Viacom, Inc. As technological and regulatory
developments make it more feasible for cable television to carry data and voice communications, itis
increasingly likely that BellSouth Telecommunications will face competition within its region from
the other Holding Companies through their cable television venture arrangements.

U S West and Time Warner have announced plans to upgrade certain of their cable TV systems to
full-service networks which would support new interactive and telephone services that will compete
with the incumbent local exchange carriers. The first of these full-service networks is being built in
Orlando, Florida and is expected to begin offering services this year, Tele-Communications, Inc. has
announced plans to offer similar services in South Florida and Louisville, Kentucky.

Access Service

The FCC has adopted rules requiring local exchange carriers to offer expanded interconnection
for interstate special and switched transport. BellSouth Telecommunications will be required to
permit competitive carriers and customers to terminate their own transmission facilities in its central
office buildings. Virtual collocation agreements may also be negotiated between carriers. Various
aspects of these rules have been challenged by a number of carriers including BellSouth Telecommu-
nications. The effects of the rules would be to increase competition for access transport. It is uncertain
whether the local exchange carriers will receive the pricing flexibility necessary to compete effectively
with alternative nccess providers.

Toll Service

A number of firms compete with BellSouth Telecommunications for intraLATA toll business by
reselling toll services obtained at bulk rates from BellSouth Telecommunications or, subject to the
approval of the applicable state public utility commission, providing toll services over their own
facilities. Commissions in the states in BellSouth Telecommunications’ operating territory have
allowed the latter type of intraLATA toll calling, whereby the Interexchange Carriers are assigned a
multiple digit access code (**10XXX") which customers may dial to place intraLATA toll calls through
facilities of such Interexchange Carriers. The Kentucky Commission has concluded that competing
carriers should be allowed to provide intraLATA toll presubscribed calling with a single digit access
code (14 or 0+) but is considering how and when such authorization should be implemented.

Personal Communications Services (PCS)

The FCC is currently putting a licensing process in place that will allocate 160 megahertz for
broadband PCS, with 120 megahertz being given to licensed operators, 20 megahertz reserved for
unlicensed voice operations and 20 meguhertz reserved for unlicensed data operations. The FCC is
developing rules to award the licensed spectrum on an auction basis, with up to 7 licenses per
geographic area. It is anticipated that the auctions could begin as carly us the Fall of 1994. The federal
government hopes to raise $10 billion auctioning off the PCS spectrum. BellSouth has conducted
several trials of PCS.like services under experimental licenses from the FCC, but has made no final
determination of the scope of its participation in the PCS licensing auctions. It is anticipated that
substantial capital would be required to bid on licenses and to construct the systems should BellSouth
Telecommunications elect to participate. Although the exact nature and scope of the services to be
offered by PCS service providers has yet Lo be determined, BellSouth Telecommunications anticipates
that its local wireline and telephone business may experience additional competition from PCS service
providers in the future.

BellSouth Telecommunications Competitive Strategy
Regulatory and Legislative Changes

The states in BellSouth Telecommunications' service area currently provide for some form of
regulation of earnings, a regulatory framework tnat BellSouth Telecommunications believes is not
appropriate for the increasingly competitive telecommunications environment, Accordingly, Bell-

South Telecommunications' primary regulatory focus continues to be directed townrd modifying the
regulatory process to one that is more closely aligned with changing market conditions and overall
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public policy objectives. As an alternative to the current regulatory process, BellSouth Telecommuni-
cations believes that price regulation, whereby prices of basic local exchange service are directly
regulated and prices for other products and services are based on market fe~tors, is a logical progres-
sion toward regulatory flexibility and is fair to consumers. As such, BellSouth Telecommunications
intends to pursue implementation of price regulation plans through filings with state regulatory
commissions or through legislative initiatives.

BellSouth Telecommunications is also seeking relief in the courts and before Congress and
regulatory agencies from current laws, regulations and judicial restrictions (including the MFJ) for
the provision of voice, data and video communications throughout its wireline service territory and
elsewhere. It is furthermore advocating legislative and regulatory initiatives which would eliminate or
modify restrictions o its current and future business offerings. (See ““Legislation.”) Competitors and
other interest groups with substantial resources oppose many of these initiatives. The ultimate
outcome and timing of any relief obtained cannot be predicted with certainty.

Technological changes and the effects of competition reduce the economic useful lives of Bell-
South Telecommunications' fixed assets. As competition increases in both the exchange access and
local exchange markets, the economic lives of related properties should continue to decrease, There-
fore, BellSouth Telecommunications is examining the rates of depreciation of fixed assets authorized
by the FCC and state regulatory commissions to ensure that these rates are adequale to recover fixed
asset costs in a timely fashion. The FCC and the state commissions represcribe depreciation rates for
BellSouth Telecommunications at three-year intervals.

Entry Into New Markets

Notwithstanding the risks associated with increased competition, BellSouth Telecommunications
will have the opportunity to benefit from entry into new business markets. BellSouth Telecommunica-
tions believes that in order to remain competitive in the future, it must aggressively pursue a
corporate strategy of expanding its offerings beyond its traditional businesses. These offerings may
include information services, interactive communications and cable television and other entertain-
ment services,

Restructuring

BellSouth Telecommunications is restructuring its telephone operations by streamlining its
fundamental processes and work activities to better respond to an increasingly competitive business
environment, The restructuring is expected to improve overall responsiveness to customer needs,
permit more rapid introduction of new products and services and reduce costs. A primary objective of
this restructuring is the plan to downsize BellSouth Telecommunications’ workforce by 10,200 by the
end of 1996,

LEGISLATION

There are a number of bills pending in Congress that, if enacted into law, could significantly affect
BellSouth Telecommunications® business operations and opportunities. The provisions of the bills set
the terms, conditions, obligations and time frames under which the Operating Telephone Companies
would be permitted 1) to offer interLATA services, 2) to manufacture CPE, 3) to manufacture and
provide telecommunications equipment, 4) to provide video programming in their telephone service
territories and 5) to offer electronic publishing services or alarm monitoring services. They also would
address the need to preserve universal service in a competitive telecommunications marketplace and
would preempt state laws prohibiting competition for intrastate telephone services. In the House of
Hepresentatives, these items are addressed in the provisions of two bills, H.R. 3626 and H.R. 3638, In
the Senate, they are contained in §.1822. H.R. 3636 as currently drafted also specifies that & Federal/
State Joint Board should require that large carriers like BellSouth Telecommunications be subject to
alternative or price regulation rather than traditional rate of return regulation.
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The House has held several hearings on the House bills, and the House Judiciary Committee and
the House Energy and Commerce Committee have each adopted a version of H.R. 3626, and the House
Energy und Commerce Committee has adopted H.R. 3636. The Rules Committee will decide how and
when these bills will proceed to the floor of the House.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

The services and products of BellSouth Telecommunications are in a highly technological field.
BellSouth Telecommunications has expended $43.2, $46.3, and $42.0 million in 1993, 1992 and 1991,
respectively, on company-sponsored research and development activities. The majority of this activity
is conducted at Bell Communications Research, Inc. (“'Bellcore), one-seventh of which is owned by
BellSouth, through BellSouth Telecommunications, with the remainder owned by the other Holding
Companies. Bellcore provides research and development and other services for its owners and is the
central point of contact for coordinating the Federal government's telecommunications requirements
relating to national security and emergency preparedness.

LICENSES AND FRANCHISES

BellSouth Telecommunications® local exchange business is typice!ly provided under certificates of
public convenience and necessity granted pursuant to state statutes and public interest findings of the
various public utility commissions of the states in which BellSouth Telecommunications does busi-
ness. These certificates provide for a franchise of indefinite duration, subject to the maintenance of
satisfactory service at reasonable rates.

BellSouth Telecommunications owns or has licenses to use all patents, copyrights, licenses,
trademarks and other intellectual property necessary for it to conduct its present business operations.
It is not anticipated that any of such property will be subject to expiration or non-renewal of rights
which would materially and adversely affect BellSouth Telecommunications or its subsidiaries.

EMPLOYEES

On December 31, 1993, 1992, and 1991 BellSouth Telecommunications employed approximately
81,400, 52,900 and 82,200 persons, respectively. About 73% of these employees at December 31, 1693
were represented by the Communications Workers of America (the “CWA"), which is affiliated with
the AFL-CIO.

In September 1992, the CWA ratified new three-year contracts with BellSouth Telecommunica-
tions covering about 58,000 employees. These contracts included provisions for wage increases, a cost-
of-living adjustment and an increase in the team incentive award that will total an estimated 11.3%
over the three year contract period.

In November, 1993, BellSouth Telecommunications announced plans to reduce its work force by
approximately 10,200 employees by the end of 1996 through normal attrition, transitional programs,
other voluntary options and involuntary separations.
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ITEM 2. PROPERTIES
GENERAL

BellSouth Telecommunications' properties do not lend themselves to doscription by character
and location of principal units. BellSouth Telecommunications’ investment in property, plant and
equipment consisted of the following at December 31:

9 1m
Outalde PIANE . "0 2 e e 's o sl vovie v porge 8 2'50e a%n hoars ANE 46% 47T%
Central Office Equipment . ... ........cvuruvneass aT% 6%
Land and Building® ......ocvvcvcrorsnsrsssnnes % %
Station EquiDment o v cive v seeerisancnnssneessns 2% 2%
B o o S N b I _ 8% 8%
1o0%  100%

Outside plant consists of connecting lines (aerial, underground and buried cable) not on custom-
ers’ premises, the majority of which are on or under public roads, highways or streets while the
remainder are on or under private property. Central office equipment consists of analog switching
equipment, digital electronic switching equipment and circuit equipment. Land and buildings are
occupied principally by central offices. Station equipment consists of einbedded intrasystem wiring,
substantially all of which is on the premises of customers.

SBubstantially all of the installations of central office equipment and administrative offices are
located in buildings and on land owned by BellSouth Telecommunications. Many garages, business
offices and telephone service centers are in leased quarters.

BellSouth Telecommunications’ customers are now served by electronic switching systems that
provide a wider variety of services than their mechanical predecessors. The BellSouth Telecommuni-
cations network is in transition from an analog to a digital network, which provides capabilities for
BellSouth Telecommunications to furnish advanced data transmission and information management
services,

PROPERTY ADDITIONS

Property additions include gross additions to property, plant and equipment having an estimated
service life of one year or more, plus the incidental costs of preparing the asset for its intended use. In
the case of constructed assets, an amount related to the cost of debt and equity used in the construc-
tion of an asset is capitalized s part of the asset when the construction period is in excess of one year,
Property additions also include assets acquired by means of entering into a capital lease agreement,
gross additions to operating lease equipment and reused materials.

Significant additions to property, plant and equipment will be required to meet the demand lor
telecommunications services and to further improve such services. The total investment in telephone
plant has increased from about $32,877 million at January 1, 1989 to about $40,102 million at
December 31, 1993, including the effects of retirements and property transferred at divestiture, but
not including deductions of accumulated depreciation at either date.

BellSouth Telecommunications’ property additions since January 1, 1989, were approximately as
follows:

B
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In 1993, BellSouth Telecommunications generated substantially all of its funds for property
additions internally; substantially all of such property additions are expected to be financed through
internally generated funds in 1994.

BellSouth Telecommunications currently projects property additions to be approximately $3,000
million for 1994. The continued modernization of BellSouth Telecommunications' network is neces-
sary to meet the needs of customers and competitive demands. (See **Competition."’) Population and
economic expansion is projected by BellSouth Telecommunications in certain growth centers within
its nine-state area during the next five to ten years. Expansion of the network will be needed tc

nccommodate such projected growth.

ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS

BellSouth Telecommunications is subject to a number of environmental matters as a result of its
operations and the shared liability provisions in the POR. As a result, BellSouth Telecommunications
expects that it will be required to expend funds to remedy certain facilities, including those Superfund
sites for which BST has been named as a potentially responsible party, for the remediation of sites
with underground fuel storage tanks and other expenses associated with environmental compliance.
At December 31, 1993, BST's recorded liability related primarily to remediation of these sites was
£35.5 million.

BellSouth Telecommunications continually monitors its operations with respect to potential
environmental issues, including changes in legally mandated standards and remediation technologies.
BellSouth Telecommunications' recorded liability reflects those specific issues where remediation
activities are currently deemed to be probable and where the cost of remediation is estimable.
BellSouth Telecommunications continues to believe that expenditures in connection with additional
remedial actions under the current environmental protection laws or related matters will not be
material.

ITEM ). LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The MFJ and the related POR provide for the recognition and payment of liabilities by AT&T and
the Operating Telephone Companies that are attributable to pre-divestiture events but that did not
become certain until after divestiture. These contingent liabilities relate principally to litigation and
other claims with respect to the former Bell System's rates, taxes, contracts and torts (including
business torts, such as alleged violations of the antitrust laws). Contingent liabilities that are attribu-
table to pre-divestiture events are shared by AT&T and the Opersting Telephone Companies in
accordance with formulae prescribed by the POR, whether or not an entity was a party to the
proceeding and regardless of whether an entity was dismissed from the proceeding by virtue of
settlement or otherwise. BellSouth Telecommunications’ share of these liabilities to date has not been
material to its financial position or results of operations for any period.

BellSouth Telecommunications and its subsidiaries are subject to numerous claims and proceed-
ings arising in the ordinary course of business involving allegations of personal injury, breach of
contract, anti-competitive conduct and other matters. While complete assurance cannot be given as to
the outcome of any contingent liabilities, in the opinion of BellSouth Telecommunications, any
financial impact to which BellSouth Telecommunications is subject is not expected to be material in
amount to BellSouth Teleccommunications’ operating results or ita financial position.
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PART 11
ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL AND OPERATING DATA

199) 1992 1991 1990 19y
(Dollars In Miltions)
Operating Revenues ........... $13,580 $13,182 $12,768 $12,762 $12,346
Operating Expenses (1) . ........ 11,591 10,258 10,046 9,859 9419
Operating Income . . ........... 1,989 2924 2,722 2,003 2,927
Interest Expense. . . .....00004 562 583 650 626 662
Other Income, net . ........... 21 76 1 27 21
Provision for Income Toaxes ... ... 461 801 647 T08 691
Extroordinary Loss, not of tax. . . . (87) (41) — - (22)
Accounting Change, net of tax. . .. (65) — — — —
Net IncOme ..o oveveeennasns $ B35 $ 1574 $ 1426 $ 1,506 $ 1583
Total Assets ......oovvvevnnnes $27,095 $26,442 $26,322 $26,511 $26,447
Capital Expenditures .......... § 2,995 $ 2,846 $ 2747 $ 29038 $ 2,087
LongTerm Debt . ............. $ 6,547 $ 6,336 $ 6,403 $ 6,440 $ 6433
Ratio of Earnings to Fixed
Charges (2)....voeveusranens 3.17 4.53 3.86 4.23 4.15
Return to Average Common
Equity +.ociveansacnnnnsune 7.92% 13.78% 12.49% 14.13% 14.40%
Debt Ratio at End of Period ... .. 41.20% 38.46% 38.17% a7.83% 38.38%
Employees ........ccone04s .. Bl416 82,866 82,245 85,967 86,728
Business Volumes (In Millions): (3)
Network Access Lines in Service:
Residence .............-. e 13.7 133 129 12.6 12.2
Business ........c.couusnesss 5.4 5.1 48 4.6 4.4
Other o T 2 2 | 3 3
B L o e EE e T 19.3 I.EE 18.0 17.5 16.9
Access Minutes of Use:
Interstate .......c00000300+ 53,345.0 50,646.4 47,266.3 449033 414642
Intrastate ........ o000 00804 15,260.9 13,984.2 13,237.7 12,1195 11,252.7
Toll Messages . .. .. .. ocnveen 1,251.0 1,280.3 1,387.1 1,457.56 1,462.3

(1) Operating Expenses for 1993 include a charge for restructuring of $1,136.4, which reduced net
income by $696.6. See Note J to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

(2) For the purpose of this ratio: (i) earnings have been calculated by adding income before income
taxes, interest expense and such portion of rental expense representative of the interest fuctor on
such rentals; (ii) fixed charges are comprised of total interest expense and such portion of rental
expense representative of the interest factor on such rentals.

(3) Prior period operating data are revised at later dates to reflect the most current information. The
above information reflects the latest data available for the periods indicated.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF RESULTS OF OPERATIONS AND
FINANCIAL CONDITION
(Dollars in Millions)

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS — 1993 RESULTS COMPARED TO 1992

BellSouth Telecommunications, Inc. ("*BellSouth Telecommunications'') reported net income of
$835.0 for the year ended December 31, 1893, a decrease of $739.3 (47.0%) compared to 1992. The
decrease was primarily attributable to a charge of $696.6 for the restructuring of telephone operations
(see Note J). Other charges in 1993 that contributed to the decrease were $86.6 for debt refinancings
(see Note E), $64.8 for the adoption of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“'SFAS™)
No. 112 (see Note H), $47 for the initial impact of a regulatory settlement in Florida, approximately
$24 related to the increase in the Federal statutory income tax rate for corporations, exclusive of the
tax benefit associated with the restructuring charge, and approximately $25 associated with severe
weather conditions during first quarter 1993, The decreases were also attributable in part to the
inclusion in 1992's results of gains of $39.5 and $32.9, respectively, from the settlement of a Federal
income tax matter and the settlement of prior year regulatory issues. The 1993 decreases were
partially offset by overall growth of operating revenues, driven by an improvement in key business
volumes, and the inclusion in 1992 of charges for debt refinancing and Hurricane Andrew.

OPERATING REVENUES

Operating Revenues increased $397.5 (3.0%) in 1993 compared to 1992 primarily due to a $341.3
(5.5%) increase in Local Service revenue and smaller increases in Interstate Access, Intrastate Access
and Other revenues, These increases were partially offset by a $29,3 (2.3%) decrease in Toll revenues.

See “"Volumes of Business "
1993 1991 S Change

Local Bervice ......i00civisian $6,5773  $6,236.0 5.5%

Local service revenues reflect amounts billed to customers for local exchange services, which
include connection to the network and secondary central office feature services, such as custom calling
features and custom dialing packages. (Paging and other mobile service revenues and revenues from
cellular interconnection are included in Other operating revenues for both periods presented.)

The increase in 1993 revenues of $341.3 (5.5%) was primarily attributable to an increase of
683,000 access lines since December 31, 1992 and a $42.0 increase from secondary central office
services, In addition, the effects of a $27.9 refund in Florida during 1992 and revenue shifts from toll
to local due to expanded local area calling plans, including a plan implemented in Louisiana in 1992,
contributed to the increase in 1993 (see “Toll”'). The increase in revenues from local area calling plans
is primarily attributable to access line growth.

1993 1992 % Change
Interstate Access ............. $2,991.2 $2,945.6 1.6%

Interstate access revenues result from the provision of access services to interexchange carriers to
provide telecommunications services belween states. Interstate access revenues increased $45.6
(1.5%) in 1993. The increase for 1993 reflects increased rates effective July 1, 1993 in conjunction with
the selection of a 3.3% productivity offset factor under the Federal Communications Commission’s
("FCC™) price cap plan, growth in minutes of use and increases in end user charges attributable to
growth in the number of access lines in service. The efTect of these increases was substantially ofTset
by decreased net settlements with the National Exchange Carriers Association and revenue deferrals
under the FCC's price cap plan. Since BellSouth Telecommunications’ earnings are currently in the
sharing range of the FCC's price cap plan and because of other lactors, significant revenue growth in
this category is not likely.

See ""Operating Environment and Trends of the Business."
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1993 191 % Chasgr
Intrastete ACCess . .......-:-.. $881.9 8718 1.2%

Intrastate access revenues result from the provision of accoss services to interexchange carriers
which provide telecommunications services between LATAs within a state. Revenues increased $10.1
(1.2%) in 1993. The increase, due primarily to growth in minutes of use, was substantially offset by
rate reductions since December 31, 1992,

1993 1992 % Change
Tall .. neais s ivss e isonmnss $1,2195 $1,2488  (2.3%)

Toll revenues are received from the provision of long-distance services within (but not between)
LATAs. These services include intraLATA service beyond the local calling area; Wide Area Telecom-
munications Service (“WATS" or 800" services) for customers with highly concentrated demand;
and special services, such as transport of voice, data and video. Toll revenues decreased $29.3 (2.3%) in
1993. The decrease reflects rate reductions since December 31, 1892 and a decline in toll message
volumes largely attributable to the expansion of local area calling plans which have the effect of
shifting revenues from Toll to Local Service. The decrease was partially offset by revenue increases
due to optional calling plans and independent company settlements. The overall decline in toll
revenues is expected to continue over the long term.

199) 1991 % Change
B T et R R R A TP i $1,909.7 $1,8799 1.6%

Other revenues include revenues from publishing rights fees, customer premises equipment sales
and maintenance services, billing and collection services, cellular interconnect services and other
nonregulated services (primarily inside wire services). Other revenues increased $20.8 (1.6%) in 1993
primarily due to an increase in publishing rights fees and revenues from nonregulated services, due in
part to higher demand. Billing and collection revenues also increased due to the effect of nonrecurring
adjustments; however, such revenues are expected to decline over the long term due to interexchange
carriers’ assuming more direct billing for their own services. The overall increase was offset by the
effect of reclassifying in 1992 a $27.9 Florida refund to ratepayers from Other revenues to Local
Service and the inclusion in 1992 of $52.7 for the settlement of prior year regulatory issues.

OPERATING EXPENSES

Operating expenses increased $1,332.0 (13.0%) during 1893 primarily due to a pre-tax charge of
$1,136.4 for restructuring of the telephone operations. Adjusted for the effect of the restructuring
charge, Operating expenses increased $195.6 (1.9%) due to expenses associated with improved busi-
ness volumes, higher levels of salaries and wages, a regulatory settlement in Florida, and expenses
attributable to severe weather conditions in the first quarter of 1993, The increase was pertially offset
by decreased overtime compensation and the inclusion in 1992 of expenses related to Hurricane
Andrew.

1993 1992 % Change
Cost of Services and Products . ...  $5,169.4  $5,050.6 24%

Cost of Services and Products includes operating expenses associated with network support and
maintenance of telecommunications property, plant and equipment, material and supplies expense,
cost of tangible goods sold and other expenses associated with the cost of providing services. Cost of
services and products increased $118.8 (2.4%) during 1993. This increase was due to increased
expenses associated with volume growth, approximately $40 of expenses reloted to severe weather
conditions during first quarter 1993, network service improvement activities, higher levels of base
salary and wage expenses resulting from annual increases for management and craft employees and
an increase in employee benefits expense, including amounts reclassified from Selling, General and
Administrative. The increase in employee benefits expense was driven by the higher overall cost of
medical services and an increase of $26 due to the adoption of SFAS No. 106, 'Employers’ Accounting
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for Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions,” partially offset by a decrease in pension expense.
Pension expense is expected to decrease further in 1994 due primarily to the effect of modifying the
benefit level under the recently adopted cash balance pension plan for management employoces and
reevaluating certain actuarial assumptions (see Note H), Other postretirement benefit expenses for
1994 are expected to increase due to the effect of changes in certain actuarial assumptions. The overall
expense increase for 1993 was partially offset by reduced expenses for overtime cornpensation, rents,
software license fees and expenses related to Hurricane Andrew reflected in 1992,

1993 1992 % Change
Depreciation . . .....o0vveivens $29000  $2,858.9 1.4%

Depreciation expense increased $40.1 (1.4%) during 1993. The increase was partially attributable
to higher levels of property, plant and equipment since December 31, 1092 resulting from continued
growth in the customer base and approximately $20 of additional depreciation expense related to
extraordinary property retirements in conjunction with a regulatory settlement in Florida. Higher
intrastate depreciation rates for Mississippi and higher interstate depreciation rates for Alabama,
Kentucky, Louisiana, Mississippi and Tennessee, all retroactive to January 1, 1993, also contributed to
the increase. The 1993 increase was partially offset by the continued expiration of inside wire and
reserve deficiency amortizations and reduced depreciation expense in Florida and Alabama resulting
from represcription.

1993 1992 % Change
Selling, General and

Administrative .............. $2,384.7  $2,3480 1.6%

Selling, General and Administrative expenses include operating expenses related to sales activi-
ties such as salaries, commissions, benefits, travel, marketing and advertising expenses. Also included
are the provision for uncollectibles and research and development costs.

Selling, General and Administrative expenses increased $36.7 (1.6%) in 1993. The increase was
primarily attributable to approximately $65 for the initial impact of a regulatory settlement in
Florida, higher levels of salaries, wages and taxes other than income taxes and an increase of $11 due
to the adoption of SFAS No. 112, “Employers' Accounting for Postemployment Benefits."” The 1893
increase was partially offset by the effect of a reclassification of certain benefit expenses to Cost of
Services and Products and a decrease in advertising expense.

1993 19 % Change

Restructuring Charge . ......... $1,1364 -_ —

During 1983, BellSouth Telecommunications recognized a business restructuring charge of
$1,136.4. The restructuring is being undertaken to redesign and streamline the fundamental
processes and work activities of the telephone operations to better respond to an increasingly competi-
tive business environment. The restructuring is expected to improve overall responsiveness to cus-
tomer needs, permit more rapid introduction of new products and services and reduce costs.

As a part of the restructuring, BellSouth Telecommunications plans to consolidate and centralize
its existing operations. BellSouth Telecommunications plans to establish a single point of contact and
accountability for the receipt, analysis and resolution of customer installation, repair activities and
service activation. As a result, 288 existing operations centers will be consolidated into 80 locations.
Duta management centers used to support company operations will be reduced from 11 to 6. In
addition, customer service processes and systems will be designed to provide one-number access,
specific appointment times, on-line and real-time access to customer records and immediate service
activation where facilities are already in place.
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The material components of the $1,136.4 charge relate to the downsizing of the existing
workforce by 10,200 employees through 1996. These components include $368.2 for separation pay-
ments and relocations of remaining employees, $342.8 for the consolidation and elimination of certain
operations facilities and $425.4 for enabling changes to information systems, primarily those used to
provide services to existing customers,

Substantially all of the restructuring charge is expected to require cash payments in future
periods. Exclusive of capital requirements, cash payments related to restructuring for 1994, 1895 and
1996 are expected to be approximately $500, $350 and $220, respectively. In addition, future capital
expenditures associated with the overall restructuring are estimated to be spproximately $650. The
cash requirements associated with the restructuring activities, including related capital expenditures,
will be provided primarily from BellSouth Telecommunications' operations and, if necessary, from
external sources.

BellSouth Telecommunications reduced its overall workforce by approximately 1,300 employees
in 1993 following implementation of the restructuring plan. Workforce reductions for 1994, 1995 and

1096 are expected to be approximately 3,700, 2,900 and 2,300, respectively. BellSouth Telecommunica-
tions expects that the restructuring will result in cost savings beginning in 1994 due to the workforce

reductions. Once the restructuring is completed, annual cost savings are expected to be approximately
$600 due primarily to reduced employee-related expenses.

1993 1991 % Change
Interest Expense ................. $56626 $583.3 (3.6%)

Interest expense includes interest on debt, certain other accrued liabilities and capital leases,
offset by allowance for funds used during construction, which is capitalized as a cost of installing
equipment and constructing plant. Interest expense decreased $20.7 (3.5%) in 1993. The decrease was
due primarily to & decline in interest rates on borrowings, both short and long term, including the
impact of refinancings of long-term debt at lower interest rates. The decrease was offset by a higher
average level of short-term borrowings. (See Notes E and K.)

1993 1992 % Change

Other Income, net . ..........o0004 $21.4 $76.56 (70L.7T%)
Other income, which primarily includes interest and dividend income, decreased $54.1 (71.7%)

during 1993 due to the inclusion in 1992 of $56.8 of interest income that resulted from a tax
settlement with the Internal Revenue Service.

1993 191 E
Provision for Income Toxes. ......... $461.56 $800.8 (42.4%)

Income tax expense decreased $339.3 (42.4%) in 1993 due to the impact of the restructuring
charge, which reduced tax expense by $439.8. The decrease was partially offset by the impact of the
Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1993, including the increase in the Federal statutory income
tax rate for corporations, which, exclusive of the tax benefit associated with the restructuring charge,
incrensed tax expense by approximately $24.

BellSouth Telecommunications' effective tax rates were 31.0% and 33,1% in 1993 and 1992,
respectively. A reconciliation of the statutory Federal income tax rates to these effective tax rates is
provided in Note L. A discussion of the adoption of SFAS No. 109, **Accounting for Income Taxes," also
is included therein.

OPERATING ENVIRONMENT AND TRENDS OF THE BUSINESS

Regulatory Environment. In providing telecommunications services, BellSouth Telecommunica-
tions is subject to regulation by both state and federal regulators with respect to rates, services and
other issues. While the states in BellSouth Telecommunications' service area currently provide for
some form of regulation of earnings, as discussed below, BellSouth Telecommunications believes that
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the existing regulatory framework is not appropriate for the increasingly competitive telecommunica-
tions environment. Accordingly, BellSouth Telecommunicaticns’ primary regulatory focus continues
to be directed toward modifying the regulatory process to one that is more closely aligned with
changing market conditions and overall public policy objectives. As an alternative to the current
regulatory process, BellSouth Telecommunications believes that price regulation, whereby prices of
basic local exchange service are directly regulated and prices for other products and services are based
on market factors, is a logical progression in regulatory flexibility and is fair to consumers. As such,
BellSouth Telecommunications intends to pursue implementation of price regulation plans through
filings with state regulatory commissions or through legislative initintives.

State Regulation

Seven of the nine states in which BellSouth Telecommunications operates are now under some
alternative form of regulation other than traditional rate of return regulation. The seven states are
Alabama, Florida, Georgia, Kentucky, Louisiana, Mississippi and Tennessee. These state plans are
designed to provide BellSouth Telecommunications with economic incentives to improve cost controls
and general efficiency in the form of shared earnings over benchmark rates of return. The plans in
Georgin and Kentucky are scheduled to expire in 1894. BellSouth Telecommunications attained the
earnings sharing range in Alabama, Kentucky, Louisiana and Mississippi at certain times during
1993,

For a part of 1993, South Carolina also operated under a form of alternative regulation. However,
in August 1983, the South Carolina Supreme Court ruled that the South Carolina Public Service
Commission (the *SCPSC") lacked the statutory authority to approve incentive regulation plans of
the type under which BellSouth Telecommunications had been operating since 1992, Legislation has
been proposed in South Carolina which would permit the SCPSC to adopt alternative forms of
regulation including price regulation. In the interim, traditional rate of return regulation is in effect
in South Carolina.

In January 1994, the Florida Public Service Commission approved a settlement reached by
BellSouth Telecommunications and Florida's Office of Public Counsel related to pending rate proceed-
ings initially filed by BellSouth Telecommunications in July 1992 and other consolidated matters.
This settlement ended outstanding rate case and consolidated issues in Florida and extended the
incentive regulation plan through at least 1896. Under the terms of the settlement, BellSouth Tele-
communications was required to recognize in 1993 business all remaining deferred expenses related
to Hurricane Andrew and to record expenses associated with extraordinary asset retirements, also
related to Hurricane Andrew. The aggregate impact of these items was approximately $75, which
reduced BellSouth Telecommunications’ net income for 1993 by approximately $47. The terms of the
settlement also required BellSouth Telecommunications to reduce rates by $55 in February 1994 and
will require reductions of an additional $60 inJuly 1894, $80 in October 1995 and $84 in October 1096.
The settlement provides for other changes in service offerings and tariffs including approximately $21
in revenue reductions or increased expenses. Certain other service rates have been capped at their
current levels through 1997, and BellSouth Telecommunications has agreed not to propose any local
measured service on a statewide basis through the same time period.

Federal Regulation

At the national level, BellSouth Telecommunications has bee: operating under price cap regula-
tion since January 1, 1091. In contrast to regulation which limits the rate of return that can be
achieved, price cap regulation limits the prices telephone companies can charge for use of their
services. The current FCC plan allows for the sharing of earnings over a benchmark range of earnings.
This benchmark is dependent upon the productivity offset factor chosen annually by the carrier.
During the price cap plan's annual election period in 1993, BellSouth Telecommunications selected a
productivity offset factor of 8.3% which increased access rates more than they would otherwise have




been had the 4.3% factor been selected; however, selection of this lower productivity factor provides
for a lower allowed return before sharing is required. As of December 31, 1993, BellSouth Telecommu-
nications' recorded liability for estimated sharing was $45.6.

In February 1994, the FCC initiated its review of the current price cap plan. Under a notice of
proposed rulemaking, the FCC identified for examination three broad sets of issues including those
related to the basic goals of price cap regulation, the operation of price caps, and the transition of local
exchange services to a fully competitive market. BellSouth Telecommunications believes and will
advocate that a revised price cap plan should be structured to provide increased pricing flexibility for
services as competition evolves in the telecommunications markets. Any changes to the current plan
are expected to be effective January 1, 1895 or soon thereafter.

Economy. The nine-state region served by BellSouth Telecommunications' wireline telephone
business, as a whole, posted solid economic gains in 1993, while continuing economic slumps on the
West Coast and in the Northeast kept the national economy sluggish for much of the year. Employ-
ment growth averaged 2.1% in the region in 1993, slower than the 4% annual rate experienced in the
1980's, but still above the national average of 1.6%. Manufacturing employment in the region grew
slightly during 1993 while the nation lost approximately 180,000 manufacturing jobs. Services em-
ployment increased about 4% to lead the region’s growth. Employment growth is expected to improve
further in 1994. Residential construction growth moved back above pre-recession levels with housing
starts in the region up 12% over the year. Housing demand is expected to remain strong in 1994. The
region's relatively strong economy along with its attractive climate have kept net in-migration near
400,000 per year, boosting the demand for telecommunications services. However, increasing competi-
tion makes BellSouth Telecommunications’ financial performance more susceptibls to changes in the
economy than previously, as its operations reflect the more competitive environment and greater
elasticity in demands for its products and services.

Volumes of Buslness.
MNoetwork Access Lines in Service at December 31 (Thousands):

1993 1991 % Chang
Realdence .. .......c0iivienneanis 136914 132083 3.0%
BUBNBEE 0 e i e vt aa i e 53883 50881 b59%
OB o et e e e o 2529 2632 (3.9%)
TORY: s aivsans sinsmsnsssnans s 19,3326 186496 3.7%

The total number of access lines in service increased by 683,000 over 1992, representing a 3.7%
increase, an improvement over the 3.4% rate of increase for 1992 over 1991. The overall increase, led
by growth in Florida, Georgia, North Carolina and Tennessee, was primarily attributable to continued
economic improvement, including expanding employment in BellSouth Telecommunications’ nine-
state region and an increase in the number of second lines in residences. While the overall growth rate
for residence lines remained constant at 3.0%, the growth rate for business lines continued to
increase, reaching 5.9% in 1993, compared to 5.1% in 1992.

Access Minutes of Use (Millions):
1993 1992 % l:h!

IDLOERERLE < o s 0 0o n nainvin oiain v in s ooy 53,3450 605464 55%
Intrastate . .....ccoveevnnrunnsnes 152609 139942 0.1%
e | B e e S o PR P R 68,6069 645406 63%

Access minutes of use represent the volume of traffic carried by interexchange carriers between
LATAs, both interstate and intrastate, using BellSouth Telecommunications® local facilities. Total
access minutes of use increased by 4,065.3 million (6.3%) in 1893 compared to a 6,7% increase in 1092,
The 1993 increase in nccess minutes of use was partially attributable to access line growth and also to
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intralLATA toll competition, which has the effect of increasing access minutes of use while reducing
toll messages carried over BellSouth Telecommunications' facilities. The growth rate in total minutes
of use continues to be negatively impacted by the effects of bypass and the migration of interexchange
carriers to categories of service (e.g., special access) that have a fixed charge as opposed to a volume-
driven charge and to high capacity services, which causes a decrease in minutes of use.

1993 1991 % Change

Toll Messages (Millions) . . ............ 1,251.0 12808 (2.3%)

Toll messages, comprised of Message Telecommunications Service and Wide Area Telecommuni-
cations Service, decreased 29.3 million (2.3%) compared to a 7.7% decrease in 1992, The lower rate of
decrease for 1993 was attributable to the inclusion of the impact of the Louisiana area calling plan in
both 1992 (beginning in March) and 1993. Competition in the intraLATA toll market and the effects of
expanded local area calling plans continue to have an adverse impact on toll message volumes. These
plans and the effects of competition have the effect of shifting calls from toll to local service and access,
respectively, but the corresponding revenues are not generally shifted at commensurate rates. The
decline in toll message volumes is expected to continue for the foreseeable future.

Competition. Recent developments in the telecommnnications markciplace indicate that a tech-
nological convergence is occurring in the telephone, cable and broadcast television, computer, en-
tertainment and information services industries. The technologies utilized and being developed in
these industries will enable multiple communications offerings. Several large companies have re-
cently announced proposed acquisitions or business alliances that, if consummated, could intensify
and expand competition for local communications and other services currently provided over Bell-
South Telecommunications’ networks. Other competitors have announced plans to build local phone
connections that would permit business and residential customers to bypass the facilities of local
telephone companies, including those of BellSouth Telecommunications in certain cities in its service
territory. In addition, legislative activities in Congress could affect BellSouth Telecommunications’
business and competitive position. BellSouth Telecommunications has undertaken a plan to stream-
line its telephone operations and to improve its overall cost structure as a part of its competitive

strategy (see ‘'Results of Operations"').

Notwithstanding the risks associated with increased competition, BellSouth and BellSouth Tele-
communications will have the opportunity to benefit from entry into new business markets. BellSouth
believes that in order to remain competitive in the future, it must aggressively pursue a corporate
strategy of expanding its offerings beyond its traditional businesses which may include information
services, interactive communications and cable television and other entertainment services. Bell-
South plans to enter such businesses through acquisitions, investments and strategic alliances with
established companies in such industries and through the development of such capabilities internally.
Such transactions, if accomplished, could initially reduce earnings and require substantial capitai.
Financing for such business opportunities will be provided from funds generated through internal
operations and from external sources.

Accounting Under SFAS No. 71. BellSouth Telecommunications continues to account for the
economic effects of regulation under SFAS No. 71, “Accounting for the Effects of Certain Types of
Regulation.” BellSouth Telecommunications, for strategic and business planning purposes, continu-
ously monitors and evaluates the impacts of both existing and potential competitive factors. If, in
BellSouth Telecommunications' judgment, changes in the competitive structure of the telecommuni-
cations industry dictate that it could not charge prices to customers which provide for the recovery of
costs, SFAS No. 71 would no longer apply. BellSouth Telecommunications currently believes that the
existing and anticipated levels of competition still permit prices based on costs to be charged to and
collected from customers. However, the rapid pace of change in the industry is making it increasingly
likely that BellSouth Teleccmmunications will be required to discontinue its accounting under
SFAS No. 71 in the future.
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BellSouth Telecommunications believes that the existing regulatory framework is not appropri-
ate for the increasingly competitive telecommunications environment. Accordingly, BellSouth Tele-
communications intends to pursue implementation of price regulation plans in all of its jurisdictions
through filings with state regulatory commissions or threagh legislative initiatives. Since price regu-
lation plans do not provide for the recovery of specific costs, SFAS No. 71 would no longer apply. If
BellSouth Telecommunications is successful in altering the existing regulatory framework and achiev-
ing price regulation, BellSouth Telecommunications would be required to discontinue its accounting
under SFAS No. 71.

If BellSouth Telecommunications were to discontinue its accounting under SFAS No. 71 due to
the overall level of competition or to changes in regulatory frameworks, the effect on its financial
condition and results of operations would be material. Specific fil.ancial impacts would depend on the
timing and magnitude of changes, both in the marketplace and in the overall regulatory framework.

OTHER MATTERS

Accounting Pronouncements, Effective January 1, 1993, BellSouth Telecommunications adopted
three new accounting standards issued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board. SFAS No. 106,
“Employers’ Accounting for Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions," requires employers to
accrue the cost of providing postretirement benefits other than pensions during the period employees
are expected to earn the benefit. BellSouth Telecommunications is recognizing the related transition
benefit obligation over 15 years. As a result of the adoption of SFAS No, 106, operating expenses in
1993 were $26 higher than they would have been using the former accounting method. Accordingly,
net income was reduced by approximately $16 (see Note H),

SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes,” requires companies to compute deferred income
taxes using a liability approach rather than the deferred method previously required under Account-
ing Principles Board Opinion No. 11. The adoption of SFAS No, 109 did not materially affect tax
expense or net income for 1993 (see Note L).

SFAS No. 112, “Employers’ Accounting for Postemployment Benefits,” requires employers to
accrue the cost of postemployment benefits provided to former or inactive employees after employ-
ment but before retirement. A one-time charge of $64.8, net of a deferred tax benefit of $40.8, related
to the adoption of SFAS No. 112 was recognized as an accounting change (see Note H).

Other pronouncements have been issued by authoritative accounting bodies but not yet adopted
by BellSouth Telecommunications. The adoption of such standards in future periods, where required,
is not expected to have a material impact on BellSouth Telecommunications' operating results and
financial condition.

Debt Refinancings. During 1993, BellSouth Telecommunications refinanced $2,760 of long-term
debt at more favorable interest rates. An extraordinary loss of $86.6, net of taxes of $58.8, was
recognized in connection with the early extinguishment of certain of these issues,

Environmental Issues. BellSouth Telecommunications is subject to a number of environmental
matters as a result of its operations and shared liability provisions in the Plan of Reorganization,
related to the Modification of Final Judgment. As a result, BellSouth Telecommunications expects
that it will be required to expend funds to remedy certain facilities, including those Superfund sites for
which BellSouth Telecommunications has been named as a potentially responsible party and also for
the remediation of sites with underground fuel storage tanks and other expenses associated with
environmental compliance. At December 31, 1993, BellSouth Telecommunications’ recorded liability
related primarily to remediation of these sites was $35.5,

BellSouth Telecommunications continually monitors its operations with respect to potential
environmental issues, including changes in legally mandated standards and remediation technologies.
BellSouth Telecommunications’ recorded liability reflects those specific issues where remediation
activities are currently deemed to be probable and where the cost of remediation is estimable.
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BellSouth continues to believe that expenditures in connection with additional remedial actions under
the current environmental protection laws or related matters will not have a material impact on
BellSouth Telecommunications' operating results or financial condition.

Subsequent Event. During the first quarter of 1994, BellSouth Communication Systems, Inc, a
wholly-owned subsidiary, entered into an agreement to sell its customer premise equipment sales and
service operations outside the nine-state region. The transaction is expected to close by the end of
April 1994,




ITEM 8. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

REPORT OF MANAGEMENT

These financial statements have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles and have been audited by Coopers & Lybrand, independent accountants, whose report is
contained herein.

The integrity and objectivity of the data in these financial statements, including estimates and
judgments relating to matters not concluded by the end of the year, are the responsibility of the
management of BellSouth Telecommunications. Management has also prepared all other information
included in this Annual Report unless indicated otherwise.

Management maintains a system of internal accounting controls which is continuously reviewed
and evaluated. However, there are inherent limitations that should be recognized in considering the
assurances provided by any system of internal accounting controls. The concept of reasonable assur-
ance recognizes that the cost of a system of internal accounting controls should not exceed, in
management's judgment, the benefits to be derived. Management belicves that BellSouth Telecom-
munications’ system does provide reasonable assurance that the transactions are executed in accor-
dance with management's general or specific authorizations and are recorded properly to maintain
accountability for assets and to permit the preparation of financial statements in conformity with
generally nccepted nccounting principles. Management also believes that this system provides reason-
able assurance that access to assets is permitted only in sccordance with management’s authoriza-
tions, that the recorded accountability for assets is compared with the existing assets at reasonable
intervals and that appropriate action is taken with respect to any differences. Management also seeks
to assure the objectivity and integrity of ita financial data by the careful selection of its managers, by
organizational arrangements that provide an appropriate division of responsibility and by communi-
cations programs aimed at assuring that its policies, standards and managerial authorities are under-
stood throughout the organization. Management is also aware that changes in operating strategy and
organizational strueture can give rise to disruptions in internal controls. Special attention is given to
controls while the changes are being implemented.

Manugement maintains a strong internal auditing program that independently assesses the
effectiveness of the internal controls and recommends possible improvements thereto. In addition, as
part of its audit of these financial statements, Coopers & Lybrand completed a review of the account-
ing controls to establish a basis for reliance thereon in determining the nature, timing and extent of
audit tests to be applied. Management has considered the internal auditor's and Coopers & Lybrand's
recommendations concerning the system of internal control and has taken actions that we believe are
cost-effective in the circumstances to respond appropriately to these recommendations. Management
believes that as of December 31, 1993, the system of internal controls was adequate to accomplish the
objectives discussed herein,

Management nlso recognizes its responsibility for fostering a strong ethical climate so that
BellSouth Telecommunications' affairs are conducted according to the highest standards of personal
and corporate conduct. This responsibility is communicated to all employees through policies and
guidelines addressing such issues as conflict of interest, safeguarding of BellSouth Telecommunica-
tions’ real and intellectual properties, providing equal employment opportunities and ethical relations
with customers, suppliers and governmental representatives, BellSouth Telecommunications main-
tains a program to assess compliance with these policies.

F. Duane Ackerman Patrick H. Casey
President and Chief Executive Officer Vice President and Comptroller
ebruary 3, 1994



AUDIT COMMITTEE CHAIRMAN'S LETTER

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors consists of four independent Directors who are
neither officers nor employees of BellSouth Telecommunications. The Committee is responsible for
oversight of the internal controls of the Company and the objectivity of its financial reporting. The
Audit Committee met four times during 1993 and reviewed with the Director — Internal Auditing,
Coopers & Lybrand and management, the various audit activities and plans, together with the results
of selected internal audits, The Audit Committee also reviewed the financial reporting process and the
adequacy of internal controls. The Audit Committee recommends the appointment of the independent
public accountants and considers factors relating to their independence. The Director — Internal
Auditing and Coopers & Lybrand met privately with the Audit Committee on occasion to encourage
confidential discussions as to any auditing matters,

Lloyd C. Elam
Chairman, Audit Committee
February 3, 1994
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

BellSouth Telecommunications, Inc.
Atlanta, Georgin

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements and financial statement
schedules of BellSouth Telecommunications, Inc. and Subsidiaries listed in Item 14(a) of the
Form 10-K_ These financial statements and financial statement schedules are the responsibility of the
Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and
financial statement schedules based on our audits,

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Those stan-
dards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An eudit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reason-
able basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the consolidated financial position of BellSouth Telecommunications, Inc. and Subsidiaries as of
December 31, 1993 and 1992, and the consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for
each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 1993, in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles. In addition, in our opinion, the financial statement schedules referred to abave,
when considered in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole, present fairly, in all
material respects, the information required to be included therein.

As discussed in Notes H and L to the consolidated financial statements, BellSouth Telecommuni-
cations changed its method of accounting for postretirement benefits other than pensions, postem-
ployment benefits, and income taxes in 1893,

Coopers & Lybrand

Atlanta, Georgia
February 3, 1994

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

We consent to the incorporation by reference in the registration statement of BellSouth Telecom-
munications, Inc. on Form S-3 (File No. 33-49091) of our report dated February 3, 1994, on our audits
of the consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedules of BellSouth Telecommuni

cations, Inc. listed in Item 14(a) of this Form 10-K.

Coopers & Lybrand
Atlanta, Georgia
Murch 28, 1994
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BELLSOUTH TELECOMMUNICATIONS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME AND RETAINED EARNINGS

(In Millioas)

Operating Revenues:
Local BEIVICE . o .o v v sesssssnasssnsasasassaananes
Interstale BOCESS . . .......c.ccvcvrvssssacanasansnas

Total Operating Revenues. . ......... ... coeecesas

Operating Expenses:
Cost of servicesand products . . . .....c0vuvnrnreennn.
Depreciation .. ..cossssrsssssnsrssssacsrsssssnss
Selling, general and ndminiltrlﬂw ...................
Restructuring charge (NotedJ) . .....ccoceviinnncceen

Operating Income . . ....o00vuss TR L R TR
Interest Expense (Note K). . . ..o vvvnviienninrenannns
Other Income, net (Note K) ....... T e

Income Before Income Taxes, Extraordinary Loss and
Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting Principle ......
Provision ior Income Taxes (Note L) .. .......... .. 00000
Income Before Extraordinary Loss and Cumulative Effect of
Change in Accounting Principle . .. ........cooviina,
Extraordinary Loss on Early Extinguishment of Debt, net of
L T A L e A P
Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting Principle, net of
CAX ONOED H) o iviivii s s s nnnomssainysssnsesensnsians

Net Income ..... P e RSP g S PR s P

Retained Earnings:
At beginningof year ...........cciciivianinnanan
Met Incoms .. ..cicuuvainiansaiananamsssssinonses
Dividendsdeclared . . ... ......coviiinmineiinanas
Otheradjustments ., . ..........couitennnrrcsnanas

At enAd of YORE . . . s covsinsnsnsisnsmmsansesvnasssss

For ibe Years Ended December 1,
1993 1" 1991
$ 66773 $ 62960 $ 5846.2
20912 2,456  2,858.1
881.9 871.8 866.7
12195 1,2488 13737
1.909.7 1,8799  1,822.7
13,5796 13,1821 12,7674
51694 50508  4,905.1
20000 12,8609 28191
92,3847 2,3480 2,216
11964 = =
11,6005 102585 10,0458
1,980.1 29236 27216
562.6 583.3 649.8
21.4 5.5 9
14479 24168  2,072.7
461.6 800.8 646.9
986.4  1,6160  1,4258
(86.6)  (40.) —

(64.8) s

3 BSB_II]. $ 16743 § 14258

$ 39670 $ 39835 § 39706
835.0

¥ 1,674.3 1,4258
(1,612.3) (1,587.8) (1,4129)
(8.7) (3.0) -

$ 3,1800 $ 3,067.0 § 3,983.6

The accompanying notes are au integral part of these financial statements.




BELLSOUTH TELECOMMUNICATIONS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

{In Milllons)
December 31,
19 1992
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Coshand cash equivalents . . . .......covvvvnvnii e onnnnans § 6843 § 1330
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for uncollectibles of $84.6 and
L Ty Rl o R A e Pl o <5 e 2,229.0 1,944.7
Material and supplies .. .. .0 aceiis e e snas e easiss oty 374. 385.8
Othercurrent assets .............. R P H R s DT S 2538 79.6
Total Current Assets ................ e e e e A e, 29414 2,643.1
Investments In and Advances to Affiliatea (Note B) .........0o0vnvunn 238.2 30.3
Property, Plant and Equipment, net (Note C) .........c0civiinnnnn 234444 233119
Deferred Charges and Other Assets . . .. ............c00eievnannns 471.2 667.0
Total Assets . ............ e U $27,095.2 $26,442.3
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY
Current Liabilities:
Debt maturing within one year (Note E) ...........cc0ivvuinnnns $ 1046 § 9469
ACCOUNEE PRVEDIE - 1o o ais o 50015 o lathu s Stsia s e a e w . n e iahe e aT ol me g AT 1,037.1 989.6
Other current linbilities (Note D) . .. . .............covuvan. s 24154 1,780.4
Total Current Liabilities .. . ..oivuviivnvicnienrinairensasen 4,547.1 3,716.8
Long-Term Debt iNoba E) . 0. . i s ciunisiviosnaeininsssnsinness 6,546.5 6,336.0
Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities:
Accumulated deferred income taxes ............cc0nnrnrneners 28314 3,639.5
Unamortized investment tax credits . . .. .....o0vvevnnnrrvnnnss 5169 604.3
Other liabilities and deferred credits (Note F) . . ... .o oo vvennnn. 1,084.7 763.0
Total Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities . .................. 6,342.0 5,006.8
Shareholder’s Equity:
Common stock, one share, no par value . . .........000enverennss 7479.6 7.415.7
Rotained sarningy . oia i viinsan s iba it rrs e i e aig s 3,180.0 3,967.0
Total Shareholder's EQUity . . . .. ...ovvovvevnvonnennnnernnnns 10,8596 11,3827
Total Liabilities and Shareholder’s Equity . . ... ................ $27,095.2 $26,442.3

The accompanying notes sre an integral part of these financial statements.
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BELLSOUTH TELECOMMUNICATIONS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

{In Millions)
For ibe Years Ended December 31,
199 1992 1991
Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Nt IRoome . T A e e m T s e e $ AR3BO $ 15748 § 14258
Adjustments to net income:
Depreciation . . .. vvveverrnnssnanisiassansens 2,900.0 2,859.9 2.818.1
Restructuringcharge. . ......... . coinavinnaaes 1,136.4 — -
Summary tax assessment settlement .. ............ —_ 90.9 —_
Provision for lossesonbad debts . .. .............. 128.6 1425 157.3
Extraordinary loss on early extinguishment of debt . . . 1454 70.7 —
Change in accounting principle, net of tax . ......... 64.8 — —
Deferred income taxes and unamortized investment tax
P vt DA e il AU R IR e e A A (677.1) (147.5) (406.3)
Allowance for funds used during construction ....... (23.7) (15.3) {18.1)
Net change in accounts receivable . . .............. (408.4) (206.7) (111.8)
Net change in material and supplies .............. (91.1) (135.0) (59.8)
Net change in accounts paysble and other current
LT 4 R R e e S R R P e el 141.7 86.0 (32.7)
Net change in deferred charges and other assets . .... 98.6 3.7 1344
Net change in other liabilities and deferred credits. . . . 148.2 162.0 1209
Other reconciling items, net .................... (41.4) (35.8) 15
Net cash provided by operating activities ......... 4,357.0 4.449.7 4,030.3
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Capital expenditures. . .. ... ..o viursianensnsaaas (2994.9) (2,B46.8) (2,747.3)
Proceeds from disposals of property, plant and equipment 874 829 55.9
Investment dispositions .........c0c0rvennsanenas 15.0 — —
Purchase of BellSouth Common Stock. . . ............ (169.9) — —
Other investing nctivities, net . . ... . ... ... oo (1.3) (1.1) (2.1)
Net cash used for investing activities . ........... (3,093.7) (2,764.0) (2,693.5)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Proceeds from short-term borrowings . ... ........... 10,866.3 10,713.8 13,679.3
Repayment of short-term borrowings ............... (10,645.0) (10,674.8) (13,431.8)
Advances from parent and affiliates ................ 350.8 267.8 —
Repayment of advances from parent and affiliates . . . . .. (357.2) (270.2) -
Proceeds of long-term debt . . .........ccciiviviinis 2911.0 543.2 —
Repayment of long-termdebt ............ .. .00 (2,777.5) (626.7) (28.9)
Payment of call premium ... ..... 0000 ininiiinas (99.7) (33.4) —
Payment of capital lease obligations ................ (11.4) (13.4) (18.8)
Equity investment of parent . . . .........ocvinenin 28.7 24.0 9.8
Dividends paid toparent ............cccneuinnniie (1,687.0) (1,618.6) (1,414.5)
Net cash used for financing activities . ........... (1,912.0) (1,688.1) (1,304.9)
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents . . . . (48.7) (2.4) 319
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Period . ...... 133.0 1354 103.6
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Period ........... $ B43 § 1330 § 1354

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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BELLSOUTH TELECOMMUNICATIONS, INC,
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Dollars in Millions)

Note A — Accounting Policles

Hasis of Presentation. BellSouth Telecommunications, Inc. (*BellSouth Telecommunications'')
is a wholly-owned subsidiary of BellSouth Corporation (*BellSouth”). Effective at midnight Decem-
ber 31, 1991, South Central Bell Telephone Company (*‘South Central Bell") and BellSouth Services
Incorporated (“BellSouth Services™) (a jointly-owned service subsidiary of South Central Bell and
Southern Bell Telephone and Telegraph Company (*‘Southern Bell'')) merged with and into Southern
Bell and Southern Bell's name changed to BellSouth Telecommunications, Inc. The accompanying
financial statements reflect the operations of South Central Bell, Southern Bell, BellSouth Services,
and several smaller affiliated companies transferred to BellSouth Telecommunications as though the
merger and such transfers had occurred on January 1, 1891, BellSouth Telecommunications main-
tains substantially all of its accounts and records in accordance with the Unil.rm System of Accounts
prescribed by the Federal Communications Commission (“FCC') and makes certain adjustments
necessary to present the accompanying financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles applicable to regulated entities. Such principles differ in certain respects from
those used by unregulated entities, but are required to appropriately reflect the financial and eco-
nomic effects of regulation and the rate-making process. Significant differences resulting from the
application of these principles are disclosed elsewhere in these Notes to Consolidated Finencial
Statements where appropriate,

Basis of Accounting. BellSouth Telecommunications’ consolidated financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, including the provisions
of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (**SFAS™) No. 71, “‘Accounting for the Effects of
Certain Types of Regulation.” Where appropriate, SFAS No. 71 gives accounting recognition to the
actions of regulators. Such actions can provide reasonable assurance of the existence of an asset,
reduce or eliminate the value of an asset or impose or eliminate a liability on a regulated entity.

Cash and Cash Equivalents, BellSouth Telecommunications considers all highly liquid invest-
ments with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Property, Plant and Equipment. The investment in property, plant and equipment dedicated to
providing telecommunications services is stated at original cost. Depreciation is based on the remain-
ing life method of depreciation and straight-line composite rates determined on the basis of equal life
groups of certain categories of telephone plant acquired in a given year. Depreciation expense also
includes amortization of certain classes of telephone plant and identified deprociation reserve defi.
ciencies over periods allowed by regulatory authorities, When depreciable plant is disposed of, the
original cost less net salvage value is charged to accumulated depreciation,

Material and Supplies. New and reusable material is earried in inventory, principally ut average
original cost, except that specific costs are used in the case of large individual items. Nonreusable
material is carried ot estimated salvege value,

Maintenance and Repairs. The cost of maintenance and repairs of plant, including the cost of
replacing minor items not effecting substantial betterments, is charged to operating expenses.

Revenue Recognition. Revenues are recognized when earned. Certain revenues derived from
local telephone services are billed monthly in advance and are recognized the following month when
services are provided. Revenues derived from other telecommunications services, principally network
access and toll, are recognized monthly as services are provided, Directory publishing fees are recog-
nized over the life of the related directories, published by an affiliated company, which is generally one
year,

Allowance for Funds Used During Construction. Regulatory authorities allow BellSouth Telecom-
munications to accrue interest as a cost of constructing certain plant and as an item of income

a1




BELLSOUTH TELECOMMUNICATIONS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMEN'S (Continued)
(Dollars in Millions)

Note A — Accounting Policies (Continued)
{(interest charged construction). Such income is not realized in cash currently but will be realized over

the service life of the related plant as the resulting higher depreciation expense and plant investment
are recovered in the form of increased revenues.

Income Taxes, Effective January 1, 1993, BellSouth Telecommunications adopted S8FAS No. 109,
**Accounting for Income Taxes." In accordance with the standard, the balance sheet reflects deferred
tax balances associated with the anticipated tax impact of future income or deductions implicit in the
balance sheet in the form of temporary differences. Temporary differences primarily result from the
use of accelerated methods and shorter lives in computing depreciation for tax purposes. Prior to
1993, BellSouth Telecommunications accounted for income Laxes under the provisions of Accounting
Principles Board Opinion No. 11.

For financial reporting purposes, BellSouth Telecommunications is amortizing deferred invest-
ment tax credits earned prior to the 1986 repeal of the investmen: tax credit and also some transi-
tional credits earned after the repeal. The credits are being amortized as a reduction to the provision
for income taxes over the estimated useful lives of the assets to which the credits relat:.

Note B — Investments In and Advances to Affiliates

Investments In and Advances to Affiliates consists primarily of 3,766,199 shares of BellSouth
common stock. During 1993, grantor trusts established by BellSouth Telecommunications purchased
for $199.9 the BellSouth common stock to provide partial funding for the benefits payable under
certain non-qualified benefit plans. For 1993, dividend income earned from the BellSouth shares,
included as a component of Other Income, net, was $7.6.

Note C — Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment is summarized as follows at December 31;

1993 1991

e T P Y B Bl i g © ool solt e LA e o B e e L $£18,695.7 $17.,813.5
Central officeequipment ............c0ivuevnvnrnrunnsna 14,668.0 13,8939
Building and building improvements. ... .................. 2,682.8 2,656.0
Furniture and Bxbures . . .. . s coeso oo cnnssnesnsnsennssns 2,1099 1,996.7
Operating and otherequipment . ..............0vcvevenns B25.1 T11.5
Station equiDEBOL". . s o 25 il e s v NI L SR 631.0 612.6
Plant underconstruction . ..... ..o cavernabssnssannarna a65.4 440.1
R e R A i 167.6 156.3
Capltal BomBo . . ., o5 ie e s dis s ias pu v s aua s STHE S FE S N 55.6 62.2
o L N - 20.4 15.6
40,101.6 38,324.3

Less: Accumulated depreciation . ............. .. 00hvieann 16,657.1 15,0124
Total Property, Plant and Equipment, net .. ............ $23.4444 8233119




BELLSOUTH TELECOMMUNICATIONS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(Dollars in Millions)

Note D — Other Current Liabilities
Other current liabilities are summarized as follows at December 31:

199) 1992

Restructuring @ocrull . ... ..ovvvvvveenrsnansnsssssosnsnns $ 5134 § —
Advanced billing and customer deposits .. ........ ... .c00000 4148 414.2
Taxes sccrued . ....... 4 ot ok IS T i ST I TE Dy, 1 405.3 311.3
Compensated absences. .. ...........ccovevennasroanasnes 3074 2034
Salaries and wages payable .. ... ....oo i iiaiiiaaas 209.4 281.4
Interest and rents meerued . . . .. v v v v e s s 231.2 258.9
Dividends payabletoparent. . .. .........oiivinaariannians 164.6 139.3
ORbEr . o'os s v slriain ste A A A R by e el e g Sy SN 79.3 B1.9
Total Other Current Liabilities . ............cc0vevuinnn iﬂ.ﬂﬁ $1,780.4

Note E — Debt

Debt Maturing Within One Year: Debt maturing within one year is included as debt in BellSouth
Telecommunications' computation of debt ratios and consisted of the following at December 31:

Description 1993 1992 1991
Advances and Notes Payable:

Advances from BellSouth and affiliates. .......... 5§ — $514 $—
Commercial PAPEr. .. ... .ccnvevccrarsnsanssssns 1,085.6 863.0 B21.3
Current Maturities of Long-term Debt. .. .......... 9.0 52.5 a1

Total ..... T et i e g Y D $1,004.8 $046.9 $862.4

Advances from BellSouth and affiliates:
Maximum amount outstanding duringthe period . .. $ 358 §$ 374 § —
Average amount outstanding during the period (a) .. $ 141 $217 § —

Weighted average interest rate at end of period . ... 3.16% 3.72% -

Weighted average interest rate during the period (b). 4% 317% -
Commercial Paper:

Maximum amount outstanding during period . . .. .. $1,5609 $945.7 $910.0

Average amount outstanding during the period (a) .. $1,0820 $640.3 §746.1

Weighted average interest rate at end of period . . .. 331% 358%  4.69%

Weighted average interest rate during the period (b). 321% 3.71% 6.00%

(a) Determined by computing the average face amount of daily ending balances in each category.

(b) Determined by dividing the average daily face amount described in (a) into aggregate related
interest expense.

BellSouth Telecommunications has committed credit lines aggregating $1,096.9 with various
banks. There were no borrowings under the committed lines at December 31, 19983. BellSouth
Telecommunications also maintains uncommitted lines of credit of $40.0. There are no significant
commitment fees or requirements for compensating balances associated with any lines of credit.



BELLSOUTH TELECOMMUNICATIONS, INC,
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
{Dollars in Millions)

Note E — Debt (Continued)
Long-Term: Long-term debt is summarized as follows at December 31:
Description Interest Rates Maturithes 199 1m
Debentures: 3% - 6W%  1995-2033 $1,270.0 $ 6060

T™W% - 8%  1999-2033 19350 3,335.0
BY% - 10W% 2001-2020 14000 2,376.0

46050 63150

Notes % - % 1998-2008 1,8756.0
Capital leases and other 128.4 73.0
Unamortized discount,
net of premium (61.9) (62.0)
Total Long-Term Debt $6,646.56 $6,336.0

Maturities of long-term debt outstanding at December 31, 1993 are summarized below:
1994 1994 1996 1997 19594 Thereafler Total

Maturities ............. §9.0 $303 $— $75.0 85700 $5,933.1 $6,6174

During 1993 and 1992, BellSouth Telecommunications refinanced certain long-term debt issues
ut more favorable interest rates. As a result of the early extinguishment of these issues, charges of
$86.6, not of taxes of $58.8, and $40.7, net of taxes of $30.0, were recognized as extraordinary losses in

1993 and 1992, respectively.

At December 31, 1993, a shelf registration statement had been filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commissicn by BellSouth Telecommunications under which §725.0 additional amount of
debt securities could be offered.

Note F — Other Liabilities and Deferred Credits
Other liabilities and deferred credits is summarized as follows at December 31:

1993 1591

Restructuring accrual (see NotedJ) .. ...... 000 iivnninnnnns $ 5700 $ —
Accrued pension cost .. ... ... i e s r et 6304 4269

Regulatory liability related to income taxes (see Note L) . ... ...... s -
Componsabion TOIBEBA . . o eis s <o ains o s st o s smn oiaies ois s o s om 27456 20656

Postemployment benefits (see Note H) .. .......... .00 vennn.n 116.6 —
[ T ST o e A ey LT AT T 1153 12086
Total Other Liabilities and Deferred Credits . . .. ............ $1,9947 $763.0

Note G — Transactions with Affillates

BellSouth Telecommunications has a contractual agreement with BellSouth Advertising & Pub-
lishing Corporation (*BAPCO"), an affliated company, wherein BAPCO publishes certain telephone
directories and in return pays BellSouth Telecommunications a publishing rights fee in its franchise
area. For the years ended December 31, 1993, 1992 and 1991, these fees, included in Other operating
revenue, were $616,3, $598.2 and $580.1, respectively.

At December 31, 1993 and 1992, amounts receivable from affiliated companies were $20.2 and
£20.0, respectively. Amounts payable to effiliated companies at December 31, 1993 and 1962, both

short and long-term, were $465.8 and $336.5, respectively.




BELLSOUTH TELECOMMUNICATIONS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(Dollars in Millions)

Note H — Employee Benefils

Pension Plans, Substantially all employees of BellSouth Telecommunications are covered by
noncontributory defined benefit pension plans sponsored by BellSouth. The plan covering non-repre-
sented employees prior to July 1993, provided a benefit based on years of credited service and
employees' average compensation for a specified period. Effective July 1893, BellSouth converted this
plan to a cash balance plan where the pension benefit is determined by a combination of compensa-
tion-based service and additional credits, and individual account-based interest credits. The new cash
balance plan is subject to a minimum benefit determined under the prior plan's formula for employees
retiring through 2005. The December 31, 1993 prajected benefit obligation assumes interest and
additional credits greater than the minimum levels specified in the written plan. The conversion of the
non-represented pension plan had no material impact on 1893 pension cost. The estimated impact on
1994 projected pension cost for BellSouth will be a reduction of $65. Pension benefits provided for
represented employees are based on specified benefit amounts and years of service. Consistent with
past practice, this plan includes the effect of future bargained-for improvements.

BellSouth's funding policy is to make contributions to trust funds with the objective of accumu-
lating sufficient assets to pay all pension benefits for which BellSouth is lisble. Contributions are
actuarially determined using the aggregate cost method, subject to ERIEA and Internal Revenue

Service limitations. Pension plan assets consist primarily of equity securities and fixed income
investments.

Pension cost allocated to BellSouth Telecommunications in 1993, 1992 and 1991 was $113.4,
$155.3 and $133.4, respectively. SFAS No. 87, “Employers’ Accounting for Pensions," requires certain
disclosures to be made with respect to the components of net periodic pension cost for the period and a
reconciliation of the funded status of the plan with amounts reported in the balance sheets. Such
disclosures are not presented because the structure of the BellSouth plans does not permit disaggrega-
tion of relevant plan information on an individual company basis.

The projected benefit obligation for 1993 and 1992 was determined using a discount rate of 7.5%
and 7.75%, respectively, and for both years an expected long-term rate of return on plan assets of 8%
and a long-term assumed weighted average rate of compensation increase of 5.7%. Other economic
related benefit nssumptions, for both the non-represented and the represented plans, have been
changed to reflect both past experience and management'’s best estimate of future benefit increases.
For I;ult:'-uulh. the assumption changes will have the impact of reducing the projected 1994 pension
cost by $20,

In 1991, BellSouth Telecommunications offered an early retirement option to non-represented
employees. Approximately 3,100 employees elected to retire under this option, which allowed the
employee to accept the present value of their pension benefit as a lump-sum payment and Lo receive u
special payment equivalent to 5% of base pay times full years of service (not to exceed 100% of base
pay). The retirement option was accounted for in accordance with SFAS No. 88, "Employers' Account-
ing for Settlements and Curtailments of Defined Benefit Pension Plans and for Termination Bene-
fits."” BellSouth Telecommunications recognized an expense of $68.1 in 1991 related to this option.

Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions, Substantially all non-represented and represented
employces of BellSouth Telecommunications participate in BeliSouth's defined benefit postretirement
health and life insurance plans. Effective January 1, 1993, BellSouth Telecommunications adopted
SFAS No. 106, “Employers’ Accounting for Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions,” to ac-
count for these plans. BellSouth’s transition benefit obligation of $1,486 will be amortized over
15 years, the average remaining service period of active plan participants. The sccounting for the
health care plan does not anticipate future adjustments to the cost-sharing arrangements provided for
in the written plan. As a result of the adoption of SFAS No. 106, net income for 1993 was reduced by
spproximately §16.
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BELLSOUTH TELECOMMUNICATIONS, INC,
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continved)
(Dallars in Millions)

Note H — Employee Benefits (Continued)

As of January 1993, the accumulated postretirement health benefit obligation for non-repre-
sented retirees is being funded over the average remaining service period of currently active non-
represented employees. The accumulated postretirement benefit obligation for pre-January 1, 1990
represented retirees is being funded over a 10-year period while the accumulated postretirement
benefit obligation for all other represented retirees is being funded over the average remaining service
period of currently active represented employees.

Postretirement benefit cost allocated to BellSouth Telecommunications for the iwelve months
ended December 31, 1993 was $243.7. Prior to 1993, BellSouth Telecommunications recognized the
cost of providing postretirement benefits based on funded amounts. The cost of providing health and
life benefits for both active and retired employees was $5624.1 and $507.0 for 1992 and 1991,
respectively.

SFAS No. 106 requires certain disclosures to be made with respect to the components of postre-
tirement benefit cost for the period and a reconciliation of the funded status of the plans with amounts
reported in the balance sheet. Such disclosures are not presented because the structure of the
BellSouth plans does not permit disaggregation of relevant plan information on an individual com-
pany basis.

For measurement purposes, BellSouth used a 11.6% annual rate of increase in the per capita cost
of covered health care benefits for 1994; the rate is assumed to decrease gradually to 5% in 2007 and
remains at that level. The health care cost trend rate assumption significantly affects the amounts
reported, A one-percentage-point increase in the assumed health care cost trend rates for each future
year would increase BellSouth's sccumulated postretirement benefit obligation by $171 and the
estimated aggregate service and interest cost components of the 1993 postretirement benefit cost by
$15. For purposes of valuing the postretirement life insurance obligation, a 5.7% rate of future
increase in compensation at December 31, 1993 was used.

The discount rate used in determining the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation was
7.5%. After a 30% tax reduction for the non-represented employees' trust, the combined expected
long-term rate of return on plan assets used was 8%. The impact of reducing the discount rate from 9%
to 7.5% will increase BellSouth's 1994 postretirement benefit expense by approximately $30.

Most regulatory jurisdictions have accepted BellSouth Telocommunications’ SFAS No. 106 imple-
mentation plan. However, one state's commission is requiring a 20-year amortization of the transition
benefit obligution and in another state there are pending issues, the outcome of which are not
expected to have a material impact on recovery.

Effect of Restructuring on Pensions and Postretirement Benefits. As a result of the restructuring
(see Note J), BellSouth Telecommunications recognized $88 of estimated net curtailment losses
expected to impact BellSouth Telecommunications’ pension and postretirement benefit plans, Of the
pmount recognized, $16 was realized in 1993,

Defined Contribution Plans. BellSouth maintains contributory savings plans whizh cover sub-
stantially all employees of BellSouth Telecommunications. Employees’ eligible contributions are
matched with BellSouth common stock based on defined percentages determined annually by the
Board of Directors. BellSouth Telecommunications' recognized compensation expense of $107.3,
$112.6 and $109.8 in 1993, 1992 and 1991, respectively, related to these plans.

Postemployment Benefits. Effective January 1, 1993, BellSouth Telecommunications adopted
SFAS No. 112, “Employers' Accounting for Postemployment Benefits." SFAS No. 112 requires em-
ployers to accrue the cost of postemployment benefits provided to former or inactive employees after
employment but before retirement, including but not limited to workers' compensation, disability,
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BELLSOUTH TELECOMMUNICATIONS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(Dollars in Millions)

Note H — Employee Benefits (Continued)

and continuation of health care benefits. Previously, BellSouth Telecommunications used the cash
method to account for such costs. A one-time charge related to adoption of SFAS No. 112 was
recognized as a change in accounting principle, effective as of January 1, 1993. The charge was $64.8,
net of a deferred tax benefit of $40.8. The effect of the change on BellSouth Telecommunications' 1993
operating results was not material. Future expense levels are dependent upon actual claim experience,
but are not expected to differ materially from expense recognized under the former accounting
method.

Note | — Leases

BellSouth Telecommunications has entered into operating leases for facilities and equipment
used in operations. Rental expenses under operating leases were $228.6, $258.7 and $224.4 for 1993,
1992 and 1991, respectively. Capital leases currently in effect are not significant.

The following table summarizes the approximate future minimuri rentals under non-cancelable

operating leases in effect at December 31, 1993:
1994 1995 199 1997 1998 Therealier Total

Minimum rentals . . ........ $742 $578 $43.7 8397 $338 $2027 $56419

Note ] — Restructuring Charge

The results of operations for the year ended December 31, 1993 include a $1,136.4 restructuring
charge which reduced net income by $696.6, The restructuring is being undertaken to redesign and
streamline the fundamental processes and work activities in the telecphone operations to betler
respond to an increasingly competitive business environment. The restructuring is expected to im-
prove overall responsiveness to customer needs, permit more rapid introduction of new products and
services and reduce costa,

The material components of the charge relate to the downsizing of the existing workforce by
10,200 employees through 1996. These components include provisions for separation payments and
relocations of remaining employees, consolidation and elimination of certain operations facilities and
for enabling changes to information systems, primarily those used to provide services to existing
customers.

Note K — Additlonal Income Statement Data
199) 1991 1991

Other Income, net:

Interest and dividend income. . .. ... . v ii i ii i £11.9 8694 8107
64,7 gl 1 JPR o A e ey o I O P e 95 6.1 (9.8)
Pobal ool amud et alom s e ke e b b e $214 8755 & 9

Interest and dividend income for 1992 includes $56.6 relating to the settlement of an Internal

Revenue Service summary assessment for the tax years 1879 and 1980,
1990 1991 1991

Interest Expense;

Longtermdebt .........c0vvennununrnnnnnns $500.4 $530.2 $533.9
Noles paybIe: .ol il e rni s il wn s s oo Tumials 354 27.2 486
ORREE i e e s e b e e e s R y 26.8 256.9 673
s, s A e S e L [ = el B 7 WO 0 F §6626  $583.3 36498
Depreciation of telephone plant as a percentage of
average depreciable telephoneplant . .............. 7.51% 767% 7.76%




BELLSOUTH TELECOMMUNICATIONS, INC,
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(Dollars in Millions)

Note K — Additional Income Statement Data (Continued)

Revenues from services provided to American Telephone and Telegraph Company, BellSouth
Telecommunications' largest customer, were approximately 16%, 16% and 17% of consolidated operat-
ing revenues for 1993, 1892 and 1991, respectively.

Note L. — Income Taxes

Effective January 1, 1993, BellSouth Telecommunications adopted SFAS No. 109, *Accounting
for Income Taxes,” which applies a balance sheet approach to income tax accounting. In accordance
with the new standard, the balance sheet reflects the anticipated tax impact of future taxable income
or deductions implicit in the balance sheet in the form of temporary differences. These temporary
differences reflect the difference between the basis in assets and liabilities as measured in the financial
statements and as measured by tax laws using enacted tax rates. The cumulative effect of the adoption
of SFAS No. 109 was not material. As permitted by the new standard, prior years’ financial statements
have not been restated.

In accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 71, **Accounting for the Effects of Certain Types of
Regulation,” BellSouth Telecommunications has, for its regulated operations, only reflected the
balance sheet impact of the adoption of this statement. Specifically, BellSouth Telecommunications
recorded a net regulatory liability of $538.0 coincidental with the reduction of the deferred tax
reserves from higher historical to lower current tax rates. The balance of such liability at Decem-
ber 31, 1993, included in Other Liabilities and Deferred Credits, was $378.9. This regulatory liability
will be adjusted as the related temporary differences reverse.

BellSouth Telecommunications is included in the consolidated Federal income tax return filed by
BellSouth Corporation and its subsidiaries. Consolidated tax expense is allocated among the separate
members of the group in accordance with the applicable sections of the Internal Revenue Code.

Generally, under this method each company calculates its current tax expense as if it filed a
separate return, The sum of the separate company liabilities is compared to the consolidated return
liability. The resulting difference, the benefit of consolidation, is allocated to companies contributing
benefits (operating losses, excess credits and capital losses) in proportion to the amounts contributed.
Each company calculates its deferred tax expense asif it filed a separate return. Deferred taxes are not
allocated among the members of the group.

The provision for income taxes is summarized as follows:

1993 1991 1991
Federal:
Crrent s T e L T e S §9733 §8103 §9089
0T R P S e T e SR s R e D R (5613.2) (7T44) (276.56)
Investment tax credits, net . ... ......c00innvncsas (B8.3) (B7.9) (108.8)
a7L.8 648.0 5236
State:
[T T A e e e e s - |y e Y. 152.1 1342 162.8
Delerrdd, DBL . o oo o e s nin s srn s o n e e wwen m (62.4) 18.6 (20.5)
B9.7 162.8 123.3
Total provision for income taxes . ............. $461.6 SBOOE § 6469
Amortization of investment tax credits . ............. $§ BE3 § BAZ § 1053




BELLSOUTH TELECOMMUNICATIONS, INC,
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Dollars in Millions)

Note 1. — Income Taxes (Continued)

Temporary differences and carryforwards which give rise to deferred tax assets and (liabilities) at
December 31, 1993 are as follows:

Restrocturing Shaf@ o o s «ieo> s sesesrsnsnesnsnensrnssiossssseas & AL95

LT [T ek et b L I e e o L A g R P 2285
Compensated Bbeences . . ........c.co0cnieensnaassssnsssssnssssnnns 79.9
Deferred compensation . . o v v veveeressasrsnrasrasassssnsns Ty 66.8
T TP Wi e R L | A 0 o SR e B L e 64.8
Leveraged employee stock ownershipplan . . ... ... ... .. ... .. 000, 34.0
[0 207" IR il A L 4 v L A ¥ ) i st Py S Ul 56.56
Defarrad Tax AR i s i e e e a e wa et A AR aiy as o pw o n aaale e 850.0
Daprarinthon .7 BT R R B Vi o aia s n hle Sl et s e o lh e s a’e ¢ s b e e a0 WA (3,681.8)
Deferred Tax Liabilities . . . . ... ..o cvveveesiinsicsiesisaseninnns (3,681.8)
Net Deferred Tax Liability . ... ... .co0iiiiniinnnniiduniinanans $(2,631.8)

Of the Net Deferred Tax Liability at December 31, 1993, $§199.6 was current and $(2,831.4) was

noncurrent.

Deferred tax expense for 1992 and 1991 resulting from timing differences in the recognition of
revenue and expense items for tax and financial reporting purposes, were as follows:
1991 1991

Property, plant and equipment . .. ..... ... .0 iy $ (8.4) $(130.2)
b in e v e R e L S i L L T R (61.6) (61.49)
Other iming differences. . . . . ...... ... ciiiiinivianiaeranaa 42 (114.5)

01+ 1 Bt ot I e S B i T S e, e $(65.8) $(306.0)

A reconciliation of the Federal statutory income tax rate to BellSouth Telecommunications’
effective tax rate follows:

1993 1991 1991
Federal statutory tax rate . . . . .. .cv v v vnucncinnsnnss BO0% MHOF HOR
State incomoe taxes, net of Federal income tax benefit .. .... 44% 4.2% 1.8%
Amortization of investment tax credits . .. .............. (6.1%) (3.7%) (5.1%)
Miscellaneous ftems, net. ... . ... nennionrrennsns (L4%) (1.4%) (1.5%)
Elfoctive LaX FOLB . .o v sie v s e nmessssssanes 319% 33.1% 312%

Note M — Supplemental Cash Flow Information
The following supplemental information is presented in accordance with the provisions of SFAS
No. 85, “Statement of Cash Flows':

1993 1992 1991
Cash paid for Interest and Income Taxes:
Ty e G i o R R I T Tl $6159 SOTBE $604.1
T T e e e PR L DA S L $701.7 $059.6 §992.7
Net assets (liabilities) transferred to BellSouth Telecommunications . . w $(473) § (0.8)



BELLSOUTH TELECOMMUNICATIONS, INC,
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(Dallars in Millions)

Note N — Financial Instruments

The following disclosure of the estimated fair value of financial instruments is presented in
accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 107, "“Disclosures about Fuir Value of Financial Instru-
ments.” The estimated fair value amounts have been determined using available market information
doscribod below. Since judgment is required to develop the estimates, the estimated amounts
presented herein may not be indicative of the amounts that BellSouth Telecommunications could

realize in a current market exchange.

1993 1991
Recorded Fair Recorded Falr
Amouni Value Amouni Value
Cash and cash equivalents . .............c000unes $ B43 % B43 $ 1330 § 1330
Marketable Securities. . .. ......c00iiieii e 199.9 218.4 — -_—
Debt Maturing Within One Year . ... ............. 1,0948 1,046 946.9 946.9
Long-Term Debt:
Debontures . - o e et e mhae & e a e e 4,6050 4,707.0 63150 63468
o[ 7 P R LR Ry oyl e 1 e T L e 18750 1,901.0 —_ —_

Cash and Cash Equivalents. At December 31, 1993 and 1992, the recorded amount for Cash and
cash equivalents approximates fair value due to the short-term nature of these instruments.

Marketable Securlties. The fair value of marketable securities (representing BellSouth Common
Stock), included as & component of Investments in and Advances to Affiliates, is based on the quoted
market price at December 31, 1993 (see Note B).

Debt. At December 31, 1993 and 1992, the recorded amount of Debt Maturing Within One Year
approximates the fair value due to the short-term nature of the liabilities. The estimates of fair value
for Debentures and Notes are based on the closing market prices for each issue at December 31, 1993

and 1992, respectively (see Note E).

Bae oo bniina oy




BELLSOUTH TELECOMMUNICATIONS, INC,
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(Dollars in Millions)
Note O — Quarterly Financial Information (Unaudited)

In the following summary of quarterly financial information, all adjustments necessary for a fair
presentation of each period were included. The results for first quarter 1993 were restated to reflect
the one-time, non-cash charge for retroactive adoption of SFAS No. 112.

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarier Quarier Quarter
(Restated)
1993
Operating Revenues . .. ......cocivinnnnnnnasns $3,337.0 $3,321.0 $3.4475 334741
Operating Income (Loss) ........ccc0niiuianian & 7405 8§ 7690 § Bill 3 (361.0)
Income (Loss) Before Extraordinary Loss on Early

Extinguishment of Debt and Cumulative Effect of

Change in Accounting Principle . ............... $ 3879 § 4103 $ 4410 8 (262.8)
Extraordinary Loss on Early Extinguishment of Debt,

T T RO R e s S R ey SRR P — (65.4) (7.8) (23.4)
Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting Principle,

TR e 1 S S B (64.8) - — -
Net Income (Loss) ....... e e ey $ 3231 § 03549 § 4332 § (276.2)
1992
Operating REVENUBS . . . .« .o vvvenosononrsansas $3,268.6 $3,310.3 $3311.1 832921
Oparating Income . . . 2 vaiials s it son a5 s apg §$ B0OB § BIGBE § 6979 § 609.1
Income Before Extraordinary Loss on Early

Extinguishmentof Debt . ........c00civiunnann § 4675 § 44196 § 380.1 § 3255
Extraordinary Loss on Early Extinguishment of Debt,

T el A o SR AL e 1 S s e S . - - (40.7) —_
IO - TEUOOMD . o cainn s wtinn i A L ara e $§ 4675 § 4419 § 3394 § 3255
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND

FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
No change in accountants or disagreements on the adoption of appropriate accounting standards

or financial disclosure have occurred during the periods included in this report.

PART IV

ITEM 14. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES AND REPORTS ON FGRM 8-K

a. Documents filed as a part of the report:

Pagr(s)
(1) Financial Statements:

Report of Independent Accountants . ........ooveuuevnssns 27
Consolidated Statements of Income and Retained Earnings .. .. 28
Consolidated Balance Sheets . . . .......ccvveuinnnnnnnsrae 20
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows , . . . ........... o000 30
Notes to Consclidated Financinl Statements ... ............ 31 - 41

(2) Financial Statement Schedules;
V. — Property, Plant and Equipment ................. 44 - 45
V1. — Accumulated Depreciation . . .. ....vvvvvvanrrrans 46 - 47
VIII. — Allowance for Uncollectibles ............000000s 48
X. — Supplementary Income Statement Information. ... .. 49

Financial statement schedules other than those listed above have been omitted because the

required information is contained in the financial statements and notes thereto or because such
schedules are not required or applicable.

(3) Exhibits: Exhibits identified in parentheses below, on file with the SEC, are incorporated
herein by reference as exhibits hereto.

Exhibit

Number

3a Restated Articles of Incorporation of BellSouth Telecommunications, Inc. (Exhibit 3a to
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1991, File No. 1-1049),

3b Bylaws of BellSouth Telecommunications, Inc. as amended, effective November 22,
1993,

4 No instrument which defines the rights of holders of long and intermediate term debt
of BellSouth Telecommunications is filed herewith pursuant to Regulation S-K, Item
601(b){4)(iii)(A). Pursuant to this regulation, BellSouth Telecommunications, Inc.
hereby agrees to furnish a copy of any such instrument to the SEC upon request.

12 Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges. (Page 15 of this Form 10-K).

24 Powers of Attorney.

b. Reports on Form 8-K:
None.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly
authorized.

BELLSOUTH TELECOMMUNICATIONS, INC.

— /wPatricKH.CASEY
Patrick H. Casey
Vice President and Comptroller
March 28, 1994

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed
below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the date
indicated.

PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER:
F. Duane Ackerman®
President and Chief Executive Officer

PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER

AND PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING OFFICER:

Patrick H. Casey®

Vice President and Comptroller

DIRECTORS:

F. Duane Ackerman® John W Harris*
Irving W, Bailey I1* Mark C. Hollis*
Hobert H. Boh* Harry M. Lightsey, Jr.*
Edward E. Crutchfield, Jr.* Thomas H. Meeker®
Frank R. Day* Joe M. Rodgers*
Jere A. Drummond*® Charles J. Zwick*
Lloyd C. Elam*

*By: /8! PATRICK H. CASEY
Patrick H. Casey
(Individually and as Attorney-In-Fact)
March 28, 1994
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BELLSOUTH TELECOMMUNICATIONS, INC.
SCHEDULE V — PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Year Ended December 31, 1993

{(Dollars In Millions)

COL. A COL. B COL. C COL. D COL. E COL ¥
Balance ai Additlons Other Halance ai

of af Cont Retirements Changes End of

Classlfication in) (1] Prriod
Land & Land Improvements. . ...... $§ 1663 & 10 & (02) % 05 § 1576
Buildings and Building Improvements . 24768 52.3 (10.4) B256 2,600.2
Leasehold Improvements .......... B0.2 44 (1.9) (0.1) 826
Operating & Other Equipment . .. ... 777.6 89.0 (56.7) 16.3 B25.1
Furniture and Fixtures. ........... 1,996.7 211.6 (175.3) 76.9 2,1099
Central Office Equipment . ... ...... 13,893.9 258.9 (B20.6) 1,336.4 14,688.0
Outside Plant. . . ......ccceveeuun 17,813.6 643.6(d) (222.3) 3609  18,605.7
Station Equipment . . . ...... ... 00 612.6 63.8 (51.3) 59 631.0
Capital Leases . . ................ 62.2 3.7 (10.6) 0.3 55.6
Construction in Progress .......... 440.1  1,732.0(e) 00 (1,816.7) 356.4
Other Plant . . . .......civhiins 15.6 0.0 0.0 4.9 204

Total Property, Plant and
Equipment. . ....oovieniaens $38,324.3 $3,059.7 $(1,3490.3) 8§ 668 $40,101.5
Year Ended December 31, 1992
(Dollars In Millions)

COL. A COL. B COL. C COL. D COL. E COL. F
It-' sl Cost Retiremeni hm End ll'.l

N u Classifcation "ﬁﬂ' in} W Period
Land & Land Improvements. . ...... $ 1541 % 1.1 &% 00 § 1.1 § 1563
Buildings and Building Improvements . 2,3855 24.4 (9.1) 75.0 24758
Leasehold Improvements .......... 78.9 (0.4) (2.0) a.1 80.2
Operating & Other Equipment . ... .. 7177 73.2 (32.4) 19.0 7715
Furniture and Fixtures. . .......... 1,958.0 178.2 (250.9) 1114 1,896.7
Central Office Equipment ., ......... 13,182.3 166.9 (665.8) 1,100.6 13,893 9
Outside Plant. . .. ..........c.... 17,050.8 653.0(d) (194.8) 304.5 17,813.5
Station Equipment .. ............. 1,267.2 46.4 {708.9) 5.9 612.6
Copital Leases . ........c0c000.., 704 38 (1L.9) (0.1) 62.2
Construction in Progress .......... 2646 1,753.7(e) 0.0 (1,678.2) 440.1
Other Plant . .. ..ovvvieniannvnns 255 24.7 (0.3) (34.4) 15.56

Total Pmmr Plﬂnt- lnd

Equipment.....o000vansesss $37,155.0 $2027.0 §(1,766.1) % B4 §38,324.3

The notes on Page 46 are an integral part of this Schedule.




BELLSOUTH TELECOMMUNICATIONS, INC.

SCHEDULE V — PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Year Ended December 31, 1991
(Dollars In Millions)

COL. A COL. B COL. C COL. D COL. E COL.F
.:l‘ at Cost Retiremenis End tl'"

Classification "'-‘..11' (a) (b) thft.in Perlod
Land & Land Improvements......... $ 1621 § 08 $ 00 $ 12 § 1541
Buildings and Building Improvements . 2,3156.1 269 (8.9) 534 2,385.5
Leasehold Improvements ,.......... 656.9 0.9 (L7 228 78.9
Operating & Other Equipment . . ... .. 539.2 B6.6 (34.7) 126.7 717.7
Furniture and Fixtures ............ 1,770.4 143.3 (214.9) 259.2 1,958.0
Central Office Equipment........... 12.467.9 201.7 (7886) 1,311.2 13,1823
Outside Plant ...........cueavins 16,340.8 674.2(d) (2405) 2763 17,050.8
Station Equipment. . ......vivinnan 1,399.1 52.0 (189.1) 5.2 1,267.2
Capital Leases ... ... .il0. icniiana 59.9 227 (65.0) 428 T0.4
Construction in Progress ........... 3043 1,682.0(e) 0.7 (1,8124) 264.6
Other Plant ;. oy b el dlee e o s s s 286.6 0.3 0.4) (2861.0) 2556

Total Property, Plant and
Equipment .. .....eesseasine $35,782.3 $2,890.3 $(1,643.1) § 255 §37,155.0
NOTES TO SCHEDULE V

(a) Additions shown include: (1) the original cost (estimated if not known) of reused material, which
is concurrently credited to material and supplies, and (2) interest charged construction,

{b} Items of telephone plant when retired or sold are deducted from the property accounts at the
amounts at which they are included therein, estimated if not known.

(¢} Amounts in COL. E. — Othor Changes for the year ended December 31, 1991 represent primarily
the reclassification of beginning balances of property, plant and equipment for all BellSouth
Telecommunications, Inc, companies other than South Central Bell and Southern Bell to conform

to current year presentation.

{d} The material components of additions to Outside Plant are acrial, underground and buried eable,

and conduit systems.

(e} The material components of Construction in Progress are Central Office Equipment, Outside

Plant and Data Processing Equipment.
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BELLSOUTH TELECOMMUNICATIONS, INC.
SCHEDULE VI — ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

Year Ended December 31, 1993
{Dallars In Milllons)

COL. A COL. B CoL.C COL. D COL. E COL. F
Additlons
Halance u‘ Charged to Oiber Hmu
Classification ""1-’::"# (s - Prriod
Buildings and Building Improvements .. § 6108 § 507 § (201) §61 § 6475
Leasehold Improvements . ........... 442 74 (1.2) (0.2) 50.2
Operating & Other Equipment . . . ... .. 3284 57.2 (522) (0.7 3327
Furniture and Fixtures . ............ 941.8 205.1 (151.1) 1.2 1,087.0
Central Office Equipment. . .......... 62049 1,366.2(d) (737.5) (04) 5,832.2
Outside Plant .........¢ccciueuecnn 74808 1,0186(e) (248.1) (0.6) 8,150.6
Station Equipment. . . ........00uunn 349.1 46.7 (403) 02 365.7
Capital Leases . . . . ..ooonvevnreenns 286 11.6 (106 02 298
Depreciation Reserve Imbalance (c) . . . 1238 476 0.0 0.0 171.4
Total Accumulated Depreciation. . .. $150124 $2800.0 $(1,261.1) m ﬂ_ﬁ;_l_ﬁ'f_l_
Year Ended December 31, 1992
(Dollars In Milllons)
COL. A COL. B COL. C COL. D COL. E COL. F
Addltons
Balance a1 Charged 1o - Other m!ll;ﬂ“ll
Classification .m n) Period
Buildings and Building Improvements .. § 5606 § 502 $ (90 8 00 & 6108
Leasehold Improvements .. .......... 423 4.7 (200 (0.8) 44.2
Operating & Other Equipment . . . ... .. 304.0 53.0 (32.5) 3.9 328.4
Furniture and Fixtures . ............ B56.0 3348 (250.7) 1.7 9418
Central Office Equipment. ........... 44060 13549(d) (5558) (0.2) 5,204.9
Outside Plant .. .....0ccveiiieann 6,730.8 B35.7(e) (194.8) 0.1 7,380.8
Station Equipment. ....... .00 933.2 124.7 (708.9) 0.1 340.1
Capital Leases . .. ......cvcvicnennn 259 14.7 (1.9 (0.1) 28.6
Depreciation Reserve Imbalance (c) .. .. 36.5 B7.2 0.0 0.1 1208
Total Accumulated Depreciation. . .. $13,013.3 $1,850.9 £(1,7666) &8 48 $150124

The notes on Page 47 are an integral part of this Schedule.
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BELLSOUTH TELECOMMUNICATIONS, INC.
SCHEDULE V1 — ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

Year Ended December 31, 1991
(Dollars In Milllons)
COL. A COL. B COL C COL. D COL. E COL. ¥
Additons
Balance lldr Charged 1o Other * .‘ll!.::n; al
Classification w a) (b) Period
Buildings and Building Improvements .. § 6283 § 624 § (11.9) 8 08 § 05606
Leasehold Improvements ........... 30.7 B.2 (2.3) 6.7 423
Operating & Other Equipment . ... ... 2054 62.8 { 30.5) 66.3 304.0
Furniture and Fixtures . .. .......... 696, 1 265.7 (1565.0) 49.2 B56.0
Central Office Equipment .. ......... 4,0325 1,158.4(d) (784.5) (0.4) 4,4086.0
Outside Plant . ... ....ccovvnuunan 6,149.8 B57.8(e) (267.5) (0.3) 6,739.8
Station Equipment . . .......000 00 1,039.2 68.8 (176.0) 12 933.2
Copital Leases ........c00000ienns 31.6 17.8 (69.5) 36.0 259
Depreciation Reserve Imbalance (c). . . . (289.2) 273.1 0.0 62.6 36.5
OtherPlant . ... .. o0nnanrsannans 128.7 0.0 00 (128.7) 0.0

Total Accumulated Depreciation . .. $12,643.1 $2,765.0 i[l,ﬂ_l._ﬂ.} $§ 924 $139133

NOTES TO SCHEDULE V1

(a) Depreciation as stated in the statements of income includes certain minor amounts which are not
credited to this account.

(o) Amounts in Col, E — Other Changes for the year ended December 31, 1991 represent primarily
the reclassification of beginning balances of accumulated deprecistion of all BellSouih
Telecommunications, Inc. companies other than South Central Bell and Southern Bell to conform
to current year presentation.

(¢) Classification authorized by the FCC and state regulatory commissions to improve capital
recovery.

(d) The material components of additions to Central Office Equipment are analog switching
equipment, digital electronic switching equipment and circuit equipment.

(¢} The material components of additions to Outside Plant are serial, underground and buried cable,
and conduit systems.
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BELLSOUTH TELECOMMUNICATIONS, INC.
SCHEDULE VIIl — VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

Allowance for Uncollectibles
{Dollars In Millions)
COL. A COL. B COL. C CoL. D COL E
Additlons

.:t Charged 1o “B'.ﬂ 3 End al'u

Description Exprusein) sccountsib) Deductionsic) Period

Year Ended December 31,

[ L T i S o o s $87.2 105.9 121.8 230.3 3846
L e . L o A £85.0 1222 147.8 267.8 $87.2
j ) i T B o gt £79. 139.8 141.7 276.1 $85.0

{a) Provision for uncollectibles as stated in the statements of income includes certain minor uncol-
lectible items which are written off directly and not credited to the allowance account.

{b) Amounts include increases to this account for anticipated uncollectibles related to purchased
receivables and for recoveries of amounts previously written off,

ic) Amounts written off as uncollectible.




BELLSOUTH TELECOMMUNICATIONS, INC.
SCHEDULE X — SUPPLEMENTARY INCOME STATEMENT INFORMATION

For the Three Years Ended December 31, 1993
{(Dollars In Millions)

Column A Ce'umn B
Tem Charged to Cosls or Expenies
1993 1991 1991

IIRINEBIAIOG a:u o s s o aa w4 s et g min e e o e m $25103 §25104 $2349.7
Taxes, Other Than Income and Payroll-related

Property ... ceocecasnnssaasasassesesrsssansassssos $ 4139 § 4002 § 399.1

Grossreceipls. .. ...covvnvsvavenns SRR AT A et ! 1574 145.8 137.7

0307 o AR e 52 e R e A A e 23.4 24.7 249

Total Taxes, Other Than Income and Payroll-related. . ... .. $ 5947 8 5707 % 6617
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Attachment

Title of each class

DEBENTURES

lssues denominated as South Central Bell Telephone Company Debentures

$85,000,000
$100,000,000
£200,000,000
$100,000,000
$200,000,000
$250,000,000
$210,000,000
$250,000,000
§250,000,000
$300,000,000

Principal Amount of Thirty-One Year 614% Debentures, due 1999
Principal Amount of Thirty-Six Year 7%% Debentures, due 2007
Principal Amount of Thirty-Five Year 9.20% Debentures, due 2010
Principal Amount of Forty Year 7%% Debentures, due 2012
Principal Amount of Forty Year 8Vi% Debentures, due 2013
Principal Amount of Thirty-Eight Year 8%% Debentures, due 2015
Principal Amount of Forty Year BY% Debentures, due 2017
Principal Amount of Forty Year %% Debentures, due 2019
Principal Amount of Forty Year 10%% Debentures, due 2025
Principal Amount of Forty Year 8¥%% Debentures, due 2029

Issucs denominated as Southern Bell Telephone and Telegraph Company Debentures

£30,000,000

£75,000,000

£70,000,000

75,000,000

£70,000,000
£100,000,000
£100,000,000
£100,000,000
£150,000,000
£350,000,000
£300,000,000
$450,000,000
£275,000,000
£150,000,000
$300,000,000
£500,000,000
£300,000,000

Principal Amount of Forty Year 3%% Debentures, due 1935
Principal Amount of Thirty-Seven Year 5% Debentures, due 1997
Principal Amount of Thirty-Seven Year 4%% Debentures, due 1998
Principal Amount of Thirty-Nine Year 4%% Debentures, due 2001
Principal Amount of Forty Year 4%% Debentures, due 2003
Principal Amount of Thirty-Five Year 4%% Debentures, due 2000
Principal Amount of Thirty-Eight Year 6% Debentures, due 2004
Principal Amount of Thirty-Seven Year 7.60% Debentures, due 2008
Principal Amount of Thirty-Eight Year 7% Debentures, due 2010
Principal Amount of Forty Year 7%% Debentures, due 2013
Principal Amount of Forty Year 8% Debentures, due 2014
Principal Amount of Forty Year 8%4% Debentures, due 2016
Principal Amount of Forty Year 8%% Debentures, due 2017
Principal Amount of Forty Year 8%% Debentures, due 2018
Principal Amount of Thirty-Eight Year 8%% Debentures, due 2024
Principal Amount of Forty Year 8%% Debentures, due 2026
Principal Amount of Forty Year 84%% Debentures, due 2029

BellSouth Telecommunications, Ine.

$250,000,000
$300,000,000

NOTES

Principal Amount of Forty Year BYi% Debentures, due 2032
Principal Amount of Forty Year 7%% Debentures, due 2032

BellSouth Telecommunications, Inc.

276,000,000
£150,000,000

Principal Amount of Seven Year 6%% Notes, Due February 1, 2000
Principal Amount of Twelve Year 7% Notes, Due February 1, 2005
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PART 1
ITEM 1. BUSINESS
GENERAL

BellSouth Telecommunications, Inc. (*'BellSouth Telecommunications'), a corporation wholly-
owned by BellSouth Corporation (*'BellSouth"), is the surviving corporation from the merger, effec-
tive at midnight December 31, 1991 of South Central Bell Telephone Company (**South Central Bell")
and Southern Bell Telephone and Telegraph Company (“Southern Bell"'). BellSouth Telecommunica-
tions provides predominantly tariffed wireline telecommunications services to approximately 87% of
the population and 48% of the territory within Alabama, Florida, Georgia, Kentucky, Louisiana,
Mississippi, North Carolina, South Carolina and Tennessee, These areas were previously served by
South Central Bell and Southern Bell. BellSouth Telecommunications continues to use the names
South Central Bell and Southern Bell for various purposes.

South Central Bell was incorporated in 1967 under the laws of the State of Delaware and
Southern Bell was incorporated in 1879 under the laws of the State of New York. On December 31,
1983, pursuant to a consent decree approved by the United States District Court for the District of
Columbia (the “D. C. District Court”) entitled *‘Modification of Final Judgment" (the “MFJ"') settling
antitrust litigation brought by the United States Department of Justice (the *'Justice Department”’)
in 1974, American Telephone and Telegraph Company (“AT&T") transferred to BellSouth its 100%
ownership of South Central Bell and Southern Bell. On the same date, South Central Bell and
Southern Bell were reincorporated through mergers into Georgia corporations. Effective January 1,
1984, ownership of BellSouth was divested from AT&T and BellSouth became a publicly traded
company.

BellSouth Telecommunications has its principal executive offices at 6756 West Peachtree Street,
NE., Atlanta, Georgia 30375 (telephone number 404 529-B611).

MODIFICATION OF FINAL JUDGMENT

Pursuant to the MFJ, AT&T divested the 22 wholly-owned operating telephone companies (the
**Operating Telephone Companies"), including South Central Bell and Southern Bell, that were
included in the former Bell System, The ownership of such 22 Operating Telephone Companies was
transferred by AT&T to seven holding companies (the "Holding Companies"), including BellSouth.
All territory in the continental United States served by the Operating Telephone Companies was
divided into geographical areas termed * Local Access and Transport Areas’ (“LATAs"). These LATAs
are generally centered on a city or other identifiable community of interest.

The MFJ limits the telecommunications-related scope of the Operating Telephone Companies”*
post-divestiture business activities, and the D. C. District Court retained jurisdiction over its construc-
tion, implementation, modification and enforcement. Under the MFJ, the Operating Telephone Com-
panies may provide local exchange, exchange access, information access and toll telecommunications
services within the LATAs. Although prohibited from providing service between LATAs, the Operat-
ing Telephone Companies provide exchange access services that link a subscriber’s telephone or other
equipment in one of their LATAs to the transmission facilities of carriers (the “Interexchange Carri-
ers'"), which provide toll telecommunications services between different LATAs. The Operating Tele-
phene Companies may market, but not manufacture, customer premises equipment ('CPE"), which”
is defined in the MFJ as equipment used on customers’ premises to originate, route or terminate
telecommunications. A similar restriction applies to the manufacture or provision of “telecommunica-
tions equipment,” which is defined in the MFJ as including equipment used by carriers to provide
telecommunications services. The MFJ restriction precluding the Holding Companies from providing
information services was lifted by the D. C. District Court during 1991 but the decision has been

* The provisions of the MFJ are Bpp]lﬂh]ﬂ to the Hﬂ]l‘.tll'l.g Compnmu




Access Lines

Siates 1991 1992 1991 1990 isay
e T e
AT ST T O T S b MR I L o il ey o 1.6 30 2B 35 20
5P T Y N 4 g, - A B CCE R RO . i 4.9 34 33 37 b3
GOOFRIR" |\ oecvvia-ain e n iinisis Lot N L e e L 3.1 47 42 34 4.0
LT T R N L o AR P PR N 1.0 30 31 18 20
LOULBRIIR | i orv o o-00v s 0 L b n rwie ke i wi e o acn e e 1.9 24 19 27 11
PTRRERRIIIN < civs om0 e T AT i s T o e T e 1.0 24 28 29 19
NOPEE CarOlIRm . oo v vnciinn s a s s arai o e s 1.8 37 36 27 456
BOULE CArOlIRN & oo 6 vesraieis iaae i ibie s o alie e e i 1.2 29 28 35 44
gL e L LS s O S N 2.2 a5 32 a6 15

Total Linea/Increase . .. ... covcv e vnnrnnrnrnnes lﬂ_’.: E ':1_'5 g_ﬁ 1.:

Approximately 556% of such lines were in 49 metropolitan areas, each having o population of
125,000 or more, and about 28% were in other metropolitan areas having populations in excess of
25,000 but less than 125,000. Many localities and some sizable areas in the states in which BellSouth
Telecommunications operates are served by non-affiliated telephone companies, which had approxi-
mately 28% of the network access lines in such states on December 31, 1992, BellSouth Telecommuni-
cations does not furnish local exchange, access or toll services in the areas served by such companies.

The following table reflects access minutes of use and toll message volume for the last five years.

1991 1991 1990 1989 1988
(Milaus)
Access Minutes of Use:®
INCEESLBED .\ o u uvei e it nin wn it a6 50,5464 4725563 44,9033 414157 374220
g 1T LT Lt Ty A P 13,9942 13,237.7 12,1196 11,271.6 10,349.1
Toll Messages® .. ........¢000ivvvnucns 1,28056 13900 14596 14630 13778

The number of intralLATA toll messages carried by BellSouth Telecommunications has declined,
primarily because of the effect of expanded local calling area plans and competition by others for the
provision of toll services. Toll message volumes are expected to decline further upon implementation
of additional intraLATA toll competition being authorized in many of the states served by BellSouth
Telecommunications. (See *'Competition" and "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Results of
Operations and Financlal Condition — Operating Environment and Trends of the Business —
Volumes of Business'').

Local And Toll Services

Charges for local services for the years ended December 31, 1992, 1991 and 1990 accounted for
approximately 47%, 46% and 45%, respectively, of BellSouth Telecommunications' operating reve-
nues. Local services operations provide lines from telephone exchange offices to subscribers’ premises
for the origination and termination of telecommunications including the following: basic local tele-
phone service provided through the regular switching network; dedicated private line facilities for
voice and special services, such as transport of data, radio and video, and foreign exchange services;
switching services for customers’ internal communications through facilities owned by BellSouth
Telecommunications; services for data transport that include managing and configuring special ser-
vice networks; and dedicated low or high capacity public or private digital networks. Other local
services revenue is derived from intercept and directory assistance, coin telephones and various
special and custom calling services.

* Prior period operating data is often revised at later dates to reflect the most current information.
The above information reflects the latest dats availoble for Access Minutes of Use and Toll Messages
for the periods indicated.




PART 1
ITEM 1. BUSINESS

GENERAL

BellSouth Telecommunications, Inc. (“BellSouth Telecommunications"), a corporation wholly-
owned by BellSouth Corporation (**BellSouth”), is the surviving corporation from the merger, effec-
tive at midnight December 31, 1891 of South Central Bell Telephone Company (“*South Central Bell"™)
and Southern Bell Telephone and Telegraph Company (“Southern Bell”). BellSouth Telecommunica-
tions provides predominantly tariffed wireline telecommunications services to approximately 67% of
the population and 48% of the territory within Alabama, Florida, Georgia, Kentucky, Louisiana,
Mississippi, North Carolina, South Carclina and Tennessee. These areas were previously served by
South Central Bell and Southern Bell. BellSouth Telecommunications continues to use the names
South Central Bell and Southern Bell for various purposes.

South Central Bell was incorporated in 1967 under the laws of the State of Delaware and
Southern Bell was incorporated in 1879 under the laws of the State of New York. On December 31,
1983, pursuant to a consent decree approved by the United States District Court for the District of
Columbia (the ““D. C. District Court'") entitled *'Modification of Final Judgment'' (the *MFJ"') settling
antitrust litigation brought by the United States Department of Justice (the “'Justice Department'’)
in 1974, American Telephone and Telegraph Company (“AT&T") transferred to BellSouth its 100%
ownership of South Central Bell and Southern Bell. On the same date, South Central Bell and
Southern Bell were reincorporated through mergers into Georgia corporations. Effective January 1,
1984, ownership of BellSouth was divested from AT&T and BellSouth became a publicly traded
company.

BellSouth Telecommunications has its principal executive offices at 675 West Peachtree Street,
N.E., Atlunta, Georgin 30375 (telephone number 404 529-8611).

MODIFICATION OF FINAL JUDGMENT

Pursuant to the MFJ, AT&T divested the 22 wholly-owned operating telephone companies (the
“Operating Telephone Companies™), including South Central Bell and Southern Bell, that were
included in the former Bell System. The ownership of such 22 Operating Telephone Companies was
transferred by AT&T to seven holding companies (the ““Holding Companies”), including BellSouth.
All territory in the continental United States served by the Operating Telephone Companies was
divided into geographical areas termed *“Local Access and Transport Areas” (“LATAs"). These LATAs
are generally centered on a city or other identifiable community of interest.

The MFJ limits the telecommunications-related scope of the Operating Telephone Companies'
post-divestiture business activities, and the D. C. District Court retained jurisdiction over its construc-
tion, implementation, modification and enforcement. Under the MFJ, the Operating Telephone Com-
panies may provide local exchange, exchange access, information access and toll telecommunications
services within the LATAs, Although prohibited from providing service between LATAs, the Operat-
ing Telephone Companies provide exchange access services that link a subscriber's telephone or other
equipment in one of their LATAs to the transmission facilities of carriers (the “Interexchange Carri-
ers”), which provide toll telecommunications services between different LATAs. The Operating Tele-
phone Companies may market, but not manufacture, customer premises equipment ("CPE"), which
is defined in the MFJ as equipment used on customers' premises to originate, route or terminate
telecommunications. A similar restriction applies to the manufacture or provision of ““telecommunica-
tions equipment,” which is defined in the MFJ as including equipment used by carriers to provide
telecommunications services. The MFJ restriction precluding the Holding Companies from providing
information services was lifted by the D, C. District Court during 1091 but the decision has been

* The provisions of the MFJ are applicable to the Holding Companies.




appealed to the United States Court of Appeals for the District of Columbia Circuit (the *“D. C. Circuit
Court"). A general line of business restriction prohibiting the Holding Companies from providing non-
telecommunications-related products and services was removed in 1987.

The MFJ requires the Operating Telephone Comnanies to provide, upon a bona fide request by
any Interexchange Carrier or information service provider, exchange access, information access and
exchange services for such access that will be equal to that provided to AT&T in quality, type and
price. BellSouth Telecommunications believes it is in compliance with this requirement

BUSINESS OPERATIONS

Approximately 86% of BellSouth Telecommunications' operating revenues for the years ended
December 31, 1992, 1891 and 1900, respectively, were from wireline telecommunications services and
the remainder of revenues was principally from directory publishing fees, billing and collection
services, CPE sales and rental of facilities.

BellSouth Business Systems, Inc. (“BellSouth Business Systems"), a subsidiary of BellSouth
Telecommunications, was created during 1991 for the purpose of serving primarily the needs of
business customers. The principal companies that comprise BellSouth Business Systems are Bell-
South Communications, Inc., BellSouth Communication Systems, Inc. and Datasery, Inc. Respec-
tively, these companies provide sales support within traditional telephone operating company service
urcas; sell, install and maintain CPE; and maintain and provide parts and integration services for
computer and data processing equipment. BellSouth Business Systems provides service to locations
throughout and beyond BellSouth Telecommunications’ nine-state region.

In the nggregate, access revenues, revenues from billing and collection activities and rental of
fucilities comprised approximately 30%, 31% and 32% of 1992, 1991 and 1990 operating revenues,
respectively. The majority of revenues was from services provided to AT&T, BellSouth Telecommuni-
cations' largest customer.

Telephone Company Operations
BellSouth Telecommunications provides services, which include local exchange, exchange access
and intralLATA toll services, within each of the 38 LATAs in its combined nine-state operating area.
{See "Local and Toll Services and "'Access Services”). The tables below set forth the following:
network access lines in service at December 31 for the last five years; access lines in each state at
December 31, 1992; and the annual percentage increase in access lines in each state at December 31
for the last four years.
1991 1991 1990 1589 1948

(Millioas)
Network Access
Lines In Service:
Bl eritn o s s i i e T T e 133 129 126 123 120
Bl o i T e T e T e e e e e e 51 49 456 44 42
O s T o T S A _ 3 3 3 | 2
TROERL ootvet st s s e amh T AT e e N e R B AR T e 18,7 181 175 170 164




Access Lines Increass
States Tz 1w2 1991 19%0 1w
R T ik
BIBBBIR 2. o ivovv vt ipatin 4T e S et e b a6 e e et g 1.6 40 28 35 20
FIOCTAR & i vowcvciss i aiea ol i i e ek ra il i faa e e e i m aahg a 4.9 34 33 3T &3
Ly A i 1 L1 T e 3.1 47 42 34 40
BCERILUCKY: o v oot w0 at o a0 e T i 1.0 30 31 18 20
TPRIRIRTUN oo i T S T B e i Tt A e AT S s T 1.9 24 19 27 11
L L R e 1.0 24 28 289 19
North Carollnm c o v oy o im0 w5 ie i s v e e e 1.8 37 30 27 45
Botth CArOMIRR . . o i s nincetasn o aate e o e e b 1.2 29 28 35 44
TORIOEREON i e n a5 T e R o B hat T P ot e el 22 a5 32 35 15
Total Lines/InCrease . . . oo oo vw v v onnsssss 18.7 E lE 9..% E.'_"

Approximately 66% of such lines were in 49 metropolitan areas, each having a population of
125,000 or more, and about 28% were in other metropolitan areas having populations in excess of
25,000 but less than 125,000. Many localities and some sizable areas in the states in which BellSouth
Telecommunications operates are served by non-affiliated telephone companies, which had approxi-
mately 20% of the network access lines in such states on December 31, 1992. BellSouth Telecommuni-
cations does not furnish local exchange, access or toll services in the areas served by such companies.

The following table reflects access minutes of use and toll message volume for the last five years.

[ £ H 1991 1990 1989 1988
Mileas)
Access Minutes of Use:*
Interstate ... ... oo e yinsvain. 50,6464 47,2663 449033 414157 974220
Intrastale ;. oy S e e e e e e b 139942 13,237.7 12,1195 11,2716 10,3491
Toll Messages® . .. ...........00uiuinn 1,280.56 1,390.0 14596 14630 13779

The number of intraLATA toll messages carried by BellSouth Telecommunications has declined,
primarily because of the effect of expanded local calling area plans and competition by others for the
provision of toll services. Toll message volumes are expected to decline further upon implementation
of additional intraLATA toll competition being authorized in many of the states served by BellSouth
Telecommunications, (See *'Competition” and “Muanugement's Discussion and Analysis of Results of
Operations and Financial Condition — Operating Environment and Trends of the Business —
Volumes of Business").

Local And Toll Services

Charges for local services for the years ended December 31, 1992, 1991 and 1990 nccounted for
approximately 47%, 46% and 45%, respectively, of BellSouth Telecommunications' operating reve-
nues. Local services operations provide lines from telephone exchange offices to subseribers’ premises
for the origination and termination of telecommunications including the following: basic local tele-
phone service provided through the regular switching network; dedicated private line facilities for
voice and special services, such as transport of data, radio and video, and foreign exchange services;
switching services for customers’ internal communications through fucilities owned by BellSouth
Telecommunications; services for data transport that include managing and configuring special ser-
vice networks; and dedicated low or high capacity public or private digital networks. Other local
services revenue is derived from intercept and directory assistance, coin telephones and various
special and custom calling services,

* Prior period operating data is often revised at later dates to reflect the most current information.
The ubove information reflects the latest data available for Access Minutes of Use and Toll Messages
for the periods indicated.




BellSouth Telecommunications has the ability to offer certain enhanced services through its
network. Such offerings include various forms of data and voice transmission, voice messaging and
storage services und gateway communications between customers and information services providers.
The extent to which these offerings can be profitably provided will depend on the degree of market
ancceptance and the resolution of various issues still pending before the Federal Communications
Commission (the “FCC") regarding each company’s offering of both enhanced and basic network
services on an integrated basis. (See **Access Services"').

BellSouth Telecommunications provides intraLATA toll services within, but not between, its 38
LATAs. Such toll services provided approximately 10%, 11% and 12% of BellSouth Telecommunica-
tions’ operating revenues for the years ended December 31, 1982, 1991 and 1880, respectively. These
services include the following: intraLLATA service beyond the local calling area; Wide Area Telecom-
munications Service (""WATS' or *“B00" services) for customers with highly concentrated demand;
and special services, such as transport of data, radio and video.

BellSouth Telecommunications is subject to state regulatory authorities in each state in which it
provides telecommunications services with respect to intrastate rates, services und other issues.

Truditionully, BellSouth Telecommunications’ rates were set in each stute in ita service arcas at
levels which were anticipated to generate revenues sufficient to cover its allowed expenses and to
provide an opportunity to earn a stated return on its capital investment. BellScuth Telecommunica-
tions' primuary regulatory focus is directed towards efforts to ensure that the regulatory processes
more realistically reflect the increasingly competitive telecommunications environment. Modified
forms of regulation have been approved in Alabama, Florida, Georgin, Kentucky, Louisiana, Missis-
sippi, South Carolina and Tennessee,

Under a typical form of alternative regulation, economic incentives are provided to lower costs
and increase productivity through the potential availability of “‘shared” earnings over a benchmark
rate of return. Generally, when levels above targeted returns are reached, earnings are “'shared’ by
providing refunds or rute reductions to customers. The amounts of any such excess which may be
retained under some plans depend upon attaining mandated service standards, certain productivity
improvement provisions or both. Under some plans, if earnings fall below a targeted minimum,
additional earnings required to return to the bottom of the allowed range can be obtained through
rate increases. Sharing plans are generally subject to renewal after two or three years, and may be
subject to modification prior to renewal.

Despite the potential advantages offered by sharing plans, substantial rate reductions huve been
incurred in connection with their adoption and operation. Of the states in which these types of plans
were in place throughout 1992, BellSouth Telecommunications achieved sharing levels above the
targeted rates of return at times during the year in Alabama, Kentucky, Louisians, Mississippi and
South Carolinu.

Alabama. A plan, adopted by the Alabama Public Service Commission has been in effect in
Alabama since December 1988, The plan provides for a return on average capital® in the range of
11.65% to 12.30%. If earnings exceed 12.30%, sharing with customers may range from 0% to 50%,
depending upon whether certain service and efficiency requirements are met. In November 1990, the
Alsbama Commission extended the plan through 1993 without additional rate reduction. Effective
April 1992, and January 1993, BellSouth Telecommunications achieved a rate of return that required
rute reductions of $7.3 million and $8.4 million, respectively.

Florida.  In October 1988, the Florida Public Service Commission approved a plan providing for
a return on equity* of 11.6% to 16%. Earnings from 14% to 16% would be shared 40% by BellSouth
Telecommunications and 60% by customers. BellSouth Telecommunications' return on equity may
not exceed 16% ufter sharing. In December 1990, the Florida Commission approved an extension of

* As defined in the plan for this state.




the Florida plan without significant modification or further rate reductions. Also, pursuant to the
plan, the Florida Commission ordered a credit to customers in the amount of $3.74 million per month
beginning in 1992 until it makes a decision on the permanent disposition of 1992 revenues.

In mid-1992, BellSouth Telecommunications filed a proposed price regulation plan, which would
replace the previous plan. The proposed plan places a ceiling on aggregale prices by limiting price
changes to a formula which allows aggregate prices Lo increase or decrease by a percentage determined
by an inflation factor, a productivity factor and adjustments related to exogenous changes. In addition,
the proposed plan includes a sharing ratio of 50/560 above 14% return on equity® and initial annual rate
reductions of approximately $36 million. Hearings to consider BellSouth Telecommurications’ pro-
posed earnings should result in a decision in mid-1993. The Florida Commission is also investigating
certain trouble reporting and sales practices from 1985 to 1092. The outcome, if unfavorable, might
adversely affect proceedings before the Florida Commission.

Georgia. In December 1990, the Georgin Public SBervice Commission ordered BellSouth Tele-
communications to reduce rates by $148 million annually, approved institution of county-wide calling
and agreed to a three year plan. The plan provides that BellSouth Telecommunications may retain all
earnings up to a 14% return on equity®. Subject to the attainment of service standards and productiv-
ity improvement provisions, BellSouth Telecommunications may retain a portion of earnings between
14% and 16%. The plan also provides for a reduction of rates if earnings exceed 14% return on equity,
even if the service standards and productivity improvement provisions are met. The amount of any
sharing and rate adjustments would depend upon attaining certain service standards and productivity

improvements.

Kentucky. In April 1891, the Kentucky Public Service Commission veted to modify and extend
the 1988 sharing plan through May 1864 with a mid-plan cost of capital review, which is currently
pending. Under the modified plan, BellSouth Telecommunications may earn a return on average total
capital® in the range 10.99% to 11.61%. Earnings above 11.61% are subject to sharing. If the return on
average totul capital falls below 10.99%, 650% of the shortfall may be recovered from customers, and if
the return falls below 9.49%, 75% of the shortfall may be recovered. BellSouth Telecommunications
achieved the sharing level during 1992 and reduced rates in the amounts of $8.1 million in June and
£4.9 million in December.

Louisiana. In 1989, the Lounisiana Public Service Commission reduced BellSouth Telecommuni-
cations' authorized rate of return on equity® from 14.76% to 12.76% and ordered it to reduce rates by
$35.4 million in annual effect and refund $36.4 million of previously collected revenues deemed in
excess of the newly established rate of return. In 1991, the Louisiana Commission ordered BellSouth
Telecommunications to further reduce its rates by $55.6 million and refund $32.1 million. The 1991
order also established an equity return range of 11.75% to 12.76% as part of a new sharing plan
ordered by the Louisiana Commission. BellSouth Telecommunications appealed the orders and,
following & January 1992 Louisiana Supreme Court ruling to the effect that substantial parts of the
1989 order were invalid, the Louisiana Commission in February 1992 adopted a settlement order
regarding the 1989 and the 1991 orders.

The settlement provided that BellSouth Telecommunications credit customers with $55.0 mil-
lion, reduce rates in the amount of $31.4 million and operate under a sharing plan that allows a return
on investment® in the range of 10,7% to 11.7%, and provides for sharing of carnings above 11.7% and
below 12.7%.

Based on 1992 data, BellSouth Telecommunications filed tarifTs in January 1993 that resulted in
a $13.8 million rate reduction effective February of this year, reflecting its sharing obligation under
the new plan.

* As defined in the plan for this state.



Mississippi. InJune 1890, the Mississippi Public Service Commission authorized implementa-
tion of a plan that includes a return on average net investment® ranging from 10.74% to 11.74% and
provides that earnings above 11.74% and shortfalls below 10.74% would be shared with cus=—ers on
a 50/60 basis. Rate reductions totaling $22.8 million on an annual basis were required prior to
implementation of the plan. During 1992, BellSouth Telecommunications achieved a rate of return
that resulted in sharing through rate reductions of $11.9 million in July and $4.9 million in January
1993. Additional revenue reductions in the amount of $12.8 million related to intrastate access and
area calling plan impacts became effective in January 1993,

North Carolina. In 1889, legislation was enacted in North Carolina authorizing the North
Carolina Public Service Commission to consider alternative forms of regulation. No specific proposal

has been approved or is pending.

The North Carolina Commission reviews BellSouth Telecommunications’ rate structure annu-
ally New depreciation rates were approved effective January, 1092, which resulted in additional
annual intrastate depreciation expense of $8.6 million. In addition, a one-time reserve deficiency
amortization of $21.8 million was authorized by the North Carolina Commission and accrued in
October 1892,

South Carolina. In August 1991, the South Carolina Public Service Commission authorized
implementation of a plan that includes a return on equity® ranging from 12.0% to 16.5%. Earnings
between the return range of 14.0% to 16.56% will be shared 50/50 with customers while the disposition
of earnings above 16.6%, before sharing, will be determined by the South Carolina Commission.
During 1992, BellSouth Telecommunications accrued $56 million in anticipated refunds as a result of a

potential sharing obligation.
In February 1093, the South Carolina Commisgion authorized additional annual intrastate depre-
ciation expense of $§12.2 million retroactive to January 1, 1992,

Tennessee. In August 1990, the Tennessee Public Service Commission adopted a shazing plan
which provides for a return on average net investment® ranging from 11.0% to 12.2% with $1567
million of BellSouth Telecommunications' revenues over the threo year period 1890.82 to be applied
to technological enhancements, ongoing Commission projects and rate reductions. BellSouth Tele-
communications would retain all earnings inside the target range and share earnings outside the
target range up to 16.2% depending upon the attainment of certain measurable levels of service
quality. All earnings above 16.2% return on average net investment must be used to benefit ratepay-
ers. Should the return on average net investment fall below 11.0%, BellSouth Telecommunications
would share a portion of the earnings shortfall depending upon the attainment of certain measurable
levels of service quality. In 1992, BellSouth Telecommunications recovered approximately $6 million
in revenues resulting from earnings levels being below 11%. The Tennessee sharing plan has expired;
hearings are scheduled for April 1993 to consider renewal of and modification to the Plan retroactive
to Junuary 1, 1993,

In addition to the above matters, BellSouth Telecommunications is a party to numerous proceed-
ings pending before state regulatory bodies which involve, among other things, terms and conditions
of services provided by BellSouth Telecommunications, rautes charged for such services and relation-
ships with nffiliates. No assurance can be given as to the outcome of any such matters.

Access Services
BellSouth Telecommunications provides nccess services by connecting the communications net-
works of Interexchange Carriers with the equipment and facilities of subscribers. These connections

* As defined in the plan for this state.




are provided by linking these carriers and subscribers through the public switched network of Bell-
South Telecommunications or through dedicated private lines furnished by BellSouth
Telecommunications.

Access charges, which are payable both by Interexchange Carriers and subscribers, provided
approximately 29% of BellSouth Telecommunications’ operating revenues for the years ended Decem-
ber 31, 1992, 1801 and 1990, respectively. These charges are designed to recover the costs of the
common and dedicated facilities and switching equipment used to connect networks of Interexchange
Carriers with the telephone company’s local network. In addition, an interstate monthly subscriber
line access charge of $3.50 per line per month applies to single-line business and residential custom-
ers. The interstate subscriber access charge for multi-line business customers varies by state but
cannot exceed $6.00 per line per month.

In October 1990, the FCC authorized an alternative to rate of return regulation called “price
caps,” effective January 1, 1991, which is mandatory for certain local exchange carriers (*LECs"),
including BellSouth Telecommunications and the other Operating Telephone Companies. In contrast
to regulation which limits the rate of return that can be achieved, price caps limits the prices
telephone companies can charge for their services. The price cap plan limits aggregate price changes to
the rate of inflation minus a productivity offset, plus or minus exogenous cost changes recognized by
the FCC. The FCC expects price cap regulation to provide LECs with enhanced incentives to increase
productivity and efficiency,

Concurrently with the implementation of price caps, the FCC reduced the allowed rate of return
on interstate operations from 12.0% to 11.25%. This action resulted in rate reductions of approxi-
mately $57.5 million in 1981. The LECs appealed the FCC's rate of return decision to the D.C. Circuit
Court, where it remains pending.

Those LECs which operate under price caps are allowed to elect annually by April 1 a productivity
offset factor of 3.3% or 4.3%. If the lower offset is chosen, such carriers will be allowed to ewrn up to a
12.25% overall rate of return without sharing. If such carriers earn between 12.25% and 18.26%, halfl
of the earnings in this range will be flowed through to customers in the form of a lower price cap index
in the following year. All earnings over 16.26% would be flowed through to customers. If such carriers
elect a 4.3% productivity offset, all earnings below 13.26% may be retained, earnings up to 17.25%
would be shared and earnings over 17.26% would be flowed through to customers. BellSouth Telecom-
munications elected the 4.3% productivity offset factor for the annual period beginning July 1, 1992.
During 1992, BellSouth Telecommunications reached the sharing level under the price caps plan. This
plan is subject to review the fourth year after implementation.

State regulatory commissions have jurisdiction over charges related to the provision of access to
the Interexchange Carriers to complete intrastate telecommunications. The state commissions have
nuthorized BellSouth Telecommunications to collect access charges from the Interexchange Carriers
and, in several states, from customers.

Open Network Architecture (ONA") plans, permitting all users of the basic network to intercon.
nect to specific basic network functions and interfaces on an unbundled and equal acceas basis for the
provision of enhanced services, will eliminate the FCC requirement that certain enhanced telecommu.
nications services be offered only through a separate subsidiary. The plans may be implemented when
ONA tariffs filed with the FCC become effective and are filed with the states in which ONA services
will be offered and the PCC is notified by the company that it is prepared to offer the ONA services
described in its plan. In November 1892, BellSouth Telecommunications filed u Notice of Initinl ONA
Implementation and Petition for Removal of Structural Separation Requirement (the *'Notice"). The
Notice informs the FCC of BellSouth Telecommunications’ completion of the required steps for initial
ONA implementation and asks the FCC to remove the structural separation requirements currently
imposed on enhanced services offerings.



In August 1992, the FCC issued an Order allowing the LECs to offer video dial tone for transmit-
ting video services. These services would allow customers of the LECs to have access through the
network to video services such as educational programs and pay per view television. BellSouth
Telecommunications expects to request FCC permission to construct facilities necessary to test video
dial tone services later this year. The FCC has also recommended that Congress repeal the restriction
in the Cable Act of 1984 which prohibits LECs from providing cable television programming in their
service territories, and has proposed that LECs be allowed to provide and to acquire minor ownership
interests in video programming in such territories.

In addition to the above matters, BellSouth Telecommunications is a party to numerous proceed-
ings pending before the FCC which involve, among other things, terms and conditions of services
provided by BellSouth Telecommunications, rates charged for such services and relationships with
affiliates. No assurance can be given as to the outcome of any such matters,

Billing And Collection Services

BellSouth Telecommunications provides, under contract and/or tariff, billing and collection ser-
vices for certain long distance services of AT&T and several other Interexchange Carriers. The
agreement with AT&T has been extended through 1996, subject to the right of AT&T to assume
billing and collection for certain of its services prior to the expiration of the agreement. Revenues from
such services are expected to decrease as AT&T assumes more direct billing for its own services.

Operator Services

Directory assistance and local and toll operator services are provided by BellSouth Telecommuni-
cations in its service areas. Toll operator services include alternate billing arrangements, such as
collect calls, third number billing, person-to-person and calling card calls; dialing instructions; pre-
billed credit; and rate information. In addition, directory assistance is provided for some Inter.
exchange Carriers which do not provide such services for their own customers.

Other Business Operations

Directory Publishing Fees

A percentage of the billed revenues from directory advertising operations of BellSouth Advertis-
ing & Publishing Corporation, a wholly-owned subsidiary of BellSouth, are paid as publication fees to
BellSouth Telecommunications for publishing rights and other services in its franchise areas. Such
fees amounted to approximately $598, $580 and $5649 million in 1992, 1991 and 1990, respectively.

Selling, Leasing and Maintaining Equipment

Through its subsidiaries, BellSouth Telecommunications sells, leases and maintains CPE, com-
puters and related office equipment. The Holding Companies, AT&T and other substantial enter-
prises compete in the provision of CPE and other services and products.

Competition

BellSouth Telecommunications is subject to increasing competition in the areas of telecommuni-
cations services described above. Regulatory, legislative and judicinl actions and technological develop-
ments have expanded the types of available services and products and the number of companies which
may offer them. Increasingly, this competition is from large companies which have substantial capital,
technological and marketing resources.

Many services traditionally provided exclusively by the LECs have been deregulated, detariffed or
otherwise opened for competition. For example, some carriers and other customers with concentrated,
high usage characteristics are utilizing shared tenant services, private branch exchange (PBX) sys-
tems owned by customers which provide internal switching functions without using BellSouth Tele-
communications’ central office facilities, private line services and other telecommunications links
which bypass the switched networks of BellSouth Telecommunications. An increasing number of
private voice and data communications networks utilizing fiber optic lines have been and are being




are provided by linking these carriers and subscribers through the public switched network of Bell-
South Telecommunications or through dedicated private lines furnished by BellSouth
Telecommunications.

Access charges, which are payable both by Interexchange Carriers and subscribers, provided
spproximately 20% of BellSouth Telecommunications' operating revenues for the years ended Decem-
ber 81, 1992, 1991 and 1990, respectively. These charges are designed to recover the costs of the
common and dedicated facilities and switching equipment used to connect networks of Interexchange
Carriers with the telephone company’s local network. In addition, an interstate monthly subscriber
line access charge of $3.50 per line per month applies to single-line business and residential custom-
ers. The interstate subscriber access charge for multi-line business customers varies by state but
cannot exceed $6.00 per line per month.

In October 1990, the FCC authorized an alternative to rate of return regulation called “price
caps,” effective January 1, 1991, which is mandatory for certain local exchange carriers (“LECs"),
including BellSouth Telecommunications and the other Operating Telephone Companies, In contrast
to regulation which limits the rate of return that can be achieved, price caps limits the prices
telephone companies can charge for their services. The price cap plan limits aggregate price changes to
the rate of inflation minus a productivity offset, plus or minus exogenous cost changes recognized by
the FCC. The FCC expects price cap regulation to provide LECs with enhanced incentives to increase
productivity and efficiency.

Concurrently with the implementation of price caps, the FCC reduced the allowed rate of return
on interstate operations from 12.0% to 11.25%. This action resulted in rate reductions of approxi-
mately $57.5 million in 1991. The LECs appealed the FCC's rate of return decision to the D.C. Circuit
Court, where it remains pending.

Those LECs which operate under price caps are allowed to elect annually by April 1 a productivity
ofTset factor of 3.3% or 4.3%. If the lower offset is chosen, such carriers will be allowed to earn up ton
12.25% overall rate of return without sharing. If such carriers earn between 12.25% and 16.25%, half
of the earnings in this range will be fiowed through to customers in the form of a lower price cap index
in the following year. All earnings over 16.25% would be flowed through to customers. If such carriers
elect a 4.3% productivity offset, all earnings below 13.26% may be retained, earnings up to 17.25%
would be shared and earnings over 17.25% would be flowed through to customers. BellSouth Telecom-
munications elected the 4.3% productivity offset factor for the annual period beginning July 1, 1992.
During 1992, BellSouth Telecommunieations reached the sharing level under the price caps plan. This
plan is subject to review the fourth year after implementation.

State regulatory commissions have jurisdiction over charges related to the provision of access to
the Interexchange Carriers to complete intrastate telecommunications. The state commissions have
authorized BellSouth Telecommunications to collect access charges from the Interexchange Carriers
and, in several states, from customers.

Open Network Architecture (" ONA"') plans, permitting all users of the basic network to intercon-
nect to specific basic network functions and interfaces on an unbundled and equal access basis for the
provision of enhanced services, will eliminate the FCC requirement that certain enhanced telecommu-
nications services be offered only through a separate subsidiary. The plans may be implemented when
ONA turifTs filed with the FCC become effective and are filed with the states in which ONA services
will be offered and the FCC is notified by the company that it is prepared to offer the ONA services
described in its plan. In November 1982, BellSouth Telecommunications filed a Notice of Initinl ONA
Implementation and Petition for Removal of Structural Separation Requirement (the “Notice"'). The
Notice informs the FCC of BellSouth Telecommunications’ completion of the required steps for initial
ONA implementation and asks the FCC to remove the structural separation requirements currently
imposed on enhanced services offerings.




constructed in metropolitan areas, including Atlanta, Georgia, Charlotte, North Carolina and Jack-
sonville, Miami and Orlando, Florida, which will offer certain high volume users a competitive
alternetive to the public and private line offerings of the LECs. In addition, the existing networks of
cable television systems are capable of carrying two-way interactive data messages and can be con-
figured to provide voice communications. Furthermore, wireless services, such as cellular telephone
and paging services, increasingly compete with wireline communications services.

BellSouth Telecommunications is presently vulnerable to bypass to the extent that its access
charges reflect subsidies for other services. BellSouth Telecommunications supports pricing policies
that would permit lower carrier access charges by more fully recovering directly from the end user
those costs attributable to subscriber lines.

Although BellSouth Telecommunications believes that bypass has already occurred to a signifi-
cant degree in its nine-state area, it is difficult to quantify the lost revenues gince customers ure not
required to report to the telephone companies the components of their telecommunications systems,
In general, telephone company telecommunications services in highly concentrated population and
business areas are more vulnerable to bypass.

In 1992, the FCC ordered the LECs to offer expanded interconnection to providers of alternative
special access services. The order requires BellSouth Telecommunications to offer on a tariffed basis
available space in its central office buildings for physical or virtual collocation of and nccess to
transmission equipment by competitive special access carriers and customers. Special access trans-
mission is a dedicated transmission path used to provide telecommunications services between one
customer premises, whether end user or Interexchange Carrier, to another customer premises. This
type of transmission does not involve switching at the LEC office and is used primarily by large

business customers.

The FCC has devised an interim rate structure for alternative special acceas services which begina
in November 1993 and is subject to review in 1995. The FCC's interim rate structure does not provide
adequately for prices to reflect differences in costs of services nor the pricing flexibility needed by the
LECs in o competitive market. This rate structure prevents BellSouth Telecommunications from
offering volume discounts to large customers, therefore encouraging such customers to bypass its
operations or move to competitive access providers who benefit from collocation. Th~ expanded
interconnection order is being appealed by BellSouth Telecommunications and other LECs.

In a separate docket, the FCC is expected in 1993 to consider extending its collocation order to the
provision of interstate switched nccess services. Several states are considering expanded interconnec-
tion for intrastate services,

A number of firms compete with BellSouth Telecommunications for intralLATA toll business by
reselling toll services obtained at bulk rates from BellSouth Telecommunications or, subject to the
approval of the applicable state public utility commission, providing toll services over their own
facilities. Commissions in the states in BellSouth Telecommunications' operating territory have
ullowed or are considering the latter type of intraLATA toll calling, whereby the Interexchange
Carriers are assigned a multiple digit access code (“10XXX") which customers may dial to place
intraLATA toll calls through facilities of such Interexchange Carriers. The Kentucky Commission has
concluded that competing carriers should be allowed to provide intralLATA toll presubscribed calling
with a single digit access code (1+ or 0+) and is considering how and when such authorization should
be implemented.

Technological changes and the effects of competition reduce the economic useful lives of Bell.
South Telecommunications® fixed assets, As competition increases in both the exchange acceas and
local exchange markets, the economic lives of related properties should continue to decrease. There-
fore, BellSouth Telecommunications is examining the rates of depreciation of fixed assets authorized



by the FCC and state regulatory commissions to ensure that these rates are adequate to recover fixed
asset costs in a timely fashion, The FCC and the state commissions represcribe depreciation rates for
BellSouth Telecommunications at three-year intervals.

In addition, the FCC has instituted a rulemaking proceeding to exarmine personal communica-
tions services (""PCS") and other emerging technologies that might increase competition to wireline
services, The FCC has proposed in this proceeding to allocate additional spectrum to a PCS service and
to authorize between three and five PCS sorvice providers in each market. Although the exact nature
and scope of the services to be offered by PCS service providers has yet to be determined, BellSouth
Telecommunications anticipates that its local wireline and telephone business may experience addi-
tional competition from PCS service providers in the future. BellSouth Telecommunications busi-
nesses maoy also fuce competition in the future from other telecommunications technologies, including
satellite based technologies.

The long range effect of competition on the provision of telecommunications services and equip-
ment will depend on further technological advances, regulatory actions at the state and federal levels,
decisions with respect to the MFJ and possible state and federal legislation.

Legislation

When the 102nd Congress ended, a number of bills expired that could have significantly affected
BellSouth Telecommunications’ business operations and opportunities. However, new bills restricting
BellSouth Telecommunications' entry into various lines of business may be introduced in the current
congressional session.

During 1991, the D. C. District Court granted the Holding Companies relief from the MFJ to
permit them to offer information services. Such services could include electronic publishing, two-way
video, voice-recognition and enhanced electronic gateways. As noted above, appeals were taken of the
D. C. District Court's decision and are currently pending, Moreover, legislation was introduced in the
102nd Congress to restrict the Holding Companies from offering information services and to other-
wise substantially codify the MFJ. Although the legislation did not reach the floor during that session
of Congress, it is likely that similar legislation, and other bills variously restricting the offering by the
Holding Companies of information services, will be introduced in the 103rd Congress.

In 1991, the Senate passed a manufacturing reliel bill that would have allowed the Holding
Companies to manufacture telecommunications equipment and CPE us long as certain domestic
manufacturing provisions were met. A companion bill was introduced in the House, but no vole was
taken.

Bills were introduced in the 102nd Congress to increase spectrum efficiency, to reallocate 200
megahertz of radio spectrum from the federal government to commercial users for commercial use
and to require the FCC to conduct auctions to determine the assignment of that spectrum. The FCC
would also have been required to assign portions of the spectrum to providers of new services, No final
action on the spectrum allocation or auctions was reached in the 102nd Congress. Similar legislation
hus been introduced in the 103rd Congress.

The President has emphasized that improving telecommunications infrastructure will be a high
priarity for his Administration. Legislation has been introduced in the 103rd Congress and other bills
are likely, relating to the development and deployment of a national broadband fiber network and
other information infrastructure. The proposed legislation would provide for enhanced development
and nutionwide deployment of telecommunications technologies, which eould be utilized to develop
communications services outside the public networks of the LECs.

Research and Development

The services and products of BellSouth Telecommunications are in a highly technological field.
BellSouth Telecommunications has expended $46.3, $42.0 and $40.7 million in 1992, 1991 and 1980,
respectively, on company-sponsored research and development activities. The majority of this activity
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is conducted at Boll Communications Resvarch, Ine. (*'Bellcore™), one-seventh of which is ownoed by
BellSouth, through BellSouth Telecommunications, with the remainder owned by the other Holding
Companies. Bellcore provides research and developmen. and other services for its owners and is the
central point of contact for coordinating the Federal government’s teleccommunications requirements
relating to national security and emergency preparedness.

Licenses and Franchises

BellSouth Telecommunications® local exchange business is typically provided under certificates of
public convenience and necessity granted pursuant to state statutes and public interest findings of the
various public utility commissions of the states in which BellSouth Telecommunications does busi-
ness. These certificates provide for a franchise of indefinite duration, subject to the maintenance of
satisfactory service at reasonable rates.

BellSouth Telecommunications owns or has licenses to use all patents, copyrights, licenses,
trademarks and other intellectual property necessary for it to conduct its present business operations,
It is not anticipated that any of such property will be subject to expiration or non-renewal of rights
which would materially and adversely affect BellSouth Telecommunications or its subsidiaries.

Employees

On December 31, 1982, 1691 and 1990 BellSouth ‘relecommunications employed approximately
82,900, 82,200 and 88,500 persons, respectively. About 69% of these employees at December 31, 1992
were represented by the Communications Workers of America (the “CWA"), which is affiliated with
the AFL-CIO.

In September 1992, the CWA ratified new three-year contracts with BellSouth Telecommunica-
tions covering about 58,000 employees. These contracts included provisions for wage increases retro-
active to August 9, a cost-of-living adjustment and an increase in the team incentive award that will
total an estimated 11.3% over the next three years.

In November, 1892, BellSouth Telecommunications announced plans to reduce its work force by
opproximately 8,000 employees by 1996, the majority of which is expected to be sccomplished through
normal attrition. The reductions are expected to be divided approximately equally between craft and
management employees. Targeted offers will be made to managers as needed and involuntary separa-
tions of managers are possible. The contract with the CWA contains provisions for dealing with craft
employees whose jobs are affected.
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ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

GENERAL

BellSouth Telecommunications’ properties do not lend themselves to description by character
and location of principal units. BellSouth Telecommunications’ investment in property, plant and
equipment consisted of the following at December 31:

1992 191

Outside Plant. . . ..o i ivnni i casaasniasssssnsasnns 47% 46%
Central Office Equipment . . . . ...........0ceuvnancens 6% 6%
Landand Bulllings . - .. . ... occimmaiddiadt s s e % %
Station Equipment . . . ... cccovivneerncansssssanians 2% 3%
e R e s T _8% _ 8%

10 10%

Outside plant consists of connecting lines (aerial, underground and buried cable) not on custom-
ers' premises, the majority of which are on or under public roads, highways or streets while the
remainder is on or under private property. Central office equipment consists of analog switching
equipment, digital electronic switching equipment and circuit equipment. Land and buildings are
occupied principally by central offices. Station equipment consists of embedded intrasystem wiring,
substantially all of which is on the premises of customers.

Substantially all of the installations of central office equipment and administrative offices are
located in buildings and on land owned by BellSouth Telecommunications. Many garages, business
offices and telephone service centers are in leased quarters.

BellSouth Telecommunications’ customers are now served by electronic switching systems that
provide a wider variety of services than their mechanical predecessors. The BellSouth Telecommuni-
cations network is in transition from an analog to a digital network, which provides capabilities for
BellSouth Teleecommunications to furnish advanced data transmission and information management
BOrYICCH,

PROPERTY ADDITIONS

Property additions include gross additions to property, plant and equipment having an estimated
service life of one year or more, plus the incidental costs of preparing the asset for its intended use. In
the case of constructed assets, an amount related to the cost of debt and equity used in the construc-
tion of an asset is capitalized as part of the asset when the construction period is in excess of one year.
Property additions also include assets acquired by means of entering into a capital lease agreement,
gross additions to operating lease equipment and reused materials.

Significant additions to property, plant and equipment will be required to meet the demand for
telecommunications services and to further improve such services. The level of property additions
indicated below is expected to be maintained in the near future. The total investment in telephone
plant has increased from about $31,0156 million at January 1, 1988 to about §38,324 million at
December 31, 1092, including the effects of retirements and property transferred at divestiture, but
not including deductions of accumulated depreciation at either date.
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BellSouth Telecommunications’ property additions since January 1, 1988, were approximately as
follows:

Miltlons
BB i R iy g $2,950
QOB s R S e $3,036
T R S e e s e b $3,056
FORL Gt s s S e $2.890
L e R A e AR s S L $2,927

In 1992, BellSouth Telecommunications generated substantially all of its funds for property
additions internally; substantially all of such property additions are expected to be financed through
internally generated funds in 1993.

BellSouth Telecommunications projects property additions to be approximately $3,078 million for
1993. The continued modernization of the BellSouth Telecommunications’ telecommunications net-
work is necessary to meet the needs of customers and competitive demands. Population =nd economic
expansion is prajected by BellSouth Telecommunications in certain growth centers within its nine-
state area during the next five to ten years. Expansion of the network will be needed to accommodate
such projected growth.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The MFJ and the related Plan of Reorganization (the “Plan"’) provide for the recognition and
payment of liabilities by AT&T and the Operating Telophone Companies that are attributable to pre-
divestiture events but that did not become certain until after divestiture. These contingent liabilities
relate principally to litigation and other claims with respect to the former Bell System's rates, taxes,
contracts and torts (including business torts, such as alleged violations of the antitrust laws). Contin-
gent liabilities that are attributable to pre-divestiture events are shared by AT&T and the Operating
Telephone Companies in accordance with formulae prescribed by the Plan, whether or not an entity
was a party to the proceeding and regardless of whether an entity was dismissed from the proceeding
by virtue of settlement or otherwise. BellSouth Telecommunications' share of these linbilities to date
has not been material to its financial position or results of operations for any period.

BellSouth Telecommunications and its subsidiaries are subject to numerous claims and proceed-
ings arising in the ordinary course of business involving allegations of personal injury, breach of
contact, anti-competitive conduct and other matters. While complete assurance cannot be given as to
the cutcome of any contingent liabilities, in the opinion of BellSouth Telecommunications, any
financial impact to which BellSouth Telecommunications is subject is not expected to be material in
amount to BellSouth Telecommunications’ operating results or its financial position.

BellSouth Telecommunications is subject to a number of environmental proceedings as a result of
its operations and the shared liability provisions in the Plan, related to the MFJ, BellSouth Telecom-
munications expects that it will be required to expend funds to remedy certain facilities. Such
expenditures are not expected to be material in amount to BellSouth Telecommunieations' operating
results or financial condition.
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PART 11
ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL AND OPERATING DATA
(1a Milllons)
1991 1991 1990 1989 1982

Operating Revenues ............. $ 13,182 $ 12,768 § 12,762 § 12346 § 12,027
Operating Expenses . ............ 10,258 10,046 9,850 9,419 9,068
Operating Income . .. ............ 2,024 2,722 2,003 2,927 2,959
Interest Expense . .. ............. 583 650 626 652 636
Other Income, net . .. ............ 75 1 27 21 17
Provision for Income Taxes . ....... BO1 647 708 681 731
Extraordinary Loss, netof tax ... ... (41) — - (22) —

Net Income ......o000000. ... 3 1574 8 1426 $ 105696 § 16583 § 1609
Total Assets . ...o.ovvvevinuennns $ 26442 $ 26322 § 26511 § 26447 § 25977
Property Additions .............. $ 2927 § 2890 $ 3055 & 3036 § 2959
Long-TermDebt . ............... $ 633 § 6403 $§ 6440 § 6433 § 6356
Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges® . 4.53 386 423 4.15 4.28
Return to Average Common Equity . . 13.78% 12.49% 14.13% 14.40% 15.94%
Debt Ratio at End of Period ....... 38.46% 88.17% 87.83% 38.38% 38.54%
Access Minutes of Use:#

Interstate ........coveivsmnnnas 50,5464 47,2653 44,9033 41,4157 37,4220

INEPABEALE il s ivisinale e e s bnialecds 139942 132877 12,1195 11,2715 10,349.1
Toll Messages # ...........c00000 1,280.56 1,390.0 1,459.6 1,463.0 1,377.9
Network Access Lines in Service:

Residence ........ccvocsnnssns 13.3 12.9 126 123 12.0

BUdlnees ;o 5ol s e s e 6.1 49 4.6 4.4 4.2

BB i i T s e e e 3 | 3 .3 2

i1 1 Rl e P 18.7 IB._ll 17.5 17.0 16.4

* For the purpose of this ratio: (i) earnings have been calculated by adding net income, interest
expense, income taxes and such portion of rental expense representative of the interest factor on
such rentals; (ii) fixed charges are comprised of total interest expense and such portion of rental
expense.

# Prior period operating data is often revised at later dates to reflect the most current information.
The above information reflects the latest data available for Access Minutes of Use and Toll Messages
for the periods indicated.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS AND FINANCIAL CONDITION
(Dollars in Millions)

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS — 1992 RESULTS COMPARED TO 1991

BellSouth Telecommunications, Inc. (“'BellSouth Telecommunications') reported net income of
$1,674.3 for the year ended December 31, 1992, an increase of $148.5 (10.4%) compared to 1991.
Factors contributing to the increase include a one-time gain from the settlement of a federal income
tax matter, the reversal of revenue accruals following the settlement of prior year regulatory issues,
the inclusion in 1991 of a one-time charge associated with an early retirement program and 1992
expense reductions attributable to salary savings since implementation of that program. Also contrib-
uting to the increase were growth in business volumes, partially offset by rate reductions, a charge
associated with refinancing at lower interest rates of certain long-term debt issues (see Note D) and
expenses associated with Hurricane Andrew.

OPERATING REVENUES

Operating Revenues increased $414.7 (3.2%) in 1992 compared to 1991 primarily due to & $389.8
(6.7%) increase in Local Service revenue and smaller increases in Interstate Access and Other reve-
nues. These increases were partially offset by a $124.9 (9,1%) decrease in Toll revenues.

See "Volumes of Business''.
19l 1991 % Change

Local SBervice. ... .cvuveeaenveininnnssns $6,236.0 $58462 6.7%

Local Service revenues reflect amounts billed to customers for local exchange services, which
include connection to the network and secondary central office feature services, such as custom calling
features and custom dialing packages. (Paging and other mobile service revenues and revenues from
cellular interconnection are included in Other revenues for both periods presented.)

The increase in 1992 revenues of $389.8 (6,7%) is attributable to the addition of 615,300 access
lines during the year, revenue shifts from toll to local due to expanded local calling area plans, which
increased Local Service revenue, and an increase in secondary central office services of $51.4 over
1991, In addition, the implementation of & new expanded local calling area plan in Louisiana, effective
March 1992, positively impacted 1992 Local Service revenue (see “Toll"). The increase was also due in
part to the inclusion in 1991 of a $63.9 refund in Florida which had previously been deferred in Other
revenues, The increase in 1992 was partially offset by a related refund of $27.9 in 1992 pertaining to
amounts set aside in 1991 for disposition by the Florida Public Service Commission. Since these
deferred and set aside amounts were originally accrued in Other revenues, there was no impact on net
income.

1992 1991 % Change
Interstate Access . ........ccovemevnnnnsos $204566 $2858.1 3.1%

Interstate Access revenues result from the provision of access services to interexchange carriers
to provide telecommunications services between states. Interstate access revenues increased $87.5
(3.1%) in 1992 primarily due to increased access demand of 7,0% in minutes of use and an increase of
$30.6 in end user charges attributable to growth in the number of access lines in service. The effect of
these increases was partially offset by rate reductions of approximately §56.0 since December 31,
1801, including the implementation of lower tarifT rates, effective July 1, 1992, associated with
BellSouth Telecommunications' selection of a higher productivity offset factor under Federal Commu.
nications Commission's (“FCC") price cap plan. Revenues reflect amounts deferred for possible
sharing related to the FCC's price cap plan (see “Operating Environment and Trends of the
Business'').
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1992 1991 % Change
Intrastate Access .. ................. ..... § B71B § 8667 0.6%

Intrastate Access revenues result from the provision of access services to interexchange carriers
which provide telecommunications services between LATAs within a state. Revonues increased $5.1
(0.6%) in 1992 due primarily to a 5.7% increase in minutes of use over the same period in 1991 which
was substantially offset by rate reductions since December 31, 1981 of approximately $30.0, primarily
in Georgia and Louisiana. In addition, subscribers are switching to high capacity services under
special assembly tariffs which causes a decrease in minutes of use and a resulting decrease in
revenues.

1992 1991 % Change
e Bt S oo el Lol S A el el e MRS $1,2488 $13737 (9.1%)

Toll revenues are received from the provision of long-distance services within (but not between)
LATAs. These services include intralLATA service beyond the local calling area; Wide Area Telecom-
munications Service (‘“'WATS" or ‘800" services) for customers with highly concentrated demand;
and special services, such as transport of voice, data and video. Toll revenues decreased $124.9 (9.1%)
in 1902. This decrease resulted from rate reductions since December 31, 1991 of $127.0, of which $36.0
was in Kentucky, and a 7.9% decrease in toll messages due to competition and expanded local calling
area plans, which have the effect of shifting more revenues from toll to local. New expanded local
calling areas in Louisiana, effective March 1992, contributed $42.0 to the decrease and is reflected in
the rate reductions noted above. The overall decline in Toll revenues is expected to continue due to the
proliferation of these plans, rate reductions, competition due to the resale by competitors of toll
services obtained from BellSouth Telecommunications and bypass resulting from direct toll

competition.
1992 1M1 % Change
[, 5.7 R eyt e o ol A e i e $18799 818227 31%

Other revenues include revenues from publishing rights fees, billing and collection services,
paging and other mobile services, customer premises equipment sales and maintenance services and
provision of parts and maintenance services for computer equipment. Revenues increased from 1991
levels due to the settlement of prior year regulatory issues not related to services described above
which were required to be recorded in Other revenues, resulting in a one-time increase of ££2.7. In
addition, the increase is due to certain 1991 Florida set aside amounts totaling $27.9 for prior years
which are now included as local service rate reductions in 1992, These increases were partially offset
by the reclassification in 1991 of a related revenue deferral of $63.9 in Florida (see **Local Service'')
nnd by a $34.3 decrease in billing and collection fees, a trend which is expected to continue due to
interexchange carriers szsuming more direct billing for their own services,

OPERATING EXPENSES

Operating Expenses increased $212.7 (2.1%) during 1992 primarily due to expenses associated
with higher business volumes, higher levels of salaries and wages, a portion of which resulted from a
new three-year working agreement with the Communications Workers of America (*CWA"), Hurri-
cane Andrew and remedial actions related to underground fuel storage tanks. The increase was
partially offset by the inclusion in 1991 of expenses associated with an early retirement program and
1992 expense reductions attributable to salary savings since implementation of that program.

1992 1991 % ('u
Cost of Servicesand Products .............. $5,0508 $4,805.1 3.0%

Cost of Services and Products includes operating expenses associated with network support and
maintenance of telecommunications property, plant and equipment, material and supplies expense,
cost of tangible goods sold and other expenses associated with the cost of providing services. Cost of
Services and Products increased $145.5 (3.0%) during 1992 primarily due to growth in volumes of
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business, higher levels of salary and wage expenses, a portion of which resulted from a new three-year
working agreement with the CWA, increased pension and benefit expenses and approximately $45.0 of
expenses (net of insurance recovery and state regulatory deferrals) related to Hurricane Andrew (see
*Other Matters"). Also contributing were increased expenses for rents and contracted services. The
increase was partially offset by expense reductions attributable to salary savings from implementa-
tion of the early retirement program and the inclusion in 1991 of $20.1 in inventory write-downs.

1991 1991 % Change
Depreciatlon ., 0 oo S laiuiiiie alea s »'s o aiiales £2,8599 828191 1L4%

Depreciation expense increased $40.8 (1.4%) during 1992. The increase is attributable, in part, to
higher levels of property, plant and equipment since December 31, 1991 resulting primarily from
continued growth in the customer base. Also contributing were new interstate depreciation rates,
retroactive to January 1, 1892, for Florida, Georgia, North Carolina and South Carclina, new intra-
state depreciation rates in North Carolina and South Carolina, both also retroactive to January 1,
1992, and additional reserve deficiency amortization approved in North Carclina. The increase for
1992 was partially offset by the absence of depreciation associated with the expiration of inside wire
and resorve deficloncy amortizations,

1991 1991 % Change
Belling, General and Administrative , . ........ $23480 823216 11%

Selling, General and Administrative expenses include operating expenses related to sales activi-
ties such as salaries, commissions, benefits, travel, marketing and advertising expenses. Also included
is emortization of intangibles, research and development costs and provision for uncollectibles.

Belling, General and Administrative expenses increased §26.4 (1.1%) in 1982. The increase is
attributable to growth in business volumes, higher levels of salary and wage expenses, a portion of
which resulted from a new three-year working agreement with the CWA, increased pension and
benefit expenses and approximately $24.1 of expenses for remedial actions related to underground
fuel storage tanks. The increase was partially offset by a decrease in the provision for uncollectibles,
the inclusion in 1991 of $67.8 of expenses associated with the early retirement program (see Note E)
and 1992 expense reductions attributable to salary savings since implementation of that program,

1992 1991 % Change
Interest Expense ... .......o00eavnaesrens $ 6833 § 64908 (10.2%)

Interest expense includes interest on debt, certain other accrued liabilities and capital leases,
offset by allowance for funds used during construction, which is capitalized as a cost of installing
equipment and constructing plant. Interest expense decreased $66.5 (10.2%) in 1092. The decrease is
due primarily to a decline in interest rates coupled with a decline in the average level of short-term
borrowings. (See Notes D and H.)

191 191 % Change
Other Incoms, Db . . .. i coavacinursocnsanis $ 756 § s -
Other income, which primarily includes interest and dividend income, increased $74.6 during

1992 mainly due to the settlement of an Internal Revenue Service summary tax assessment that
resulted in $56.6 of interest income.

1991 1991 % Change
Provision for Income Taxes ................ 3 B0OOB § 6469 23.8%
Income tax expense increased $1563.9 (23.8%) in 1992 primarily due to an increase in income

before income taxes and higher effective tax rates resulting from decreasing investment tax credit
amortization.
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BellSouth Telecommunications’ effective tax rates were 33.1% and 31.2% in 1992 and 1991,
respectively. A reconciliation of the statutory Federal income tax rates to these effective tax rates is
provided in Note G. A discussion of the impact of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
(“SFAS") No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes," also is included therein.

OPERATING ENYIRONMENT AND TRENDS OF THE BUSINESS

Regulatory Environment. In providing telecommunications services, BellSouth Telecommunica-
tions is subject to regulation by both state and federal regulators with respect to rates, services and
other issues. BellSouth Telecommunications' primary regulatory focus is directed towards efforts to
ensure that the regulatory processes more realistically reflect the increasingly competitive telecom-
munications environment.

State Regulation

Eight of the nine states in which BellSouth Telecommunications operates are now under some
form of regulation other than traditional rate of return regulation. The eight states are Alabama,
Florida, Georgia, Kentucky, Louisiana, Mississippi, South Carolina and Tennessee. These state plans
are designed to provide BellSouth Telecommunications with economic incentives to increase revenues
and improve cost controls and general efficiency by providing for shared earnings oever benchmark
rates of return. BellSouth Telecommunications attained the earnings sharing range in Alabama,
Kentucky, Louisiana, Mississippi and South Carolina at times during 1992,

The plans in Florida and Tennessee are currently under review; the outcome of these reviews and
the resulting impact on BellSouth Telecommunications are not known at this time. The plans in
Alabama, Georgia and Mississippi expire in 1993, In addition, the Florida Public Service Commission
is investigating certain trouble reporting and sales practices from 1985 to 1992. The outcome, if
unfavorable, might adversely affect proceedings before the Florida Commission.

Federal Regulation

At the national level, BellSouth Telecommunications has been operating under price cap regula-
tion since January 1, 1891, In contrast to regulation which limits the rate of return that can be
achieved, price cap regulation limits the prices telephone companies can charge for use of their
services. As in the state plans, price cap regulation allows for the sharing of earnings over a bench-
mark range of earnings. This benchmark is dependent upon the productivity offset factor chosen
annually by the carrier. During the price cap plan's annual election period, BellSouth Telecommunica-
tions selected a productivity offset factor of 4,3% which provides the potential to earn a higher return
before sharing; however, by selecting this higher productivity factor, BellSouth Telecommunications'
access rates were reduced one percent more than they would otherwise have been had the 3.3% factor
been selected although the resulting decrease in revenues was more than offset by reduced sharing. As
of December 31, 1992, aggregate revenues of $23.9 have been deferred to reflect an estimated sharing
obligation. Although this represents a benefit to the ratepayers, BellSouth Telecommunications has
not been provided as much flexibility in the pricing of its services as originally anticipated under the
new plan. Price cap regulation is an evolving plan in terms of implementation and is subject to review
in the fourth year after implementation.

Economy. The nine-state Southeast region in which BellSouth Telecommunications' wireline
telephone business operates experienced improved economic growth in 1982, While the rate of re-
gional population growth remains slower than during earlier decades, the Southeast continues to
grow faster than the nation. Increasing competition makes BellSouth Telecommunications’ financial
performance more susceptible to changes in the economy than previously, as its operations reflect the
more competitive environment and greater elasticity in demands for its products and services.
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Volumes of Buslness.
Network Access Lines in Service at December 31 (Thousands):

1991 191 % Change
BOEIRIEE . o ocvivc s iiee s b e e e e s Ta e e a6 13,321.7 12,9369 3.0%
BUBNERS . . . i B e e s, L 50923 48456 b5.1%
217 L AL o VTt g o ot S e NG 263.4 2796 (5.8%)
d 1 1 ) IR e W e R R N SRR 186774 18,0621 34%

The total number of access lines in service increased by 615.3 over 1991, representing a 3.4%
increase, an improvement over the 3.2% rate of increase for 1991 over 1990. The growth rate in 1992 {s
attributable in part to improved economic conditions, including population movement, an increase in
the number of second lines in residences and marketing programs which, by modifying deposit
policies, encouraged certain customers to reconnect service in early 1992. Access line growth is
expected to be slightly lower in 1993.

Access Minutes of Use (Millions):
1992 191 % Changs

Intevstate . o 050 sssin s ies sia s e oA AR 50,5464 472063 7.0%
Intrastate . .......... SARE R s 13,9942 18,2377 6.7%
Okl s o.oin e mses g R S b Sl s S 64,6406 604930 6.7%

Access minutes of use represent the volume of traffic carried by interexchange carriers between
LATAs, both interstate and intrastate, using BellSouth Telecommunications' local facilities. Total
access minutes of use increased by 4,047.6 million or 6.7% in 1892 compared to a 6.1% increase in
1991. The 1992 increase in access minutes of use is partially attributable to intraLATA toll competi-
tion (which has the effect of increasing access minutes of use while reducing toll messages), the
increase in access lines and, to a slight extent, the occurrence of Hurricane Andrew. The growth rate in

total minutes of use continues to be negatively impacted by the migration of interexchange carriers to
categories of service that have a lower fixed charge as opposed to a volume-driven charge.

1992 1991 % Change
Toll Messages (Millions). .................. 1,2806 13800 (7.9%)

Toll messages, comprised of Message Telecommunications Service (“MTS'") and Wide Area Tele-
communications Service ("'WATS"), decreased 109.5 million (7.9%) compared to 1081, Strong compe-
tition in the intralLATA toll market and the effects of expanded local calling area plans in several
states are having a continuing impact on toll message volumes. A new expanded local calling area in
Louisiana, effective in March 1892, accounted for approximately 71% of the decline for the year. These
plans and the effects of competition have the effect of shifting calls from toll to local service and access,
respectively, but the corresponding revenues are not generally shifted at commensurate rates. The
decline in toll message volumes is expected to continue for the foreseeable future,

Competition. BellSouth Telecommunications faces increasing competition in virtually all as-
pects of its business. Advances in technology, as well as regulatory, legislative and judicial actions,
have expanded the types of services and products available in the market as well as the number of
alternative providers offering telecommunications services. These trends are expected to continue
over the next decade and at an increasing rate in the near future.

Technological developments will dictate the type of network that telecommunications carriers
will deploy in the future, thus indicating a strong need for continuing evolutionary changes in the
regulatory environment. The development of an information rich telecommunications infrastructure
will most likely increase the number of providers and number of alternative technologies available in
the marketplace. In addition, the deployment and utilization of existing technologies (such as cable
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television, cellular, private branch exchange, private line, fiber optic ring and other services) and the
development of new technologies (such as personal communications and mobile data services) is
expected to compete with BellSouth Telecommunications' wireline network.

BellSouth Telecommunications continues to advocate changes in regulatory, legislative and judi-
cial constraints. These changes are necessary for BellSouth Telecommunications to compete effec-
tively with the new service providers. BellSouth Telecommunications' ability to meet this growing
competition depends to a great extent on the actions of regulators and legislators and its ability to
continue to adapt its business and operations to the developing competitive markets.

BellSouth Telecommunications currently accounta for the economic effects of regulation under
SFAS 71, "'Accounting for the Effects of Certain Types of Regulation." A key criterion for applicability
is that it must be reasonable to assume that rates set by regulators to recover specific costs can be
charged to and collected from customers. Because of the increasing competition in the telecommunica-
tions industry, BellSouth Telecommunications’ business environment is subject to rapid and unantici-
pated changes. If competition in the marketplace were to Increase so that BellSouth
Telecommunications could not charge prices based on costs, regardless of regulatory action, SFAS 71
would no longer be applicable. The subsequent effect on BellSouth Telecommunications' financial
statements could be significant depending upon the nature, magnitude and timing of the marketplace
changes.

OTHER MATTERS

Accounting Pronouncements. Effective January 1, 1993, BellSouth Telecommunications adopted
SFAS 106, “Employers’ Accounting for Postretirement Benefita Other Than Pensions”. The state-
ment requires employers to accrue the cost of providing postretirement benefits other than pensions
during the period employees are expected to earn the benefit.

BellSouth Telecommunications will recognize a portion of BellSouth’s estimated transition bene-
fit obligation of $1.5 billion over the average remaining service period of active plan participants,
which is 15 years. Based on this transition method, BellSouth Telecommunications’ 1983 expense is
projected to be about $243.0, which is approximately 10% higher than the projected 1993 postretire-
ment expense determined under the former accounting method. The effect on net income, therefore,
is not expected to be material. However, because BellSouth Telecommunications is regulated, the
ultimate effect on the financial statements will depend on the ratemaking treatment authorized. (See
Note E.)

Also effective January 1, 1993, BellSouth Telecommunications adopted SFAS 109, *'Accounting
for Income Taxes,"” which requires companies to compute deferred income taxes using a liability
approach rather than the deferred method previously required under Accounting Principles Board
Opinion No. 11. BellSouth Telecommunications does not anticipate a significant impact to expense or
net income as a result of implementing SFAS 109, However, because BellSouth Telecommunications is
subject to accounting rules applicable to regulated entities, the ultimate financial impact will depend
on the future regulatory treatment. (See Note G.)

In November 1982, The Financial Accounting Standards Board issued SFAS 112, "Employers’
Accounting for Postemployment Benefits,”” which BellSouth Telecommunications is required to adopt
by 1994. The statement requires employers to accrue the cost of postemployment benefits provided to
former or inactive employees after employment but before retirement. BellSouth Telecommunica-
tions is currently evaluating the provisions of the new statement. The impact of adoption of the
statement on BellSouth Telecommunications' not income or financial position has not been deter-
mined with any certainty.
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Hurricane Andrew. Operating results for 1092 reflect approximately $45.0 of expenses, after the
effect of regulatory deferrals and insurance recovery, related to damage to BellSouth Telecommunica-
tions’ facilities, primarily in Florida, caused by Hurricane Andrew. An additional $64.0 of expense has
been deferred for recognition in future years. As a result of this deferral, expense of approximately
$16.0 will be recognized in each of the years 1993 through 1996.

Environmental Issues. BellSouth Telecommunications is subject to a number of environmental
proceedings as a result of the operations of its subsidiaries and shared liability provisions in the Plan
of Reorganization, related to the Modification of Final Judgment. BellSouth Telecommunications
expects that it will be required to expend funds to remedy certain facilities including, as previously
disclosed, the remediation of sites with underground fuel storage tanks for which BellSouth Telecom-
munications recognized a liability of $24.1 during 1892, BellSouth Telecommunications continues to
believe that expenditures in connection with any additional remedial actions under the environmental
protection laws or related matters will not have a material impact on BellSouth Telecommunications’
operating results or financial condition.

Work Force Reductions. In November 1992, BellSouth Telecommunications announced plans to
reduce its work force by approximately 8,000 employees by 1996, the majority of which is expected to
be accomplished through normal attrition. The reductions are expected to be divided approximately
equally between craft and management employees. Targeted offers will be made to managers as
needed and involuntary separstions of managers are possible. The contract with the CWA contains
provisions for dealing with craft employees whose jobs are affected. BellSouth Telecommunications
could incur early termination charges in connection with these reductions, although the financial
impact, while potentially significant, is not known at this time.
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REPORT OF MANAGEMENT

These financial statements have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles and have been sudited by Coopers & Lybrand, independent accountants, whose report is
contained herein.

The integrity and objectivity of the data in these financial statements, including estimates and
judgments relating to matters not concluded by the end of the year, are the responsibility of the
management of BellSouth Telecommunications. Management has also prepared all other information
included in this Annual Report unless indicated otherwise.

Management maintains a system of internal accounting controls which is continuously reviewed
and evaluated. However, there are inherent limitations that should be recognized in considering the
assurances provided by any system of internal accounting controls. The concept of reasonable assur-
ance recognizes that the cost of a system of internal accounting controls should not exceed, in
management's judgment, the benefits to be derived. Management believes that BellSouth Telecom-
munications' system does provide reasonable assurance that the transactions are executed in accor-
dance with management’s general or specific authorizations and are recorded properly to maintain
accountability for assets and to permit the preparation of financial statements in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles. Management also believes that this system provides reason-
able assurance that access to assets is permitted only in accordance with management’s authoriza-
tions, that the recorded accountability for assets is compared with the existing assets at reasonable
intervals and that appropriate action is taken with respect to any differences. Management also seeks
to assure the objectivity and integrity of its financial data by the careful selection of its managers, by
organizational arrangements that provide an appropriate division of responsibility and by communi-
cations programs aimed at assuring that its policies, standards and managerial authorities are under-
stood throughout the organization. Management is also aware that changes in operating strategy and
organizational structure can give rise to disruptions in internal controls. Special attention is given to

controls while the changes are being implemented.

Management maintains a strong internal suditing program that independently assosses the
effectiveness of the internal controls and recommends possible improvements thereto. In addition, as
part of its audit of these financial statements, Coopers & Lybrand completed a review of the account-
ing controls to establish a basis for reliance thereon in determining the nature, timing and extent of
audit tests to be applied. Management has considered the internal auditor's and Coopers & Lybrand’s
recommendations concerning the system of internal control and has taken actions that we believe are
cost-effective in the circumstances to respond appropriately to these recommendations. Management
believes that as of December 31, 1992, the system of internal controls was adequate to accomplish the
objectives discussed herein.

Management &lso recognizes its responsibility for fostering a strong ethical climate so that
BellSouth Telecommunications® affairs are conducted according to the highest standards of personal
and corporate conduct. This respor.sibility is characterized and reflected in BellSouth’s *Personai
Responsibility” booklet, which is distributed to, and acknowledged in writing by, all employves.
BellSouth Telecommunications maintains a program to assess compliance with these policies.

F. DUANE ACKERMAN LARRY L. SCHOOLAR
President and Chief Executive Officer Vice President and Comptroller
February 3, 1993




AUDIT COMMITTEE CHAIRMAN'S LETTER

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors consists of four independent Directors who are
neither officers nor employees of BellSouth Telecommunications. The Committee is responsible for
oversight of the internal controls of the Company and the objectivity of its financial reporting. The
Audit Committee met four times during 1992 and reviewed with the Director — Internal Auditing,
Coopers & Lybrand and management, the various audit activities and plans, together with the results
of selected internal audits. The Audit Committee also reviewed the financial reporting process and the
adequacy of internal controls. The Audit Committee recommended the appointment of Coopers &
Lybrand as the independent accountants and considered factors relating to their independence. The
Director — Internal Auditing and Coopers & Lybrand met privately with the Audit Committee on
occasion to encourage confidential discussions as to any «uditing matters.

Lroyp C. ELaM
Chairman, Audit Committee

February 3, 1993




ITEM 8. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

BellSouth Telecommunications, Ine.
Atlanta, Georgia

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements and financial statement
schedules of BellSouth Telecommunications, Inc. and Subsidiaries listed in Item 14(a) of the Form
10-K. These financial statements and financial statement schedules are the responsibility of the
Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and
financial statement schedules based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those stan-
dards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An sudit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estima.es made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reason-
able basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the consolidated financial position of BellSouth Telecommunications, Inc. and Subsidiaries as of
December 31, 1992 and 1991, and the consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for
each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 1992, in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles. In addition, in our opinion, the financial statement schedules referred to above,
when considered in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole, present fairly, in all
material respects, the information required to be included therein.

Coopers & Lybrand

Atlanta, Georgia
February 3, 1993

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

We consent to the incorporation by reference in the registration statements of BellSouth Tele-
communications, Inc. en Form S-3 (File Nos. 33-47075 and 33-49283) of our report dated February 3,
1993, on our audits of the consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedules of
BellSouth Telecommunications, Inc. listed in Item 14(a) of this Form 10-K.

Coopers & Lybrand

Atlanta, Georgia
February 22, 1993




BELLSOUTH TELECOMMUNICATIONS, INC,
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME AND RETAINED EARNINGS

(In Millions)
For the Years Ended December 31,
1991 1991 1990
Operating Revenues:
b e e b $ 62360 §$ 58462 § 56646
Interstate acCeBE . ........c0vuiiivivaianronaanans 29456 2,858.1 28419
Intrastateaccess ................ et it B71.8 866.7 911.8
Toll....... (hme ea aa eT eT e T ree 1,248.8 1,373.7 1,565.4
B e PSS ot e e 1,879.9 1,822.7 1,778.0
Total Operating Revenues. . ...................... 13,1821 12,7674 12,761.7
Operating Expenses:
Cost of servicesand products . . .. ................... 65,0506  4,905.1 4,941.7
P R T S P U AP SR 2,859.9 2,.819.1 2,738.2
Selling, general and administrative. . ................. 2,348.0 23216 2,179.1
Total Operating Expenses . .. .. .....oooviveviinnns 10,2586 10,0458 8,8569.0
B T CE T e e e - S L e 29236 2,721.86 2,902.7
Interest Expense (Note H) . ..........ciiiiiinnnnns 583.3 649.8 626.2
Other Income, Dot . . .. covivsocnerrsrssnnssnsarneses 75.5 9 274
Income Before Income Taxes and Extraordinary Loss. . . .. .. 2,415.8 2,072.7 2,303.9
Provision for Income Taxes (NoteG) . ... ............... 800.8 646.9 707.9
Income Before Extraordinary Loss. . .. ................. 1,615.0 1,425.8 1,596.0
Extraordinary Loss on Early Extinguishment of Debt,
netoftax (Note D) . ......cvivevnnenrniorinnnnnnns (40.7) —_ —
NetIncome.............. NP o R il e oy e $ 15743 § 14258 § 1,596.0
Retained Earnings:
AbDagInnIng oFf YORY: oo a/s's sivesans s sinmsene s i sy $ 39836 § 39706 § 3,770.2
Add: Not InCOme « o v covvrrescarsronsassrsnssssas 1,674.3 14258 1,596.0
Deduct: Dividends declared .................000cunn (1,687.8) (1,4128) (1,395.6)
Deduct: Other adjustments ........................ (3.0) —_ —_
A ond ol YERP ..y vvvvoasssrsasranesssssessuanns $ 39670 $ 39835 § 39706

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.




BELLSOUTH TELECOMMUNICATIONS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEFTS

(In Millions)
Decamber 31,
1991 1991
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cashandcashequivalents . .. ........c.cooenensnnssnsnsnssan $§ 1330 $ 1354
Current receivables, net of allowance for uncollectibles of $87.2
B0 BB o oinsision min an S w e n R e AL R R A e N 1,944.7 1,880.5
Material and supplies .........covovrerniniiaiinarisnaiianns 3858 3415
Other CUrTOnt BEBEEE . . . o v o s nrosnensrsonnnasbsasssssanssss 79.6 46.1
Total Current ABBELE . . v v oo v v v s s s mncnmsmnasasssssbanarn 2,643.1 2.406.56
Investments In and Advances to Affillate . . . ... ... oo ssrarras 30.3 a1.1
Property, Plant and Equipment, net (Note B) . .........ocoviviians 23,3119 23,241.7
Deferred Charges and Other Assets . . .. ................. AR 657.0 642.2
R [ e BV T e e SR, o o A e AN $26,442.3 $26,321.5
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY
Current Liabilities:
Debt maturing within one year (Note D) ........... ... v i e $ 9469 §$ 8524
Accounts payBble. . .. .. v veerrsrnsncarsaraiaisiarasssasnns 980.56 9438
Other current liabilities (Note C) .. .. ..o v invssranrrsrnansnsses 1,780.4 1,7379
Total Current Lisbilities . . . .. ..o v vivivnvarnsssnrorrars 3,716.8 3,604.1
Long-Term Debt (NoteD)....... e LT e w0 e i e e a e 6,336.0 6,402.7
Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities:
Accumulated deferred income LAXeS .. .......coovev o anas 3,639.6 3,769.4
Unamortized investment tax credits . . .. .. .. ... ..t aannes 604.9 692.2
Other liabilities and deferred eredits . ......... .. oo annnress 763.0 600.6
Total Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities . .................. 5,006.8 4,9062.2
Shareholder's Equity:
Common stock, oneshare, noparvalue . ............. .. cv0ers 7.415.7 7.439.0
Retained earnings . .....cocoeiveensnancasasssasrsasssnsons 3,967.0 3,9831.5
Total Shareholder's Equity . . . .. v oo vvvav i ianiiaarieanunes 11,382.7 11,422.56
Total Linbilities and Shareholder's Equity . ............ ..ot $26,442.3 $26,321.6

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements,




BELLSOUTH TELECOMMUNICATIONS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(In Millions)
For the Years Ended December 31,
Cash Flows from Operating Activities: L o e
LB R R L R R e D A $§ 16743 % 142588 1,596.0
Adjustments to net income:
Depredation .. <5 soine s L GEame. S0n & SR 28509 28191 27382
Summary tax assessment settlement . .. ............... 90.9 — —_
Provision for lossesonbad debts . .................... 142.5 157.3 126.7
Write-ofl of unamortized debt issuance costs due to early
extinguishment of debt . .. ....ccovmeveerronnnensns a7.3 — —
Deferred income taxes and unamortized investment tax
g1y RO e e Al s SR S e U S s (147.5) (406.3) (262.2)
Allowance for funds used during construction ........... (16.3) (18.1) (17.6)
Net change in current receivables ............... .00, (206.7T) (111.8) (39.6)
Net change in material and supplies .. ................ (136.0) (69.8) (59.3)
Net change in accounts payable and other current liabilities B6.0 (32.7)  (108.9)
Net change in deferred charges and other assets .. . ... ... a7 134.4 87.4
Net change in other liabilities and deferred credits . ... ... 162.0 120.9 141.0
Other reconciling items, net ........00iveevnninnrens (2.4) 1.5 14.9
Net cash provided by operating activities . . ........... 44497 40303 42155
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Copital expenditures . .- . o0 es sl i v e i s (2,845.8) (2,7473) (2,938.4)
Proceeds from disposals of property, plant and equipment . . . . B29 55.9 70.9
Other investing activities, net. ... .............ovvues (1.1) (1) 6
Net cash used in investing activities. . . .............. (2,764.0) (2,603.5) (2,866.9)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Proceeds of short-termdebt .......................... 10,7139 13,5793 14,6413
Repayment of short-termdebt . ....................... (10,674.8) (13,431.8) (14,626.8)
Advances from parent end affiliates .................... 2678 —_ 48.3
Repayment of advances from parent and affiliates.......... (270.2) — -
Proceedsof longtermdebt ... ..........000inivvnnnens 643.2 — -
Repayment of longtermdebt ............00c0vvvvnnvnn. (626.7) (28.9) (63.5)
Paymentofcallpremium .............cc0ivviunnnnnnn (334) — —_
Payment of capital lease obligations .................... (13.4) (18.8) (33.1)
Equity investment of parent . . .. ... vovvvvivrnunnrenens 24.0 8.8 25.6
Dividends paid toparent ..........coonvvvvnuvnrenens (1,618.5) (1,414.5) (1,333.9)
Net cash used in financing activities. .. .............. (1,688.1) (1,304.9) (1,342.1)
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents . ............. (2.4) 31.9 6.6
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Period ......... 135.4 103.6 97.0
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Period ............. $§ 1330% 13548 1035

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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BELLSOUTH TELECOMMUNICATIONS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dollars in Millions)

Note A — ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation. BellSouth Telecommunications, Inc, (*BellSouth Telecommunications")
is a wholly-owned subsidiary of BellSouth Corporation ("BellSouth™). Effective at midnight Decem-
ber 31, 1891, South Central Bell Telephone Company (*'South Central Bell"') and BellSouth Services
Incorporated (“‘BellSouth Services") (a jointly-owned service subsidiary of South Central Bell and
Southern Bell Telephone and Telegraph Company (''Southern Bell”)) merged with and into Southern
Bell and Southern Bell's name changed to BellSouth Telecommunications. The accompanying finan-
cial statements reflect the operations of South Central Bell, Southern Bell, BellSouth Services, and
several smaller affiliated companies transferred to BellSouth Telecommunications as though the
merger and such transfers had occurred on January 1, 1880, BellSouth Telecommunications main-
tains substantially all of its accounts and records in accordance with the Uniform System of Accounts
prescribed by the Federal Communications Commission (“FCC”) and makes certain adjustments
necessary to present the accompanying financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles applicable to regulated entities. Such principles differ in certain respects from
those used by unregulated entities, but are required to appropriately reflect the financial and eco-
nomic effects of regulation and the rate-making process. Significant differences resulting from the
application of these principles are disclosed elsewhere in these Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements where appropriate.

Cash and Cash Equivalents. BellSouth Telecommunications considers all highly liquid invest-
ments with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents, Investments with an
original maturity of over three months to one year are not considered cash equivalents and, if any, are
included as temporary cash investments on the consolidated balance sheets.

Property, Plant and Equipment. The investment in property, plant and equipment and materials
dedicated to providing telecommunications services is stated at original cost, Depreciation is based on
the remaining life method of depreciation and straight-line composite rates determined on the basis of
equal life groups of certain categories of telephone plant acquired in a given year. Depreciation
expense also includes amortization of certain classes of telephone plant and identified depreciation
reserve deficiencies over periods allowed by regulatory authorities. When depreciable plant is disposed
of, the original cost less net salvage value is charged to accumulated depreciation.

Material and Supplies. New and reusable material is carried in inventory principally st average
original cost, except that specific costs are used in the case of large individual items. Nonreusable
material is carried at estimated salvage value.

Maintenance and Repalirs. The cost of maintenance and repairs of plant, including the cost of
replacing minor items not effecting substantial betterments, is churged to operating expenses.

Allowance for Funds Used During Construction. Regulatory authorities allow BellSouth Telecom-
munications to accrue interest as a cost of constructing certain plant and as an item of income
(interest charged construction). Such income is not realized in cash currently but will be realized over
the service life of the related plant as the resulting higher depreciation expense and plant investment
uro recovered in the form of increased revenues.

Income Taxes. BellSouth Telecommunications is included in the consolidated Federal income tax
return filed by BellSouth and its subsidiaries. Deferred income taxes are provided to reflect the effect
of timing differences in the recognition of revenues and expenses for financinl and income tax
reporting purposes, except where regulatory authority dictates flow-through sccounting. Timing
differences result primarily from the use of accelerated methods and shorter lives in computing




BELLSOUTH TELECOMMUNICATIONS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(Dollars in Millions)

Note A — ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

depreciation for tax purposes. The cumulative net amount of tax timing differences for which deferred
income taxes had not been provided at Decomber 31, 1992, due to flow-through accounting, was
£580.2,

For financial reporting purposes, BellSouth Telecommunications is amortizing deferred invest.
ment tax credits earned prior to the 1986 repeal of the investment tax credit and also some transi-
tional credits earned after the repeal. The credits are being amortized as a reduction to the provision
for income taxes over the estimated useful lives of the assets to which the credits relate.

Note B — PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Property, plant and equipment is summarized as follows at December 31:

1991 1991
T, Rt e o S D PR Al o R P S $ 1663 § 154.1
Building and building improvements. . . . ... oA RN 2,656.0 2,464.4
Operating and other equipment .. .............c00iunaan 7717.6 T17.7
Furniture and fixtures . .........co0ioemenornssnsnssans 1,996.7 1,858.0
Central office equipment .. ............c.0civiieneiians 13,8939 13,1823
Outslde plant. , ¢ oo ivvvicnecscnnnssninssasnssnnsonses 17,8186 17,050.8
Statlon equipment . . ... covearversrsrsanssasssrisr s 612.6 1,267.2
T P e S K R S e A 62.2 T0.4
Plant underconstruction ............ 000 evinvinananses 440.1 264.6
[ 3,0 o I RN [ 4l P I T R e L ol S, 16.5 25.56
88,324.3 47,1560
Less: Accumulated depreciation .. .................... 150124 13,9133
Total Property, Plant and Equipment, net .............. $23,311.9 §23,241.7
Note C — OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
Other current liabilities are summarized as follows at December 31:
1992 1991
TRNBS BOCTUB & v« v s sssas s sassiassbnsssnussnnansnsnints $§ 3113 § 32156
Advanced billing and customer deposits .. ........ ... 0000000 414.2 427.2
Dividends payable toparent. .. ............c.ciiieianaannn 139.3 170.0
Salaries and wages payable ............. ... it 281.4 2376
Interest and rentsmcerued . . ... .. ..o n i iinn i 258.9 237.0
Compensated absences. . .. .......oouiieiiiaininneinsens 203.4 2726
157 Nt b2 R e e e R YN T O e 819 721
Total Other Current Liabilities . .. .. ... cocviuiiron. $1,7804 81,7379




BELLSOUTH TELECOMMUNICATIONS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
{Dollars in Millions)

Note D — DEBT

Debt Maturing Within One Year: Debt maturing within one yer.r is included as debt in BellSouth
Telecommunications’ computation of debt ratios and consisted «f th» following at December 31:

Descripiion 1992 1991 19%0
Advances and Notes Payable:
Advances from BellSouth and affilintes . . . .. ........... 8 314 8§ — 5 —
Commercinl paper (8) . . ..o vvvieneinueneiaann .... BBIO B21.3 6741
Current maturities of longtermdebt .. .. ............ ... 52.5 31.1 3256
1 e - i L L P Py PR RS G R e m e $0469 28524 S$7066
1992 1991 1990
Advances from BellSouth and affiliates:
Maximum amount outstanding during period .. ......... $3714 $— §$-—
Average amount outstanding during the period (b) ... .. .. $21.7 $— $ —
Weighted average interestrate . .. .......ocovuninenen 172% — -
Weighted average interest rate during the period (¢) ... ... 3.77% — -
Commercial Paper:
Maximum amount outstanding during period ........... $945.7 §910.0 8756.6
Average amount outstanding during the peried (b) . ... ... $640.3 §746.1 $642.1
Weighted averageinterest rate . . . ..........cc00vvnnn 3.58% 4.69% B.42%
Weighted average interest rate during the period (c) .. .. .. 9.71% 6.0% B.28%

(n) Due in 270 days or less.

(b) Determined by computing the average face amount of monthly ending balances in each category.

(¢) Determined by dividing the average monthly face amount described in (b) into aggregate related
interest expense.

BellSouth Telecommunications has committed credit lines aggregating $976.9 with various banks
which are maintained generally to support commercial paper borrowings. There were no borrowings
under the committed lines at December 31, 1992, BullSuuth Telecommunications also maintains
uncommitted lines of credit of $40.0. There are no significant commitment fees or requirements for
compensating balances associated with any lines of credit.

At December 31, 1992, the recorded amount of Debt Maturing Within One Year approximates the
fair value due to the short-term nature of the liabilities.
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BELLSOUTH TELECOMMUNICATIONS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
{Dollars in Million=)

Note ) — DEBT (Continued)
Long-Term: Long-term debt is summarized as follows at December 31:

1592 1991
Recorded Recorded

Description Interest Hates Malurities Amount Falr Value Amouni
Debentures: W% - 6W% 1995 -2004 § 6050 § BK3IT.0 ¥ 6750

W% - BY% 1009 .2032 33350 <0365 2,785.0
8% - 10M% 2001 - 2020 2,375.0 24733 2,025.0

63150 63468 6,385.0

Capitul leases and other. ....... 73.0 — 67.9
Unamortized discount, net . . .. .. (52.0) —_ (50.2)
d bt 4 B ey L e e $6,336.0 — £6,402.7

Maturities of long-term debt outstunding at December 31, 1982 are summarized below:
1993 1994 1993 1996 1997 Thereafler Tolal

Maturities. . .......0vvrrvnsnsan $625 $309 $51.0 8§47 $784 86,2230 86,4405

The estimate of fair value for Debentures is based on the December 31, 1992 closing market price
for each issue. Capital leases and other at December 31, 1992 consists of $29.2 in capital leases and
$43.8 of other debt of which $42.4 is payable to BellSouth Capital Funding Corporation, an affiliate of
BellSouth Telecommunications.

In July 1992, BellSouth Telecommunications sold $250.0 in aggregate principal amount of Forty
Year 8%% Debentures, due July 1, 2032, Proceeds from this sale were used to redeem and refinance
the outstanding $250.0 Thirty-Nine Year 9%4% Debentures due September 15, 2018, which were issued
by South Central Bell. In August 1992, BellSouth Telecommunications sold $300.0 in aggregate
principal amount of Forty Year 7% Debentures, due August 1, 2032. Proceeds from this sale were
used to redeem and refinance the outstanding $300.0 Forty Year 10%% Debentures due December 18,
2025, which were issued by Southern Bell. A charge of $40.7, net of taxes of §30.0, for expenses
associated with these issues, including call premiums, unamortized debt discount and unamortized
issunnce costs, was recognized during 1992 as an extraordinary loss on early extinguishment of debt,

In February 1993, BellSouth Telecommunications sold $275.0 aggregate principal amount of
Seven Year 6%% Notes, due February 1, 2000 and $160.0 aggregate principal amount of Twelve Year
7% Notes, due February 1, 2005. The net proceeds from the sales of the notes were used to redeem and
refinance the outstanding $160.0 Thirty Year 8% Debentures due July 1, 1999, which were issued by
Southern Bell, the outstanding $125.0 Thirty-Two Year 8%% Debentures due November 1, 2001,
which were issued by South Central Bell, and the outstanding $150.0 Thirty-Four Year 8Y% Deben-
tures due December 1, 2004, issued by South Central Bell. The expenses and loss associated with the
reflinancing of these issues are not material. BellSouth Telecommunications has filed shelf registra-
tion statements with the Securities and Exchunge Commission under which it may offer up to $625.0
additional umount of its debt securities,

Note E — PENSION PLAN AND OTHER POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS

Pension Plans. Substantially all employees of Bel'South Telecommunications participate in Bell-
South’s noncontributory defined benefit pension plans. Plans covering salaried employees generally
provide benefits based on years of credited service and employees’ average compensation for a speci-
fied period. Pension benefits for hourly employees generally are based on specified benefit amounts
and years of service. BellSouth's funding policy is to make contributions to trust funds with the
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BELLSOUTH TELECOMMUNICATIONS, INC,
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(Dollars in Millions)

Nole E — PENSION PLAN AND OTHER POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS (Continued)

objective of accumulating sufficient assets to pay all pension benefits for which BellSouth is liable.
Pension plan contributions are actuarially determined using the aggregate cost method, an acceptable
funding method under the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 (“'ERISA"), subject to
ERISA and Internal Revenue Service limitations. Trust assets held consist primarily of equity securi-
ties and fixed income investments,

BellSouth's net periodic pension cost is computed in accordance with Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (“SFAS") 87, “Employers’ Accounting for Pensions'’, Accordingly, not periodic
pension cost is delermined using a differont actuarial cost method and different act unrial ussumptions
than those used for funding purposes. Pension cost computed under SFAS 87 includes the effect of
anticipated future improvements to the pension plans that are consistent with past practice.

Pension cost allocated from BellSouth recognized in 1992, 1991 and 1990 was $155.3, $133.4 and
$117.8, respectively. SFAS 87 requires certain disclosures to be made with respect to the components
of net periodic pension cost for the period and & reconciliation of the funded status of the plan with
amounts reported in the balance sheets. Such disclosures are not presented because the structure of
the BellSouth plans does not permit disaggregation of relevant plan information on an individual
company basis.

The projected benefit obligation for 1992 and 1991 was determined using a discount rate of 7.76%,
un assumed rate of compensation increase of 5.7%, and an expected long-term rate of return on plan
ussets of B.0%. Accrued pension cost at December 31, 1992 and 1991, of $426.8 and $271.5, respec-
tively, is included in Other Liabilities and Deferred Credits.

HellSouth Telecommunications offered special early retirement options to management employ-
ces in 1991 and 1990, In July 1991, approximately 3,000 managers elected to retire under a special
voluntary early retirement offer. All employees who elected to retire under this option agreed to
voluntarily separate from employment on or before October 31, 1991 and became immediately service
pension eligible. The 1990 offer was accepted by 1,100 management employees who were service
pension eligible and elected, by December 31, 1890, to voluntarily separate from employment on or
before April 30, 1991. Managers retiring under both the 1891 and 1990 early retirement offers had the
option, under the 1991 offer, of accepting the present value of their pension benefits as 8 lump-sum
payment instead of an annuity. Electing employees were eligible to receive certain benefits, including a
special payment equivalent to five percent of their base pay times full years of service (not to exceed
100% of base pay), net of certain offsets. The retirement options were accounted for in accordance
with SFAS B8, “"Employers' Accounting for Settlements and Curtailments of Defined Benefit Pension
Plans and for Termination Benefits." Accordingly, BellSouth Telecommunications recognized expense
of $68.1 in 1991 and $14.0 in 1990 related to these offers.

Postretirement Benefits Other Than Penslons. BellSouth Telecommunications also provides cer-
tain health care and life insurance benefits to substantially all employees that retire from BellSouth
Telecommunications eligible for a service or disability pension benefit. The cost of providing health
care and life insurance benefits for both active and retired employees was $524.1, $607.0 and $465.5in
1992, 1991 and 1990, respectively. Included in these costs were $161.2, $155.7 and $145.6 in 1992,
1991 and 1990, respectively, for postretirement health care benefits other than those provided on a
pay-as-you-go basis. At December 31, 1992, there were approximately 38,600 retirees and 82,900
active employees eligible to receive these benefits.

The costs of providing nonrepresented employees postretirement health care benefits are being
gecrued and funded over the working lives of active employces. Certain nonrepresented retiree
benefits, however, are recognized on a pay-as-you-go basis. Postretirement health care benefit costs for
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BELLSOUTH TELECOMMUNICATIONS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(Dollars in Millions)

Note E — PENSION PLAN AND OTHER POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS {Continved)

both active and retired employees represented under the collective bargaining agreement are being
accrued and funded into a separate tax advantaged trust. These contributions are funded over the
working lives of active employees and the remaining lives of the retirees. Postretirement life insur-
ance benefit costs are accrued and funded over the working lives of active employees based on that
group’s historical claims experience.

In December 1880, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (““the Board"') issued SFAS 106,
“Employers’ Accounting for Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions”, which BellSouth Tele-
communications adopted January 1, 1993. The statement requires employers to accrue the cost of
providing bz:u:ﬁreumnmt benefits other than pensions during the period employees are expected to
earn the t.

BellSouth Telecommunications will recognize a portion of BellSouth's estimated transition bene-
fit obligation of $1.5 billion over the average remaining service period of active plan participants,
which is 15 years. Based on this transition method, BellSouth Telecommunications’ 1993 expense is
projected to be about $243.0, which is approximately 10% higher than the projected 1993 postretire-
ment expense determined under the former accounting method. The effect on net income, therefore,
is not expected to be material. However, because BellSouth Telecommunications is regulated, the
ultimate effect on the financial statements will depend on the ratemaking treatment authorized.

Note F — LEASES
BellSouth Telecommunications has entered into operating leases for facilities and equipment
used in operations. Rental expenses under operating leases were $258.7, £224.4 and $264.5 for 1992,
1981 and 1890, respectively. Capital leases currently in effect are not significant. The following table
summarizes the approximate minimum rentals under noncancelable operating leases in effect at
December 31, 1992:
1993 19 1995 1996 1997 Thereafler Total

Minimum Rentals. . ............... $101.4 $80.0 $63.2 $51.4 $465 $4078 87503

Note G — INCOME TAXES
The provision for income taxes is summarized as follows:

1992 1991 1990
Federal:
L8 T o] O O O $810.3 $9089 § 8431
Deferred, net ......cccuvvvrorrernsnnnsosss (74.4) (276.5) (140.2)
Investment tax credits, net . ................ (87.9) (1088) (1284)
648.0 5236 5745
State:
EIERONE o v et e e e e e R e AT 134.2 1528 1322
Deferred, mot . ....cviivivivvarannsnaiins 18.6 (29.5) 1.2
152.8 123.3 133.4
Total provision for income taxes . ... ...... $8008 $6469 8§ 7079
Amortization of investment tax credits .. ........ $B32 %£1053 $1265




BELLSOUTH TELECOMMUNICATIONS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(Dollars in Millions)

Note G — INCOME TAXES (Continued)
The components of deferred tax, net, resuiting from timing differences in the recognition of
revenue and expense items for tax and financial reporting purposes, were as follows:

1 1991 1990
Property, plant and equipment ................ $ (8.4) $(130.2) $ (104)
Pension benefits . . .......... sl e aisleiun a aiain win (61.6) (61.3) (40.2)
Other timing differences . . .. ....... ... .00 vas 42 (11456) (B7.T)
) B T SIS R $(55.8) $(306.0) $£(139.0)

A reconciliation of the Federal statutory income tax rate to BellSouth Telecommunications’
effective tax rate follows:

1992 1991 1990
Federal statutory taxrate ..........cco0ecauns M40% MR MHI%
State income taxes, net of Federal income tax benefit 4.2% 38% 3.7%
Amortization of investment taxcredits . . . ........ (8.7%) (5.1%) (5.5%)
Miscellaneous items, net ............. .00 (14%) (1.6%) (1.5%)
Effectivetax rate . .......ccovevnrararnsssss E‘l 9_1_.2‘% w

Effective January 1, 1993, BellSouth Telecommunications adopted SFAS 109, *Accounting for
Income Taxes,” which requires companies to compute deferred income taxes usinga liability approach
rather than the deferred method previously required under Accounting Principles Board Opinion
No. 11. BellSouth Telecommunications does not anticipate a significant impact to expense or net
income as a result of implementing SFAS 109, However, because BellSouth Telecommunications is
subject to accounting rules applicable to regulated entities, the ultimate financial impact will depend
on the future regulatory treatment.

Note H — ADDITIONAL INCOME STATEMENT DATA
1991 1991 19590

Interest Expense:
Longtermdebt ........covvvvvvcncnninnrans $530.2 $533.0 §534.2
Notespayable . . .......ovvvvivrininsninnns 27.2 48.6 69.6
O 0 e e T e B AT 25.9 67.9 324
| P e MRS e ot | 1 $589.0 $6408 0262
Depreciation of telephone plant as a percentage of
average depreciable telephone plant. .. .......... 767% 7.76% T7.74%

In the aggregate, access revenue, revenue from billing and collection activities and rental of
facilities were approximately 30%, 31% and 32% of revenues for 1992, 1991 and 19890, respectively.
Substantially all of such revenues were from services provided to American Telephone and Telegraph
Company, BellSouth Telecommunications’ largest customer.




BELLSOUTH TELECOMMUNICATIONS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contlnued)
(Dollars in Millions)

Note I — SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION

The following supplemental information is presented in accordance with the provisions of SFAS
85, "'Statement of Cash Flows":

1991 1991 19%0
Cash paid for Interest and Income Taxes:
1T R i S N 1 4 i A S e e SETB£ $634.1 HDE_?
i Y R R i e D A I L $050.56 §992.7 $928.1
Net assets (liabilities) transferred to BellSouth
Telecommunications . ....vvevveeersnrrrecnnrsosees $(47.3) § (0.8) 8 274

Note ] — TRANSACTIONS WITH AFFILIATES

BellSouth Telecommunications has & contractual sgreement with BellSouth Advertising & Pub-
lishing Corporation (“BAPCO"), an affiliated company, wherein BAPCO publishes certain telephone
directories and in return pays BellSouth Telecommunications a publishing rights fee in its franchise
area. For the years ended December 31, 1092, 1991 and 1990, these fees, included in Other revenues,
were $508.2, $5680.1 and $549.0, respectively.
Note K — FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The following information is presented in accordance with the provisions of SFAS 107, " Disclo-
sures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments":
Cash and Cash Equivalents

At December 31, 1992, the recorded amount of $133.0 for cash and cash equivalents approximates
fair value due to the short-term nature of these instruments.
Debt

See Note D for disclosures about the fair value of debt.

Note L — QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)

In the following summary of quarterly financial information, all adjustments necessary for a fair
presentation of each period have been included:

Flrnl Second Third Fourth
1992
Operating Revenues . .. ..........c00evenvenens $3,2686 $3,310.3 $£3,311.1 83,2021
DETRtIng IRO0RIE " o'y o boe e d v niva e e el e B e $ B0OB § BIGE & 6979 § 609.1
Income Before Extraordinary Loss on Eerly
Extinguishment of Debt . ... .................. $ 4675 $ 4419 § 9801 & 3255
Extraordinary Loss on Early Extinguishment of Debt . - - $ (40.7) -
e[ T LN g e <o L o Lo § 4676 § 4419 § 3394 § 3265
1991
Operating Revenues . . . ........covvnunnnenn... $3,161.1 $3,195.7 83,2338 83,1768
Operating Incomo . ... ..ot $ 7083 $ 6763 % 6571 & 6799
Dok OO . o caemas s v $ 3728 § 3484 § 28374 8§ 3672




ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
No change in accountants or disagreements on the adoption of appropriate accounting standards

or financial disclosure have occurred during the periods included in this report.
PART IV

ITEM 14. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES AND REPORTS ON FORM 8-K
a. Documents filed as a part of the report:

Pagein)
(1) Selected Financial and Operating Data . . .. ... ..o 14
Management's Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations . .. .. ... 15 - 21
Report of Management ............cooeesrsscaronsonncascssss 22
Audit Committee Chairman's Letter. . ...........covrvivarinrees 23
Report of Independent Accountants . .........cooiiuenrnaaracenns 24
Consolidated Financial Statements:
Consolidated Statements of Income and Retained Earnings . . . ......... 25
Consolidated Balance Sheels ... ..... .. 0t rnrenirioasrnnas 26
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows . ... ....... . i 27
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements . . ....... .0 cvvviineanen 28 - 35
(2) Financial Statement Schedules:
V. — Property, Plant and Equipment .............cc0covieeanns 30 - 40
VI. — Accumulated Depreciation . ... ..... .o iiiiiiniiiinaren 41 - 42
V111, — Allowance for Uncollectibles . .............ccvvivviarnrns 43
X. — Supplementary Income Statement Information............... 44

Financial statement schedules other than those listed above have been omitted because the
required information is contained in the financial statements and notes thereto or because such
schedules are not required or applicable.
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Exhibits:
Exhibits identified in parentheses below, on file with the SEC, are incorporated
herein by reference as exhibits hereto.

Exhibli
Number

Ja

ad
4

10

12

24

Restated Articles of Incorporation of BellSouth Telecommunications, Inc,
(Exhibit 3a to Form 10-K for the year ended December a1, 1991, File Na.
1-1049).

Bylaws of BellSouth Telecommunications, Inc.

No instrument which defines the rights of holders of long and intermediate
term debt of BellSouth Telecommunications, Inc. is filed herewith pursuant
to Regulation S-K, Item 601(b)(4)(iii)(A). Pursuant to this regulation,
BellSouth Telecommunications, Inc. hereby agrees to furnish a copy of any
such instrument to the SEC upon request.

Agreement Concerning Contingent Liabilities, Tax Matters and Termination

of Certain Agreements among BellSouth and each of its telephone
subsidiaries and AT&T and its affilistes dated as of November 1, 1983,

(Exhibit 10h to Form 10-K for the year anded December 31, 1983, File No.
1-1049),

Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges. (Puge 14 of this Form
10-K.)

Powers of Attorney.

b. Heports on Form B-K:

None
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Pursuant to the requirements of Section 18 or 16(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly
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BELLSOUTH TELECOMMUNICATIONS, INC.

/s/ Larry L. Schoolar

Vice President and Comptroller
February 22, 1993

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed
below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the date

indicated.

PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER:
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President and Chiefl Executive Officer
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AND PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING OFFICER:
Larry L. Schoolar*®

Vice President and Comptroller
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*By: /s/ Larry L. Schoolar

(Individually and as Attorney-In-Fact)
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BELLSOUTH TELECOMMUNICATIONS, INC.
SCHEDULE V — PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Year Ended December 31, 1992
(Dollars In Millions)

COL. A COL. B CoL.C COL. D COL-E COL.F

Halance al Additions Balance

Dw of sl Cost Retiremenis Oiber ot End of

Classification (m} {b) Changes Period
Land & Land Improvements. ....... § 1641 8 11 $ 00 § 1.1 & 1563
Buildings & Building Improvements . . . 2,385.5 244 (9.1) 75.0 2475.8
Leasehold Improvements . ......... 78.9 (0.4) (2.0) 8.7 80.2
Operating & Other Equipment , .. ... T17.7 732 (32.4) 19.0 777.6
Furniture & Fixtures . ............ 1,958.0 178.2 (260.9) 111.4 1,996.7
Central Office Equipment. . ........ 13,182.3 166.9 (655.8) 11,1005 13,8939
Outside Plant .................. 17,050.8 653.0(N (184.8) 304.56 178135
Station Equipment. . ............. 1,267.2 484 (708.9) 59 612.6
Capital Leases . ............000.. 704 a.8 (11.9) (0.1} 62.2
Construction in Progress .......... 2646 1,753.70g) 00 (1,578.2) 440.1
Other PIant . . oon e sensimi i 256 24.7 (0.3) (34.4) 15.6
Total Property, Plant and

EGUIPMBRt . o 4.0 oa'nniosisesianns $37,165.0 $2,927.0 $(1,786.1) $ B4 §38,924.3

Year Ended December 31, 1991
(Dollars In Millions)

COL. A COL. B COL. C COL D

COL. E COL. F

Balance at Additions
of st Conl Relirements

(Hher Balance
Changes at End of
Period

Classification (s} i) i)
Land & Land Improvements. . ... ... § 1521 8 08 $ 00 § 1.2 § 1541
Buildings & Building Improvements . . . 2,315.1 259 (8.9) 534 2,385.5
Leasehold Improvements .......... 56.9 0.9 (1.7 228 78.9
Operating & Other Equipment . . . . .. 539.2 B6.5 (34.7) 126.7 7.7
Furniture & Fixtures . .. .......... 1,770.4 143.3 (214.9) 250.2 1,958.0
Central Office Equipment. . ........ 12,4679 201.7 (7986} 1,311.3 13,1823
Outside Plant ........o0vvvunens 16,340.8 674.2(0 (240.5) 276.3 17,050.8
Station Equipment............... 1,399.1 52.0 (189.1) 6.2 1,267.2
Capital Leases . . ............0... 59.9 227 (66.0) 42,8 704
Construction in Progress .......... 3943 1,682.0(g) 0.7 (1,812.4) 264.6
OtherPlant .. .....covvvvennnns. 286.6 0.3 (0.4) ( 261.0) 25.56
Total Property, Plant and
Equipment ... eauassiesessss £35,782.3 $2,890.3 $(1,643.1) § 255 $37,155.0

The notes on page 40 are an integral part of this schedule.
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BELLSOUTH TELECOMMUNICATIONS, INC,
SCHEDULE V — PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Year Ended December 31, 1990
(Dollars In Millions)

ClH. A COL. B COL. C COL. D COLE COL. F
.:f ot Cﬂl' Hetirements Changes End H..

Classification 'm (a) (b) [13] Perlod
Land & Land Improvements . ........ $§ 1493 § 30 § 02 $00 & 1521
Buildings & Building Improvements . . . 2,240.1 B4.7 (8.4) (0.3) 2,316.1
Leasehold Improvements. . .......... 56.6 4.8 (3.5) 0.0 56.9
Operating & Other Equipment ....... 534.1 50.2 44.7) (04) 539.2
Furniture & Fixtures .............. 1,643.3 288.9 (161.5) (0.3) 1,770.4
Central Office Equipment . .......... 11,720.0  1,5645.8(e) (794.8) (3.1) 124679
Outside Plant . . . . ..o vvvncnnrannsn 15,656.6 987.6(0 (194.5) (B9 16,3408
Station Equipment . . .............. 2,163.0 70.9 (834.4) (04) 1,399.1
Copitel Leases ......... 0000000, 93.2 8.7 (42.0) 0.0 59.9
Construction in Progress. . .......... 414.9 (18.6) (2.0) 0.0 394.3
OtherPlant (d) . . .. ovvvevrvernnras 249.9 28.9 (37.2) 4560 286.6

Total Property, Plant and
Equipment. . ..covuseesiansieass £34,820.0 23,0549 £(2,124.2) $31.8 $£35782.3
NOTES TO SCHEDULE V

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

N

(g)

Additions shown include: (1) the original cost (estimated if not known) of reused maierial, which
is concurrently eredited to material and supplies, and (2) interest charged construction.

Items of telephone plant when retired or sold are deducted from the property accounts at the
amounts at which they are included therein, estimated if not known.

Amounts in COL, E, — Other Changes for the year ended December 31, 1991 represent primarily
the reclassification of beginning balances of property, plant and equipment for all BellSouth
Telecommunications, Inc. companies other than South Central Bell and Southern Bell to conform
to current year presentation. Amounts for the year ended December 31, 1990 have not been
restated because detailed activity was not available,

Amounts represent primarily operating equipment, data processing equipment, aircraft, capital
leases, furniture and fixtures and leasehold improvements,

The material components of additions to Central Office Equipment are analog switching equip-
ment, digital electronic switching equipment and circuit equipment.

The material components of additions to Outside Plant are aerial, underground and buried cable,
and conduit systems.

The material components of Construction in Progress are Central Office Equipment, Outside
Plant and Data Processing Equipment.



BELLSOUTH TELECOMMUNICATIONS, INC.
SCHEDULE VI — ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

Year Ended December 31, 1990
{Dollars In Millions)

COL. A COL B COL.C COLD  COLE COL. F
II‘-t o m i End of
ClassiBestion hm l:p-nwm Rellrements (b) i ‘I'nlul
Buildings & Building Improvements. ... $§ 4877 § 53.1 $ (126) 8§ 01 § 5283
Leasehold Improvements. .. ........ 26.8 7.9 (3.9) (0.1) 30.7
Operating & Other Equipment . ..... 197.4 48.6 (42.1) 1.5 205.4
Furniture & Fixtures . ............ 622.1 218.1 (148.4) 4.3 696.1
Central Office Equipment . ......... 3,688.0 1,081.0(e) (768.9) 214 4,032.5
Outside Plant . . . . ..covvnnnninnnn 5,522.8 B38.1(M) (205.0) (6.1) 6,149.8
Station Equipment . .. ............ 1,698.7 166.4 (B28.4) 2.6 1,039.2
Capital Leases .........cnvuvenns 57.7 15.5 (42.0) 0.4 a16
Depreciation Reserve Imbalance (c) . . . (566.8) 267.5 0.0 0.1 (299.2)
Other Plant (d). . .o oo vsnvinsanss 109.4 314 (33.5) 214 128.7
Total Accumulated Depreciation. ... $11,844.8 §2,727.6 $(2074.8) § 4656 $12,643.1
NOTES TO SCHEDULE V1
(a) Depreciation as stated in the statements of income includes certain minor amounts which are not

(b)

{c)

(d)

(e)

in

eredited to this account.

Amounts in COL. E — Other Changes for the year ended December 31, 1991 represent primarily
the reclassification of beginning balances of accumulated depreciation of all BellSouth Telocom-
munications, Inc. companies other than South Central Bell and Southern Bell to conform to
current year presentation. Amounts for the year ended December 31, 1990 have not been restated
because detailed activity was not available,

Classification authorized by the FCC and state regulatory commissions to improve capital
recovery.

Amounts represent primarily operating equipment, data processing equipment, aireraft, capital
leases, furniture and fixtures and leaschold improvements.

The material components of additions to Central Office Equipment are analog switching equip-
ment, digital electronic switching equipment and circuit equipment.

The material components of additions to Outside Plant are aerial, underground and buried cable,
and conduit systems.




BELLSOUTH TELECOMMUNICATIONS, INC,
SCHEDULE VI — ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

Year Ended December 31, 1992

(Dollars In Millions)

COL. A COLL B OOl C COL. D COL.E COL. F
Nalance “-I Additions Balance sl

A .= ol 7 RO A T
Buildings & Building Improvements , . . . . § 5696 $§ 502 S (900 $00 $ 6108
Leasehold Improvements . . ... ... .. . . 423 4.7 (2.0) (0.8) 44.2
Operating & Other Equipment ... .. .. 304.0 53.0 (32.5) a9 328.4
Furniture & Fixtures ."........... .. B56.0 34.8 (250.7) 1.7 941.8
Central Office Equipment .. ......... 4,406.0  1,354.9) (655.8) (0.2) 5,204.9
Outslde Plant . .7 . i Sy i B6,730.8 835.7(0 (194.8) 0.1 7,380.8
Station Equipment . ............... 933.2 124.7 (708.9) 0.1 9.1
Capital Leases ................... 259 14.7 (11.9) (0.1) 28.6
Deprecintion Reserve Imbalance (c) ., .. 36.5 87.2 0.0 0.1 123.8
Total Accumulated Depreciation . . . . . $13,913.3 $2859.9 $(1,765.6) $4.8 $15012.4

Year Ended December 31, 1991
(Dollars In Millions)

COL. A COL. B COL. C COL. D COLE COL. ¥
Balance I:‘ Additiony Other mu

Classlficalion Expense t: Retlrements (L] Prriod
Buildings & Building Improvements .. § 5283 $ 524 § (119 8 08 $ 5696
Leasehold Improvements . ... ... .. 30.7 B.2 (2.3) 5.7 423
Operating & Other Equipment . . . , . 205.4 62.8 (30.5) 66.3 304.0
Furniture & Fixtures......,..... 696.1 265.7 (155.0) 49.2 856.0
Central Office Equipment . . —— 403256 1,1684(e) (TB4.5) (0.4) 4,408.0
Outside Plant ................. 6,149.8 B57.8(0 (267.5) (0.3) 6,739.8
Station Equipment ............. 1,039.2 68.8 (176.0) 1.2 9332
Capital Leases . . ............... 1.6 17.8 (68.5) Jd6.0 259
Depreciation Reserve Imbalance (¢) . (299.2) 273.1 0.0 62.6 36.5
Other Plant . .................. 128.7 0.0 00 (1287 00
Total Accumulated Depreciation . . $12,643.1 82,7650 $(1,487.2) § 924 3139133

The notes on page 42 are an integral part of this Schedule.
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BELLSOUTH TELECOMMUNICATIONS, INC,
SCHEDULE VIII — VALUATION AND QUALIFYING AC'COUNTS
(Dollars In Millions)

Allowance for Uncollectibles
COL. A COL. B COL.C COL. D COL. E
Additions
Balance st Charged o Charged 1o Balance
Deductions End
Im of ll:l-‘ Othar w - AL of
Year Ended December 31,

1992 $85.0 1222 147.8 2678 $87.2

1991 $79. 139.8 141.7 278.1 $85.0

1990 $82.7 107.6 112.1 2227 $79.6

(a) Provision for uncollectibles as stated in the statements of income includes certain minor uncol-
lectible items which are written off directly and not credited to the allowance account.

(b) Amounts include increases to this account for anticipated uncollectibles related to purchased
receivables and for recoveries of amounts previously written off.

{c) Amounts written off as uncollectible.
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BELLSOUTH TELECOMMUNICATIONS, INC,
SCHEDULE X — SUPPLEMENTARY INCOME STATEMENT INFORMATION
For the Three Years Ended December 3, 1992
(Dollars In Millions)

COL. A COL. B
Item Charged 1o Costs or Expenses
1992 1991 1990

5T ] bt T s g ) | g P . 34,642.7 $2,349.7 $26776
Taxes, Other Than Income and Payroll-related
PRODOTLY . vvooononiosninmsbaiinn b nis o esssssssi i $ 4002 £ 309.1 § 3829
CIEOMS FEORIDLE . oo 0vinin s he g B DA 2 08 S0 e 4 i hih 145.8 137.7 134.7
[ [ 77 T Sy« vl )= = £ s 2 NP 247 249 2356

Total Taxes, Other Than Income and Payroll-related . ... $§ 570.7 § 561.7 £ 5411







SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

(i3] ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d)
OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the fiscal year ended December 31, 1994

OR

O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d)
OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from to
Commission file number 1-1049

BellSouth Telecommunications, Inc.
A Georgia LR.S. Employer
Corporation No. 5B-0436120
675 West Peachtree Streel, N, E,, Atlanta, Georgin 30375
Telephone number 404 529-8611
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act:

Name of each exchange
Title of each class on which registered

See Attachment. New York

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act:
None.

At March 7, 1995 one share of Common Stock was outstanding.

THE REGISTRANT, A WHOLLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARY OF BELLSOUTH CORPORATION,
MEETS THE CONDITIONS SET FORTH IN GENERAL INSTRUCTION J(1){a) AND (b) OF
FORM 10-K AND IS THEREFORE FILING THIS FORM WITH REDUCED
DISCLOSURE FORMAT PURSUANT TO GENERAL INSTRUCTION J(2).

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation 8-K is not
contained herein, and will not be contained, to the best of registrant’s knowledge, in definitive proxy
or information statements incorporated by reference in Part I1I of this Form 10-K or any amendment
to this Form 10-K. [NOT APPLICABLE]

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by
Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such
shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such
filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes X No

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE:
None.




Attachment

tle of each class

\ DEBENTURES

lssues denominated as South Central Bell Telephone Company Debentures

$100,000,000 Principal Amount of Forty Year 7%% Debentures, due August 1, 2012
£210,000,000 Principal Amount of Forty Year B¥% Debentures, due March 1, 2017
$300,000,000 Principal Amount of Forty Year B¥% Debentures, due August 1, 2029

¥
|

Issues denominated as Southern Bell Telephone and Telegraph Company Debentures

$30,000,000 Principal Amount of Forty Year 3%% Debentures, due October 15, 1995
£75,000,000 Principal Amount of Thirty-Seven Year 5% Debentures, due December 1, 1997
70,000,000 Principal Amount of Thirty-Seven Year 4%% Debentures, due March 1, 1998
$75,000,000 Principal Amount of Thirty-Nine Year 4%% Debentures, due April 1, 2001
70,000,000 Principal Amount of Forty Year 4%% Debentures, due August 1, 2003
$100,000,000 Principal Amount of Thirty-Five Year 4%% Debentures, due September 1, 2000
£100,000,000 Principal Amount of Thirty-Eight Year 6% Cebentures, due October 1, 2004
$150,000,00C Principal Amount of Thirty-Eight Year TH% Debentures, due July 15, 2010
£350,000,000 Principal Amount of Forty Year T%% Debentures, due March 15, 2013
$275,000,000 Principal Amount of Forty Year 84% Debentures, due May 1, 2017
$300,000,000 Principal Amount of Thirty-Eight Year 8%% Debentures, due November 1, 2024
£500,000,000 Principal Amount of Forty Year 8%% Debentures, due September 1, 2026
£300,000,000 Principal Amount of Forty Year B%% Debentures, due August 1, 2029

BellSouth Telecommunications, Inc.

$250,000,000 Principal Amount of Forty Year 8Y% Debentures, due July 1, 2032
£300,000,000 Principal Amount of Forty Year 7%% Debentures, due August 1, 2032
£300,000,000 Principal Amount of Forty Year 7%% Debentures, due June 15, 2033
350,000,000 Principal Amount of Fifteen Year 5%% Debentures, due January 15, 2009
$400,000,000 Principal Amount of Forty Year 6%% Debentures, due October 15, 2033

NOTES

BellSouth Telecommunications, Inc.

£275,000,000 Principal Amount of Seven Year 6% Notes, Due February 1, 2000
$150,000,000 Principal Amount of Twelve Year 7% Notes, Due February 1, 2005
£450,000,000 Principal Amount of Ten Year 614% Notes, Due May 156, 2003
200,000,000 Principal Amount of Eleven Year 6%% Notes, Due June 15, 2004




Attachment

Title of each class

DEBENTURES

Issues denominated as South Central Bell Telephone Company Debentures

$100,000,000 Principal Amount of Forty Year T%% Debentures, due August 1, 2012
$210,000,000 Principal Amount of Forty Year B¥% Debentures, due March 1, 2017
$300,000,000 Principal Amount of Forty Year 84% Debentures, due August 1, 2029

Issues denominated as Southern Bell Telephone and Telegraph Company Debentures

£30,000,000 Principal Amount of Forty Year 3%4% Debentures, due October 15, 1995
275,000,000 Principal Amount of Thirty-Seven Year 5% Debentures, due December 1, 1997
$70,000,000 Principal Amount of Thirty-Seven Year 4%% Debentures, due March 1, 1995
$756,000,000 Principal Amount of Thirty-Nine Year 4%% Debentures, due April 1, 2001
70,000,000 Principal Amount of Forty Year 44% Debentures, due August 1, 2003
$100,000,000 Principal Amount of Thirty-Five Year 4¥% Debentures, due September 1, 2000
$100,000,000 Principal Amount of Thirty-Eight Year 6% Debentures, due October 1, 2004
$150,000,000 Principal Amount of Thirty-Eight Year TW% Debentures, due July 15, 2010
$350,000,000 Principal Amount of Forty Year 7%% Debentures, due March 15, 2013
$275,000,000 Principal Amount of Forty Year B4% Debentures, due May 1, 2017
£300,000,000 Principal Amount of Thirty-Eight Year 8%% Debentures, due November 1, 2024
£500,000,000 Principal Amount of Forty Year 8%% Debentures, due September 1, 2026
$300,000,000 Principal Amount of Forty Year B4% Debentures, due August 1, 2026

BellSouth Telecommunications, Inc.

S250,000,000 Principal Amount of Forty Year BYW% Debentures, due July 1, 20062
£300,000,000 Principal Amount of Forty Year T%% Debentures, due August 1, 2032
£300,000,000 Principal Amount of Forty Year 7%% Debentures, due June 15, 2033
£350,000,000 Principal Amount of Fifteen Year 5%% Debentures, due January 15, 2009
400,000,000 Principal Amount of Forty Year 6%% Debentures, due October 15, 2033

NOTES

BellSouth Telecommunications, Ine.

$276,000,000 Principal Amount of Seven Year 6% Notes, Due February 1, 2000
£150,000,000 Principal Amount of Twelve Year 7% Notes, Due February 1, 20056
$450,000,000 Principal Amount of Ten Year 6% Notes, Due May 15, 2003
$200,000,000 Principal Amount of Eleven Year 6%% Notes, Due June 15, 2004
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PART I
ITEM 1. BUSINESS
GENERAL

BellSouth Telecommunications, Inc. (BellSouth Telecommunications), a corporation wholly-
owned by BellSouth Corporation (BellSouth), is the surviving corporation from the merger, effective
at midnight December 31, 1091, of South Central Bell Telephone Company (South Central Bell) and
Southern Bell Telephone and Telegraph Company (Southern Bell). BellSouth Telecommunications
provides predominantly tariffed wireline teleccommunications services to approxiimately two-thirds of
the population and one-half of the territory within Alabama, Florida, Georgia, Kentucky, Louisiana,
Mississippi, North Carolina, South Carolina and Tennessec. These areas were previously served by
South Central Bell and Southern Bell. BellSouth Telecommunications continues to use the names
South Central Bell and Southern Bell for various purposes.

South Central Bell was incorporated in 1967 under the laws of the State of Delaware and
Southern Bell was incorporated in 1879 under the laws of the State of New York. On December 31,
1983, pursuant to a consent decree approved by the United States District Court for the District of
Columbia (the D. C. District Court) entitled “Modification of Final Judgment” (the MFJ) settling
antitrust litigation brought by the United States Department of Justice (the Justice Department) in
1974 and the related Plan of Rearganization (the POR), American Telephone and Telegraph Company,
now AT&T Corp. (AT&T), transferred to BellSouth its 100% ownership of South Central Bell and
Southern Bell. On the same date, South Central Bell and Southern Bell were reincorporated through
mergers into Georgia corporations. On January 1, 1984, ownership of BellSouth was divested from
AT&T and BellSouth became a publicly traded company.

BellSouth Telecommunications has its principal executive offices at 6756 West Peachtree Street,
N.E., Atlanta, Georgia 30375 (telephone number 404-529-8611),

MODIFICATION OF FINAL JUDGMENT

Pursuant to the MFJ, AT&T divested the 22 wholly-owned operating telephone companies,
including South Central Bell and Southern Bell, that were formerly part of the Bell System, The
ownership of such 22 operating telephone companies was transferred by AT&T to seven holding
companies (the Holding Companies), including BellSouth. All territory in the continental United
States served by the operating telephone companies was divided into geographical areas termed
“'Local Access and Transport Areas' (LATAs). These LATAs are generally centered on a city or other
identifiable community of interest.

The MFJ limits the telecommunications-related scope of the post-divestiture business activities
of the operating telephone companies and their successors (the Operating Telephone Companies), and
the D. C. District Court retained jurisdiction over construction, implementation, modification and
enforcement of the MFJ®, Under the MFJ, the Operating Telephone Companies may provide local
exchange, exchange access, information access and toll telecommunications services within the
LATAs. Although prohibited from providing service between LATAs, the Operating Telephone Com-
panies provide exchange access services that link a subscriber’s telephone or other equipment in one
of their LATASs to the transmission facilities of carriers (the Interexchange Carriers), which provide
toll telecommunications services between different LATAs. The Operating Telephone Companies may
market, but not manufacture, customer premises equipment (CPE), which is defined in the MFJ as
equipment used on customers’ premises to originate, route or terminate telecommunications. A

* The provisions of the MFJ are applicable also to the Holding Companies.




similar restriction applies to the manufacture or provision of *‘telecommunications equipment,”
which is defined in the MFJ as including equipment used by carriers to provide telecommunications
services,

The D.C. District Court has established procedures for obtaining generic and specific waivers
from the manufacturing and interLATA communications restrictions of the MFJ, although the re-
quired filings with and review by the Justice Department and the D.C. District Court usually result in
lengthy and uncertain proceedings. The foregoing restrictions present significant obstacles to the
provision of certain wireless, cable television and other communications services and require that
such business operations, even where waivers are ultimately obtained, be conducted under burden-
some arrangements or subject to elaborate structural separation or other conditions. BellSouth is a
party to litigation and is advocating legislation intended to remove or relax the MFJ restrictions. (See
“Competition — BellSouth Telecommunications’ Competitive Strategy."')

The MFJ requires the Operating Telephone Companies to provide, upon a bona fide request by
any Interexchange Carrier or information service provider, exchange access, information access and
exchange services for such access that will be equal to that provided to AT&T in quality, type and
price. BellSouth Telecommunications believes it is in compliance with this requirement.

BUSINESS OPERATIONS

Approximately 86% of BellSouth Telecommunications' operating revenues for the years ended
December 31, 1994, 1993 and 1992, respectively, were from wireline telecommunications services and
the remainder of revenues was principally from directory publishing fees, CPE sales and maintenance
and other nonregulated services,

Certain communications services and products are provided to business customers by BellSouth
Business Systems, Inc., BellSouth Communication Systems, Inc. and Dataserv, Inc., subsidinries of
BellSouth Telecommunications. Respectively, these companies provide sales, marketing, product
management and customer service for DellSouth Telecommunications’ large business customers
within traditional telephone operating company service areas and nationwide; sell, install and main-
tain CPE; and maintain and provide parts and integration services for computer and data processing
equipment.

Revenues from services provided to AT&T, BellSouth Telecommunications’ largest customer,
comprised approximately 13%, 16% and 16% of 1994, 1993 and 1892 operating revenues, respectively.

TELEPHONE COMPANY (OPERATIONS

BellSouth Telecommunications provides services, which include local exchange, exchange access
and intralLATA toll services, within each of the 38 LATAs in its combined nine-state operating area.
BellSouth Telecommunications experienced an increase in access lines of approximately B87,400
during 1994, resulting in a total of 20,220,000 lines at December 31, 1994, The overall increase of 4.6%
was primarily attributable to continued economic improvement in BellSouth Telecommunications’
nine-state service region and an increase in the number of second residential lines. Second residential
lines accounted for npproximately 23% of the overall increase in access lines since December 31, 1993,
(See “Management's Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations — Volumes of Business.”)

At December 31, 1994, approximately 76% of access lines were in 53 metropolitan areas, sach
having a population of 125,000 or more, Many localities and some sizable arcas in the states in which
BellSouth Telecommunications operates are served by non-affiliated telephone companies, which had
approximately 29% of the network access lines in such states on December 31, 1984, BellSouth
Telecommunications does not furnish loeal exchange, access or toll services in the areas served by such
companies.




Local And Toll Services

Charges for local services for each of the years ended December 31, 1994, 1993 and 1992 ac-
connted for approximately 48%, 48% and 47%, respectively, of BellSouth Telecommunications’ operat-
ing revenues, Local services operations provide lines from telephone exchange offices to subscribers'
premises for the origination and termination of telecommunications including the following: basic
local telephone service provided through the regulur switching network; dedicated private line facili-
ties for voice and special services, such as transport of data, radio and video and foreign exchange
services; switching services for customers' internal communications through facilities owned by
BellSouth Telecommunications; services for data transport that include managing and configuring
special service networks; and dedicated low or high capacity public or private digital networks. Other
local services revenue is derived from intercept and directory assistance, public telephones and
various secondary central office features.

Secondary central office features may be purchased by access line subscribers for a charge in
addition to the basic monthly fee. They include Custom Calling service (including Call Waiting, 3-Way
Calling, Call Forwarding and Speed Dialing services) and Touchtone service. During 1994, revenues
from secondary central office features comprised approximately 17% of local service revenues.

In addition to secondary central office features, BellSouth Telecommunications offers certain
enhanced services through its network. Enhanced services differ from basic services and secondary
central office features in that they employ computer processing applications to alter the subscriber’s
transmitted information; provide the subseriber additional, different or restructured information; or
involve subscriber interaction with stored information. The terms of enhanced service offerings are
not regulated under the rules of the Federal Communications Commission (FCC), but the FCC
prescribes the method by which such services may be provided (for example, through structurally
separated subsidiaries or arrangements providing access to competitive providers). Such offerings
include voice messaging and storage services, such as MemoryCall® voice messaging service.

BellSouth Telecommunications provides intraLATA toll services within, but not between, its 38
LATAs, Such toll services provided approximately 8%, 9% and 10% of BellSouth Telecommunications®
operating revenues for the years ended December 31, 1994, 1993 and 1892, respectively. These
services include the following: intralLATA service beyond the local calling area; Wide Area Telecom-
munications Service ("'WATS" or “B00" services! [or customers with highly concentrated demand;
and special services, such as transport of data, radio and video,

BellSouth Telecommunications is subject to state regulatory authorities in each state in which it
provides telecommunications services with respect to intrastate rates, services and other issues.
Traditionally, BellSouth Telecommunications' rates were set in each state in its service areas at levels
which were anticipated to generate revenues sufficient to cover its allowed expenses and to provide an
opportunity to earn a fair return on its capital investment. Such a regulatory structure was satisfac-
tory in a less competitive era; however, BellSouth Telecommunications is currently advocating
changes to the regulatory processes responsive to the increasingly competitive telecommunications
environment. Modified forms of stute regulation are in effect in Alabama, Florida, Georgia, Kentucky,
Louisiana, Mississippi and Tenneasee,

Under one such modified form of reguletion, economic incentives are provided to lower costs and
increase productivity through the potential availability of “shared” earnings over a benchmark rate of
return. Generally, when levels asbove targeted returns are reached, earnings are “shared" by provid-
ing refunds or rate reductions to customers. The amounts of any such excess that may be retained
under some plans depend upon attaining mandated service standards, certain productivity improve-
ment provisions or both. Some sharing plans have a maximum point above which all earnings must be
returned to customers. Under some plans, if earnings fall below a targeted minimum, additional
carnings required to return to the bottom of the allowed range can be obtained through rate increases
Sharing plans are generally subject to renewal after two or three years, and may be subject to
modification prior to renewal.




Despite the potentinl advantages offered by sharing plans, substantial rate reductions have been
incurred in connection with their adoption and operation. Of the states in which these types of plans
wore in place, BellSouth Telecommunications attained the earnings sharing range in Alabama, Flor-

ida, Kentucky and Louisiana in 1994,

Another form of regulation focuses on the prices that can be charged for telecommunications
services. While such a plan limits the amount of increase for specified services, it enhances the
company's ability to adjust prices and service options to more effectively respond to changing market
conditions and competition, For these reasons, BellSouth Telecommunications is focusing its regula-
tory and legislative efforts on replacing existing plans with price regulation. The Florida, Georgia,
North Carolina and Tennessee legislatures are considering bills that would provide for or allow price
regulation and/or local exchange competition. (See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Re-
sults of Operations — Operating Environment and Trends of the Business.")

Alabama

An incentive regulation plan has been in effect in Alabama since December 1988, which provides
for & return on average total capital® in the range of 11.65% to 12.30%. If earnings exceed 12.30% or
drop below 11,66%, sharing with customers may range from 50% to 100%, depending upon whether
cortain service and efficiency requirements are met,

In December 1993, in conjunction with approval of rate adjustments required by its incentive
plans, the Alabama Public Service Commission approved a settlement of several outstanding issues,
The settlement resulted in a net rate reduction to the company of $15.7 million.

As o result of the first, second and third quarter filings under the plan in effect, the Alabama
Commission accepted rate reductions of $13.1 million in April 1994, $16.4 million in July 1994 and
$8.9 million in October 1994,

In February 1995, BellSouth Telocommunications filed u proposed price regulation plan with the
Alabama Commission. The proposal includes provisions that basic rates for residential and business
customers would not increase for five years, intrastate switched access prices would be capped at the
interstate level for five years and the company would reduce rates by $30 million.

Florida

From 1988 through 1992, the Florida incentive plan provided for a return on equity® of 11.5% to
16%, with earnings above 14% to be shared 40% by BellSouth Telecommunications and 60% by
customers with an after-sharing cap of 16%. The sharing level was not attained under the plan.

In 1993, BellSouth Telecommunications filed a petition to extend the existing plan. In Janu-
ary 1994, after extensive proceedings and negotiations between BellSouth Telecommunications, Pub-
lic Counsel and intervenors, the Florida Public Service Commission approved a settlement that
extends incentive regulation through 1096. Among other things, the terms of the settlement provided
for rate reductions of $55 million in February 1984, an additional $60 million in July 1994, $80 million
in October 1995 and $84 million in October 1996, The settlement provided for other changes in service
offerings and tariffs including approximately $21 million in revenue reductions or increased expenses.
Busic service rates have been capped at their current levels through 1997, and BellSouth Telecommu-
nications has agreed not to propose any local measured service on a statewide basis through the same

time period.

The agreement established n 1894 return on equity sharing level of 12% with an after-sharing cap
of 14%, increasing in 1995 to a 12.5% sharing level with an after-sharing cap of 14.5%. Rates of return
beyond 1995 would vary based upon changes in utility bond yields but would change no more than 75
basis points from 1995 levels.

*= As defined in the plan for this state,




Financial results for 1994 include an accrual for BellSouth Telecommunications’ estimated shar-
ing obligation of $38 million.
Georgia

The Georgia incentive plan adopted in 1990 provided that BellSouth Telecommunications would
retain all earnings up to a 14% return on equity®, Subject to the attainment of service standards and
productivity improvement provisions, BellSouth Telecommunications could retain a portion of earn-
ings between 14% and 16%. The plan also provided for a reduction of rates if earnings exceed & 14%
roturn on equity, even if the service standards and productivity improvement provisions are met. The
amount of any sharing and rate adjustments would depend upon attaining certain service standaords
and productivity improvements. Effective January 1, 1894, the Georgia Public Service Commission
extended the plan for six months and modified the return on equity at which sharing would occur from
14% to 13%. BellSouth Telecommunications has yet to attain the sharing level under the Georgia plan.
However, n proceeding is pending regarding this issue and several parties assert that some sharing ior
the six-month period ending June 30, 1994 may be required; no accrual has been made for sharing
during this period.

In August 1994, the Georgia Commission approved a stafl recommendation to implement a
sharing plan on an interim basis, effective September 1994, until pending decisions regarding ongoing
regulation of the Company are finalized. Earnings between 13.0% and 15.5% would be shared 50/50 by
BellSouth Telecommunications and its customers.

In June 1994, BellSouth Telecommunications filed with the Georgia Commission a proposed price
regulation plan. The proposal includes provisions that basic rates for residentinl and single-line
business customers would not increase for five years and intrastate switched access would not in-
crense for three years, The rates, terms and conditions for interconnection and non-basic services
would be sct by BellSouth Telecommunications based on market considerations. Hearings have been
held, and a decision is pending.

Kentucky

Under the Kentucky incentive regulation plan, BellSouth Telecommunications may earn a return
on average total capital® in the range of 10.99% to 11.61%. Earnings above 11.61% or below 10.99%
are subject to sharing with customers on either a 50/50 or 25/75 basis depending upon the actual rate
of return achieved. BellSouth Telecommunications achieved the sharing level during 1993 and 1994
and reduced rates by $4.2 million in June 1993, $2.2 million in July 1993, §2.7 million in January 1994
and $1.2 million in June 1994,

BellSouth Telecommunications filed with the Kentucky Public Service Commission in
March 1994 a proposed price regulation plan. The proposal includes provisions that basic residential
rates would not increase for three years, residential touch-tone charges would be eliminated over o
four-year period, intrastate switched access charges would be reduced to interstate levels and prices
for non-basic services would be based on market factors. Hearings are scheduled for April 1995,
Louisiana

In February 1992, in settlement of several years of regulatory and judicial proceedings, BellSouth
Telecommunications and the Louisiana Public Service Commission agreed to a three year incentive
regulation plan providing for an immediate 855 million refund, a rate reduction of $31.4 million and
an authorized return on investment® in the range of 10.7% to 11.7%, with sharing of carnings above
11.7% and below 12.7%. Based on 1992 results, BellSouth Telecommunications reduced rates by $13.8
million in February and $7.8 million in August 1993, reflecting its sharing obligation under the new
plan.

* As defined in the plan for this state.



Additionally, effective March 1994, BellSouth Telecommunications was ordered to reduce rates by
$47 million annually and refund approximately $14.6 million for prior periods. This rate adjustment
and refund was associated with the November 1983 expiration of the company's reserve deliciency
amortization. Based on 1994 data, BellSouth Telecommunications reduced rates by $11.1 million,
effective February 1, 1995, reflecting its sharing obligation under the plan.

In January 1994, BellSouth Telecommunications filed a petition with the Louisiana Commission
requesting a price regulation plan. In November 1994, the Louisiana Commission rejected the com-
pany's price regulation plan as filed. The company intends to continue seeking such a plan.

In its February 1995 meeting, the Louisiana Commission extended the current incentive plan
pending further regulatory action. The authorized return on investment was changed to a range of
9.98% to 10.98% with sharing of earnings between 10.98% and 11.958% to reflect the change in the
capital structure and the cost of debt since inception of the plan, The authorized cost of equity was not
changed. The change in the revenue requirement associated with the lower authorized return on
investment will be offset by the recovery of debt refinancing costs and an increase of approximately
$9 million in annual intrastate depreciation expense.

Mississippi

In June 1990, the Mississippi Public Service Commission uuthorized implementation of an
incentive plan that includes a return on average net investment® ranging from 10.74% to 11.74% and
provides that earnings above 11,74% and shortfalls below 10.74% would be shared with customers on
a 50/50 basis. Rate reductions totaling $22.8 million on an annual basis were required prior to
implementation of the plan.

Additional revenue reductions in the amount of $12,8 million related to intrastate access and area
calling plan impacts became effective in January 1993, In June 1983, the Mississippi Commission
renewed, through July 1, 1995 the incentive plan and ordered BellSouth Telecommunications to
reduce rates, effective July 1993, based on a targeted 11.24% return, Effective November 1, 1994,
rates were increased by $8.9 million to provide recovery of the costs associated with a February 1994
ice storm.

In response to an order issued by the Mississippi Commission, BellSouth Telecommunications
filed in September 1994 & model price regulation plan. The proposal includes provisions that basic
exchange and intrastate switched access rates will not increase for three years and the rates for
interconnection services and other services (as defined in the model plan) would be set by BellSouth
Telecommunications based on market considerations, subject to certain defined limitations, Hearings
are scheduled during the second quarter of 1995,

On December 1, 1994, BellSouth Telecommunications filed for an increase in rates of $6.1 million
pursuant to the terms of the incentive plan, The increase was suspended by the Mississippi Commis-

sion while they consider the matter.

Naorth Carolina

In 1989, legislation was enacted in North Carolina authorizing the North Carolina Utilities
Commission to consider alternative forms of regulation. No specific proposal has been approved or is
pending. The North Carolina Commission reviews BellSouth Telecommunications’ rates on an ongo-
ing basis under its traditional rate of return plan.

In November 1993, the North Carolina Commission approved one-time depreciation reserve
deficiency amortizations of $28.5 million and $25 million for 1993 and 1994, respectively. In Decem-
ber 1994, the Commission approved an additional one-time depreciation reserve deficiency amortiza-

tion of £20.4 million for 1994,

* As defined in the plan for this state.




South Carolina

In August 1991, the South Carolina Public Service Commission authorized implementation of an
incentive plan, but in August 1993, the South Carolina Supreme Court ruled that the South Carolina
Commission lacked the statutory authority to approve incentive regulation plans. In April 1994, the
South Carolina Legislature enacted a law which permits the South Carolina Commission to adopt
alternative forms of regulation,

In December 1894, the South Carolina Commission issued an order requiring that rates be
reduced prospectively by approximately $26 million. The Company was also ordered to refund approx-
imately $28.6 million through a one-time credit to all residential and business customers for 1692.
This order has been appealed to the courts. Any consideration of earnings for 1993 and 1994 has been
deluyed pending resolution of the appeal. In establishing rates prospectively, the South Carolina
Commission retained a 13% return on equity* as the allowed return under traditional rate of return

regulation.

Tennessee

In August 1993, the Tennessee Public Service Commission approved a three year revised incen-
tive regulation plan which lowered the sharing range as a percentage return on average net invest.
ment® from 11.0% - 12.2% to 10.65% - 11.85%. Earnings between 11.85% - 15.85% must be shared
with ratepayers in varying degrees, depending on the quality of service. The plan also provides for rate
increases to cover up to 60% of the amount by which earnings fall below 10.65%.

In December 1984, the Tennessee Commission adopted rules that provide that local exchange
carriers (LECs), such as BellSouth Telecommunications, could elect to operate under price regulation
no earlier than January 1, 1996, Following implementation of price regulation, local basic service rates
would be capped for four years, after which a formula would be used to change basic rates. All other
service prices will not increase for & minimum period of two years after the effective date of price
regulation. Such approval has not yet been granted.

In addition to the above matters, BellSouth Telecommunications is a party to numerous proceed-
ings pending before state regulatory bodies which involve, among other things, terms and conditions
of services provided by BellSouth Telecommunications, rates charged for such services and relation-
ships with affiliates, No assurance can be given as to the outcome of any such matters.

Access Services

BellSouth Telecommunications provides sccess services by connecting the communications
networks of Interexchange Carriers with the equipment and facilities of subscribers. These connec-
tions are provided by linking these carriers and subscribers through the public switched network
of BellSouth Telecommunications or through dedicated private lines furnished by BellSouth
Telecommunications.

Access charges, which are payable both by Interexchange Carriers and subscribers, provided
approximately 29% of BellSouth Telecommunications’ operating revenues for the years ended Decem-
ber 31, 1994, 1993 and 1992, respectively. These charges are designed to recover the costs of the
common and dedicated facilities and switching equipment used to connect networks of Interexchangoe
Carriers with the telephone company’s local network. In addition, an interstate subscriber line access
charge of $3.50 per line per month applies to single-line business and residential customers. The
interstate subscriber access charge for multi-line business customers varies by state but cannot
exceed $6.00 per line per month.

* As defined in the plan for this state.



In October 1990, the FCC authorized an alternative to traditional rate of return regulation called
“price caps,” effective January 1, 1991, which is mandatory for certain LECs, including BellSouth
Telecommunications. In contrast to traditional rate of return regulation price caps limits the prices
telephone companies can charge for their services. The price cap plan limits aggregate price changes to
the rate of inflation minus a productivity offset, plus or minus exogenous cost changes recognized by
the FCC. Price cap regulation provides LECs with enhanced incentives to increase productivity and
efficiency. Concurrent with the implementation of price caps, the FCC reduced the allowed rate of
return on interstate operations from 12.0% to 11.25%.

LECs that operate under price caps are allowed to elect annually by April 1 a productivity offset
factor of 3.3% or 4.3%. If the lower ofTset is chosen, such carriers will be allowed to earn up toa 12.25%
overall rate of return without sharing. If such carriers earn between 12.25% and 16.25%, half of the
earnings in this range will be flowed through to customers in the form of a lower price cap = lex in the
following year. All earnings over 16.25% would be flowed through to customers. If such carriers elect a
4.3% productivity offset, all earnings below 13.25% may be retained, earnings up to 17.25% would be
shared and earnings over 17.25% would be flowed through to customers. BellSouth Telecommunica-
tions elected to operate under the 3.3% productivity offset factor for the period July 1, 1994 through
June 30, 1995,

In February 1994, the FCC initiated its review of the price cap plan described above. The FCC
identified three broad sets of issues for examination including those related to the basic goals of price
cap regulation, the operation of price cups and the transition of local exchange services to a fully
competitive market. BellSouth Telecommunications believes and advocates that a revised price cap
plan should be structured to provide increased pricing flexibility for services as competition evolves in
the telecommunications markets and that sharing be eliminated from the plan. Any changes to the
plan are not expected to be effective until mid-1995.

State regulatory commissions have jurisdiction over charges related to the provision of access to
the Interexchange Carriers to complete intrastate telecommunications. The state commissions have
authorized BellSouth Teleccommunications to collect access charges from the Interexchange Carriers
and, in several states, from customers.

In addition to the above matters, BellSouth Telecommunications is a party to numerous proceed-
ings pending before the FCC which involve, among other things, terms and conditions of services
provided by BellSouth Telecommunications, rates charged for such services and relationships wiii)
affiliates. No assurance can be given as to the outcome of any such matters.

Billing And Collection Services

BellSouth Telecommunications provides, under contract and/or tariff, billing and collection ser-
vices for certain long distance services of AT&T and several other Interexchange Carriers. The
agreement with AT&T has been extended through 1996, subject to the right of AT&T to assume
billing and collection for certain of its services prior to the expiration of the agreement. Revenues from
such services are expected to decrease as AT&T and other carriers assume more direct billing for their

own services,

Operator Services

Directory assistance and local and toll operator services are provided by BellSouth Telecommuni-
cations in its service areas, Toll operator services include alternate billing arrangements, such as
collect calls, third number billing, person-to-person and ealling card calls; dialing Instructions; pre-
billed credit; and rate information. In addition, directory assistance is provided for some Inter-
exchange Carriers which do not directly provide such services for their own customers.




OTHER BUSINESS OPERATIONS

Directory Publishing Fees

A percentage of the billed revenues from directory advertising operations of BellSouth Adve= .
ing & Publishing Corporation, a wholly-owned subsidiary of BellSouth, are paid as publication fe -
BellSouth Telecommunications for publishing rights and other services in its franchise ureas =00
fees amounted to approximately $638, $616 and $598 million in 1994, 1893 and 1892, respect:

Sclling and Maintaining Equipment

Through its subsidiaries, BellSouth Telecommunications sells and maintains customer pre= .
equipment (CPE), and to a lesser extent, computers and related office equipment. The Holc -
Companies, AT&T and other substantia! enterprises compete in the provision of CPE and ot
services and products. In April 1994, BellSouth Communications Systems, Inc., a wholly-owrec
subsidiary, disposed of its customer premises equipment sales and service operations outside the nir.
state region served by BellSouth Telecommunications.

COMPETITION

General

BellSouth Telecommunications is subject to increasing competition in all areas of its business
Regulatory, legislative and judicial actions and technological developments have expanded the types o
available services and products and the number of companies that may offer them. Increasingly, this
competition is from large companies which have substantial capital, technological and marketing
resaurces.,

A technological convergence is occurring in the telephone, cable and broadeast television, com.
puter, entertainment and information services industries. The technologies utilized and being devel-
oped in these industries will enable companies to provide multiple and integrated forms of
communications offerings.

Current policies of federal and state legislative and regulatory bodies strongly favor lowering
legal barriers to competition in the telecommunications industry. Accordingly, the nature of competi-
tion which BellSouth Telecommunications will face will depend to a large degree on regulatory actions
ut the state and federal levels, decisions with respect to the MFJ and possible state and federal
legislation. Legislative or regulatory initiatives are pending or expected in a number of BellSouth
Telecommunications’ jurisdictions.

Network and Related Services
Local Service

Many services traditionally provided exclusively by the LECs have been opened for competition.
For example, some carriers and other customers with concentrated, high usage characteristics are
utilizing shared tenant services, private branch exchange (PBX) systems (which are owned by custom-
ers and provide internal switching functions), private line services and other telecommunications
links which bypass the switched networks of BellSouth Telecommunications. An increasing number of
private voice and data communications networks utilizing fiber optic lines have been and are being
constructed in metropolitan areas, including Atlanta, Georgia, Charlotte, North Carolina and Jack-
sonville, Miami and Orlando, Florida, which will offer certain high volume users a competitive
alternative to the public and private line offerings of the LECs. In addition, the networks of some cable
television systems will be capable of carrying two-way interactive data messages and will be con-
figured to provide voice communications. Furthermore, wireless services, such as cellular telephone
and paging services and PCS services when operational, increasingly compete with wireline communi-
cations services,

BellSouth Telecommunications is presently vulnerable to bypass to the extent that its access
charges reflect subsidies for other services. Although BellSouth Telecommunications believes that




bypass has already occurred to a significant degree in its nine-state area, it is difficult to quantify the
lost revenues since customers are not required to report to the telephone companies the components
of their telecommunications systems. In general, telephone company telecommunications services in
highly concentrated population and business areas are more vulnerable to bypass.

In January 1994, MCI Communications Corporation announced long range plans to invest more
than $20 billion to create and deliver n wide array of communications services. Included in these plans
is an investment of $2 billion to construct local networks in major United States cities, including
Atlanta, Georgia and other cities in the Southeast. MCI has stated that it would connect directly to
customers and provide alternative local voice and data communications services. MCI has applied for
local telecommunications licenses in eight states that have significantly deregulated local service. As
states in BellSouth Telecommunications' wireline region adopt legislation or regulations enabling
multiple local service providers, MCI and other carriers are expected to seek licenses to compete.

In 1994, AT&T acquired McCaw Communications, Inc., the largest domestic cellular communica-
tions company, which serves customers in 10 cities in BellSouth Telecommunications® local wireline
territory. Furthermore, alliances are also being formed between other Holding Companies and large
corporations that operate cable television systems in many localities throughout the United States, for
example, U S West, Inc./Time Warner Communications and NYNEX Corporation/Yiacom, Inc. As
technological and regulatory developments make it more feasible for cable television to carry data and
voice communications, it is probable that BellSouth Telecommunications will face competition within
its region from the other Holding Companies through their cable television venture arrangements.

In July 1994, U S West and Time Warner announced plans to upgrade certain of their cable TV
systems to full-service networks which would support new interactive and telephone services that
would compete with the incumbent LECs. The first of these full-service networks is being built in
Orlando, Florida and a limited trial of services has begun. Tele-Communications, Inc. has announced
plans to offer similar services in South Florida and Louisville, Kentucky. Time Warner and U § West
have made major cable system acquisitions that are expected to provide voice and video competition in
BellSouth Telecommunications' service arcas. In December 1994, U § West acquired Atlanta's two
largest cable operators.

Access Service

The FCC has adopted rules requiring local exchange carriers to offer expanded interconnection
for interstate special and switched transport. As a result, BellSouth Telecommunications is required
to permit competitive carriers and customers to terminate their transmission facilities in its central
office buildings through virtual collocation arrangements. The effects of the rules are to increase
competition for access transport.

Toll Service

A number of firms compete with BellSouth Telecoi .munications for intralLATA toll business by
reselling toll services obtained at bulk rates from BellGouth Telecommunications or, subject to the
approval of the applicable state public utility commission, providing toll services over their own
facilities, Commissions in the stutes in BellSouth Telecommunications' operating territory have
allowed the latter type of intralLATA toll calling, whereby the Interexchange Carriers are assigned a
multiple digit access code (10XXX) which customers may dial to place intraLATA toll calls through
facilities of such Interexchange Carriers. The Kentucky and Florida Commissions have concluded that
competing carriers should be allowed to provide intraLATA toll presubscribed calling with a single
digit access code (1+ or 0+) and are considering how and when such authorization should be
implemented.

Personal Communications Services (PCS)

Personal communications services (PCS) are in the developmental stage and are anticipated to
provide a wide range of wireless communications services. The FCC is currently auctioning licenses
fur spectrum for broadband PCS with up to six licenses per geographic area.
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BellSouth Telecommunications Competitive Strategy
Regulatory and Legislative Changes, Litigation

The states in BellSouth Telecommunications' service area currently provide for some form of
regulation of earnings, a regulatory framework that BellSouth Telecommunications believes is not
appropriate for the increasingly competitive telecommunications environment. Accordingly, Bell-
South Telecommunications’ primary regulatory focus continues to be directed toward modifying the
regulatory process to one that is more closely aligned with changing market conditions and overall
public policy objectives, As an alternative to the current regulatory process, BellSouth Telecommuni-
cations believes that price regulation, whereby prices of basic local exchange service are directly
regulated and prices for other products and services are based on market factors, is a logical progres-
sion toward regulatory flexibility and is fair to consumers. As such, BellSouth Telecommunications is
pursuing implementation of price regulation plans through filings with state regulatory commissions
or through legislative initiatives.

BellSouth Telecommunications is also seeking relief in the courts and before Congress and
regulatory agencies from current laws, regulations and judicial restrictions (including the MFJ) for
the provision of voice, data and video communications throughout its wireline service territory and
elsewhere. It is furthermore advocating legislative and regulatory initiatives which would eliminate or
modify restrictions on its current and future business offerings. Bills are being developed in Congress
that would provide the opportunity for the Holding Companies to engage in interLATA long distance
and cable and other video businesses, subject to various conditions and delays. The interexchange
carriers and other competitors and interest groups with substantial resources oppose many of these
initiatives. The ultimate outcome and timing of any relief obtained cannot be predicted with certainty,
but it is unlikely that meaningful opportunities to engage in interLATA business can be obtained
through legislation without the local and intralLATA toll businesses being opened to competition.

BellSouth, NYNEX Corporation and SBC Communications Inc. are involved in litigation in the
D.C. District Court seeking relief from the remaining provisions of the MFJ. BellSouth and BellSouth
Telecommunications believe that the MFJ restrictions are contrary to the public interest in that they
impair the effectiveness of competitive markoets, harm consumers economically and undermine the
efficient development of new technology. Final resolution of this motion is not expected in the near
term.

Technological changes and the effects of competition reduce the economic useful lives of Hell-
South Telecommunications’ fixed assets, As competition increases in both the exchange access and
local exchange markets, the economic lives of related properties should continue to decrease. There-
fore, BellSouth Telecommunications is examining the rates of depreciation of fixed nssets authorized
by the FCC und state regulatory commissions to ensure that these rates are adequate to recover fixed
asset costs in a timely fashion. The FCC and the state commissions represcribe depreciation rates for
BellSouth Telecommunications at three-year intervals, Such rates will be represcribed in Florida,
Georgia, North Carolina and South Carolina in 1995 and in Alabama, Kentucky, Louisiana, Missis-
sippi and Tennessee in 1996. (See *‘Management's Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations —
Operating Environment and Trends of the Business — Accounting Under SFAS No. 71."") "

Entry Into New Markets

Notwithstanding the risks associated with increased competition, BellSouth Telecommunications
will have the opportunity to benefit from entry into new business markets, BellSouth Telecommunica-
tions belioves that in order to remain competitive in the future, it must aggressively pursue a
corporate strategy of expanding its offerings beyond its traditional businesses and markets, These
offerings may include information services, interactive communications and cable television and other
entortainment services,

In August 1992, the FCC issued an order allowing the LECs to offer video dial tone for trunsmit-
ting video services. In February 1995, the FCC approved BellSouth Telecommunications' application
to conduct a trial of video dial tone services. This trial will be undertaken to better position the
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company to respond to the increasingly competitive telecommunications market. BellScuth Telecom-
munications will construct the network in Chamblee, Georgia, that will provide for 70 analog channels
and over 200 digital channels to deliver video programming and [nteractive services, which will be
offered by various programming service providers. The new services will include broadcast entertain-
ment, interactive video services, such as video games, enhanced personal computer and communica-
tions services, including electronic mail, transactional services, such as home shopping and banking,
and customer-chojice video services, such as movies on demand.

In September 1994, the U.S. District Court for the Northern District of Alabama declared uncon-
stitutional a provision of the Cable Communications Policy Act of 1984 that prohibits BellSouth and
its affiliates from providing cable television programming in the areas served by BellSouth Telecom-
munications. As a result of the Court's decision, which was rendered in response to a suit filed by
BellSouth in 1993 and is now pending appeal by the United States, BellSouth and its affiliates,
including BellSouth Telecommunications, may seek the appropriate governmental authorizations to
provide video programming directly to consumers throughout its service area.

Restructuring

BellSouth Telecommunications is restructuring its telephone operations by streamlining its
fundamental processes and work activities to better respond to an increasingly competitive business
environment. This activity is expected to improve overall responsiveness to customer needs and
reduce costs. For a discussion of the restructuring begun in 1993, see “‘Management's Discussion and
Analysis of Results of Operations — Other Matters — Restructuring of Telephone Operations.”

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

The majority of BellSouth Telecommunications' research and development activity is conducted
at Bell Communications Research, Inc. (Bellcore), one-seventh of which is owned by BellSouth,
through BellSouth Telecommunications, with the remainder owned by the other Holding Companies.
Bellcore provides research and development and other services for its owners and is the central point
of contact for coordinating the Federal government’s telecommunications requirements relating to
notional security and emergency preparedness.

LICENSES AND FRANCHISES

BellSouth Telecommunications’ local exchange business is typically provided under certificates of
public convenience and necessity granted pursuant to state statutes and public interest findings of the
various public utility commissions of the states in which BellSouth Telecommunications does busi-
ness. These certificates provide for a franchise of indefinite duration, subject to the maintenance of
satisfactory service at reasonable rates. MCI Communications Corporation and U 8 West have an-
nounced plans to pursue approval to provide local telephone service, thereby chellenging the exclusiv-
ity of BellSouth Telecommunications' franchise for local service.

BeliSouth Telecommunications owns or has licenses to use all patents, copyrights, licenses,
trademarks and other intellectual property necessary for it to conduet its present business operations.
It is not anticipated that any of such property will be subject to expiration or non-renewal of rights
which would materially and adversely affect BellSouth Telecommunications or its subsidiaries.

EMPLOYEES
On December 31, 1994, 1993, and 1992 BellSouth Telecommunications employed approximately
76,700, 81,400 and 82,900 persons, respectively. About 72% of these employees at December 31, 1994
were represented by the Communications Workers of America (the CWA), which is affiliated with the
AFL-CIO. BellSouth Telecommunications’ collective bargaining agreement with the CWA, as well as
the agreements with certain of its subsidiaries, are scheduled to terminate on August 5, 1995.

Negotiations with the CWA over the terms of the new agreements will begin early in June 1895. The
outcome of these negotiations cannot be determined ot this time.
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In November 1993, BellSouth Telecommunications announced a plan to reduce its workforce by
approximately 10,200 employees by the end of 1996 through normal attrition, transitional programs,
other voluntary options and involuntary separations. For the years ended December 31, 1994 and
1993, total employee reductions under this plan were 3,900 and 1,300, respectively. (See “Manage-
ment's Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations — Other Matters — Restructuring of
Telephone Operations."')

ITEM . PROPERTIES
GENERAL

BellSouth Telecommunications’ properties do not lend themselves to description by character
and location of principal units. BellSouth Telecommunications’ investment in property, plant and
equipment consisted of the following at December 31:

1994 1993

Ca T1e i Pl ] i e R R M S o 1 R 46%  46%
Central Office Equipment . . ... .................. 37 37
Landand Buildings ..........0ccitvasacniaann 7 7
Furniture and Fixtures. . .. .. ..o vvnnonses e b B
Operating and Other Equipment . . . ............... 4 4
g7 o e e g e S R R S g AP A, T e 2

100% 100%

Outside plant consists of connecting lines (aerial, underground and buried cable) not on custom-
ers' premises, the majority of which are on or under public roads, highways or streets, while the
remainder is on or under private property. BellSouth Telecommunications currently self-insures a
substantial amount of its outside plant against casualty losses. Central office equipment consists of
analog switching equipment, digital electronic switching equipment and circuit equipment. Land and
buildings are occupied principally by central offices. Operating and other equipment consists of
embedded intrasystem wiring, substantially all of which is on the premises of customers, motor
vehicles and equipment.
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Substantially all of the installations of central office equipment and administrative offices are
located in buildings and on land owned by BellSouth Telecommunications. Many garages, business
offices and telephone service centers are in leased quarters,

BellSouth Telecommunications’ customers are now served by electronic switching systems that
provide a wider variety of services than their mechanical predecessors. The BellSouth Telecommuni-
cations network is in transition from an analog to a digital network, which provides capabilities for
BellSouth Telecommunications to furnish advanced data transmission and information management
services,

PROPERTY ADDITIONS

Property additions include gross additions to property, plant and equipment having an estimated
service life of one year or more, plus the incidental costs of preparing the asset for its intended use. In
the case of constructed assets, an amount related to the cost of debt and equity used in the construc-
tion of an asset is capitalized as part of the asset when the construction period is in excess of one year.
Property additions also include assets acquired by means of entering into a capital lease agreement,
gross additions to operating lease equipment and reused materials,

The total investment in telephone plant has increased from approximately $34,820 million at
January 1, 1990 to approximately $41,696 million at December 31, 1994, nnt including deductions of
accumulated depreciation. Significant ndditions to property, plant and equipment will be required to
meel the demand for telecommunications services and to further modernize and improve such ser-
vices to meet competitive demands. Population and economic expansion is projected by BellSouth
Telecommunications in certain growth centers within its nine-state area during the next five to ten
years, Expansion of the network will be needed to accommodate such projected growth.

BellSouth Telecommunications’ capital expenditures for 1990 through 1994 were as follows:

Mitlions
[0 ot e el Pt S R e $2,871
1993 2,085
"t B P o L Rl 2,846
) il aetin, Siat D o S IR 2,747
L0 B PR R e a4 e 2 e 2,938

BellSouth Telecommunications currently projects capital expenditures to be approximately $3,000
million for 1995. In 1994, BellSouth Telecommunications generated substantially all of its funds for
capital expenditures internally. In 1995, such capital expenditures are expected to be financed primarily
through internally generated funds and, to the extent necessary, from external sources,

ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS

BellSouth Telecommunications is subject to a number of environmental matters as a result of its
operations and the shared liability provisions in the Plan of Reorganization (POR). As a result,
BellSouth Telecommunications expects that it will be required to expend funds to remedy certain
facilities, including those Superfund sites for which BellSouth Telecommunications has been named
as o potentially responsible party, for the remediation of sites with underground fuel storage tanks
and other expenses associated with environmental compliance. At December 31, 1994, BellSouth
Telecommunications' recorded linbility related primarily to remediation of these sites was $35.8
million.

BellSouth Telecommunications continually monitors its operations with respect to potential
environmental issues, including changes in legally mandaied standards and remediation technologies.
BellSouth Telecommunications' recorded liability reflects those specific issues where remediation
activities are currently deemed to be probable and where the cost of remediation is estimable.
BellSouth Telecommunications continues to believe that expenditures in connection with additional
remedial actions under the current environmental protection laws or related matters will not be
material to its financial position.
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ITEM ). LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The MFJ and the related POR provide for the recognition and payment of liabilities by AT&T and
the Operating Telephone Companies that are attributable to pre-divestiture events but that did not
become certain until after divestiture. These contingent lisbilities relate principally to litigation and
other claims with respect to the former Bell System’s environmental liabilities, rates, taxes, contracts
and torts (including business torts, such as alleged violations of the antitrust laws). Contingent
liabilities attributable to pre-divestiture events have been shared by AT&T and the Operating Tele-
phone Companies in accordance with formulae prescribed by the POR, whether or not an entity was a
party to the proceeding and regardless of whether an entity was dismissed from the proceeding by
virtue of settlement or otherwise. BellSouth Telecommunications' share of these liabilities to date has
not been material to its financial position or results of operations for any period.

The Operating Telephone Companies have agreed among themselves to disengage from the
sharing of most categories of contingent liabilities formerly subject to the POR sharing mechanism.
Sharing under the POR would continue for matters for which notice was given as of May 23, 1994 and
certain pre-divestiture environmental claims. The sharing of liabilities for pre-divestiture claims
between AT&T and one or more Operating Telephone Companies are not affected by this agreement.

BellSouth Telecommunications and its subsidiaries are subject to numerous claims and proceed-
ings arising in the ordinary course of business involving allegitions of personal injury, breach of
contract, anti-competitive conduct and other matters. While complete assurance cannot be given as to
the outeome of any contingent linbilities, in the opinion of BellSouth Telecommunications, any
financial impact to which BellSouth Telecommunications is subject is nol expected to be material in
amount to BellSouth Telecommunications' financial position.
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PART Il

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL AND OPERATING DATA
{Dollars In Millions)

1994 1993 1992 199) 19%0

Operating Revenues ........... $14,040 $13,5680 $13,182 $12,768 $12,762
Operating Expenses (1), ........ 10,452 11,691 10,268 10,046 9,859
Operating Income . . .. ......... 3,688 1,969 2,024 2,722 2,903
Interest Expense. . ..o oouuenn. 549 562 683 650 626
Other Income, net . .......... = 18 21 76 1 27
Provision for Income Taxes . ... .. 1,105 461 BO1 647 708
Extruordinary Loss, net of tax. . . . — (87) (41) - -—

Accounting Change, net of tax. . . . — (65) — — —

Nt INCOME .« vvaneieis s ss $ 1,952 § 835 $ 1,674 $ 1426 $ 1,696
Total Assets ,....ovvevvavionsns §27,272 $27,005 $26,442 $26,322 $26,611
Capital Expenditures .......... $ 2971 $ 2995 § 2846 $ 2,747 $ 2038
LongTerm Debt . ............. $ 6612 $ 6,647 $ 6,336 $ 6,403 $ 6,440
Ratio of Earnings to Fixed

Charges (2) .. o coviinevannes 5.68 3.17 4.53 3.86 4.23
Return to Average Common
Baulty =, o D T e S, 18.02% 7.32% 14.78% 12.49% 14.13%
Debt Ratio at End of Period ... .. 41.01% 41.20% J8.46% 38.17% 37.83%
Telephone Employees (3) ....... 73,764 77,958 79,453 79,743 B5,967
Other Operations Employees. . . . . 2,944 3,457 3,413 2 502 —
Total Employees . ........... 76,708 B1,416 82,866 82,245 85,96

Telephone Employees per 10,000
Access Lines . .. .......c00000 36.5 40.3 426 44.1 49,1

Business Volumes (In Millions): (4)
Network Access Lines in Service:

Resldenes ....... . con0cncn-a 14.2 14.7 13.3 129 12.6
Business .....ccoveeeensas . 5.8 b4 6.1 4.8 4.6
DEROE s i e i o . sk 2 2 2 3 3
TEEAY o rnrm b b e b e 20.2 19.3 18.6 18.0 17.5
Access Minutes of Use:
Interstate ......ooveeimssss 67,778.1 53,345.0 50,6464 47,256.3 44,9033
Intrastate .......cnvieuwoss 16,887.8 16,260.9 13,994.2 13,237.7 12,1195
Toll MesBages . .. ..ovv o sans s 1,658.6 1,611.4 1,462.2 1,604.1 1,496.4

(1) Operating Expenses for 1993 include a charge for restructuring of $1,136.4, which reduced net
income by $696.6. See Note J to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

(2) For the purpose of this ratio: (i) earnings have been calculated by adding income before income
taxes, interest expense and such portion of rental expense representative of the interest factor on
such rentals; (ii) fixed charges are comprised of total interest expense and such portion of rental
expense representative of the interest factor on such rentals.

(3) Effective in 1994, telephone employees exclude those employees in BellSouth Telecommunica-
tions' subsidiaries which are unrelated to telephone operations; all prior years have been
restated,

(4) Prior period operating data are revised at later dates to reflect the most current information. The
above information reflects the latest data available for the periods indicated.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
{Dollars in Millions)

BellSouth Telecommunications, Inc. (BellSouth Telecommunications) is a wholly-owned subsidi-
ary of BellSouth Corporation (BellSouth). BellSouth Telecommunications serves, in the aggregute,
approximately two-thirds of the population and one-half of the territory within Alabama, Florida,
Georgia, Kentucky, Louisiana, Mississippi, North Carolina, South Carolina and Tennessee. BellSouth
Telecommunications primarily provides local exchange service and toll communications services
within court-defined geographic arcas, called Local Access and Transport Areas (LATAs), and pro-
vides network access services to enable interLATA communications using the long-distance facilities
of interexchange carriers. Through subsidiaries, other telecommunications services and products are
provided both inside and outside the uine-state BellSouth Telecommunications region.

Approximately 86% of BellSouth Telecommunications’ Total Operating Revenues for the years
ended December 31, 1994 and 1993, respectively, were from wireline services. Charges for local
service, access services and toll for the year ended December 31, 1994 accounted for approximately
57%, 33% and 10%, respectively, of the wireline revenues discussed above, The remainder of BellSouth
Telecommunications’ Total Operating Revenues was derived principally from directory publishing
fees, sales and maintenance of customer premises equipment and other nonregulated services.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
1994 1993 % Change
Net INCOME . o+ v v s v evovavannsas £1951.6  2835.0 133.7%

Net Income for 1994 increased $1,116.6 compared to 1993, The increase was attributable in part
to revenue growth, driven by continued growth of access lines and other key volumes, and cost control
measures, including salary and wage savings attributable to the restructuring plan implemented in
1993, The increase was also due to the effect of charges which occurred in 1993 and, in the aggregate,
reduced Net Income by $920.0 for that year. The 1993 charges include $696.6 for restructuring of the
core telephone operations (see Note J); $86.6 for the refinancing of certain long-term debt issues at
lower interest rates (see Note E); $64.8 for the retroactive adoption of Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 112, “Employers’ Accounting for Postemployment Benefits” (see
Note H): $47 for the initial impact of & regulatory settlement in Florida; and approximately 35
associated with severe 1993 winter weather conditions.

VOLUMES OF BUSINESS
Network Access Lines in Service at December 31 (Thousands):
1994 1993 % Change
By Type:
Residence ., ......c000uiuinn 14,196.2 13,6914 3.7%
Business . o n o 5,770.5 5,388.9 7.1
T R e 2543 262.9 0.6
;117 (N o s 20,2200 19,3326 4.6
By State:
Florha: oo b v b ati e 5,340.7 5,006.6 5.0
Goorgda . o cuvs s e enEen 3,353.6 3,166.7 59
TONNBBEEE . « « « .0 v s o s s 4 snss 2.337.0 2,236.0 4.5
Louisiana ........co00000:- 2,037.9 1,963.3 3.8
North Carolinea . ............ 1,983.8 1,6896.2 5.1
AIRDEIE & i s v s va s s st vanaas 1,726.4 1,668.3 3.5
South Carolina ,.......c0u.. 1,243.6 1,189.8 36
Mississippl .. ..civveieinans 1,1158.4 1,076.6 3.9
Kentuek¥ ... ovevvanessnnn 1,060.3 1,028.1 3.0
o 1 R T B S S 20,220.0 19,352 6 4.6
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The rate of growth in access lines continued to be particularly strong, 4.6% in 1994, compared to a
3.7% rate of increase in 1993. The number of access lines in service sincs December 31, 1993 increased
by upproximately 887,400, The overall increase, led by growth in Georgin, North Curolina and Florida,
was primarily attributable to continued economic improvement, including expanding employment in
BellSouth Telecommunications’ nine-state region, and an increase in the number of second residen-
tial lines, Second residential lines accounted for approximately 40.2% and 22.8% of the overall
increases in residence access lines and total access lines, respectively, since December 31, 1993. The
growth rates in 1994 for total residence and business lines of 3.7% and 7.1%, respectively, improved
compared to growth rates of 3.0% and 5.9%, respectively, in 1893,

Access Minutes of Use (Millions):
1994 1993 % Change
Interstabd i s i s atale b on s ans s 57,778.1 53,345.0 B.3%
Intrastate . .. ....cocenneviaan 16,887.8 15,260.9 10.7
4 b 71 Rt ] LI o O 74,665.9 68,6059 8.8

Access minutes of use represent the volume of traffic carried by interexchange carriers Leiweoen
LATAs, both interstate and intrastate, using BellSouth Telecommunications’ local facilities, In 1994,
total nccess minutes of use increased by 6,060.0 million (B.8%) compared to an increase of 6.3% in
1994, The 1994 increase in access minutes of use was partially attributable to access line growth,
promotions by the interexchange carriers and intralLATA toll competition, which has the effect of
increasing access minutes of use while reducing toll messages carried over BellSouth Telecommunica-
tions' network. The growth rate in total minutes of use continues to be negatively impacted by the
effects of bypass and the migration of interexchange carriers to categories of service (e.g., special
aecess) that have a fixed charge as opposed to a volume-driven charge and to high capacity services,
which causes a decrease in minutes of use.

194 1993 % Change
Toll Messages (Millions) . .. ....... 1,558.6 1,611.4 3.1%

Toll messages are comprised of Message Telecommunications Service and Wide Area Telecommu-
nications Service. Also, effective in 1994, toll messages include messages completed under optional
calling plans (OCPs), which provide reduced rates for toll calls within a LATA. Prior period toll
message volumes have been restated to reflect this change. The pricing of services provided under
(OCPs has stimulated volume growth. Accordingly, the trend of declining toll message volumes in prior
periods has been reversed by the inclusion of messages completed under these plans,

Toll messages increased by 47.2 million (3.1%) compared t« a restated inercase of 3.4% in 1993
The 1994 increase, attributable in part to the growth of messages completed under OCPs and stimula-
tion resulting from access line growth, was partially offset by the effect of optional extended area
calling plans which, based on a customer’s election, provide for a wider toll-free calling area.

In September 1994, South Carolina implemented an expanded local area calling plan. While the
South Curolina plan's impact on 1994 toll message volumes was negligible, this plan and future
implementation of ather such plans in BellSouth Telecommunications' service region, coupled with
competition in the intralLATA toll market, will adversely impact future toll message volumes. Local
aurea and optional extended area calling plans and the effects of competition result in the transfer of
calls from toll to local service and occess cotegories, respectively, but the corresponding revenues are
not generally shifted ot commensurate rates,
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OPERATING REVENUES
Total Operating Revenues increased $460.3 (3.4%). The components of Totul Operating Revenues
were as follows:

1984 1993 % Change
Local Service. . ..o v0cvansn £ 6,863.1 § 656773 4.9%
Interstate Access . . ... ... ... 3,127.2 29912 4.5
Intrastate Access _ . . ... ... ... 908.3 881.9 .0
1 | ATt St G RN 1,160.1 1,219.5 i24)
Other . .. e T 1,851.2 1,909.7 22
Total Operating Revenues ... $14,039.8 $13,579.6 a4

Local Service revenues reflect amounts billed to customers for local exchange services, which
inelude connection to the network and secondary central office feature services, such us custom calling
features and custom dialing packages. (Revenues from cellular interconnection and other mobile
services are included in Other operating revenues for both periods presented.)

The increase in 1994 of $285.8 (4.9%) was due primarily to an increase of 887,400 access lines
since December 31, 1993, Also contributing to the increase was growth attributable to optional
extended area calling plans. The increase in 1994 was partially offset by rate reductions, principally in
Louisiuna and ulso in Florida and Alubama.

Interstate Access revenues result from the provision of access services to interexchange carriers to
provide telecommunications services between states. Interstate Access revenucs increased $136.0
(4.5%) in 1984,

The 1994 increase was attributable to growth in minutes of use, sdditional end user charges due
primarily to access line growth and the effect of billing and other adjustments recorded in 1993, which
reduced revenues for that period by approximately $20. The increases were partially offset by the
effect of rate reductions effective in July 1994 and October 1994, additional revenue deferrals under
the Federal Communications Commission’s (FCC) price cap plan and decreased net settlements with
the Nationul Exchange Carriers Association.

See "Operating Environment and Trends of the Business.”

Intrastate Access revenues result from the provision of access services to interexchange carriers
which provide telecommunications services between LATAs within a state. In 1994, Intrastate Access
revenues increased $26.4 (3.0%). Such increase was attributable to growth in minutes of use and the
reclassification in 1994 of independent company settlements in certain states, which would have
previously reduced revenues, to ng::xmg expenses. The increase was partially offset by the impact of
rate reductions, primarily in Alabama and Florida.

Toll revenues are received from the provision of long-distance services within (but not between)
LATAs. These services include intraLATA service beyond the local calling area; Wide Area Telecom-
munications Service (WATS or 800 services) for customers with highly concentrated demand; and
special services, such as transport of voice, data and video. Toll revenues decreased §20.4 (2.4%) in
1994. The decrease was primarily attributable to several settlements with independent companies,
the reclassification of certain settlements to Intrastate Access revenue, net rate reductions since
December 31, 1993 and the impact of optional extended area calling plans. The decrease was partially
offset by growth in toll message volumes, reflecting improvements re ated in part to OCPs. The overall
decline in Toll revenues is expected to continue over the long term.

Other revenues are principally comprised of revenues from publishing rights fees, custzmer
premises equipment (CPE) sales and maintenance services, billing and collection services, cellular
interconnect services and other nonregulated services (primarily inside wire services), Other revenues
increased $41.6 (2.2%) in 1894, The increase was attributable to growth in publishing rights and
cellular interconnect fees and higher demand for unregulated products and services, including CPE
for residential customers, voice messaging and inside wire services. In addition, the effects of adjust-
ments and reclassifications related to services under certain state regulatory plans and billing and
collection services contributed to the increase. Revenues derived from billing and collection are
expected to decline over the long term due to interexchange carriers’ assuming more direct billing for
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their own services. The increase was partially offset by increased revenue deferrals related to poten-
tial sharing under certain state regulatory plans and the sale in April 1994 of BellSouth Telecommuni-
cations' out-of-region CPE sales and service operations.
OPERATING EXPENSES

Primarily as a result of the effect of the 1993 restructuring charge, Total Operating Expenses
decreased $1,138.3 (9.8%) in 1994, The components of Total Operating Expenses were as follows:

1994 1993 % Change
Depreciation and Amortization £ 29536 $ 29026 1.B%
Other Operating Expenses:
Caost of Services and Products 5,235.2 5,169.4 1.3
Selling, General and
Administrative . ... ....... 2,260.4 2.382.1 (6,0)
Restructuring Charge. ... ... —_— 1,136.4 (100.0)
7,498.6 B,687.9 {13.7)
Total Operating Expenses ...  $10,452.2  $11,5690.5 (9.8)

Depreciation and Amortization increased $51.0 (1.8%) in 1994, The increase in 1994 was due to
higher levels of property, plant and equipment since December 31, 1993 resulting from continued
growth in the customer base, continued modernization of the network and a special reserve deficiency
amortization of $20.4 in North Carolina. The increase for the period was partially offset by the
expiration of reserve deficiency amortizations in Louisiana and the inclusion in 1993 of approximately
320 of additional depreciation expense related to extraordinary property retirements in conjunction
with u regulatory settlement in Florida.

Other Operating Expenses are comprised of Cost of Services and Products, Selling, General und
Administrative and, in 1993, a Hestructuring Charge. Cost of Services and Products includes em-
ployee and employee-related expenses associuted with network repair and maintenance, material and
supplies expense, cost of tangible goods sold and other expenses associated with providing services.
Selling, General and Administrative includes expenses related to sales activities such as salaries,
commissions, benefits, travel, marketing and advertising expenses and administrative expenses.
Other Operating Expenses decreased $1,189.3 (13.7%) in 1994, Excluding the $1,136 4 restructuring
charge in 1993, Other Operating Expenses decreased $52.9 (0.7%) in 1984,

As adjusted, the 0.7% decrease in 1994 was primarily attributable to the sale in 1994 of the out-of-
region CPE sales and service operations, the inclusion in 10983 of approximately $55 and $40, respec-
tively, related to a regulatory settlement in Florida and severe 1993 weather conditions and a reduc-
tion in 1994 expenses for rents, uncollectibles and contract services. The decrease was ially offset
by increased expenses related to volume growth and network modernization, primarily for sofltware
license foes and materials, and the effect of reclassifying settlements with independent telephone
companies in certain states from Intrastate Access revenues Lo operating expenses in 1994, Total
employee-related costs also increased, reflecting annual compensation increases for management and
represented employees, increased overtime attributable to volume growth and network service activi-
tics and higher expenses for employee benefits, partially offset by salary and wage savings from
employee reductions attributable to the restructuring plan begun in 1993 and a reduction in pension
expense (see Note H).

OTHER INCOME STATEMENT ITEMS

1994 1993 % Change
Interest Expense. . . .......000. $ 6488 § 5626 (2.6%)
Other Income, net .......o..... 18.3 21.4 (14.5)
Provision for Income Taxes . . . . .. 1,106.6 461.56 139.6

Interest Expense includes interest on debt, certain other accrued liabilities and capital leases,
offset by an allowance for funds used during cunstruction, which is capitalized as a cost of installing
equipment and constructing plant. Interest expense decreased $13.8 (2.6%) in 1994. The decrease
resulted primarily from interest savings attributable to refinancings in 1993 of long-term debt at
lower interest rates. The decrease was partially offsot by higher average levels of short-term borrow-
ings ut higher average interest rates. (See Notes E and K.}
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Provision for Incosise Taxes increased $644.1 (139.6%) in 1964. BellSouth Telecommunications’
effective tax rates were 36.2% and 31.9% in 1994 and 1993, respectively. The effective rate for 1993
reflects the impact of the restructuring c which significantly lowered pre-tax income. Such lower
level of pre-tax income caused investment tax credit amortization to more significantly influence the
effective tax rate in that year. A reconciliation of the statutory Federal income tax rates to these
effective tax rates is provided in Note L. A discussion of the adoption of SFAS No. 109, *Accounting for
Income Taxes,” also is included therein.

OPERATING ENVIRONMENT AND TRENDS OF THE BUSINESS

Regulatory Environment. In providing telecommunications services, BellSouth Telecommunica-
tions is subject to regulation by both state and federal regulators with respect to rates, services and
other issues. Other than in North Carolina and South Carolina, where it is subject to traditional rate
of return regulation, BellSouth Telecommunications is operating under some form of incentive regu-
lation plan at the state and federal levels whereby earnings above certain levels within a given range
must be shared with customers in the form of credits, refunds or prospective rate reductions. These
plans provide incentives to reduce costs and retain a portion of earnings above the sharing point, and
in some cases, all earnings above the top of the range must be returned to customers. Since BellSouth
Telecommunications’ earnings fell close to or within the sharing range in its incentive plans during
1994, its ability to increase its earnings over the long run under these plans, even through productiv-
ity enhancements, is constrained. At December 31, 1894, BellSouth Telecommunications’ estimated
sharing obligation related to interstate access services was $141.6. Furthermore, its ability to change
rates to more effectively respond to competition is limited under the current regulatory plans, which
require, in general, that rates be charged as provided in tariff filings.

Accordingly, BellSouth Telecommunications’ primary regulatory focus is directed toward modify-
ing the regulatory process to one that is more closely aligned with changing market conditions and
overall public policy objectives. As an alternative to the current regulatory processes, BellSouth
Telecommunications believes that price regulation, whereby prices of basic local exchange services are
directly regulated, irrespective of rate of return tests, and for other products and services are
based on market factors, isa l@mﬂd‘:n to competitive fairness and provides advantages for
consumers. While no such local tory plan has been implemented in the nine-state service area,
the Tennessee Public Service Commission, subject to certain governmental nuthorizations and the
enactment of enabling legislation, adopted rules to allow local exchange competition, including a
provision whereby BellSouth Telecommunications could elect to operate under a price regulation
plan. In addition, proposed plans filed by BellSouth Telecommunications in Kentucky, Georgia, Mis-
sissippi and Alabama are currently under review by the respective commissions in those states. The
Florida, Georgia, North Carolina and Tennessee legislatures are considering bills that would provide
for or allow price regulation and/or local exchange competition. A proposed plan filed with the
Louisiana Public Service Commission was rejected in November 1994. The FCC is reviewing its
regulatory plan; any changes to the plan are not expected to be effective until mid-1995. BellSouth
Telecommunications will continue to pursue implementation of price regulation plans in Louisiana,
other states and at the federal level through filings with regulatory commissions and through legisla-
tive initintives.

Economy. The nation's gross domestic product grew 4% in 1994, which was the strongest annual
growth of the current economic expansion. Employment in nonfarm businesses grew 2.6% during the
year as the unemployment rate dropped to 5.6% by the fourth quarter, Growth in the nine-state region
served by BellSouth Telecommunications was even stronger. The number of jobs in nonfarm busi-
nesses grew at a 3.0% annual rate, unemployment also dropped to 6.6% b the fourth quarter and real
income expanded by an estimated 4.4%. Net in-migration added 450,000 to the region's population
during 1994, with every state except Louisiana recording a guin. Four states, Florida, Georgia, North
Carolina and Tennessee, were among the top ten nationally in 1994 numerical population gains. The
demand for telecommunications services reflected the strength of the economic and population
growth in the region. Higher interest rates in 1995 may dampen residential construction and durable
goods manufacturing, but projected net in-migration near 400,000 would help to keep the regional
demand for telecommunications services rising. However, increasing competition muakes BellSouth
Telecommunications’ financial performance more susceptible to changes in the economy than previ-
ously, as its operations reflect the more competitive business environment and the greater elasticities
for its products and services.
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Competition. Developments in the telecommunications marketplace continue to indicate that a
technological convergence is occurring in the telephone, cable and broadcast television, computer,
entertainment and information services industries. The technologies utilized and being developed in
these industries are able to provide multiple and integrated communications offerings. A number of
large companies, including AT&T Corp. and the other major interexchange carriers, other Bell
Holding Companies and cable and other video entertainment companies, have completed acquisitions
and entered into business alliances that will ultimately intensify and expand competition for local and
toll communications and other services currently provided over BellSouth Telecommunications’ net-
works, Other competitors have announced plans to build, and in certain locations have begun con-
struction of, local phone connections and private networks that would permit business and residential
customers to bypass the facilities of local telephone companies, including those of BellSouth Telecom-
munications in certain cities in its service territory. Legislative, regulatory and judicial developments
will further facilitate competition in local, long distance and video markets.

Notwithstanding the risks associated with increased competition, BellSouth and BellSouth Tele-
communications will have opportunities in new business markets. BellSouth believes that in order to
remain competitive in the future, it must ively pursue a corporate strategy of expanding its
offerings beyond its traditional businesses, which may include information services, interactive com-
munications and cable television and other entertainment services. As a part of this strategy, Bell-
South has been granted permission by the FCC to conduct a trial of video dial tone services; acquired
in auction one of the nationwide narrowband Personal Communications Services (PCS) licenses;
participated in the ongoing FCC auction for broadband PCS licenses in the Carolines and eastern
Tennessee; and formed business alliances and partnerships, both domestically and internationally,
related to the provision of interactive and traditional video programming services as well as wireless
and wireline communications services. As another part of its competitive strategy, BellSouth Telecom-
munications has undertaken a plan to streamline its telephone operations and to improve its overall
cost structure (see “'Other Matters — Restructuring of Telephone Operations'’). Coincident with the
existing restructuring plan, BellSouth Telecommunications is continuing to seck additional ways to
better enhance customer service and productivity and to further improve its cost structure. As a result
of these ongoing efforts, additional changes to fundamental business processes and work activities, as
well as further employee reductions, are expected.

Accounting Under SFAS No. 71. BellSouth Telecommunications continues to account for the
economic effects of regulation under SFAS No, 71, "'Accounting for the Effects of Certain Types of
Regulation.” Where appropriate, the provisions of SFAS No, 71 give recognition to the effect of actions
of regulators, which can provide reasonable assurance of the existence of an asset, reduce or eliminate
the value of an asset or impose or eliminate a liability of a regulated entity. As a result of such aciions
by regulators, BellSouth Telecommunications’ balance sheet at December 31, 1994 reflects net de-
ferred charges (regulatory assets) of $186.5 related primarily to compensated absences and unamor-
tized issuance costs for debt that has been refinanced, and net deferred credits (regulatory liabilities)
of $304.0 related to income tax issues. Virtually all of the current regulatory assets and liabilities arose
in connection with the incorporation of new accounting standards into the ratemaking process, and
are transitory in nature, The magnitude of the regulatory nssets and liabilities is decreasing over time
due to the ongoing amortization ibed as a part of the adoption in 1988 of the FCC's current
Uniform System of Accounts, Adm regulatory assets and liabilitics may arise in . e future as
long as BellSouth Telecommunications remains subject to the provisions of SFAS No, 71.

Various forms of earnings-based regulation remain in effect at the federal level and in all nine
states served by BellSouth Telecommunications. However, recent legislative and regulatory initiatives
sugiest that fully competitive markets for telecommunications services will eventually be established.
During 1994, the United States Congress considered legislation designed specifically to open all
telecommunications services Lo full competition. Altho no such legislation was enacted into law,
Congress is again considering legislation of this type, and similar initiatives are also emerging at the
state level. Furthermore, in the regulatory arena, BellSouth Telecommunications continues to pursue
muodification of the existing regulatory framework. Price regulation plans, whereby prices of basic
local exchange service are directly regulated and prices for other telecommunications products and
services are based on market factors, have been proposed for implementation and are under review in
several states in the service urea and by the FCC,

BellSouth Telecommunications would be required to discontinue accounting under SFAS No. 71
if the existing and anticipated levels of competition no longer allow for service and product pricing
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that provides for the recovery of costs. Additionally, SFAS No. 71 would no longer apply if BellSouth
Telecommunications is successful in altering the existing regulatory framework and achieving price
regulation since such plans do not provide for the recovery of specific costs. While sccounting under
SFAS No. 71 is currently appropriate, it is increasingly likely that BellSouth Telecommunications will
discontinue accounting under SFAS No. 71 due to the effect of one or both of these conditions. In that
event, the impact on BellSouth Telecommunications’ financial position and results of operations
would be material. Under such circumstances, BellSouth Telecommunications would be required to
reduce the recorded value for tel ne plant and equipment in recognition of amounts that would
not be recoverable or that would be overstated due to longer regulator-prescribed asset lives. Bell-
South Telecommunications' overall depreciation reserve at December 31, 1994 was approximately
44% of its total depreciable plant. Broad industry analysis of other telecommunications companies
who have recently discontinued accounting under SFAS No. 71 indicates that unregulated telecommu-
nications enterprises similar to BellSouth Telecommunications have an overall depreciation reserve
ratio that approximates 52% to 57% of total depreciable plant. If BellSouth Telecommunications were
required to discontinue SFAS No. 71 and to revalue its telephone plant using similar assumptions and
methodology, the net recorded book value of its telephone plant would be reduced by about $4,000 to
$6,000. In addition, BellSouth Telecommunications would be required to eliminate its regulatory
assets and linbilities, adjust the level of its unamortized investment tax credits and fully issue
basis accounting for its directory publishing fees. Specific financial impacts of discontinuing SFAS No,
71 would depend on the timing and magnitude of changes, both in the marketplace and in the overall
regulatory framework.

OTHER MATTERS

Restructuring of Telephone Operations. As previously reported, during 1993 BellSouth Telecom-
munications recognized a $1,136.4 restructuring charge in connection with a plan to redesign, consoli-
date and streamline the fundamental processes and work activities in its telephone operations. The
restructuring is being undertaken in response to an increasingly competitive business environment.
Upon completion, restructuring of the telephone operations is expected to improve overall responsive-
ness Lo customer needs and reduce costs,

As a part of the restructuring, BellSouth Telecommunications is consolidating and centralizing
its existing operations. BellSouth Telecommunications is establishing a single point of contact and
accountability for the receipt, analysis and resolution of customer installation, repair activities and
service activation. The efforts involve redesign of key work processes and designing new processes
that facilitate the consolidation of service functions and the reduction of 10,200 employees.

The projected costs by year for each component of the charge were as follows:

1991 1994 1998 19594 Totsl
Consolidation and Elimination of
Operations .............0... $ 147 $1852 § B70 § 559 § 3428
BYStemB . . it ey e el 4 e - 1855  1656.5 B44 4254
Employee Separation ......... 383 1427 1052 B2.0 368.2
Tohal N e e e § 53.0 85134 83477 $2223 §1,1364

Through December 31, 1994, BellSouth Telecommunications was subs’ ntially on plan with
respect to projected expenditures and employee reductions. See “'Progress Under the Plan."

Consolidation and Elimination of Operations. Approximately $342. 8 of the charge consisted of
costs nssociated with consolidating and eliminating operations as a result of re-enginecering the way
service is delivered to customers, During the restructuring period, 288 existing operations centers are
being consolidated into 73 locations. Data management centers used to support company operations
are being reduced from 11 to 6. Comptrollers offices are being reduced from 48 to 11. Collection
process improvements are being made to reduce operating costs and uncollectibles, Redundancies are
being eliminated and the number of steps decreased in the product planning and provisioning process.
In addition, customer service processes and systems are being designed to provide one-number accoss,
specific appointment times, on-line and real-time access to customer records und immediate service
activation where facilities are already in place.




Systems. Approximately $425.4 of the charge was for systems development, The information
management systems in use prior to the restructuring efTort were inadequate to deal with increased
competition and changing technology. Accordingly, as an integral part of the restructuring plan, a
major redesign of information systems throughout the company is being undertaken to attain a
systems framework that both facilitates the targeted employee rednctions and correlates to the
increasingly competitive business environment. This effort entails significant changes to the overall
computing platform, architecture and corporate systems structure.

Employee Separation. Approximately $368.2 of the charge was for separation costs for employ-
ees leaving BellSouth Telecommunications through 1996 and for relocation of certain employees,
BellSouth Telecommunications' targeted employee reduction of 10,200 employees by the end of the
restructuring period will result in future cost savings and, as a result, is expected to improve Bell-
South Telecommunications' competitive position.

The projected work force reductions by year under the plan were as follows:
1993 1994 1995 1996 Total

Mansgement . .M al. v e s 280 1,000 1,600 1,600 4,380
Represented . . ................... 1,020 2,700 1,300 BOD 5820
¢ por 1) SUROIGINI SN, Sr s o os S I oyl e 1,300 3,700 2,900 2,300 10,200

Employee separation costs include severance payments, health care coverage, education benefits,
and costs of relocating employees to new job locations, as well as net curtailment expenses. The
severance payments, health care coverage and education benefits costs for management employees are
paid under the provisions of current BellSouth management separation plans. The severance pay-
ments, health care coverage and education benefit costs for craft employees are paid under the
provisions of collective bargaining agreements. Relocation costs are the costs to move personnel to
different locations as a result of work center consolidations. These charges are paid under BellSouth
Telecommunications’ relocation guidelines and the terms of collective bargaining agreements. Net
curtailment expenses are charged in accordance with the provisions of accounting pronouncements
SFAS Nos. 88 and 106.

Progress Under the Plan. Since inception of the restructuring plan in fourth quarter 1993,
cumulative employee reductions were 5,200 (1,300 in 1993 and 3,900 in 1994) and total amounts
charged against the restructuring liability were $521.7.

A summary of the costs incurred through December 31, 1994 under the plan is as follows:

1993 1994 Total
Consalidation and Elimination of Operations. . ... .. $ 147 $1646 $1793
1 e W LS O e R et o e —_ 1703 1703
Employee Separation .. ..........c00iiiiaiia 383 1338 172.1
e T ) s e, = LAY SRR St LU 11 1 1B 7 T b e

For the year ended December 31, 1094, cash expenditures related to the ongoing implementation
of the restructuring plan were approximately $390.2. Non-cash expenses were primarily comprised of
pension curtailments and charges related to elimination of certair business operations of subsidiaries.
Capitul expenditures for 1894 related to restructuring were approximately $203.6; such expendifures
are not reflected in the above tables.

The remaining restructuring liability at December 31, 1994 was appro..mately $614.7, all of
which was classified as current. During 1995, BellSouth Telecommunications plans to accelerate
restructuring activities such that employee reductions and expenditures as originally projected under
the plan will be substantially completed by the end of 1995, Accordingly, employee reductions in 1995
under the plan are projected to be approximately 5,000 and capital expenditures, which are not
reflected in the above tables, are projected to be about $300.

The cumulative reduction in employees as of December 31, 1994 resulted in an estimated $100
reduction in 1994 operating expenses and is currently projected to result in about a $300 to $400
reduction in 1995 operating expenses. Once the restructuring plan is completed, annual cost savings
are expected to be approximately $600 due primarily to reduced employee-reluted expenses.




ITEM 8. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
REPORT OF MANAGEMENT

These financial statements have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles and have been audited by Coopers & Lybrand L.L.P, independent nccountants, whose
report is contained herein,

The integrity and objectivity of the data in these financial stutements, including estimates and
judgments relating to matters not concluded by the end of the year, are the responsibility of the
management of BellSouth Telecommunications. Management has also prepared all other information
included in this Annual Report unless indicated otherwise.

Munagement maintains a system of internal accounting controls which is continuously reviewed
und evalunted. However, there are inherent limitations that should be recognized in considering the
ussurances provided by any system of internal sceounting controls. The concept of reasonable assur-
ance recognizes that the cost of a system of internal accounting controls should not exceed, in
management's judgment, the benefits to be derived. Management believes that BellSouth Telecom-
munications’ system does provide reasonable nssurance that the transactions are executed in accor-
dance with management's general or specific authorizations and are recorded properly to maintain
accountability for assets and to permit the preparation of financial statements in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles. Management also believes that this system provides reason-
able assurance that access to assets is permitted only in accordance with management's authoriza-
tions, that the recorded accountability for nssets is compared with the existing assets at reasonable
intervals und that appropriate action is taken with respect to any differences. Management also secks
to nssure the ohjectivity and integrity of its financial data by the careful selection of its managers, by
organizational arrangements that provide an appropriate division of responsibility and by communi-
cations programs aimed at assuring that its policies, standards and managerial authorities are under-
stood throughout the organization. ment is also aware that changes in operating strategy and
organizational structure can give rise to disruptions in internal controls, Special attention is given to
controls while the changes are being implemented.

Management maintains a strong internal auditing program that independently assesses the
effectiveness of the internal controls and recommends possible improvements thereto. In addition, as
part of its audit of these financial statements, Coopers & Lybrand L.L.P completed a review of the
accounting controls to establish a basis for reliance thereon in determining the nature, timing and
extent of audit tests to be applied. Management has considered the internal auditor’s and Coopers &
Lybrand L.L.P's recommendations concerning the system of internal control and has taken actions
that we believe are cost-efTective in the circumstunces to respond appropriately to these recommenda-
tions. Management believes that us of Decomber 31, 1994, the system of internal controls was
adequate to accomplish the objectives discussed herein.

Muonagement also recognizes its responsibility for fostering a strong cthical climate so that
BeliSouth Telecommunications’ affairs are conducted according to the highest standards of personal
and corporate conduct. This responsibility is communicated to all employees through policies and
guidelines addressing such issues as conflict of interest, safeguarding of BellSouth Telecommunica-
tions’ real and intellectual properties, providing equal employment opportunities and ethical relations
with customers, suppliers and governmental representatives. BellSouth T..ecommunications main-
tains a program to assess compliance with these policies,

Jere A Drummond Patrick H. Casey
President and Chief Executive Officer Viee President and Comptroller

February 3, 1995



AUDIT COMMITTEE CHAIRMAN'S LETTER

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors consists of three members who are neither officers
nor employees of BellSouth Telecommunications. The Audit Comn.ittee met four times during 1994
and reviewed with the Chief Corporate Auditor, Coopers & Lybrand L.L P, and management current
audit activities, plans and the results of selected internal sudits. The Audit Committee also reviewed
the objectivity of the financial reporting process and the adequacy of internal contruis. The Audit
Committee recommended the appointment of the independent accountants and considered factors
relating to their independence. The Chief Corporate Auditor and Coopers & Lybrand L.L.F each met
privately with the Audit Committee on occasion to encourage confidential discussions as to any
auditing matters.

Harry M. Lightsey, Jr.
Chairman, Audit Commitiee

February 3, 1995




REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

BellSouth Telecommunications, Inc.
Atlanta, Georgia

We have audited the accom consolidated balance sheets of Bel'South Telecommunica-
tions, Inc. and Subsidiaries as of mber 31, 1994 and 1993 and the related consolidated statements
of income and retained earnings, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 1994, These financial statements are the responsibility of the hcu:r:w': management,
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally nccepted auditing standards. Those stan-
dards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An sudit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reason-
able basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the consolidated financial position of BellSouth Telecommunications, Inc. and Subsidiaries as of
December 31, 1994 and 1993, and the consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for
each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 1994, in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles.

As discussed in Notes H and L to the consolidated financial stutements, BellSouth Telecommuni-
cations changed its method of accounting for postretirement benefits other than pensions, postem-
ployment benefits, and income taxes in 1993,

Coopers & Lybrand LL.P
Atlanta, Georgia
February 3, 1995

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

We consent to the incorporation by reference in the registration statement of BellSouth Telecom.
munications, Inc, on Form S-3 (File No. 33-49991) of our report dated February 3, 1995, on our audits
of the consolidated financial statements of BellSouth Telecommunications, Inc. listed in Item 14(a) of
this Form 10-K.

Coopers & Lybrand L.L.I

Atlanta, Georgia
March 6, 1995
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BELLSOUTH TELECOMMUNICATIONS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME AND RETAINED EARNINGS

{In Millions)
For the Years Ended December 3,
1994 1993 1992
Operating Revenues:
Local mervioe ., o e TR et Ty ra s S o 80T R | Wi B $ 68631 % 65773 8§ 62360
INLCratale MECERE . « o v oo s s s sinnie ssiesin s on tasiahslisns: 3,127.2 2991.2 29456
INtrastale SOCESE . . 5 s v v st n e ainess s s ralysnss s 908.3 B81.9 8718
b 111 IR o - T e, PR 10 et et S i T 1,180.1 1,219.5 1,248.8
Other 2o g g e D s T 15 v e i 1,851.2 1,900.7 1,878.9
Total Operating Revenues, ... ... ... voeeasnns 14,0399 135796 13,1821
Operoting Expenses:
Cost of services and products . . .. ... ........ciaanan 5,235.2 56,1694 5,050.6
Depreciation and amortization . .. ... 29536 29026 28622
Selling, general and administrative. . . ................ 2,2634 2,382.1 2,345.7
Restructuringcharge (Note d) ...........coiunnassn - 1,136.4 —
Total Operating Expenses . . . .. ......vovvvvmninn. 104622 11,5905 10,258.5
Operating INCOMB o'aa's i v onrsass sasninssnessssssisns 3,687.7 1,989.1 29236
Interest Expense (Note K), . .. ..o inininioionenneens 5488 562.6 BEZ.3
Other Income, net (Note K) .. .o v v ininanannnns 18.3 214 75.5
Income Before Income Taxes, Extraordinary Loss and
Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting Principle . ... .. 3,057.2 1,4479 2,4156.8
Provision for Income Taxes (Note L) .. ........ .00 uuues 1,105.6 461.5 8008
Income Before Extraordinary Loss and Cumulative Effect of
Change in Accounting Principle . . . ................00. 1,951.8 0986.4 1,615.0
Extraordinary Loss on Early Extinguishment of Debt, net of
Ea ENOLOE) o5 v viirssid siatats o ot satataiin tawrats wabs e wam w — (B6.6) (40.7)
Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting Principle, net of
TR o T2 3 b s B 3. e P — (64.8) —
NoL INCOMIE o o5 iiuidianen o nibs aninailsasassssosasns $ 10516 § B350 § 15743
Retained Earnings:
Atbeginningof Year .....-c.ceiinipanssvvossasins $ 31800 $ 39670 § 398356
Net Income . .. .. 1,951.6 Ba56.0 1.574.3

Dividinde declired o o e e e (SO OB 1EA) S TRAT.8)
Other adjustments . . .. ....... _ )] (3.00

Alend Of YeRE .. .. oo vnaorsnrssrnssnsrnrssserns $ 362156 § 93,1800 § 3,9670

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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BELLSOUTH TELECOMMUNICATIONS, INC,

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
{In Millions)

ASSETS
Current Assets:

Cash and cash &ﬂl?ﬂlﬂt! ..................................

Accounts receivable, net of allowance for uncollectibles of $81.7 and

1 R R TR TV 1 e e R S S R S L et
Matarial and SUppRiee = i o5 0 o aRl il s et e s e g e e e e
Othor CUITENt BEBELE . . o 5 -« v o« o000 s 850 asossanassasassssss

Total Crrrant ARBIEE i i s e e M o T s el

Investments In and Advances to Affiliates (Note B) .
Property, Plant and Equipment, net {Nutn CJ £ ST tae
Deferred Charges and Other Assets . Sl

Wy BT T Ry g e o T e oy e e P

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY
Current Liabilities:

Debt maturing within one year (Note E) . ... ..o
Accounts PAVRBLE .« o0 v apic s s s b e s a F At Rt e s e ay
Other current liabilities (Note D) .. .. oo viiin s tenle b

Total Current Lipbilities . . ... .....cconimeivrnnssnnrsss

LongTerm Debt (Note B) . .. ... .. coii ansressiatnsssssssansing

Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities:

Accumulated deferred Income LAXES . . ... oo v vuesnrva s s anansa
Unamortized investment tax credibs . . .. oo v oo v v v v oo nranenis
Other liabilities and deferred credits (Note F). . ... ... i

Total Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities . ... ...............

Shareholder’s Equity:

Common stock, one share, nopar value ...........c00 v vannenn
Rotalned earnings . .. .. 0 . i cuisieinimnmasaaine sainnanss

Total Shareholder's Equity . .

Total Liabilities and Sharehnldnr'n I:.quily .....................

Dbecembsr 31

1994 1993
§ %44 § B3
23165 2,229.0
375.2 374.3
380.1 2583 5
3,166.2 29414
2489 238.2
235152 23444 4
441.5 471.2
$27,371.8 §27,0852
£ 12182 & 10946
1,121.9 1,037.1
2.502.4 24154
48425 4.547.1
6,611.8 6,546.5
268921 28314
443.3 5159
1,667.6 1,994.7
5,093.0 65,342.0
7.403.0 7.479.6
3,621.5 3,180.0
10,924.6 10,669.6
$27871.8 §27,00856.2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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BELLSOUTH TELECOMMUNICATIONS, INC,

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

{In Millions)

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
TGl TCOMYE s i a v ionig i n mim win o mcn Se it A e a0 T v e A BT
Adjustments to net income:
Depreciabion . ... .0 viiine e nrrserneinssns
Provision for losses on bad debts . . . . .............
Deferred income taxes and unamortized investment tax
| Y o R e PRy P e
Allowance for funds used during construction .......
Restructuring charge. . ...« vvvvnerinnonnsnssns
Payment of call premium . .........0cc0veenvnnrs
Extraordinary loss on early extinguishment of debt . . .
Change in accounting principle, netof tax . .........
Summary tax assessment settlement . .............
Change in sccounts receivable . . .. ...............
Change in material and supplies .................
Change in accounts payable and other current
[T 711107 s g - tipp = b P R g 2 5 AP
Change in deferred charges a.nd other assets . .......
Change in other liabilities and deferred credits ......
Other reconciling items, net ....................
Net cash provided by operating activities .........
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Capital expenditures, . .. .. .. cvuivievrnrevsrasras
Proceeds from disposals of property, plant and equipment
Investment dispositions . ..................000.n0.
Purchase of BellSouth Common Stock. . . ............
Other investing activities, net . . S R TPl A g e
Net cash used for investing m:twiuu ............
Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Proceeds from short-term borrowings . .. ............
Hepayment of short-term borrowings . ..............
Advances from parent and affiliates ................
Repayment of advances from parent and affiliates . . . . . .
Proceeds from longtermdebt . . ...................
Hepayments of long-term debt . ... ... .. e g
Payment of capital lease obligations ................
Equity investmentof parent . . . .. .................
Dividends paid toparent ........................

Net cash used for financing activities .. ..........

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents . . . .
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Period . . . .

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Period ...........

For the Years Ended Decrmber 31,

1994

1993

1992

§ 19516 § B3I50 § 15743

29498 2,800.0 2,8659.9
111.6 1286 142.5
(35.2) (677.1) {147.5)
{19.7) (23.7) (15.3)

_— I.l 136.-1 ey
- (89.7) {33.4)
—_— 146.4 70.7
— 64.8 —
—_— - 909
(223.0) (408.4) (206.7)
(134.1) {91.1) (135.0)
{400.2) 141.7 B6.0
(48.1) 98.6 3.7
299.3 148.2 162.0
5.8 (41.4) (35.8)
4 4678 4,257.3 44163
(2,970.8) (2,994.9) (2,845.8)
79.5 874 B2.9
45.2 15.0 —
-_ (199.9) -
(1.8) {1.3) (1.1
(2,847.9) (3,093.7) (2,764.0)
13,100.3 10,866.3 10,7139
(13,003.00 (10,645.0) (10,674.8)
434.6 359.8 267.8
(437.0) {357.2) (270.2)
— 29110 543.2
(.4) (2,777.5) (626.7)
14.7) (11.4) (13.4)
(68.B) 28.7 24.0
(1,620.8) (1,687.0) (1,618.5)
(1,699.8) (1,212.3) (1,654.7
10.1 (48.7) (2. -l.
B4.3 133.0 135.4
$ 944 § 843 $ 1330

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

30

P———




BELLSOUTH TELECOMMUNICATIONS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dollars in Millions)

Note A — Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation. The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of BellSouth
Telecommunications, Inc. (BellSouth Telecommunications) and subsidiaries in which it has a control-
ling financial interest. BellSouth Telecommunications is a wholly-owned subsidiary of BellSouth
Corporation (BellSouth). BellSouth Telecommunications maintains substantially all of its accounts
and records in necordance with the Uniform System of Accounts preseribed by the Federal Communi-
cations Commission (FCC) and makes certain adjustments necessary to present the accompanying
financial statements in sccordance with generally accepted accounting principles applicable to regu-
lated entities. Such principles differ in certain respects from those used by unregulated entities, but
are required to appropriately reflect the financial and economic effects of regulation and the rate-
making process. Significant differences resulting from the application of these principles are disclosed
elsewhere in these Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements where appropriate.

Basis of Accounting. BellSouth Telecommunications' consolidated financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, including the provisions
of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No, 71, " Acenunting for the Effects of Certain
Types of Regulation.” Where appropriate, SFAS No. 71 gives accounting recognition to the actions of
regulators. Such actions can provide reasonable assurance of the existence of an asset, reduce or
eliminate the value of an asset or impose or eliminate a liability of a regulated entity.

As o result of such actions by regulators, the consolidated balance sheets ut December 31, 1994
and 1993 reflect net deferred charges (regulatory assets) of $186.5 and $235.9, respectively, related
primarily to compensated absences and unamortized issuance costs for debt that has been refinanced.
Net deferred credits (regulatory liabilities) included in the consolidated balance sheets were $304.0
and $378.9, respectively, related to income tax issues.

Telephone plant and equipment has been depreciated using regulator-prescribed ansset lives.
Other telecommunications companies have recently discontinued accounting under SFAS No. 71 and
have revalued their telephone plant. If BellSouth Telecommunications were to revalue its telephone
plant using similar assumptions and methodology, the net recorded book value of its telephone plant
would be reduced by approximately §4,000 to $6,000.

Cash and Cash Equivalents. BellSouth Telecommunications considers all highly liquid invest-
ments with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents,

Material and Supplies. New and reusable material is carried in inventory, principally at average
original cost, except that specific costs are used in the case of large individual items. Nonreusable
material is carried at estimated salvage value.

Property, Plant and Equipment. The investment in property, plant and equipment is stated at
original cost. For plant dedicated to providing regulated telecommunications services, depreciation is
based on the remaining life method of depreciation and straight-line composite rates determined on
the basis of equal life groups of certain categories of telephone plant acquired in o given year.
Depreciation expense also includes amortization of certain classes of telephone plant and identified
depreciation reserve deficiencies over perfods allowed by regulatory authorities, When such plant is
disposed of, the original cost less net salvage value is charged to accumulated depreciation. Other
depreciable plant is depreciated using either straight-line or accelerated methods over the estimated
useful lives of the assets. Gains and losses on disposal of other depreciable plant are recognized in the
year of disposition as an element of other non-operating income.

Hevenue Recogniticn, HRevenues are recognized when carned. Certnin revenues derived from
local telephone services are billed monthly in advance and are recognized the following month when

an
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(Dollars in Millions)

Note A — Accounting Policies (Continued)

services are provided. Revenues derived from other telecommunications services, principally network
access and toll, are recognized monthly as services are provided. Directory publishing fees are recog-
nized over the life of the related directories, published by an affiliated company, which is generally one
yoar.

Maintenance and Repairs. The cost of maintenance and repairs of plant, including the cost of
replacing minor items not effecting substantinl betterments, is charged o operating expenses.

Allowance for Funds Used During Construction. Regulatory authorities allow BellSouth Telecom-
munications to recognize the cost of capital (debt and equity components) associuted with the con-
struction of certain plant as income. Such income is not realized in cash currently but wili be realized
over the service life of the related plant as the resulting higher depreciation expense and plant
investment are recovered in the form of increased revenues.

Income Tuxes. Effective January 1, 1993, BellSouth Telecommunications adopted SFAS No. 109,
**Accounting for Income Taxes.” In accordance with the standard, the balance sheet reflects deferred
tax balances associated with the anticipated tax impact of future income or deductions implicit in the
balance sheet in the form of temporary differences. Temporary differences primarily result from the
use of accelerated methods and shorter lives in computing depreciation for tax purposes. Prior to
1993, BellSouth Telecommunications accounted for income taxes under the provisions of Accounting
Principles Board Opinion No. 11.

For financial reporting purposes, BellSouth Telecommunications is amortizing deferred invest-
ment tax credits earned prior to the 1986 repeal of the investment tax credit and also some transi-
tional credits earned after the repeal. The credits are being amortized as a reduction to the provision
for income taxes over the estimated useful lives of the assets to which the credits relate.

Note B — Investments In and Advances to Affilintes

Investments In and Advances to Affiliates consists primarily of 3,766,199 shares of BellSouth
common stock. During 1993, grantor trusts established by BellSouth Telecommunications purchased
for $199 9 such BellSouth common stock to provide partiol funding for the bonefits payable under
certain non-qualified benefit plans. Dividend income earned from the BellSouth shares, included as a
component of Other Income, net, was $10.4 and $7.6 for 1994 and 1893, respectively.

Note C — Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment is summarized as follows at December 31:

1994 199)
Outalde plant .« v oo vvvuvsveervinrorcsssarsassnensnns 1729156 §$18,685.7
Central office equipment . ............cocvvvineeeccns.. 1544356 14,6680
Building and ngimprovements. ... ...... .00 uiiinns 27846 26828
Furniture and fixtures . .. ................ 22159 2,109.9
Operating and other equipment . . B44.5 825.1
Station ojuipmnnt .................................. 600.5 631.0
Plant under construction ... .....evvvvcnescscacsaasrnna 280.6 3554
17 b i s R g R 5 e e P e e 161.9 167.6
s T AR e g T M R s S S R 64.2 76.0
41,696.1 40,101,

Loss: Aceumulated depreciation ... ..ol coo. _181B0S 16,6571

Total Property, Plant and Equipment, net . ... ... ..., $23,6156.2 $23.4444

Depreciation of telephone plant and equipment as a percentage of average depreciable telephone
plant was 7.20%, 7.61% and 7.67% for 1994, 1993 and 1992, respectively.
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Note 1) — Other Current Liabilities
Other current linbilities are summarized as follows at December 31:

1994 199)
Restructuring sccrual (see Note J) . ... .ovvenenenaoen oo 8 BI4T § 5134
Advanced billing and customer deposits . .. ......... 00000 4163 4148
Taxes BOCTUBH . . o anp o v s saararassssnssssnasmens s bsnsis J14.1 405.3
Compensated absences. . .. ... ..ccocorranrrari s iaraans 3074 3074
Salorics and woges payable . ... ... ... i 306.3 2994
Interest andrentamcerued . . .. ... ..cii i iaa i 250.0 201.2
Dividends payable toparent . . . ......... il 163.9 164.6
0o o T e AN P S W P - i ST AR 10 139.7 79.3

Tota! Other Current Liabilities ... ......ccoveeeeceve.... $2,6024 824154

Note E — Debt

Debt Maturing Within One Year: Debt maturing within one year is included as debt in BellSouth
Telecommunications’ computation of debt ratios and consistcd of the following at December 31:

1994 1993
Commercial PAPOT . . .« scvvrrronresrssassssssnssassnsans $1,181.0 $1,0856
Current maturitiesof longtermdebt .. ..... ... ... c00iinn 37.2 9.0
(5P e (T s i L SRR IS, e R $1,2182 $1,0046
Weighted average interest rate at end of period:
CommerciB] PAPEL ... cvoveiatenrrassassasassssnsnsnes 587% 3.91%

BellSouth Telecommunications has committed credit lines aggregating $1,271.4 with various
banks. There were no borrowings under the committed lines at December 31, 1994. BellSouth
Telecommunications does not have any uncommitted lines of credit at December 31, 1994. There are
no significant commitment fees or requirements for compensating balances associated with any lines
of credit.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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Note E — Debt (Continued)

Long-Term: Long-term debt is summarized as follows at December 31:

Contractoal

Interest Rales  Maturities 1994 1993
Debentures: %% - 6%% 1995-2033 $£1,270.0 31,2700
T™H% - 84% 2010-2033 1,935.0 19350
BUo% - BMS  2024-2029 1,400.0 1,400.0
46050 46050
1] T T e e (e D % - T% 1998-2008 1,876.0 1,8756.0
O T e e 129.3 1374

Unamaortized discount,

net of premium. .. ... (60.3) (61.9)
6,548.0 6,5665.56
Current maturities . . . . (37.2) (9.0)
Total Long-Term Debt $6,511.8 $6,646.5

Mauturities of long-term debt outstanding (face amounts) at December 31, 1994 are

summarized below:

1999 Thereafer Total

Maturities . . .. ........ $372 $— 8750 85700 §

5 $509266 $6,609.3

During 1993 and 1992, BellSouth Telecommunications refinanced certain long-term debt issues
at more favorable interest rates. As a result of the early extinguishment of these issues, charges of
£86.6, net of taxes of $58 8, and $40.7, net of taxes of §30.0, were recognized as extraordinary losses in

1093 and 1992, respectively.

At December 31, 1994, u shelf registration statement had been filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission by BellSouth Telecommunications under which $7256.0 of debt securities could

be offered.
Note F — Other Liabilities and Deferred Crediis

Other liabilities und deferred credits is summarized as follows at December 31:

Acorued Ponsion DBt . oo v o s i v biveen pain s B e e N

Compensation related . . . ..

Regulatory linbility related to incume I:.l.I.u {lH N'DIE L]

R

Sharing acerunl under FCC pricecapplan .. ... ... .........

Postemployment benefits . .. .. ............

Restructuring accrual (see Note ) .. ... .ovvvoiviniiiais
80 R T L R r D T T i e o L R e R N e T R T

Total Other Liabilitics and Deferred Credits

.....

174 1993
§ 6666 § 5394
307.2 274.5
..... 304.0 378.9
141.6 417
,,,,, 128.3 116.6
—_ 570.0
209.9 73.6

$1,657.6 $1904.7




BELLSOUTH TELECOMMUNICATIONS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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Note D — Other Current Lisbilities
Other current linbilities are summarized as follows at December 31:

1994 1993
Restructuring accrual (see Note J) ... ..o oooviinnaiiiiiiaaa § 614.7 % bBl134
Advanced billing and customer deposits . . ................... 416.3 4148
TAKPE BOCTUO o - iie sins o e s ibis u.p wo s siasss aaaaanlnaosessnedn 314.1 405.3
Compensated absences . . ... ... ccieetiiosnrniartnsssnns 3074 3074
Salaries and wages payable . ....... ... .. i iiieiii i 306.3 299.4
Interest and rentsaccrued . .. .. v v i in i e 250.0 231.2
Dividends payabletoparent. . .. ..... ... ..o iiaannraaanas 163.9 164.6
W17 e iciinhy S, Sl e Rl o RS i sy g S 139.7 783

Total Other Current Liabilities . . . .. ... ... 0o, $25024 8524164

Note E — Debt

Debt Maturing Within One Year:  Debt maturing within one year is included as debt in BeliSouth
Telecommunications' computation of debt ratios and consisted of tne following at December 31:

1994 1593
Commercial PAPET « ..o v v vvvusrssssrrrsansssanrsnnersnes $1,181.0 $1,0856
Current maturities of long-termdebt . . .. ..........cvvuiian. a7.2 9.0
7 e o SRESEs s 5 AR AT e WA P $1,218.2 £1,0946
Weighted average interest rate at end of period:
Commercial PAPEF . . o suvaifions s asioenssiniulesie dlhivassigesn 5.87% 3.91%

BellSouth Telecommunications has committed eredit lines aggregating $1,271.4 with various
banks. There were no borrowings under the committed lines at December 31, 1964, BellSouth
Telecommunications does not have any uncommitted lines of credit at December 31, 1094. There are
no significant commitment fees or requirements for compensating balances associated with any lines
of credit.




BELLSOUTH TELECOMMUNICATIONS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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Note G — Transactions with AMillates

BellSouth Telecommunications has a contractual agreement with BellSouth Advertising & Pub-
lishing Corporation (BAPCO), an affiliated company, wherein BAPCO publishes certain telephone
directories and in return pays BellSouth Telecommunications a publishing rights fee in its franchise
area. For the years ended December 31, 1994, 19983 and 1992, these fees, included in Other operating
revenue, were $638.1, $616.3 and $508.2, respectively.

At December 31, 1994 and 1993, amounts receivable from affiliated companies were $21.4 and
$20.2, respectively. Amounts payable to affiliated companies at December 31, 1984 and 1993, both
ghort and long-term, were $432.3 and $465.8, respectively.

Note H — Employee Benefits

Pension Plans. Substantially all employees of BellSouth Telecommunications are covered by
noncontributory defined benefit pension plans sponsored by BellSouth. Principal plans are discussed
below; other plans are not significant individually or in the aggregate.

The plan covering non-represented employees is a cash balance plan which provides pension
benefits determined by & combination of compensation-based service and additional credits and
individual account-based interest credits. The cash balance plan is subject to a minimum benefit
determined under a plan in existence for non-represented employees prior to July 1, 1993 which
provided benefits based upon credited service and employees’ average compensation for a specified
period. The minimum benefit under the prior plan is applicable to employees retiring through 2005,
Both the 1994 and 1993 projected benefit obligations assume interest and additional credits greater
than the minimum levels specified in the written plan. Pension benefits provided for represented
employees are based on specified benefit amounts and years of service and includes the projected vTect
of future bargained-for improvements.

BellSouth’s funding policy is to make contributions to trust funds with the objective of accumu-
lating sufficient assets to pay all pension benefits for which BellSouth is liable. Contributions are
actuarially determined using the aggregate cost method, subject to ERISA and Internal Revenue
Service limitations. Pension plan assets consist primarily of equity securities and fixed income
investments.

Effective January 1, 1994, the non-represented cash balance plan was divided from one into four
cash balance plans which allowed for costs to be accounted for i..are precisely based upon specific
company demographic information. The plan division had no material impact on BellSouth Telecom-
munications' 1994 costs.
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Note H — Employee Benefits (Continued)
The components of net periodic pension cost for the non-represented plan are summarized below:

194
Service cost — benefits earned during the year. . . ... ... .. i i $ 811
Interest cost on projected benefit obligation . ........... .. o iaiaaas 3249
Actunl losson plan assets .. ..........c.cccrvsadiesransssanaoran 57.8
Net amortization and deferral ... ...cctvveinvviiiarcessieairsnanss (605.7)
Net periodicpensionincome . . . ........ .0 . i § (41.9)
The following table sets forth the funded status of the plan at December 31:
1994
Actuarial present value of:
Vested benefitobligation ... ... ... .o i i, $3,470.6
Accumulated benefit obligation . . .. ....... .. iy £3,740.0
Projected benefit obligation . ... .. e veeiniiicnsiaiiiiii e $4,104.8
Plan nssets at market value . . .. cvvvvvn v rssorsissssssanannas 5,282.2
Plan assets in excess of projected benefit obligation .................... 1,1774
Unrecognized net gain due to past experience different from assumptions
LT Ter Gt e L e Ut Lo el S SRl L S R (880.2)
Unrecognized prior service cost . . ... ..o vuivr oo oot istneassas (304.3)
Unrecognized net asset at transition . ....... .. . .. oo (49.0)
Accrued penslon coBt ... ... isasenrarsrasinsbasrsssrararasysas § (56.1)

Prior to 1994, BellSouth Telecommunications was allocated a portion of the expenses for both the
non-represented and represented plans’ pension expense. Pension cost allocated to BeliSouth Tele-
communications in 1994 for the represented plan was $63.6, and for both non-represented and
represented plans in 1993, and 1992 was $113.4, and $155.3, respectively. The decrease in 1994
pension expense is primarily the result of a reduction in assumed benefit levels partially offset by the
decrease in the discount rate assumption. The consolidated net pension expense amounts reflected
above are exclusive of curtailment gains reflected in the restructuring activities fiscussed below.

SFAS No. 87, “Employers’ Accounting for Pensions,”" requires certain disclosures to be made with
respect to the components of net periodic pension cost for the period and a reconcilistion of the funded
status of the plan with amounts reported in the balance sheets, Such disclosures are not presented in
1994 for the represented plan and for years prior to 1994 for both non-represented and represented
plans because the structure of the BellSouth plans does not permit disaggregation of relevant plan
information on an individual company basis.

The significant actuarial assumptions at December 31, 1894 and 1993 were as follows:

1994 1993
Weighted average discount rate. . . . . ..ovvvrororrrrrnnssassssss 8.25% 71.5%
Weighted average rate of compensation increase ................... &57% 57%
Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets . ................. BO0% B0%

Postretirement Benefits Other Than Penslons.  Substantially all non-represented and represented
employees of BellSouth Telecommunications participate in BellSouth's postretirement health and life
insurance welfare plans. Effective January 1, 1993, BellSouth adopted SFAS No. 106, "Employers’
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Note G — Transactions with Affiliates

BellSouth Telecommunications has a contractual agreement with BellSouth Advertising & Pub-
lishing Corporation (BAPCO), an affiliated company, wherein BAPCO publishes certain telephone
directories and in return pays BellSouth Telecommunications a publishing rights fee in its franchise
urca. For the yoars ended December 31, 1994, 1993 and 1992, these fees, included in Other operating
revenue, were $638.1, $616.3 and $598.2, respectively.

At December 31, 1994 and 1993, amounts receivable from affiliated companies were $21.4 and
$20.2, respectively. Amounts payable to affilinted companies at December 31, 1994 and 1983, both
short and long-term, were $432.3 and $465.8, respectively.

Note H — Employee Benefits

Pension Plans. Substantially all employees of BellSouth Telecommunications are covered by
noncontributory defined benefit pension plans sponsored by BellSouth. Principal plans are discussed
below; other plans are not significant individually or in the aggregate.

The plan covering non-represented employees is a cash balance plan which provides pension
benefits determined by n combination of compensation-based service and additional credits and
individual account-based interest credits. The cash balance plan is subject to a minimum benefit
determined under a plan in existence for non-represented employees prior to July 1, 1993 which
provided benefits based upon credited service and employees' average compensation for o specified
period. The minimum benefit under the prior plan is applicable to employees retiring through 2005.
Both the 1994 and 1993 projected benefit obligations assume interest and additional credits greater
than the minimum levels specified in the written plan. Pension benefits provided for represented
employees are based on specified benefit amounts and years of service and includes the projected effect
of future bargained-for improvements,

BellSouth’s funding policy is to make contributions to trust funds with the objective of accumu-
lating sufficient assets to pay all pension benefits for which BellSouth is liable. Contributions are
actuarially determined using the aggregate cost method, subject to ERISA and Internal Revenue
Service limitations. Pension plan assets consist primarily of equity securities and fixed income
investments.

Effective January 1, 1994, the non-represented cash balance plan was divided from one into four
cash balance plans which allowed for costs to be accounted for more precisely based upon specific
company demographic information. The plan division had no material impact on BellSouth Telecom-
munications' 1904 costs.
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Note H — Employee Benefits (Continued)

Accounting for Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions,” to account for these plans. Bell-
South's transition benefit obligation is being amortized over 15 years, the average remaining service
period of active plan participants at adoption. The accounting for the health care plun does not
anticipate future adjustments to the cost-sharing arrangements provided for in the written plan for
employees retiring after December 31, 1991,

BellSouth's funding policy is to make contributions to trust funds with the objective of accumu-
luting sufficient assets to pay all health and life benefits for which BellSouth is liable. Contributions
ure actuarially determined using the aggregate cost method, subject to ERISA and Internal Revenue
Service limitations. Assets in the health and life plans consist primarily of equity securities and fixed
income investments,

Postretirement benefit cost allocated to BellSouth Telecommunications was $288.5 and $243.7
for 1994 and 1993. The consolidated net postretirement benefit cost amounts reflocted above are
exclusive of curtailment losses reflected in the restructuring activities discussed below. Prior to 1993,
BellSouth Telecommunications recognized the cost of providing postretirement benefits based on
funded amounts. The cost of providing health and life benefits for both active and retired employees
was $524.1 for 1092. SFAS No. 106 requires certain disclosures to be made with respect to the
components of net periodic postretirement benefit cost for the period and a reconciliation of the
funded status of the plan with amounts reported in the balance sheets, Such disclosures are not
presented because the structure of the BellSouth plan does not permit disaggregation of relevant plan
information on an individual company basis.

The significant actuarial assumptions at December 31, 1994 and lﬂ:ﬂ.'! were ns (ollows:

e um
Weighted average discount rate . . .. ... ... oo oo B75% T.6%
Weighted average rate of compensation increase . ...........000000 57% b67%
Henlth core cost trend rate (1) . . ... o0 i i is e ncananan 11.0% 11.6%
Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets (2) ... .00 oo BO% BO%

(1) Trend rate to decrease gradually to 5% in 2007

(2) Rate net of an estimated 30% tax reduction for the non-represented employe..s' trust for both
1994 and 1993

The health care cost trend rate assumption affects the amounts reported. A one-percentage-paint
increase in the assumed health care cost trend rates for each future year would increase BellSouth's
accumulated postretirement benefit obligation by $108 at December 31, 1994 and the estimated

agregate service and interest cost components of the 1994 postretirement benefit cost by §14.

Most regulatory jurisdictions have accepted BellSouth Telocommunications’ SFAS No. 106 imple-
mentation plan. However, two states are requiring a 20-year and 30-year amortization of the transi-
tion benefit obligation, the impact of which is not material to BellSouth.

Effect of Restructuring on Penslons and Postretirement Benefits. As a part of the restructuring
charge in 1993 (see Note J), BellSouth Telecommunications recorded a liability of $88 for estimated
net curtailment losses expected to impact BellSouth Telecommunications’ pension and postretire-
ment benefit plans. Of the amount recognized, $32 and $16 were realized and charged against the
restructuring linbility in 1994 and 1993, respectively.
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Note H — Employee Benefits (Continued)

Defined Contribution Plans. BellSouth maintains contributory savings plans which cover sub-
stantially all employees of BellSouth Telecommunications. Employees’ eligible contributions are
matched with BellSouth common stock based on defined percentages determined annually by the
Board of Directors. BellSouth Telecommunications recognized compensation expense of $113.4,
£107.3 and $112.6 in 1994, 1993 and 1992, respectively, related to these plans.

Postemployment Benefits, Effective January 1, 1993, BellSouth Telecommunications adopted
SFAS No. 112, “Employers' Accounting for Postemployment Benefits." SFAS No. 112 requires em-
ployers to accrue the cost of postemployment benefits provided to former or inactive employees after
employment but before retirement, including but not limited to workers' compensation, disability,
and continuation of health care benefits. Previously, BellSouth Telecommunications used the cash
method to account for such costs. A one-time charge of $64.8, net of a deferred tax benefit of $40.8,
related to adoption of this statement was recognized as a change in sccounting principle. The effect of
the change on BellSouth Telecommunieations’ 1993 operating results wos not material,

Note | — Leases

BeliSouth Telecommunications has entered into operating leases for facilities and equipment
used in operations. Rental expenses under operating leases were $239.9, $228 6 and $258.7 for 1994,
1993 and 1992, respectively. Capital leases currently in effect are not significant.

The following table summarizes the approximate future minimum rentals under non-cancelable
operating leases in effect at December 31, 1994:
1995 1996 1997 19 1999  Thereafter  Total

Minimum rentals . .. ....... $85.7 %694 £629 8561 8528 $523.6 $850.5

Note J — Restructuring Charge

The results of operations for the year ended December 31, 1993 include a $1,136.4 restructuring
charge which reduced net income by $696.6. The restructuring is being undertaken to redesign and
streamline the fundamental processes and work activities in the telephone operations to better
respond to an increasingly competitive business environment, The restructuring is expected to im-
prove overall responsiveness to customer needs and reduce costs.

The material components of the charge related to the reduction of the workforce by 10,200
employees. Through December 31, 1994, cumulative employee reductions relaied to the restructuring
plan were 5,200, consisting of 1,300 in 1993 and 3,900 in 1994. The components of the charge
consisted of provisions of $368.2 for separation payments and relocations of remaining employees,
£342 8 for consolidation and elimination of certain operations facilities and $425.4 for enabling
changes to information systems, primarily those used to provide services to existing customers.

At December 31, 1994, the remaining liability associated with the restructuring plan was $614.7,
all of which wns current,
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Note K — Additional Income Statement Dala

1794 1993 1991
Interest Expense;
Longtermdebt .......ccn00nvnvesrereniannnanans $466.2 86004 $530.2
Commercial paper . ........cvveeiievenanarisanies 45.8 364 27.2
R L L T v o e a1 ar8 26.8 25.9
d {01 0 e TR e T s P TR e e $6488 $562.6 85813
Other Income, net:
Interest and dividend income . . .. ... ... . L il $139 $119 $694
Other, DL . . .o v iemasssessasbrssssnrsnasannesns 4.4 95 6.1
Total - i . .o B s sy et e S A A $18.3 8214 $755

Interest and dividend income for 1992 includes $56.6 relating to the settlement of an Internal
Revenue Service summary assessment for the tax years 197b and 1980.

Revenues from services provided to AT&T Corp., BellSouth Telecommunications’ iargest cus-
tomer, were approximately 13%, 16% and 16% of consolidated operating revenues for 1994, 1993 and

1992, respectively.

Note L — Income Taxes

Effective January 1, 1993, BellSouth Telecommunications adopted SFAS No. 109, *‘Accounting
for Income Taxes,” which applies a balance sheet approach to income tax accounting. In accordance
with the new standard, the balance sheet reflects the anticipated tax impact of future taxable income
or deductions implicit in the balance sheet in the form of temporary differences. These temporary
differences reflect the difference botween the basis in assets and linbilities as measured in the financial
statements and as measured by tax laws using enacted tax rates. The cumulative effect of the adoption
of SFAS No. 109 was not material.

In accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 71, *Accounting for the Effects of Certain Types of
Regulation,” BellSouth Telecommunications has, for its regulated operations, only reflected the
balance sheet impact of the adoption of SFAS No. 109, Specifically, BellSouth Telecommunications in
1993 recorded a net regulatory liability of $538.0 to correspond to the 1.t reduction in deferred tax
liabilities; the reduction resulted from changes in tax rates and from temporary differences which
were previously flowed through. The balance of such net liability at December 31, 1894, included in
Other Liabilities and Deferred Credits, was $304.0. This net regulatory liability is adjusted as the
related temporary differences reverse.

BellSouth Telecommunications is included in the consolidated Federal income tax return filed by
BellSouth. Consolidated tax expense is allocated among the separate members of the group in accor-
dance with the applicable sections of the Internal Revenue Code,

Generally, under this method each company calculates its current tax expense as if it filed a
separate return, The sum of the separate company liabilities is compared to the consolidated return
liability. The resulting difference, the benefit of consolidation, is allocated to companies contributing
benefits (operating losses, excess credits and capital losses) in proportion to the amounts contributed.
Deferred taxes are not nllocated among the members of the group.
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Note L. — Income Taxes (Continued)
The provision for income taxes is summarized as follows:

1994 1993 1992
Federal:
[T T e TR ol S oo b SN O o 1 £ 9833 $ 9733 § Bl103
Deferred, net .. .cv.cnsevstonmssessssssnassas 204 (513.2) (74.4)
Investment tax credits, net. . ... A e RO = (72.6) (88.3) (87.9)
831.1 a71.8 B48.0
State:
[0 1T || et (R RIP f e C RUC or W el RPN S - 157.5 162.1 134.2
Defarred, Dot o n s sl des e s fanaasiesss 17.0 (62.4) 18.6
174.5 B9.7 162.8
Total provision for income taxes. . . ........... ll,lﬂE‘E § 4615 § BOOB
Amortization of investment tax credits . . . ......... 8 726 $ B8B83 & BB2

Temporary differences and carryforwards which gave rise to deferred tax assets and {linbilities) at
December 31 were as follows:

1994 199)

et e T O e RN Sl et SR ) SRR, iy $ 2653 § 2285
Restructuring Charg®. . ... covveosisiensssoaasansaissans 238.1 419.56
Regulatory sharingaceruals. .. ..............covecuiaaans 923 21.3
Compensated absences .. ..........cocornocriirarierans 890.8 79.9
Deferred compensation . .. ...ceerovsvsracrorasanssassns 79.2 66.8
Bad dEbbE .\ o von o virssn s saies dep s s s s s sieasseiae s 70.2 64.8
Leveraged employee stock ownershipplan . . ................ 411 340
1 S 5y I e [ e D L DAL RS R R AR TR 44.0 36.2
Deferred Tax Assote . ... ... cviveranriraissnasnanssss 921.0 950.0
DOPreciBtion . . . .ccasisssnrssssrssssnrossrassonsnesyes (3,647.2) (3,681.8)

[0 T R e TP RSPy o o0 CPE ‘3.4) -
Deferred Tax Liabilities . ............cc0iireriverins (3,662.6) (3,681.8)
Net Deferred Tax Liability ... ... ... ooiiiiiannn. $(2,731.6) $(2,631.8)

Of the Net Deferred Tax Liability at December 31, 1994 and 1993, $260.5 and $199.6, respectively,
was current and $(2,992.1) and $(2,831.4), respectively, was noncurrent.

Prior to 1093, deferred tax expense resulted from timing differences in the recognition of revenue
and expense items for tax and financial reporting purposes, as follows:

1992
Property, plant and equipment .............c.ociiiianriiaiiirraiiaas $ (84)
Ponsion benefits . ... oo inveosssssariantoansanssnnsasasssasansonin (61.6)
Other timing differences . . ... ... oot rassssssasaansanssns 4.2
MRl o s o e e T e e e i e e e R R A W T e Wt e e $(565.8)




BELLSOUTH TELECOMMUNICATIONS, INC,
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
{Dollars in Millions)

Note L. — Income Taxes (Continued)
A reconciliation of the Federal statutory income tax rate to BellSouth Telecommunications’
effective tax rate follows:
19 1993 1991

Federal statutory tax rate . ........ccomosmarrannossans 36.0% 365.0% 34.0%
State income taxes, net of Federal income tax benefit . ....... a8 44 4.2
Amortization of investment tax credits . . ... ... ... 0000 (2.4) (6.1) (3.7)
Miscellaneous items, net .. ........cccocoeacaarassases 020 (14) (14)
Effective tBX TALE . . .o oo wva s sassacsarsnassnssnsssas 36.2% 319% 33.1%

Note M — Supplemental Cash Flow Information
The following supplemental information is presented in accordance with the provisions of SFAS
No. 95, “Statement of Cash Fiows':

1994 1993 1992
Cash paid for Interest and Income Taxes:
o e e B (e S et L R L e iy AP $ 5544 86159 85788
T P e o F e SRR L S L (PP £1,268.6 $791.7 895856
Net assets (ligbilities) transferred to BellSouth
TelecommURICAtIONA. + o vo v v v vsvassssanssssssosssasssssss § — § 2556 $(47.3)

Note N — Financial Instruments

The following disclosure of the estimated fair value of financial instruments is presented in
accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 107, “Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instru-
ments.” The estimated fair value amounts have been determined using available market information
described below. Since judgment is required to develop the estimates, the estimated amounts
presented herein may not be indicative of the amounts that BellSouth Telecommunications could
realize in a current market exchange.

1994 199)

Recorded Estimated Recorded Estimated
Amounl F 'r Value Amount Fair Value

Assets (Liabllities):

Cash and cash equivalents . . . ... ........... § 044 & 944 § B43 § B43
Marketable securities., . .. ... ... 00 e a 199.9 2038 199.9 2184
Commercial PaPEr . . ..o vcvev i iianaiaania (1,181.0) (1,181.0) (1,085.6) (1,085.6)
Long-Term Debt:
Debentures . ........coc0cucsssnssnsarins (4,605.0) (4,176.8) (4,605.0) (4,707.0)
INOLEE . .+ «aommmnrim w8 8 mw s n s 8 s a8 (1,8765.0) (1,670.0) (1,876.0) (1,901.0)

Cash and Cash Equivalents. At December 31, 1994 and 1993, the recorded amount for Cash and
cash equivalents approximates fair value due to the short-term nature of these instruments.

Marketable Securities. The fair value of Marketable securities (representing BellSouth Common
Stock), included as a component of Investments in and Advances to Affiliates, is based on the quoted
market prices at December 31, 1994 and 1993, respectively (see Note B).
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BELLSOUTH TELECOMMUNICATIONS, I:C.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(Dollars in Millions)

Note N — Financial Instruments (Continued)

Debt. At December 31, 1994 and 1993, the recorded amount for Commercial paper approximates
the fair value due to the short-term nature of the liability. The estimates of fair value for Debentures
and Notes are based on the closing market prices for each issue at December 31, 1994 and 1993,
respectively (see Note E).

Concentrations of Credit Risk. Financial instruments which potentially subject BellSouth Tele-
communications to credit risk consist principally of trade nccounts receivable. Concentrations of
credit risk with respect to these receivables are limited due to the composition of the customer base,
which includes a large nume.. * of individuals and businesses. At December 31, 1994, approximately
$448 of trade accounts receivable were from interexchange carriers.

Note 0 — Quarterly Financial Information (Unaudited)

In the following summary of quarterly financial information, all adjustments necessary for a fair
presentation of each period were included. The results for first quarter 1993 were restated to reflect
the one-time, non-cash charge for retroactive adoption of SFAS No. 112. The results for fourth quarter
1993 include a restructuring charge of $1,136.4, which reduced net income by $696.6.

Firt  Second ~ Thind  Fourth
Quarter  Quarter  Quarter  Quarter

1994

Operating Revenues . . . ..........c00veee ..., $3,6258 $34419 §3,6101 §3,662.1

OperatingIncome .........cocoaveeceverne... $ 9193 § 8803 § 8514 § 936.7

TIOh TIUEOIE oo i ot s it e P e § 4961 § 4748 § 461.1 § 519.6

Firut Second Thilrd Fourth

Quarier Quarter Quarter Quaresr
(Restated)

1993

Operating Hevenues . . .. ...................... $3337.0 $3321.0 $3 4475 $3474.1

Operating Income (Loss) ........ § 7405 $ T769.0 $ B3l.1l § (351.5)

Income (Loss) Before Extraordinary Loss or;, Enri}r -
Extinguishment of Debt and Cumulative Effect of

Change in Accounting Principle ................ $ 3879 § 4103 & 4410 § (252.8)
Extraordinary Loss on Early Extinguishment of Debt,

T B T | o e e e T A T N e — (55.4) (7.8) {23.4)
Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting Principle,

el B T R LI R ol A R [y el ] = B 164.8) — — -
Not Incomie (LOomB) .+ oo e v s i vanieediais 3 3231 5 3549 § 433.2 § (276.2)
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

No change in accountants or disagreements on the adoption of appropriate accounting standards
or financial disclosure have occurred during the periods included in this report.

PART IV
ITEM 14. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES AND REPORTS ON FORM 8-K
a. Documents filed as a part of the report: Pageis)

(1) Financial Statements:
Report of Independent Accountants/Consent of Independent

ACCOURLANES , . 2 e aiilania s s v s n s asss s annsininsssr sy 27
Consolidated Statements of Income and Retained Earnings . . . .. 28
Consolidated Balance Sheets . .. .. ... oo e anninrassras 29
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows . .. ..... .00 30
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements ... ............. 31 - 42

(2) Financial statement schedules have been omitted because the required information is
contained in the financial statements and notes thereto or because such schedules are
not required or applicable.

(3) Exhibits: Exhibits identified in parentheses below, on file with the SEC, are incorporated
herein by reference os exhibits hereto.

Exhibit

Sumber

da Restated Articles of Incorporation of BellSouth Telecommunications, Inc. (Exhibit 3a to
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1891, File No. 1-1049),

ib Bylaws of BellSouth Telecommunications, Inc. as amended, effective November 22,
1993. (Exhibit 3b to Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1983, File
No. 1-1049),

4 No instrument which defines the rights of holders of long and intermediate term debt
of BellSouth Telecommunications is filed herewith pursuant to Regulation S-K, Item
601(b)(4)({iiNA). Pursuant to this regulation, BellSouth Telec. nmunications, Inc.
hereby agrees to furnish a copy of any such instrument to the SEC upon request.

12 Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges

24 Powers of Attorney.

27 Financial Data Schedule.

b. Reports on Form 8-K:
Nane.

43




SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section13 or 16(d) of the Securitics Exchange Act of 1834, the
registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly
authorized.

BELLSOUTH TELECOMMUNICATIONS, INC.

o/ PATRICK H. CASEY
Patrick H. Casey

Vice President and Comptroller
March 6, 1905

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed
below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the date
indicated.

PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER:
Jere A. Drummond®
Fresident and Chiel Executive Officer

PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER

AND PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING OFFICER:
Patrick H. Cusey*®

Viee President and Comptroller

DIRECTOHRS:
Irving W Bailey 11* John W Harris*
Robert H. Boh® Mark C. Hollis*
Edward E. Crutchfield, Jr.* Harry M. Lightsey, Jr.*
Frank K. Day* Thomas H. Mecker®
Jere A. Drummond® Joe M. Rodgers®
Lloyd C. Elam® Charles J. Zwick®
*By: /s/ Patrick H. CASEY
Patrick H. Casey
(Individually and as Attorney-In-Fact)
March 6, 1995
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